
WHITEWATER TOWNSHIP BOARD 

AGENDA FOR SPECIAL MEETING – September 19, 2023  

9:00 a.m. at the Whitewater Township Hall 

5777 Vinton Road, Williamsburg, MI 49690 

Phone 231-267-5141/Fax 231-267-9020 

 

At this time, the Board invites everyone to silence their electronic devices. 
Whitewater Zoom is inviting you to a scheduled Zoom meeting. 

 

Topic: Township Board Special Meeting 

Time: Sep 19, 2023 09:00 AM Eastern Time (US and Canada) 

 

Join Zoom Meeting 

https://us06web.zoom.us/j/81891998116?pwd=oDW3WzkKkHJKmOOAMCVqKJM73bb2p5.1 

 

Meeting ID: 818 9199 8116 Passcode: 520183 

 

One tap mobile: +13092053325,,81891998116#,,,,*520183# US, 

+13126266799,,81891998116#,,,,*520183# US (Chicago) 

 

Dial by your location: 1 309 205 3325 US, 1 312 626 6799 US (Chicago) 

1 646 558 8656 US (New York), 1 301 715 8592 US (Washington DC) 

1 720 707 2699 US (Denver), 1 346 248 7799 US (Houston) 

 

Find your local number: https://us06web.zoom.us/u/kdfgVh0tzB 

 

Whitewater Township will provide necessary reasonable auxiliary aids and services to 

individuals with disabilities upon reasonable advance notice. Contact the Township Clerk at 

231.267.5141 Ext. 24 at least 5 days in advance of the meeting. 

 

 

A. Call to Order    

 

B. Roll Call of Board Members  

 

C. Set/Adjust Meeting Agenda -  

 

D. Declaration of Conflict of Interest   

 

E. Public Comment.  Any person shall be permitted to address a meeting of the township board.  

Public comment shall be carried out in accordance with the following board rules and 

procedures: 

1. Comments shall be directed to the board, with questions directed to the chair. 

2. Any person wishing to address the board shall speak from the lectern and state his or her 

name and address. 

3. Persons may address the board on matters that are relevant to township government 

issues. 

 

4. No person shall be allowed to speak more than once on the same matter, excluding the 

time needed to answer board member’s questions.  The chair shall control the amount of 

time each person shall be allowed to speak, which shall not exceed five (5) minutes. 

https://us06web.zoom.us/j/81891998116?pwd=oDW3WzkKkHJKmOOAMCVqKJM73bb2p5.1
https://us06web.zoom.us/u/kdfgVh0tzB


 

 

F. Correspondence –  

 

1 Memo Correspondence for 9.19.2023 

2 Zoning Board of Appeals Decision - 6631 Baggs Road Appeal (1) 

3 Goss email Zoning Board of Appeals Decision - 6631 Baggs Road Appeal (1) 

4 Gmail - Re_ Ex parte_ 

5 Beam Gmail - Ex parte_ 

6 Van Solkema Gmail - Re_ Variance approved 

7 Herring Gmail - Variance approved 

8 Beam Gmail - ZBA notification 

8a Goss Gmail - ZBA Decision Form - 6631 Baggs Road Appeal 

9 Goss Gmail - ZBA Decision Form - 6631 Baggs Road Appeal 

10 Fox Gmail - Email from Denny and Jan Fox 

11 Gmail - Baggs rd development 

11a Beam 3 Gmail - Conduct of Treasurer 

12 Goss Gmail - HYMORE ZBA INTERFERENCE 

12a - Gmail - RE_ Regarding the Requested Variance for Baggs Rd Condos 

13 Patterson Gmail - RE_ Baggs Rd Appeal 

14 Beam Gmail - Re_ ZBA 

15 Hymore - Request for Copy of Baggs Partners, LLC Variance Request - 6631 Baggs Rd_ 

16 Hymore Gmail - Re_ ZBA 

17 Beam 1 Gmail - Re_ ZBA 

18 ZA Gmail - RE_ ZBA 

19 ZA Gmail - Variance Request 

20 Patterson Gmail - RE_ Whitewater Twp – ZBA 

21 ZA Gmail - RE_ Whitewater Twp – ZBA 

22 Beam Gmail - Would like a response 

23 Patterson Gmail - FW_ 6631 Baggs Rd Attorney Fees Refund 

24 Comments Regarding Corr Goss Whitewater Township Boards Decision to Send 6631 Baggs 

Rd. to ZBA for Appeal 

25 Van Solkema Gmail - 6631 Baggs Rd Attorney Fees Refund 

26 Marshal - FW_ Comments Regarding Whitewater Township Boards Decision to Send 6631 

Baggs Rd. to ZBA for Appeal 

27 Benak - Re_ Comments Regarding Whitewater Township Boards Decision to Send 6631 

Baggs Rd. to ZBA for Appeal 

28 Hymore - Comments Regarding Whitewater Township Boards Decision to Send 6631 Baggs 

Rd. to ZBA for Appeal 

29 Patterson Gmail - RE_ Comments Regarding Whitewater Township Boards Decision to Send 

6631 Baggs Rd. to ZBA for Appeal 

30 Hymore Gmail - Zoning Board of Appeals Contact Information 

31 Patterson Gmail - RE_ 6631 Baggs Rd Appeals Process 

32 Van Solkema Gmail - Trustee's Homework 

33 Patterson - RE_ APPEAL - 6631 BAGGS RD - COMPLETED DOCUMENT 6_19_2023 

34 VanSolkema - Re_ APPEAL - 6631 BAGGS RD - COMPLETED DOCUMENT 6_19_2023 

35 Herring - RE_ APPEAL - 6631 BAGGS RD - COMPLETED DOCUMENT 6_19_2023 

36 Van Solkema - Re_ APPEAL - 6631 BAGGS RD - COMPLETED DOCUMENT 6_19_2023 

37 ZA Gmail - Fwd_ APPEAL - 6631 BAGGS RD - COMPLETED DOCUMENT 6_19_2023 

38 Goss Gmail - RE_ APPEAL - 6631 BAGGS RD - COMPLETED DOCUMENT 6_19_2023 

39 Van Solkema Gmail - Code Enforcement Complaint 

40 Van Solkema Gmail - Re_ 06_13_2023 Twp Board Meeting - 6631 Baggs Rd 



41 Hymore Gmail - Board Meeting Public Comment 6_13_2023 - In the absence of Zoom 

42 Beam Gmail - Vicki Beam Shipping Container 

43 Beam Gmail - Comments for board meeting 

44 Hymore Gmail - Code Enforcement Complaint Closure 

45 Benak Gmail - Re_ 6631 Baggs Rd Appeals Process 

46 Benak 1 Gmail - Re_ 6631 Baggs Rd Appeals Process 

47 Herring Gmail - RE_ 6631 Baggs Rd Appeals Process 

 

 

G. Agenda Items as Listed in the Special Meeting Notice 

 

1. Review legal opinion list   

 

2. Review Vollmuth Submittal   

2a Heidi email - Agenda packet 1 

2b Heidi email - Agenda packet 2 

2c Heidi email - Agenda Packet 3 

2d Heidi email - Agenda Packet 4 

2e Heidi email - Agenda Packet 5 

2f Heidi email - Agenda packet 6 

2g Heidi email - Agenda Packet 7 

 

3. Review AUGUST 2023-WhtWtr-ZA REPORT-RESCIND 

 

4. Discuss any Park and Recreation item relevant to the camping park operation or 

improvement project 842850. 
 

H. Board Comments/Discussion 

  

I. Public Comment 

 

J. Adjournment   

  
 
Whitewater Township will provide necessary reasonable auxiliary aids and services to individuals with disabilities 
who are planning to attend.  Contact the township clerk at 231-267-5141. 



1 

 Office of the 
Whitewater Township 
Supervisor  

Memo 
To: Whitewater Township Board of Trustees 

CC: None 

Date: 9.15.2023  

Re: Correspondence for special meeting 9.19.2023      

 

Board Members –  

 

     I like many of you may have received several emails regarding the 6631 Baggs Road property. As 

I was preparing to supply what I considered the most recent correspondence I found it difficult to pick 

a cutoff date that did not affect one group or another. To resolve this, I have provided all known 

correspondence to my email address leading up to the 6.13.2023 Township Board meeting. 

 

                Respectfully submitted, 

  

Whitewater Township FOIA Coordinator  

Supervisor, Whitewater Township  



WHITEWATER TOWNSHIP 

ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 

WRITTEN DECISION OF ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 

Application Number: zM c:) D.11 -7.../,/ 

Hearing Date: August 24, 2023 

Applicant: Baggs Partners, LLC ("Applicant"). 

Site Address: 6631 Baggs Road, Williamsburg, MI 49690. Parcel No. 13-136-001-02 (the 
"Parcel"). 

Purpose of Request: Request a variance from the 4: 1 depth to width ratio requirement of the 
Whitewater Township Ordinance No. 26 (The "Land Division Ordinance"). 

In 2020, the Township received and approved an application for a land division which created the 
Parcel. The parent parcel was a 125-acre parcel owned by Morrison Orchards, which was split to 
create the Parcel, which is approximately 30 acres in size. On February 2, 2022, the Parcel was 
sold to Baggs Partners, LLC. On May 3, 2023, the Township Board found that the Parcel is not 
compliant with the Land Division Ordinance and deemed the parcel ineligible for building permits 
or zoning approvals. Applicant seeks a variance from the 4: 1 depth to width ratio requirements. 

Public Hearing: The ZBA opened the public hearing on August 24, 2023, to consider the subject 
matter of the Application for appeal. The ZBA heard comments from the Applicant, its 
representative, the Township attorney, and members of the public, along with exhibits submitted 
by the same. 

Standards of Review: The Whitewater Township Land Division Ordinance provides the standards 
for review by the Zoning Board of Appeals, and in particular the following sections: 

Section VIl(D), provides that the ZBA "may approve a land division that creates a resulting parcel 
with a depth to width ratio greater than four to one if the applicant demonstrates that there are 
exceptional topographic or physical conditions with respect to the parcel and that the greater ratio 
would be reasonably compatible with the surrounding lands." 

Section VIII, provides that where "there are practical difficulties" the ZBA may "vary or modify 
the application of the provisions of this Ordinance so that the intent and purpose of the Ordinance 
is observed, public safety secured and substantial justice done. The Township Board, or its 
designee [here, the ZBA], may attach reasonable conditions in approving any variance from any 
provision. The breach of any condition or the failure of any applicant to comply with conditions 
shall void the variance. 

In order for a variance to be granted, evidence must be presented at a public hearing that all of the 
following conditions exist: 



• Exceptional or extraordinary circumstances exist such as exceptional 
topographical or physical conditions; or that the greater ratio would be 
reasonably compatible with the surrounding lands. 

• Strict. compliance with the regulations of this Ordinance will unreasonably 
prevent the applicant from developing the property or will render conformity 
with the regulations of this Ordinance unreasonably burdensome. 

• The requested variance will not cause an adverse impact on the development of 
surrounding property, property values, or the use and enjoyment of property in 
the immediate area. 

• Health, safety and welfare will not be compromised. 

• The requested variance is the minimum variance necessary to permit reasonable 
use of the land. [Ordinance, Section VIII] 

Findings of Fact: The ZBA finds as follows based upon the Land Division Ordinance, the 
Application, information and comments received by the Applicant, its representative and the 
Township attorney, and based on input (both through comments and written submissions) received 
during the public hearing. 

1. By majority vote on June 20, 2023 the Township Board directed the ZBA to accept all 
relevant information and hear the application for a Land Division Ordinance variance for 
the Parcel. 

2. Pursuant to the Land Division Ordinance, Section VII and Section VIII, and the action of 
the Township Board, the ZBA has been delegated and does have the authority to hear the 
request for a variance. 

3. Applicant is the owner of 6631 Baggs Road, Williamsburg, MI 49690, the subject of this 
appeal. The Parcel is vacant, with no structures on the property. 

4. Previous owner Morrison Acres applied for the land division of a 125-acre parent parcel in 
2020. 

5. In 2020, the Zoning Administrator approved the application for a land division, and the 
division created the Parcel at issue, which is approximately 30 acres in size. 

6. On or about May 18, 2020, the Parcel was sold to former owner Debono. 

7. On or about January 14, 2022, the Parcel was sold to Derek Van Solkema. 

8. On or about February 2, 2022, the Parcel was quit-claimed to Baggs Partners, LLC. 

9. On August 29, 2022, the Township received a complaint alleging that the Parcel was 
improperly split because it did not conform with the 4: 1 width to depth ratio under Section 
VII of the Land Division Ordinance. 

2 



10. At a special meeting of the Township Board on May 3, 2023, the Township Board made a 
number of findings, including that the Parcel is noncompliant with the Land Division 
Ordinance, specifically the ratio requirement. The Township Board further found that the 
Parcel is "not eligible for any building permits or zoning approvals such as special land use 
approval or site plan approval." 

11. This Application followed, requesting a variance of the ratio requirement. 

Whether the Applicant has shown: 

12. 'Feat exeep~ieaal or ex:tra:ordirtruy circumstaRGes exist sucb as exceptio11al 
-topogrttphical or physical conditions 

or 

that the greater ratio would be reasonably compatible with the surrounding lands, the ZBA 

specifically finds: ~ 

~ N e ~ ~ '1-t ':;:) Cc>~ s:e n s VI. s 

13. Whether the Applicant has shown that strict compliance with the regulations of this 
Ordinance will unreasonably prevent the applicant from developing the property 

or 

will render conformity with the regulation of the Land Division Ordinance unreasonably 
burdensome, the ZBA specifically finds: 

LA b ~s C. >-v, b L be { C\_lA S' :e.,, 

14. Whether the Applicant has shown that the requested variance will not cause an adverse 
impact on the 

development of surrounding property, 

3 



property values or 

the use and enjoyment of property in the immediate area, the ZBA specifically finds: 

h\o, '-/ :e ':[. \/ e 7 I . l 

15. Whether the Applicant has shown that the health, safety and welfare will not be 
compromised, the ZBA specifically finds: 

J\l O ~ ':z~c/1 Lv e I k ~ 

16. Whether the Applicant has shown that the requested variance is the minimum variance 
necessary to permit reasonable use of the land, the ZBA specifically finds: 

½ 0 /Jte;/ Uf .e__ ol lo~ I.· J J 

Decision: 

For the reasons above and stated on the record, the ZB 
Application for a depth-to-width variance. 

ADOPTED: 

YEAS:La.&_ 

4 

I DENIES the 

Dated: <t f -:l 'f / , 2023 , I 



CERTIFICATION 

I, Therowin Lake, the duly qualified and acting Secretary of the Whitewater Township 
Zoning Board of Appeals, Grand Traverse County, Michigan, do hereby certify that the foregoing 
is a true and complete copy of a resolution adopted by the Whitewater Zoning Board of Appeals 
at a duly scheduled meeting of the Zoning Board of Appeals held on "$ - ::l '/ , 2023 

,~~ ;ff.~ 
Therowin Lake, Secretary 

5 



Ron Popp <supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com>

ZBA Decision Form - 6631 Baggs Road Appeal
1 message

Cheryl A. Goss <clerk@whitewatertownship.org> Tue, Aug 29, 2023 at 10:54 AM
To: Christopher Patterson <cpatterson@fsbrlaw.com>, Robert Hall ZA <zoning@whitewatertownship.org>
Cc: Ron Popp Gmail <supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com>, Ron Popp <supervisor@whitewatertownship.org>

Chris –

 

Ken Bowen, chair of the ZBA, stopped in this morning to make the additional notation on page 4 of the form.  See
attachment.

 

FYI -

 

Cheryl A. Goss

Whitewater Township Clerk

5777 Vinton Road, P.O. Box 159

Williamsburg, Michigan 49690

Telephone:  231.267.5141 x24

Fax:  231.267-9020

clerk@whitewatertownship.org

Office Hours:  Mon/Tue/Wed/Thurs 9:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m.

I Pledge Allegiance to the Flag of the United States of America, and to the REPUBLIC for which it stands, One
Nation, Under God, Indivisible, with Liberty and Justice for All.

 

Zoning Board of Appeals Decision - 6631 Baggs Road Appeal.pdf
193K

https://www.google.com/maps/search/5777+Vinton+Road?entry=gmail&source=g
mailto:clerk@whitewatertownship.org
https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?ui=2&ik=d5568a8cbf&view=att&th=18a41ca3d67d75a4&attid=0.1&disp=attd&safe=1&zw


WHITEWATER TOWNSHIP 

ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 

WRITTEN DECISION OF ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 

Application Number: zM c:) D.11 -7.../,/ 

Hearing Date: August 24, 2023 

Applicant: Baggs Partners, LLC ("Applicant"). 

Site Address: 6631 Baggs Road, Williamsburg, MI 49690. Parcel No. 13-136-001-02 (the 
"Parcel"). 

Purpose of Request: Request a variance from the 4: 1 depth to width ratio requirement of the 
Whitewater Township Ordinance No. 26 (The "Land Division Ordinance"). 

In 2020, the Township received and approved an application for a land division which created the 
Parcel. The parent parcel was a 125-acre parcel owned by Morrison Orchards, which was split to 
create the Parcel, which is approximately 30 acres in size. On February 2, 2022, the Parcel was 
sold to Baggs Partners, LLC. On May 3, 2023, the Township Board found that the Parcel is not 
compliant with the Land Division Ordinance and deemed the parcel ineligible for building permits 
or zoning approvals. Applicant seeks a variance from the 4: 1 depth to width ratio requirements. 

Public Hearing: The ZBA opened the public hearing on August 24, 2023, to consider the subject 
matter of the Application for appeal. The ZBA heard comments from the Applicant, its 
representative, the Township attorney, and members of the public, along with exhibits submitted 
by the same. 

Standards of Review: The Whitewater Township Land Division Ordinance provides the standards 
for review by the Zoning Board of Appeals, and in particular the following sections: 

Section VIl(D), provides that the ZBA "may approve a land division that creates a resulting parcel 
with a depth to width ratio greater than four to one if the applicant demonstrates that there are 
exceptional topographic or physical conditions with respect to the parcel and that the greater ratio 
would be reasonably compatible with the surrounding lands." 

Section VIII, provides that where "there are practical difficulties" the ZBA may "vary or modify 
the application of the provisions of this Ordinance so that the intent and purpose of the Ordinance 
is observed, public safety secured and substantial justice done. The Township Board, or its 
designee [here, the ZBA], may attach reasonable conditions in approving any variance from any 
provision. The breach of any condition or the failure of any applicant to comply with conditions 
shall void the variance. 

In order for a variance to be granted, evidence must be presented at a public hearing that all of the 
following conditions exist: 



• Exceptional or extraordinary circumstances exist such as exceptional 
topographical or physical conditions; or that the greater ratio would be 
reasonably compatible with the surrounding lands. 

• Strict. compliance with the regulations of this Ordinance will unreasonably 
prevent the applicant from developing the property or will render conformity 
with the regulations of this Ordinance unreasonably burdensome. 

• The requested variance will not cause an adverse impact on the development of 
surrounding property, property values, or the use and enjoyment of property in 
the immediate area. 

• Health, safety and welfare will not be compromised. 

• The requested variance is the minimum variance necessary to permit reasonable 
use of the land. [Ordinance, Section VIII] 

Findings of Fact: The ZBA finds as follows based upon the Land Division Ordinance, the 
Application, information and comments received by the Applicant, its representative and the 
Township attorney, and based on input (both through comments and written submissions) received 
during the public hearing. 

1. By majority vote on June 20, 2023 the Township Board directed the ZBA to accept all 
relevant information and hear the application for a Land Division Ordinance variance for 
the Parcel. 

2. Pursuant to the Land Division Ordinance, Section VII and Section VIII, and the action of 
the Township Board, the ZBA has been delegated and does have the authority to hear the 
request for a variance. 

3. Applicant is the owner of 6631 Baggs Road, Williamsburg, MI 49690, the subject of this 
appeal. The Parcel is vacant, with no structures on the property. 

4. Previous owner Morrison Acres applied for the land division of a 125-acre parent parcel in 
2020. 

5. In 2020, the Zoning Administrator approved the application for a land division, and the 
division created the Parcel at issue, which is approximately 30 acres in size. 

6. On or about May 18, 2020, the Parcel was sold to former owner Debono. 

7. On or about January 14, 2022, the Parcel was sold to Derek Van Solkema. 

8. On or about February 2, 2022, the Parcel was quit-claimed to Baggs Partners, LLC. 

9. On August 29, 2022, the Township received a complaint alleging that the Parcel was 
improperly split because it did not conform with the 4: 1 width to depth ratio under Section 
VII of the Land Division Ordinance. 

2 



10. At a special meeting of the Township Board on May 3, 2023, the Township Board made a 
number of findings, including that the Parcel is noncompliant with the Land Division 
Ordinance, specifically the ratio requirement. The Township Board further found that the 
Parcel is "not eligible for any building permits or zoning approvals such as special land use 
approval or site plan approval." 

11. This Application followed, requesting a variance of the ratio requirement. 

Whether the Applicant has shown: 

12. 'Feat exeep~ieaal or ex:tra:ordirtruy circumstaRGes exist sucb as exceptio11al 
-topogrttphical or physical conditions 

or 

that the greater ratio would be reasonably compatible with the surrounding lands, the ZBA 

specifically finds: ~ 

~ N e ~ ~ '1-t ':;:) Cc>~ s:e n s VI. s 

13. Whether the Applicant has shown that strict compliance with the regulations of this 
Ordinance will unreasonably prevent the applicant from developing the property 

or 

will render conformity with the regulation of the Land Division Ordinance unreasonably 
burdensome, the ZBA specifically finds: 

LA b ~s C. >-v, b L be { C\_lA S' :e.,, 

14. Whether the Applicant has shown that the requested variance will not cause an adverse 
impact on the 

development of surrounding property, 

3 



property values or 

the use and enjoyment of property in the immediate area, the ZBA specifically finds: 

h\o, '-/ :e ':[. \/ e 7 I . l 

15. Whether the Applicant has shown that the health, safety and welfare will not be 
compromised, the ZBA specifically finds: 

J\l O ~ ':z~c/1 Lv e I k ~ 

16. Whether the Applicant has shown that the requested variance is the minimum variance 
necessary to permit reasonable use of the land, the ZBA specifically finds: 

½ 0 /Jte;/ Uf .e__ ol lo~ I.· J J 

Decision: 

For the reasons above and stated on the record, the ZB 
Application for a depth-to-width variance. 

ADOPTED: 

YEAS:La.&_ 

4 

I DENIES the 

Dated: <t f -:l 'f / , 2023 , I 



CERTIFICATION 

I, Therowin Lake, the duly qualified and acting Secretary of the Whitewater Township 
Zoning Board of Appeals, Grand Traverse County, Michigan, do hereby certify that the foregoing 
is a true and complete copy of a resolution adopted by the Whitewater Zoning Board of Appeals 
at a duly scheduled meeting of the Zoning Board of Appeals held on "$ - ::l '/ , 2023 

,~~ ;ff.~ 
Therowin Lake, Secretary 

5 



Ron Popp <supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com>

Re: Ex parte?
1 message

Michelle Pescatello <4mpescatello@gmail.com> Tue, Sep 12, 2023 at 6:40 PM
To: Ron Popp <supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com>
Cc: "Cheryl A. Goss" <clerk@whitewatertownship.org>, Heidi Vollmuth <heidivyourtrustee@gmail.com>, Don Glenn
<dglenn419@gmail.com>, Ardella M Benak <treasurer@whitewatertownship.org>, Vicki Beam <vickibeam@gmail.com>

Good Evening, Ron!

Unfortunately, I was unable to attend today’s meeting due to my work obligations.  I am interested in hearing about this
discussion, as well as the other topics talked about.  Can I please get the zoom link when it’s ready?  Actually, can you
just put me on the email list of constituents that get all our meetings zoom links with access codes?  

Thank you,

 
Michelle Pescatello

Sent from my iPhone 

 

On Sep 12, 2023, at 6:25 AM, Vicki Beam <vickibeam@gmail.com> wrote:

I will be commenting on this today!  For your records

<IMG_6681.JPEG>

<IMG_6682.JPEG>

<IMG_6683.JPEG>

Sent from my iPhone

mailto:vickibeam@gmail.com


Ron Popp <supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com>

Ex parte?
1 message

Vicki Beam <vickibeam@gmail.com> Tue, Sep 12, 2023 at 6:25 AM
To: Ron Popp <supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com>, "Cheryl A. Goss" <clerk@whitewatertownship.org>, Heidi Vollmuth
<heidivyourtrustee@gmail.com>, Don Glenn <dglenn419@gmail.com>, Ardella M Benak
<treasurer@whitewatertownship.org>

I will be commenting on this today!  For your records

Sent from my iPhone

3 attachments

IMG_6681.JPEG
90K

IMG_6682.JPEG
81K

https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?ui=2&ik=d5568a8cbf&view=att&th=18a88ed14f963e5e&attid=0.1&disp=inline&safe=1&zw
https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?ui=2&ik=d5568a8cbf&view=att&th=18a88ed14f963e5e&attid=0.3&disp=inline&safe=1&zw


IMG_6683.JPEG
352K

https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?ui=2&ik=d5568a8cbf&view=att&th=18a88ed14f963e5e&attid=0.5&disp=inline&safe=1&zw








Ron Popp <supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com>

Re: Variance approved
1 message

Derek Van Solkema <derek.vansolkema@gmail.com> Mon, Sep 11, 2023 at 3:11 PM
To: Michael Herring <mherringlaw@outlook.com>
Cc: "assessordawn@gmail.com" <assessordawn@gmail.com>, Ron Popp <supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com>,
"clerk@whitewatertownship.org" <clerk@whitewatertownship.org>, "Ardella M. Benak" <treasurer@whitewatertownship.org>,
Ryan Sheffer <sheffer82@gmail.com>, Gary Van Solkema <vansolkema@gmail.com>, dglenn419@gmail.com,
heidivyourtrustee@gmail.com, cpatterson@fsbrlaw.com

Hello All, 

I hope everyone enjoyed the beautiful weather in Whitewater Township over Labor Day Weekend.  I know we did!  As I
looked at the agenda for tomorrow's board meeting, I was surprised we were not part of the agenda given the above
email, the ZA's August Report, and the ZBA decision on 8/24/23 as everyone is well aware.  I'm sure this was simply an
oversight. It is my understanding that items can be added to the agenda and we would hope this important item is
addressed tomorrow.  

The good news, is that Parliamentary procedure states the following (also in the ZA's
August Report) The motion to rescind can be introduced at a time when no other business
is pending by any member of the board. This can be tomorrow!  After being recognized by the chair,
a member makes the motion to rescind. The motion should include a description or reference to the decision in question
(worded as closely as possible to any notice that has already been provided). Another member then must second the
motion. The chair restates the motion to rescind and asks for debate. During debate, any member may propose
amendments (changes that are greater than the scope of notice are not in order).  After full debate, the vote is taken on
rescinding the motion.
If the original motion has been acted upon and that action cannot be undone the motion cannot be rescinded. However,

any unexecuted part could be rescinded or amended.  (see at bottom of email possible motion language.
Also in ZA's August report)

Detailed information on properly rescinding a motion can be found here (also in ZA's August

Report): https://www.canr.msu.edu/news/parliamentary_procedure_what_is_a_motion_to_rescind  

We understand the magnitude of the ZBA decision and look forward to getting this behind us, as we all probably are. 
Although we disagreed with the decision of the board on May 3rd, 2023, we respected the decision and appreciated the
approval by the board in June for the ZBA to hear our variance application. The ZBA has made their determination and
approved the variance request. We appreciate the board's time in handling this matter and all moving forward.

As you are aware, the ZBA approved a variance request on 6631 Baggs Rd. Parcel #13-136-001-02.  Now, your findings
of fact from the May 3, 2023 meeting stating the following are negated.

1.    Request for variance is nonexistent.

 At a June 20, 2023 meeting, the Whitewater Township Board directed the ZBA to hear an application for a
variance related to the above referenced parcel, requesting a deviation from the 4:1 (four to one) lot depth to

width ratio requirements. The Zoning Board of Appeals APPROVED the Variance which had to pass 5 tests in
order to be approved.

- Exceptional or extraordinary circumstances exist such as exceptional topographical or physical conditions;
OR that the greater ratio would be reasonably compatible with the surrounding lands.

https://www.canr.msu.edu/news/parliamentary_procedure_what_is_a_motion_to_rescind


- Strict compliance with the regulations of this ordinance will unreasonably prevent the applicant from
developing the property OR will render conformity with the regulations of this ordinance unreasonable
burdensome.

- The requested variance will not cause an adverse impact on the development of surrounding property,
property values, or the use and enjoyment of property in the immediate area.

- Health, safety, and welfare will not be compromised.

-The requested variance is the minimum variance necessary to permit reasonable use of the land (Ordinance
Section VIII)

2.    Parcel B could have been divided in a manner to make it comply with the ordinance, moving the north line.

The ZBA approved the variance application request for a depth to width variance which makes our parcel a
conforming parcel. They found that the greater ratio was reasonably compatible with the surrounding lands.

  

3.    No record of topographical or environmental adverse circumstances.

The ZBA approved the variance request because of the greater ratio would be reasonably compatible with
the surrounding lands.  The ZA, in the original review of the application and decision to create the subject
parcel (Parcel #28-13-136-001-02) in May of 2020 was made based upon the ZA’s interpretation that the
applicant did demonstrate that there were exceptional topographic or physical conditions with respect to the
parcel and as observed during a personal site visit. Research utilizing the Grand Traverse County GIS
tax mapping and soils viewer, as well as Michigan Department of Environment, Great Lakes, and Energy
(EGLE)Wetland Inventory Maps was also performed.

4.    The ordinance is a local law, flawed or unflawed.

Our parcel, with the granted variance from the ZBA is now a conforming parcel that adheres to the Township
ordinance.  According to the Finding of Facts, flawed or unflawed, the ordinance is the law and our parcel
conforms to the ordinance. Therefore making our parcel buildable.

5.    Following township ordinance is important to the greater good.

If following the township ordinance is important to the greater good, the only action that needs to be
completed by the board is to administratively put the ZBA's decision in the record by making a Motion to
Rescind.  Rescinding the motion on May 3, 2023 that declared the above-referenced parcel is not eligible for
any building permits or zoning approvals such as special land use approval or site plan approval.  The ZBA
decision to grant the variance makes our parcel a conforming parcel that adheres to the local township
ordinance.  Following the township ordinance can simply be done with the following motion that you will
also find in the ZA's August 2023 report to the WWT board.

"Possible motion language:  "Motion to rescind the motion of the Whitewater Township Board made on May 3,
2023, declaring that parcel #28-13-136-001-02 is not eligible for any building permits or zoning approvals such
as special land use approval or site plan approval; further, finding that based upon the variance granted from
the 4:1 (four to one) lot depth to width ratio requirements by the Zoning Board of Appeals on August 24, 2023,
that the subject property is now in compliance with all applicable Whitewater Township ordinances."

    Regards,

Derek Van Solkema

On Thu, Aug 31, 2023 at 5:06 PM Michael Herring <mherringlaw@outlook.com> wrote:

mailto:mherringlaw@outlook.com


Hello all,

 

I’m sure everyone is as relieved as I am that the Variance was approved on August 24. I attached the final decision in
case you do not have a copy. I anticipate some housekeeping on this matter given the extraordinary nature on the
variance.  

 

I have a few questions about the property status.

 

1. It is my understanding that once the property was deemed unbuildable it’s status would be recorded in the
register of deeds? Did that process occur?  

2. If something was recorded, when will the current status be updated?
3. Does this matter have to return to the board to finalize the matter?
4. How long should we expect until the properties buildable status in reflected township wide?

 

As you can imagine, everyone is very excited to move on in the building process. Your help in this matter is greatly
appreciated.

 

Thank you,

 

Michael Herring

2029 Celadon Dr.

Grand Rapids, MI 49525

Phone: 616-916-6704

 

The information or document(s) contained in this electronic mail message is intended to be privileged and
confidential information only for the use of the individual or entity named herein or above. If you are not the intended
recipient, you are hereby notified that any dissemination, distribution or copy of this message or document is strictly
prohibited. If you have received this electronic mail transmission in error, notify the sender by reply e-mail and delete
all copies from your system. Michael Herring is not responsible for errors in this electronic mail message. Any
personal comments made do not necessarily reflect the views of Michael Herring.

 



Ron Popp <supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com>

Variance approved
1 message

Michael Herring <mherringlaw@outlook.com> Thu, Aug 31, 2023 at 5:06 PM
To: "assessordawn@gmail.com" <assessordawn@gmail.com>, Ron Popp <supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com>,
"clerk@whitewatertownship.org" <clerk@whitewatertownship.org>, "Ardella M. Benak" <treasurer@whitewatertownship.org>,
Derek Vansolkema <derek.vansolkema@gmail.com>, Ryan Sheffer <sheffer82@gmail.com>, Gary Van Solkema
<vansolkema@gmail.com>

Hello all,

 

I’m sure everyone is as relieved as I am that the Variance was approved on August 24. I attached the final decision in
case you do not have a copy. I anticipate some housekeeping on this matter given the extraordinary nature on the
variance.  

 

I have a few questions about the property status.

 

1. It is my understanding that once the property was deemed unbuildable it’s status would be recorded in the register
of deeds? Did that process occur?  

2. If something was recorded, when will the current status be updated?
3. Does this matter have to return to the board to finalize the matter?
4. How long should we expect until the properties buildable status in reflected township wide?

 

As you can imagine, everyone is very excited to move on in the building process. Your help in this matter is greatly
appreciated.

 

Thank you,

 

Michael Herring

2029 Celadon Dr.

Grand Rapids, MI 49525

Phone: 616-916-6704

 

The information or document(s) contained in this electronic mail message is intended to be privileged and confidential
information only for the use of the individual or entity named herein or above. If you are not the intended recipient, you
are hereby notified that any dissemination, distribution or copy of this message or document is strictly prohibited. If you
have received this electronic mail transmission in error, notify the sender by reply e-mail and delete all copies from
your system. Michael Herring is not responsible for errors in this electronic mail message. Any personal comments
made do not necessarily reflect the views of Michael Herring.

 

https://www.google.com/maps/search/2029+Celadon+Dr.+%0D%0A+Grand+Rapids,+MI+49525?entry=gmail&source=g
https://www.google.com/maps/search/2029+Celadon+Dr.+%0D%0A+Grand+Rapids,+MI+49525?entry=gmail&source=g


Zoning Board of Appeals Decision - 6631 Baggs Road Appeal.pdf
193K

https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?ui=2&ik=d5568a8cbf&view=att&th=18a4d6b55f9bd6ce&attid=0.1&disp=attd&safe=1&zw


Ron Popp <supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com>

ZBA notification
1 message

Vicki Beam <vickibeam@gmail.com> Tue, Aug 29, 2023 at 3:43 PM
To: Ron Popp <supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com>

I am wondering if the utility companies are supposed to be notified of ZBA meetings similar to those of us that are within
300 feet?

--

 

 

 



Ron Popp <supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com>

ZBA Decision Form - 6631 Baggs Road Appeal
1 message

Cheryl A. Goss <clerk@whitewatertownship.org> Tue, Aug 29, 2023 at 10:54 AM
To: Christopher Patterson <cpatterson@fsbrlaw.com>, Robert Hall ZA <zoning@whitewatertownship.org>
Cc: Ron Popp Gmail <supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com>, Ron Popp <supervisor@whitewatertownship.org>

Chris –

 

Ken Bowen, chair of the ZBA, stopped in this morning to make the additional notation on page 4 of the form.  See
attachment.

 

FYI -

 

Cheryl A. Goss

Whitewater Township Clerk

5777 Vinton Road, P.O. Box 159

Williamsburg, Michigan 49690

Telephone:  231.267.5141 x24

Fax:  231.267-9020

clerk@whitewatertownship.org

Office Hours:  Mon/Tue/Wed/Thurs 9:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m.

I Pledge Allegiance to the Flag of the United States of America, and to the REPUBLIC for which it stands, One
Nation, Under God, Indivisible, with Liberty and Justice for All.

 

Zoning Board of Appeals Decision - 6631 Baggs Road Appeal.pdf
193K

https://www.google.com/maps/search/5777+Vinton+Road?entry=gmail&source=g
mailto:clerk@whitewatertownship.org
https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?ui=2&ik=d5568a8cbf&view=att&th=18a41ca3d67d75a4&attid=0.1&disp=attd&safe=1&zw


Ron Popp <supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com>

ZBA Decision Form - 6631 Baggs Road Appeal
1 message

Cheryl A. Goss <clerk@whitewatertownship.org> Tue, Aug 29, 2023 at 10:54 AM
To: Christopher Patterson <cpatterson@fsbrlaw.com>, Robert Hall ZA <zoning@whitewatertownship.org>
Cc: Ron Popp Gmail <supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com>, Ron Popp <supervisor@whitewatertownship.org>

Chris –

 

Ken Bowen, chair of the ZBA, stopped in this morning to make the additional notation on page 4 of the form.  See
attachment.

 

FYI -

 

Cheryl A. Goss

Whitewater Township Clerk

5777 Vinton Road, P.O. Box 159

Williamsburg, Michigan 49690

Telephone:  231.267.5141 x24

Fax:  231.267-9020

clerk@whitewatertownship.org

Office Hours:  Mon/Tue/Wed/Thurs 9:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m.

I Pledge Allegiance to the Flag of the United States of America, and to the REPUBLIC for which it stands, One
Nation, Under God, Indivisible, with Liberty and Justice for All.

 

Zoning Board of Appeals Decision - 6631 Baggs Road Appeal.pdf
193K

https://www.google.com/maps/search/5777+Vinton+Road?entry=gmail&source=g
mailto:clerk@whitewatertownship.org
https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?ui=2&ik=d5568a8cbf&view=att&th=18a41ca3d67d75a4&attid=0.1&disp=attd&safe=1&zw


WHITEWATER TOWNSHIP 

ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 

WRITTEN DECISION OF ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 

Application Number: zM c:) D.11 -7.../,/ 

Hearing Date: August 24, 2023 

Applicant: Baggs Partners, LLC ("Applicant"). 

Site Address: 6631 Baggs Road, Williamsburg, MI 49690. Parcel No. 13-136-001-02 (the 
"Parcel"). 

Purpose of Request: Request a variance from the 4: 1 depth to width ratio requirement of the 
Whitewater Township Ordinance No. 26 (The "Land Division Ordinance"). 

In 2020, the Township received and approved an application for a land division which created the 
Parcel. The parent parcel was a 125-acre parcel owned by Morrison Orchards, which was split to 
create the Parcel, which is approximately 30 acres in size. On February 2, 2022, the Parcel was 
sold to Baggs Partners, LLC. On May 3, 2023, the Township Board found that the Parcel is not 
compliant with the Land Division Ordinance and deemed the parcel ineligible for building permits 
or zoning approvals. Applicant seeks a variance from the 4: 1 depth to width ratio requirements. 

Public Hearing: The ZBA opened the public hearing on August 24, 2023, to consider the subject 
matter of the Application for appeal. The ZBA heard comments from the Applicant, its 
representative, the Township attorney, and members of the public, along with exhibits submitted 
by the same. 

Standards of Review: The Whitewater Township Land Division Ordinance provides the standards 
for review by the Zoning Board of Appeals, and in particular the following sections: 

Section VIl(D), provides that the ZBA "may approve a land division that creates a resulting parcel 
with a depth to width ratio greater than four to one if the applicant demonstrates that there are 
exceptional topographic or physical conditions with respect to the parcel and that the greater ratio 
would be reasonably compatible with the surrounding lands." 

Section VIII, provides that where "there are practical difficulties" the ZBA may "vary or modify 
the application of the provisions of this Ordinance so that the intent and purpose of the Ordinance 
is observed, public safety secured and substantial justice done. The Township Board, or its 
designee [here, the ZBA], may attach reasonable conditions in approving any variance from any 
provision. The breach of any condition or the failure of any applicant to comply with conditions 
shall void the variance. 

In order for a variance to be granted, evidence must be presented at a public hearing that all of the 
following conditions exist: 



• Exceptional or extraordinary circumstances exist such as exceptional 
topographical or physical conditions; or that the greater ratio would be 
reasonably compatible with the surrounding lands. 

• Strict. compliance with the regulations of this Ordinance will unreasonably 
prevent the applicant from developing the property or will render conformity 
with the regulations of this Ordinance unreasonably burdensome. 

• The requested variance will not cause an adverse impact on the development of 
surrounding property, property values, or the use and enjoyment of property in 
the immediate area. 

• Health, safety and welfare will not be compromised. 

• The requested variance is the minimum variance necessary to permit reasonable 
use of the land. [Ordinance, Section VIII] 

Findings of Fact: The ZBA finds as follows based upon the Land Division Ordinance, the 
Application, information and comments received by the Applicant, its representative and the 
Township attorney, and based on input (both through comments and written submissions) received 
during the public hearing. 

1. By majority vote on June 20, 2023 the Township Board directed the ZBA to accept all 
relevant information and hear the application for a Land Division Ordinance variance for 
the Parcel. 

2. Pursuant to the Land Division Ordinance, Section VII and Section VIII, and the action of 
the Township Board, the ZBA has been delegated and does have the authority to hear the 
request for a variance. 

3. Applicant is the owner of 6631 Baggs Road, Williamsburg, MI 49690, the subject of this 
appeal. The Parcel is vacant, with no structures on the property. 

4. Previous owner Morrison Acres applied for the land division of a 125-acre parent parcel in 
2020. 

5. In 2020, the Zoning Administrator approved the application for a land division, and the 
division created the Parcel at issue, which is approximately 30 acres in size. 

6. On or about May 18, 2020, the Parcel was sold to former owner Debono. 

7. On or about January 14, 2022, the Parcel was sold to Derek Van Solkema. 

8. On or about February 2, 2022, the Parcel was quit-claimed to Baggs Partners, LLC. 

9. On August 29, 2022, the Township received a complaint alleging that the Parcel was 
improperly split because it did not conform with the 4: 1 width to depth ratio under Section 
VII of the Land Division Ordinance. 

2 



10. At a special meeting of the Township Board on May 3, 2023, the Township Board made a 
number of findings, including that the Parcel is noncompliant with the Land Division 
Ordinance, specifically the ratio requirement. The Township Board further found that the 
Parcel is "not eligible for any building permits or zoning approvals such as special land use 
approval or site plan approval." 

11. This Application followed, requesting a variance of the ratio requirement. 

Whether the Applicant has shown: 

12. 'Feat exeep~ieaal or ex:tra:ordirtruy circumstaRGes exist sucb as exceptio11al 
-topogrttphical or physical conditions 

or 

that the greater ratio would be reasonably compatible with the surrounding lands, the ZBA 

specifically finds: ~ 

~ N e ~ ~ '1-t ':;:) Cc>~ s:e n s VI. s 

13. Whether the Applicant has shown that strict compliance with the regulations of this 
Ordinance will unreasonably prevent the applicant from developing the property 

or 

will render conformity with the regulation of the Land Division Ordinance unreasonably 
burdensome, the ZBA specifically finds: 

LA b ~s C. >-v, b L be { C\_lA S' :e.,, 

14. Whether the Applicant has shown that the requested variance will not cause an adverse 
impact on the 

development of surrounding property, 

3 



property values or 

the use and enjoyment of property in the immediate area, the ZBA specifically finds: 

h\o, '-/ :e ':[. \/ e 7 I . l 

15. Whether the Applicant has shown that the health, safety and welfare will not be 
compromised, the ZBA specifically finds: 

J\l O ~ ':z~c/1 Lv e I k ~ 

16. Whether the Applicant has shown that the requested variance is the minimum variance 
necessary to permit reasonable use of the land, the ZBA specifically finds: 

½ 0 /Jte;/ Uf .e__ ol lo~ I.· J J 

Decision: 

For the reasons above and stated on the record, the ZB 
Application for a depth-to-width variance. 

ADOPTED: 

YEAS:La.&_ 

4 

I DENIES the 

Dated: <t f -:l 'f / , 2023 , I 



CERTIFICATION 

I, Therowin Lake, the duly qualified and acting Secretary of the Whitewater Township 
Zoning Board of Appeals, Grand Traverse County, Michigan, do hereby certify that the foregoing 
is a true and complete copy of a resolution adopted by the Whitewater Zoning Board of Appeals 
at a duly scheduled meeting of the Zoning Board of Appeals held on "$ - ::l '/ , 2023 

,~~ ;ff.~ 
Therowin Lake, Secretary 

5 



Ron Popp <supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com>

Email from Denny and Jan Fox
1 message

Jan F <EssequamvideriV@outlook.com> Thu, Aug 24, 2023 at 4:30 PM
To: "supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com" <supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com>

Hi Ron, I'm checking to make sure you received our email from EssequamvideriV@Gmail.com
about tonight's meeting

Jan Fox



Ron Popp <supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com>

Baggs rd development
1 message

Bonnie Babcock <korsontwin21967@icloud.com> Wed, Aug 23, 2023 at 8:47 PM
To: supervisor@whitewatertownship.org

Please read at the township meeting Aug 24 2023.

To the the elected township board members, I have concerns about the Baggs rd, proposed development.
My main concern is that the township board is not following ordinances concerning this new development.
 Ordinances are in place to protect landowners from being forced to deal with random development issues that could
cause problems for them selves and their neighbors.
Not following these ordinances now is setting a precedence for our future that may open the possibility for lawsuits and
litigation that we don’t need and can’t afford.
This type of development does not fit into our rural landscape.
This form of development supports and encourages nonresidential seasonal housing and does not provide a solution to
affordable single family homes.
Thank you in advance for your consideration in this matter.
Bonnie Babcock
Sent from my iPhone



Ron Popp <supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com>

Conduct of Treasurer
1 message

Vicki Beam <vickibeam@gmail.com> Thu, Aug 10, 2023 at 10:26 PM
To: Ron Popp <supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com>

Pretty sure this shouldn't be happening - is the treasurer getting information out to influence the ZBA?  Is it appropriate for
an elected official to hassle a private citizen like this?

See attached.
--

 

 

 

Facebook - Della Benak posting.pdf
2872K

https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?ui=2&ik=d5568a8cbf&view=att&th=189e26b07d042819&attid=0.1&disp=attd&realattid=f_ll5yvm470&safe=1&zw


Friends See all friends
639 (3 mutual)

Julie Williams
1 mutual friend

Michael Pescatello
2 mutual friends

Myah Pescatello
1 mutual friend

Michelle Williams Pescatello

  92

Michelle's Post

Michelle Williams Pescatello
2d · 

Attention Whitewater Township Residents 

I received this letter from Whitewater Township because my property is located within 300 feet of the 
proposed 22 (twenty-two) site condominium project they want to build on Baggs Road, North of M-
72.  I have been going door-to-door, to our neighbors, sharing the letter and information to inform 
them of the upcoming meeting on August 24th @ 7 pm.  My goal is to reach all the property owners 
outside of that 300 foot range before th… See more

+2

18 comments 28 shares

Like Comment Share

2020

https://www.facebook.com/photo/?fbid=5453958278054146&set=pob.1540572353
https://www.facebook.com/photo/?fbid=5453757324740908&set=pob.1540572353
https://www.facebook.com/photo/?fbid=5523110954472211&set=pob.1540572353
https://www.facebook.com/photo/?fbid=5523110944472212&set=pob.1540572353
https://www.facebook.com/photo/?fbid=5482941458489161&set=pob.1540572353
https://www.facebook.com/photo/?fbid=5482941395155834&set=pob.1540572353
https://www.facebook.com/photo/?fbid=5461575207292453&set=pob.1540572353
https://www.facebook.com/photo/?fbid=5461575047292469&set=pob.1540572353
https://www.facebook.com/photo/?fbid=5461575037292470&set=pob.1540572353
https://www.facebook.com/mpescatello/friends
https://www.facebook.com/mpescatello/friends
https://www.facebook.com/julie.williams.9674
https://www.facebook.com/michael.pescatello
https://www.facebook.com/profile.php?id=100075750153958
https://www.facebook.com/julie.williams.9674
https://www.facebook.com/michael.pescatello
https://www.facebook.com/profile.php?id=100075750153958
https://www.facebook.com/kristymcdonald8
https://www.facebook.com/jennifer.garrett.798
https://www.facebook.com/profile.php?id=100001915254587
https://www.facebook.com/mpescatello
https://www.facebook.com/bookmarks/
https://www.facebook.com/
https://www.facebook.com/notifications/
https://www.facebook.com/mpescatello?__cft__[0]=AZUTlYXLFRuCtNzlYi7djUeLyPgkwuDxKDMceIcru9n4EyDvvnv_gnIel0Oy_lVSU3HmgypVk1-KTy5QbHGXbqN6Dt90ZmMui0Rv_8pGo9q4yi6C8KQ1Zad2QWhZOcC6vwHEqSR8ISEyUp5yHcpSJl4C62Zku1lB-QTtuIFZ-el3mw&__cft__[1]=AZUTlYXLFRuCtNzlYi7djUeLyPgkwuDxKDMceIcru9n4EyDvvnv_gnIel0Oy_lVSU3HmgypVk1-KTy5QbHGXbqN6Dt90ZmMui0Rv_8pGo9q4yi6C8KQ1Zad2QWhZOcC6vwHEqSR8ISEyUp5yHcpSJl4C62Zku1lB-QTtuIFZ-el3mw&__tn__=%3C%2CP-R]-R
https://www.facebook.com/mpescatello?__cft__[0]=AZUTlYXLFRuCtNzlYi7djUeLyPgkwuDxKDMceIcru9n4EyDvvnv_gnIel0Oy_lVSU3HmgypVk1-KTy5QbHGXbqN6Dt90ZmMui0Rv_8pGo9q4yi6C8KQ1Zad2QWhZOcC6vwHEqSR8ISEyUp5yHcpSJl4C62Zku1lB-QTtuIFZ-el3mw&__cft__[1]=AZUTlYXLFRuCtNzlYi7djUeLyPgkwuDxKDMceIcru9n4EyDvvnv_gnIel0Oy_lVSU3HmgypVk1-KTy5QbHGXbqN6Dt90ZmMui0Rv_8pGo9q4yi6C8KQ1Zad2QWhZOcC6vwHEqSR8ISEyUp5yHcpSJl4C62Zku1lB-QTtuIFZ-el3mw&__tn__=-UC%2CP-R]-R
https://www.facebook.com/mpescatello?__cft__[0]=AZUTlYXLFRuCtNzlYi7djUeLyPgkwuDxKDMceIcru9n4EyDvvnv_gnIel0Oy_lVSU3HmgypVk1-KTy5QbHGXbqN6Dt90ZmMui0Rv_8pGo9q4yi6C8KQ1Zad2QWhZOcC6vwHEqSR8ISEyUp5yHcpSJl4C62Zku1lB-QTtuIFZ-el3mw&__cft__[1]=AZUTlYXLFRuCtNzlYi7djUeLyPgkwuDxKDMceIcru9n4EyDvvnv_gnIel0Oy_lVSU3HmgypVk1-KTy5QbHGXbqN6Dt90ZmMui0Rv_8pGo9q4yi6C8KQ1Zad2QWhZOcC6vwHEqSR8ISEyUp5yHcpSJl4C62Zku1lB-QTtuIFZ-el3mw&__tn__=%3C%3C%2CP-R]-R
https://www.facebook.com/photo/?fbid=10230537531932291&set=pcb.10230537537652434&__cft__[0]=AZUTlYXLFRuCtNzlYi7djUeLyPgkwuDxKDMceIcru9n4EyDvvnv_gnIel0Oy_lVSU3HmgypVk1-KTy5QbHGXbqN6Dt90ZmMui0Rv_8pGo9q4yi6C8KQ1Zad2QWhZOcC6vwHEqSR8ISEyUp5yHcpSJl4C62Zku1lB-QTtuIFZ-el3mw&__cft__[1]=AZUTlYXLFRuCtNzlYi7djUeLyPgkwuDxKDMceIcru9n4EyDvvnv_gnIel0Oy_lVSU3HmgypVk1-KTy5QbHGXbqN6Dt90ZmMui0Rv_8pGo9q4yi6C8KQ1Zad2QWhZOcC6vwHEqSR8ISEyUp5yHcpSJl4C62Zku1lB-QTtuIFZ-el3mw&__tn__=*bH-R]-R
https://www.facebook.com/photo/?fbid=10230537531852289&set=pcb.10230537537652434&__cft__[0]=AZUTlYXLFRuCtNzlYi7djUeLyPgkwuDxKDMceIcru9n4EyDvvnv_gnIel0Oy_lVSU3HmgypVk1-KTy5QbHGXbqN6Dt90ZmMui0Rv_8pGo9q4yi6C8KQ1Zad2QWhZOcC6vwHEqSR8ISEyUp5yHcpSJl4C62Zku1lB-QTtuIFZ-el3mw&__cft__[1]=AZUTlYXLFRuCtNzlYi7djUeLyPgkwuDxKDMceIcru9n4EyDvvnv_gnIel0Oy_lVSU3HmgypVk1-KTy5QbHGXbqN6Dt90ZmMui0Rv_8pGo9q4yi6C8KQ1Zad2QWhZOcC6vwHEqSR8ISEyUp5yHcpSJl4C62Zku1lB-QTtuIFZ-el3mw&__tn__=*bH-R]-R
https://www.facebook.com/photo/?fbid=10230537533372327&set=pcb.10230537537652434&__cft__[0]=AZUTlYXLFRuCtNzlYi7djUeLyPgkwuDxKDMceIcru9n4EyDvvnv_gnIel0Oy_lVSU3HmgypVk1-KTy5QbHGXbqN6Dt90ZmMui0Rv_8pGo9q4yi6C8KQ1Zad2QWhZOcC6vwHEqSR8ISEyUp5yHcpSJl4C62Zku1lB-QTtuIFZ-el3mw&__cft__[1]=AZUTlYXLFRuCtNzlYi7djUeLyPgkwuDxKDMceIcru9n4EyDvvnv_gnIel0Oy_lVSU3HmgypVk1-KTy5QbHGXbqN6Dt90ZmMui0Rv_8pGo9q4yi6C8KQ1Zad2QWhZOcC6vwHEqSR8ISEyUp5yHcpSJl4C62Zku1lB-QTtuIFZ-el3mw&__tn__=*bH-R]-R
https://www.facebook.com/photo/?fbid=10230537536892415&set=pcb.10230537537652434&__cft__[0]=AZUTlYXLFRuCtNzlYi7djUeLyPgkwuDxKDMceIcru9n4EyDvvnv_gnIel0Oy_lVSU3HmgypVk1-KTy5QbHGXbqN6Dt90ZmMui0Rv_8pGo9q4yi6C8KQ1Zad2QWhZOcC6vwHEqSR8ISEyUp5yHcpSJl4C62Zku1lB-QTtuIFZ-el3mw&__cft__[1]=AZUTlYXLFRuCtNzlYi7djUeLyPgkwuDxKDMceIcru9n4EyDvvnv_gnIel0Oy_lVSU3HmgypVk1-KTy5QbHGXbqN6Dt90ZmMui0Rv_8pGo9q4yi6C8KQ1Zad2QWhZOcC6vwHEqSR8ISEyUp5yHcpSJl4C62Zku1lB-QTtuIFZ-el3mw&__tn__=*bH-R]-R
https://www.facebook.com/photo/?fbid=10230537531252274&set=pcb.10230537537652434&__cft__[0]=AZUTlYXLFRuCtNzlYi7djUeLyPgkwuDxKDMceIcru9n4EyDvvnv_gnIel0Oy_lVSU3HmgypVk1-KTy5QbHGXbqN6Dt90ZmMui0Rv_8pGo9q4yi6C8KQ1Zad2QWhZOcC6vwHEqSR8ISEyUp5yHcpSJl4C62Zku1lB-QTtuIFZ-el3mw&__cft__[1]=AZUTlYXLFRuCtNzlYi7djUeLyPgkwuDxKDMceIcru9n4EyDvvnv_gnIel0Oy_lVSU3HmgypVk1-KTy5QbHGXbqN6Dt90ZmMui0Rv_8pGo9q4yi6C8KQ1Zad2QWhZOcC6vwHEqSR8ISEyUp5yHcpSJl4C62Zku1lB-QTtuIFZ-el3mw&__tn__=*bH-R]-R


Friends See all friends
639 (3 mutual)

Julie Williams
1 mutual friend

Michael Pescatello
2 mutual friends

Myah Pescatello
1 mutual friend

Michelle Williams Pescatello

  92Most relevant﻿

Reply 1d

Hunter Kelly
I'm all for it!!! 2

Like

Reply 1d Edited

Della Benak
If you want to control someone else's property then you should buy it. And for you to
openly admit that you are trespassing on someone else's property to hike and look for
animals makes me think you have no respect for anothers property. Does this mean
anyone can walk around your property looking for an wild animal? Wow! 22 condo's?
You know it's 22 homes right? Leaving the materials you did makes it seem like your a
representative from the township, no where is your name. That gives people the
impression that you are from the township. That's wrong.

8Like

Hide 16 Replies

Reply 1d

Michelle Williams Pescatello
Della Benak well, the original owners knew that we hiked the woods… and we
also told them we wanted to buy it. But thanks for your input..
Like

Reply 1d Edited

Michelle Williams Pescatello
Della Benak and the forms are all public records… are you ok? And aren’t you on
their payroll??
Like

Reply 1d

Della Benak
Michelle Williams Pescatello if you mean am I an elected official of the Township
than yes I am. From what I was told you never told people that you were not with
the township leading them to believe you were. That's disingenuous. Don't know
if that was your intention. The previous owners knew but this property was sold
what 4 years ago or more? Did you contact the new owners for permission? My
point is that people want to control what others do with their property but they
did not pay for the land or the taxes on that land but they want to use that same
land? To expect nothing to change where you live is a fantasy. Truth is this land
your talking about is zoned for those 22 single family homes. This drive to stop
this from happening is wrong. It is in the hands of the ZBA and they should have
the benefit of doing their jobs based on the law they must follow without being
bullied by a ramped up public because someone has decided to spread fear. Let
the process work.
Like

Reply 1d

Michelle Williams Pescatello
Della Benak I will ask you to read my post again. It clearly states who I am in the
first sentence. You can assume what I’m doing by putting your own narrative into
my post if that helps you justify it.

2Like

https://www.facebook.com/photo/?fbid=5453958278054146&set=pob.1540572353
https://www.facebook.com/photo/?fbid=5453757324740908&set=pob.1540572353
https://www.facebook.com/photo/?fbid=5523110954472211&set=pob.1540572353
https://www.facebook.com/photo/?fbid=5523110944472212&set=pob.1540572353
https://www.facebook.com/photo/?fbid=5482941458489161&set=pob.1540572353
https://www.facebook.com/photo/?fbid=5482941395155834&set=pob.1540572353
https://www.facebook.com/photo/?fbid=5461575207292453&set=pob.1540572353
https://www.facebook.com/photo/?fbid=5461575047292469&set=pob.1540572353
https://www.facebook.com/photo/?fbid=5461575037292470&set=pob.1540572353
https://www.facebook.com/mpescatello/friends
https://www.facebook.com/mpescatello/friends
https://www.facebook.com/julie.williams.9674
https://www.facebook.com/michael.pescatello
https://www.facebook.com/profile.php?id=100075750153958
https://www.facebook.com/julie.williams.9674
https://www.facebook.com/michael.pescatello
https://www.facebook.com/profile.php?id=100075750153958
https://www.facebook.com/kristymcdonald8
https://www.facebook.com/jennifer.garrett.798
https://www.facebook.com/profile.php?id=100001915254587
https://www.facebook.com/mpescatello
https://www.facebook.com/bookmarks/
https://www.facebook.com/
https://www.facebook.com/notifications/
https://www.facebook.com/mpescatello/posts/pfbid0X7ubCH77JwTPxXXRqEx9KwuiRES33ujgWrdS3xaC4d1pKjoTSWfUiPEfmeVqNz7Al?comment_id=1517726312096501&__cft__[0]=AZUTlYXLFRuCtNzlYi7djUeLyPgkwuDxKDMceIcru9n4EyDvvnv_gnIel0Oy_lVSU3HmgypVk1-KTy5QbHGXbqN6Dt90ZmMui0Rv_8pGo9q4yi6C8KQ1Zad2QWhZOcC6vwHEqSR8ISEyUp5yHcpSJl4C62Zku1lB-QTtuIFZ-el3mw&__tn__=R]-R
https://www.facebook.com/hunter.kelly.9484?comment_id=Y29tbWVudDoxMDIzMDUzNzUzNzY1MjQzNF8xNTE3NzI2MzEyMDk2NTAx&__cft__[0]=AZUTlYXLFRuCtNzlYi7djUeLyPgkwuDxKDMceIcru9n4EyDvvnv_gnIel0Oy_lVSU3HmgypVk1-KTy5QbHGXbqN6Dt90ZmMui0Rv_8pGo9q4yi6C8KQ1Zad2QWhZOcC6vwHEqSR8ISEyUp5yHcpSJl4C62Zku1lB-QTtuIFZ-el3mw&__tn__=R]-R
https://www.facebook.com/hunter.kelly.9484?comment_id=Y29tbWVudDoxMDIzMDUzNzUzNzY1MjQzNF8xNTE3NzI2MzEyMDk2NTAx&__cft__[0]=AZUTlYXLFRuCtNzlYi7djUeLyPgkwuDxKDMceIcru9n4EyDvvnv_gnIel0Oy_lVSU3HmgypVk1-KTy5QbHGXbqN6Dt90ZmMui0Rv_8pGo9q4yi6C8KQ1Zad2QWhZOcC6vwHEqSR8ISEyUp5yHcpSJl4C62Zku1lB-QTtuIFZ-el3mw&__tn__=R]-R
https://www.facebook.com/mpescatello/posts/pfbid0X7ubCH77JwTPxXXRqEx9KwuiRES33ujgWrdS3xaC4d1pKjoTSWfUiPEfmeVqNz7Al?comment_id=6472599569522957&__cft__[0]=AZUTlYXLFRuCtNzlYi7djUeLyPgkwuDxKDMceIcru9n4EyDvvnv_gnIel0Oy_lVSU3HmgypVk1-KTy5QbHGXbqN6Dt90ZmMui0Rv_8pGo9q4yi6C8KQ1Zad2QWhZOcC6vwHEqSR8ISEyUp5yHcpSJl4C62Zku1lB-QTtuIFZ-el3mw&__tn__=R]-R
https://www.facebook.com/della.benak?comment_id=Y29tbWVudDoxMDIzMDUzNzUzNzY1MjQzNF82NDcyNTk5NTY5NTIyOTU3&__cft__[0]=AZUTlYXLFRuCtNzlYi7djUeLyPgkwuDxKDMceIcru9n4EyDvvnv_gnIel0Oy_lVSU3HmgypVk1-KTy5QbHGXbqN6Dt90ZmMui0Rv_8pGo9q4yi6C8KQ1Zad2QWhZOcC6vwHEqSR8ISEyUp5yHcpSJl4C62Zku1lB-QTtuIFZ-el3mw&__tn__=R]-R
https://www.facebook.com/della.benak?comment_id=Y29tbWVudDoxMDIzMDUzNzUzNzY1MjQzNF82NDcyNTk5NTY5NTIyOTU3&__cft__[0]=AZUTlYXLFRuCtNzlYi7djUeLyPgkwuDxKDMceIcru9n4EyDvvnv_gnIel0Oy_lVSU3HmgypVk1-KTy5QbHGXbqN6Dt90ZmMui0Rv_8pGo9q4yi6C8KQ1Zad2QWhZOcC6vwHEqSR8ISEyUp5yHcpSJl4C62Zku1lB-QTtuIFZ-el3mw&__tn__=R]-R
https://www.facebook.com/mpescatello/posts/pfbid0X7ubCH77JwTPxXXRqEx9KwuiRES33ujgWrdS3xaC4d1pKjoTSWfUiPEfmeVqNz7Al?comment_id=6472599569522957&reply_comment_id=828523365398576&__cft__[0]=AZUTlYXLFRuCtNzlYi7djUeLyPgkwuDxKDMceIcru9n4EyDvvnv_gnIel0Oy_lVSU3HmgypVk1-KTy5QbHGXbqN6Dt90ZmMui0Rv_8pGo9q4yi6C8KQ1Zad2QWhZOcC6vwHEqSR8ISEyUp5yHcpSJl4C62Zku1lB-QTtuIFZ-el3mw&__tn__=R]-R
https://www.facebook.com/mpescatello?comment_id=Y29tbWVudDoxMDIzMDUzNzUzNzY1MjQzNF84Mjg1MjMzNjUzOTg1NzY%3D&__cft__[0]=AZUTlYXLFRuCtNzlYi7djUeLyPgkwuDxKDMceIcru9n4EyDvvnv_gnIel0Oy_lVSU3HmgypVk1-KTy5QbHGXbqN6Dt90ZmMui0Rv_8pGo9q4yi6C8KQ1Zad2QWhZOcC6vwHEqSR8ISEyUp5yHcpSJl4C62Zku1lB-QTtuIFZ-el3mw&__tn__=R]-R
https://www.facebook.com/mpescatello?comment_id=Y29tbWVudDoxMDIzMDUzNzUzNzY1MjQzNF84Mjg1MjMzNjUzOTg1NzY%3D&__cft__[0]=AZUTlYXLFRuCtNzlYi7djUeLyPgkwuDxKDMceIcru9n4EyDvvnv_gnIel0Oy_lVSU3HmgypVk1-KTy5QbHGXbqN6Dt90ZmMui0Rv_8pGo9q4yi6C8KQ1Zad2QWhZOcC6vwHEqSR8ISEyUp5yHcpSJl4C62Zku1lB-QTtuIFZ-el3mw&__tn__=R]-R
https://www.facebook.com/della.benak?__cft__[0]=AZUTlYXLFRuCtNzlYi7djUeLyPgkwuDxKDMceIcru9n4EyDvvnv_gnIel0Oy_lVSU3HmgypVk1-KTy5QbHGXbqN6Dt90ZmMui0Rv_8pGo9q4yi6C8KQ1Zad2QWhZOcC6vwHEqSR8ISEyUp5yHcpSJl4C62Zku1lB-QTtuIFZ-el3mw&__tn__=R]-R
https://www.facebook.com/mpescatello/posts/pfbid0X7ubCH77JwTPxXXRqEx9KwuiRES33ujgWrdS3xaC4d1pKjoTSWfUiPEfmeVqNz7Al?comment_id=6472599569522957&reply_comment_id=749082463654374&__cft__[0]=AZUTlYXLFRuCtNzlYi7djUeLyPgkwuDxKDMceIcru9n4EyDvvnv_gnIel0Oy_lVSU3HmgypVk1-KTy5QbHGXbqN6Dt90ZmMui0Rv_8pGo9q4yi6C8KQ1Zad2QWhZOcC6vwHEqSR8ISEyUp5yHcpSJl4C62Zku1lB-QTtuIFZ-el3mw&__tn__=R]-R
https://www.facebook.com/mpescatello?comment_id=Y29tbWVudDoxMDIzMDUzNzUzNzY1MjQzNF83NDkwODI0NjM2NTQzNzQ%3D&__cft__[0]=AZUTlYXLFRuCtNzlYi7djUeLyPgkwuDxKDMceIcru9n4EyDvvnv_gnIel0Oy_lVSU3HmgypVk1-KTy5QbHGXbqN6Dt90ZmMui0Rv_8pGo9q4yi6C8KQ1Zad2QWhZOcC6vwHEqSR8ISEyUp5yHcpSJl4C62Zku1lB-QTtuIFZ-el3mw&__tn__=R]-R
https://www.facebook.com/mpescatello?comment_id=Y29tbWVudDoxMDIzMDUzNzUzNzY1MjQzNF83NDkwODI0NjM2NTQzNzQ%3D&__cft__[0]=AZUTlYXLFRuCtNzlYi7djUeLyPgkwuDxKDMceIcru9n4EyDvvnv_gnIel0Oy_lVSU3HmgypVk1-KTy5QbHGXbqN6Dt90ZmMui0Rv_8pGo9q4yi6C8KQ1Zad2QWhZOcC6vwHEqSR8ISEyUp5yHcpSJl4C62Zku1lB-QTtuIFZ-el3mw&__tn__=R]-R
https://www.facebook.com/mpescatello/posts/pfbid0X7ubCH77JwTPxXXRqEx9KwuiRES33ujgWrdS3xaC4d1pKjoTSWfUiPEfmeVqNz7Al?comment_id=6472599569522957&reply_comment_id=2532388096924730&__cft__[0]=AZUTlYXLFRuCtNzlYi7djUeLyPgkwuDxKDMceIcru9n4EyDvvnv_gnIel0Oy_lVSU3HmgypVk1-KTy5QbHGXbqN6Dt90ZmMui0Rv_8pGo9q4yi6C8KQ1Zad2QWhZOcC6vwHEqSR8ISEyUp5yHcpSJl4C62Zku1lB-QTtuIFZ-el3mw&__tn__=R]-R
https://www.facebook.com/della.benak?comment_id=Y29tbWVudDoxMDIzMDUzNzUzNzY1MjQzNF8yNTMyMzg4MDk2OTI0NzMw&__cft__[0]=AZUTlYXLFRuCtNzlYi7djUeLyPgkwuDxKDMceIcru9n4EyDvvnv_gnIel0Oy_lVSU3HmgypVk1-KTy5QbHGXbqN6Dt90ZmMui0Rv_8pGo9q4yi6C8KQ1Zad2QWhZOcC6vwHEqSR8ISEyUp5yHcpSJl4C62Zku1lB-QTtuIFZ-el3mw&__tn__=R]-R
https://www.facebook.com/della.benak?comment_id=Y29tbWVudDoxMDIzMDUzNzUzNzY1MjQzNF8yNTMyMzg4MDk2OTI0NzMw&__cft__[0]=AZUTlYXLFRuCtNzlYi7djUeLyPgkwuDxKDMceIcru9n4EyDvvnv_gnIel0Oy_lVSU3HmgypVk1-KTy5QbHGXbqN6Dt90ZmMui0Rv_8pGo9q4yi6C8KQ1Zad2QWhZOcC6vwHEqSR8ISEyUp5yHcpSJl4C62Zku1lB-QTtuIFZ-el3mw&__tn__=R]-R
https://www.facebook.com/mpescatello?__cft__[0]=AZUTlYXLFRuCtNzlYi7djUeLyPgkwuDxKDMceIcru9n4EyDvvnv_gnIel0Oy_lVSU3HmgypVk1-KTy5QbHGXbqN6Dt90ZmMui0Rv_8pGo9q4yi6C8KQ1Zad2QWhZOcC6vwHEqSR8ISEyUp5yHcpSJl4C62Zku1lB-QTtuIFZ-el3mw&__tn__=R]-R
https://www.facebook.com/mpescatello/posts/pfbid0X7ubCH77JwTPxXXRqEx9KwuiRES33ujgWrdS3xaC4d1pKjoTSWfUiPEfmeVqNz7Al?comment_id=6472599569522957&reply_comment_id=1233898953961258&__cft__[0]=AZUTlYXLFRuCtNzlYi7djUeLyPgkwuDxKDMceIcru9n4EyDvvnv_gnIel0Oy_lVSU3HmgypVk1-KTy5QbHGXbqN6Dt90ZmMui0Rv_8pGo9q4yi6C8KQ1Zad2QWhZOcC6vwHEqSR8ISEyUp5yHcpSJl4C62Zku1lB-QTtuIFZ-el3mw&__tn__=R]-R
https://www.facebook.com/mpescatello?comment_id=Y29tbWVudDoxMDIzMDUzNzUzNzY1MjQzNF8xMjMzODk4OTUzOTYxMjU4&__cft__[0]=AZUTlYXLFRuCtNzlYi7djUeLyPgkwuDxKDMceIcru9n4EyDvvnv_gnIel0Oy_lVSU3HmgypVk1-KTy5QbHGXbqN6Dt90ZmMui0Rv_8pGo9q4yi6C8KQ1Zad2QWhZOcC6vwHEqSR8ISEyUp5yHcpSJl4C62Zku1lB-QTtuIFZ-el3mw&__tn__=R]-R
https://www.facebook.com/mpescatello?comment_id=Y29tbWVudDoxMDIzMDUzNzUzNzY1MjQzNF8xMjMzODk4OTUzOTYxMjU4&__cft__[0]=AZUTlYXLFRuCtNzlYi7djUeLyPgkwuDxKDMceIcru9n4EyDvvnv_gnIel0Oy_lVSU3HmgypVk1-KTy5QbHGXbqN6Dt90ZmMui0Rv_8pGo9q4yi6C8KQ1Zad2QWhZOcC6vwHEqSR8ISEyUp5yHcpSJl4C62Zku1lB-QTtuIFZ-el3mw&__tn__=R]-R
https://www.facebook.com/della.benak?__cft__[0]=AZUTlYXLFRuCtNzlYi7djUeLyPgkwuDxKDMceIcru9n4EyDvvnv_gnIel0Oy_lVSU3HmgypVk1-KTy5QbHGXbqN6Dt90ZmMui0Rv_8pGo9q4yi6C8KQ1Zad2QWhZOcC6vwHEqSR8ISEyUp5yHcpSJl4C62Zku1lB-QTtuIFZ-el3mw&__tn__=R]-R


Friends See all friends
639 (3 mutual)

Julie Williams
1 mutual friend

Michael Pescatello
2 mutual friends

Myah Pescatello
1 mutual friend

Michelle Williams Pescatello

  92

Reply 1d

Della Benak
Michelle Williams Pescatello I've read it twice. And I could have said more. Chose
not to. Let the ZBA do their job without interference. I'm sure do not want to be
seen as trying to tamper with their decision by inciting people to show up and
harass them into making a choice that won't hold up in court do you?
Like

Reply 1d

Michelle Williams Pescatello
Della Benak it’s a PUBLIC meeting… I’m not harassing anyone, just ask all the
people I’ve spoken to the past couple of weeks. I’m letting the rest of our
community know what is happening & when. Again, are you ok?

2Like

Reply 1d

Della Benak
Michelle Williams Pescatello that's wonderful. I'm OK are you OK? I'm feeling like
you don't want me to question your posting. I think I've expressed my opinions so
we can leave it at that. You have a good evening.
Like

Reply 1d

Michelle Williams Pescatello
Della Benak I’m fine. You have put more assumptions into my post to fit your
narrative. That’s wrong, Delia.
Like

Reply 1d

Della Benak
Michelle Williams Pescatello it's Della
Like

Reply 1d

Michelle Williams Pescatello
Della Benak got it! 

Like

Reply 21h

Carole Gilbert
Della Benak 
Like

Reply 21h

Carole Gilbert
Michelle Williams Pescatello this is not new news
Like

Reply 14h

Michelle Williams Pescatello
Carole Gilbert well, this is the first time I’ve heard about all the shocking details. I
guess the township shouldn’t have sent me an invitation if they didn’t want my
opinions & inclusiveness. 
Like

https://www.facebook.com/photo/?fbid=5453958278054146&set=pob.1540572353
https://www.facebook.com/photo/?fbid=5453757324740908&set=pob.1540572353
https://www.facebook.com/photo/?fbid=5523110954472211&set=pob.1540572353
https://www.facebook.com/photo/?fbid=5523110944472212&set=pob.1540572353
https://www.facebook.com/photo/?fbid=5482941458489161&set=pob.1540572353
https://www.facebook.com/photo/?fbid=5482941395155834&set=pob.1540572353
https://www.facebook.com/photo/?fbid=5461575207292453&set=pob.1540572353
https://www.facebook.com/photo/?fbid=5461575047292469&set=pob.1540572353
https://www.facebook.com/photo/?fbid=5461575037292470&set=pob.1540572353
https://www.facebook.com/mpescatello/friends
https://www.facebook.com/mpescatello/friends
https://www.facebook.com/julie.williams.9674
https://www.facebook.com/michael.pescatello
https://www.facebook.com/profile.php?id=100075750153958
https://www.facebook.com/julie.williams.9674
https://www.facebook.com/michael.pescatello
https://www.facebook.com/profile.php?id=100075750153958
https://www.facebook.com/kristymcdonald8
https://www.facebook.com/jennifer.garrett.798
https://www.facebook.com/profile.php?id=100001915254587
https://www.facebook.com/mpescatello
https://www.facebook.com/bookmarks/
https://www.facebook.com/
https://www.facebook.com/notifications/
https://www.facebook.com/mpescatello/posts/pfbid0X7ubCH77JwTPxXXRqEx9KwuiRES33ujgWrdS3xaC4d1pKjoTSWfUiPEfmeVqNz7Al?comment_id=6472599569522957&reply_comment_id=276454121658286&__cft__[0]=AZUTlYXLFRuCtNzlYi7djUeLyPgkwuDxKDMceIcru9n4EyDvvnv_gnIel0Oy_lVSU3HmgypVk1-KTy5QbHGXbqN6Dt90ZmMui0Rv_8pGo9q4yi6C8KQ1Zad2QWhZOcC6vwHEqSR8ISEyUp5yHcpSJl4C62Zku1lB-QTtuIFZ-el3mw&__tn__=R]-R
https://www.facebook.com/della.benak?comment_id=Y29tbWVudDoxMDIzMDUzNzUzNzY1MjQzNF8yNzY0NTQxMjE2NTgyODY%3D&__cft__[0]=AZUTlYXLFRuCtNzlYi7djUeLyPgkwuDxKDMceIcru9n4EyDvvnv_gnIel0Oy_lVSU3HmgypVk1-KTy5QbHGXbqN6Dt90ZmMui0Rv_8pGo9q4yi6C8KQ1Zad2QWhZOcC6vwHEqSR8ISEyUp5yHcpSJl4C62Zku1lB-QTtuIFZ-el3mw&__tn__=R]-R
https://www.facebook.com/della.benak?comment_id=Y29tbWVudDoxMDIzMDUzNzUzNzY1MjQzNF8yNzY0NTQxMjE2NTgyODY%3D&__cft__[0]=AZUTlYXLFRuCtNzlYi7djUeLyPgkwuDxKDMceIcru9n4EyDvvnv_gnIel0Oy_lVSU3HmgypVk1-KTy5QbHGXbqN6Dt90ZmMui0Rv_8pGo9q4yi6C8KQ1Zad2QWhZOcC6vwHEqSR8ISEyUp5yHcpSJl4C62Zku1lB-QTtuIFZ-el3mw&__tn__=R]-R
https://www.facebook.com/mpescatello?__cft__[0]=AZUTlYXLFRuCtNzlYi7djUeLyPgkwuDxKDMceIcru9n4EyDvvnv_gnIel0Oy_lVSU3HmgypVk1-KTy5QbHGXbqN6Dt90ZmMui0Rv_8pGo9q4yi6C8KQ1Zad2QWhZOcC6vwHEqSR8ISEyUp5yHcpSJl4C62Zku1lB-QTtuIFZ-el3mw&__tn__=R]-R
https://www.facebook.com/mpescatello/posts/pfbid0X7ubCH77JwTPxXXRqEx9KwuiRES33ujgWrdS3xaC4d1pKjoTSWfUiPEfmeVqNz7Al?comment_id=6472599569522957&reply_comment_id=6416874348391916&__cft__[0]=AZUTlYXLFRuCtNzlYi7djUeLyPgkwuDxKDMceIcru9n4EyDvvnv_gnIel0Oy_lVSU3HmgypVk1-KTy5QbHGXbqN6Dt90ZmMui0Rv_8pGo9q4yi6C8KQ1Zad2QWhZOcC6vwHEqSR8ISEyUp5yHcpSJl4C62Zku1lB-QTtuIFZ-el3mw&__tn__=R]-R
https://www.facebook.com/mpescatello?comment_id=Y29tbWVudDoxMDIzMDUzNzUzNzY1MjQzNF82NDE2ODc0MzQ4MzkxOTE2&__cft__[0]=AZUTlYXLFRuCtNzlYi7djUeLyPgkwuDxKDMceIcru9n4EyDvvnv_gnIel0Oy_lVSU3HmgypVk1-KTy5QbHGXbqN6Dt90ZmMui0Rv_8pGo9q4yi6C8KQ1Zad2QWhZOcC6vwHEqSR8ISEyUp5yHcpSJl4C62Zku1lB-QTtuIFZ-el3mw&__tn__=R]-R
https://www.facebook.com/mpescatello?comment_id=Y29tbWVudDoxMDIzMDUzNzUzNzY1MjQzNF82NDE2ODc0MzQ4MzkxOTE2&__cft__[0]=AZUTlYXLFRuCtNzlYi7djUeLyPgkwuDxKDMceIcru9n4EyDvvnv_gnIel0Oy_lVSU3HmgypVk1-KTy5QbHGXbqN6Dt90ZmMui0Rv_8pGo9q4yi6C8KQ1Zad2QWhZOcC6vwHEqSR8ISEyUp5yHcpSJl4C62Zku1lB-QTtuIFZ-el3mw&__tn__=R]-R
https://www.facebook.com/della.benak?__cft__[0]=AZUTlYXLFRuCtNzlYi7djUeLyPgkwuDxKDMceIcru9n4EyDvvnv_gnIel0Oy_lVSU3HmgypVk1-KTy5QbHGXbqN6Dt90ZmMui0Rv_8pGo9q4yi6C8KQ1Zad2QWhZOcC6vwHEqSR8ISEyUp5yHcpSJl4C62Zku1lB-QTtuIFZ-el3mw&__tn__=R]-R
https://www.facebook.com/mpescatello/posts/pfbid0X7ubCH77JwTPxXXRqEx9KwuiRES33ujgWrdS3xaC4d1pKjoTSWfUiPEfmeVqNz7Al?comment_id=6472599569522957&reply_comment_id=666978828826948&__cft__[0]=AZUTlYXLFRuCtNzlYi7djUeLyPgkwuDxKDMceIcru9n4EyDvvnv_gnIel0Oy_lVSU3HmgypVk1-KTy5QbHGXbqN6Dt90ZmMui0Rv_8pGo9q4yi6C8KQ1Zad2QWhZOcC6vwHEqSR8ISEyUp5yHcpSJl4C62Zku1lB-QTtuIFZ-el3mw&__tn__=R]-R
https://www.facebook.com/della.benak?comment_id=Y29tbWVudDoxMDIzMDUzNzUzNzY1MjQzNF82NjY5Nzg4Mjg4MjY5NDg%3D&__cft__[0]=AZUTlYXLFRuCtNzlYi7djUeLyPgkwuDxKDMceIcru9n4EyDvvnv_gnIel0Oy_lVSU3HmgypVk1-KTy5QbHGXbqN6Dt90ZmMui0Rv_8pGo9q4yi6C8KQ1Zad2QWhZOcC6vwHEqSR8ISEyUp5yHcpSJl4C62Zku1lB-QTtuIFZ-el3mw&__tn__=R]-R
https://www.facebook.com/della.benak?comment_id=Y29tbWVudDoxMDIzMDUzNzUzNzY1MjQzNF82NjY5Nzg4Mjg4MjY5NDg%3D&__cft__[0]=AZUTlYXLFRuCtNzlYi7djUeLyPgkwuDxKDMceIcru9n4EyDvvnv_gnIel0Oy_lVSU3HmgypVk1-KTy5QbHGXbqN6Dt90ZmMui0Rv_8pGo9q4yi6C8KQ1Zad2QWhZOcC6vwHEqSR8ISEyUp5yHcpSJl4C62Zku1lB-QTtuIFZ-el3mw&__tn__=R]-R
https://www.facebook.com/mpescatello?__cft__[0]=AZUTlYXLFRuCtNzlYi7djUeLyPgkwuDxKDMceIcru9n4EyDvvnv_gnIel0Oy_lVSU3HmgypVk1-KTy5QbHGXbqN6Dt90ZmMui0Rv_8pGo9q4yi6C8KQ1Zad2QWhZOcC6vwHEqSR8ISEyUp5yHcpSJl4C62Zku1lB-QTtuIFZ-el3mw&__tn__=R]-R
https://www.facebook.com/mpescatello/posts/pfbid0X7ubCH77JwTPxXXRqEx9KwuiRES33ujgWrdS3xaC4d1pKjoTSWfUiPEfmeVqNz7Al?comment_id=6472599569522957&reply_comment_id=2747037215450421&__cft__[0]=AZUTlYXLFRuCtNzlYi7djUeLyPgkwuDxKDMceIcru9n4EyDvvnv_gnIel0Oy_lVSU3HmgypVk1-KTy5QbHGXbqN6Dt90ZmMui0Rv_8pGo9q4yi6C8KQ1Zad2QWhZOcC6vwHEqSR8ISEyUp5yHcpSJl4C62Zku1lB-QTtuIFZ-el3mw&__tn__=R]-R
https://www.facebook.com/mpescatello?comment_id=Y29tbWVudDoxMDIzMDUzNzUzNzY1MjQzNF8yNzQ3MDM3MjE1NDUwNDIx&__cft__[0]=AZUTlYXLFRuCtNzlYi7djUeLyPgkwuDxKDMceIcru9n4EyDvvnv_gnIel0Oy_lVSU3HmgypVk1-KTy5QbHGXbqN6Dt90ZmMui0Rv_8pGo9q4yi6C8KQ1Zad2QWhZOcC6vwHEqSR8ISEyUp5yHcpSJl4C62Zku1lB-QTtuIFZ-el3mw&__tn__=R]-R
https://www.facebook.com/mpescatello?comment_id=Y29tbWVudDoxMDIzMDUzNzUzNzY1MjQzNF8yNzQ3MDM3MjE1NDUwNDIx&__cft__[0]=AZUTlYXLFRuCtNzlYi7djUeLyPgkwuDxKDMceIcru9n4EyDvvnv_gnIel0Oy_lVSU3HmgypVk1-KTy5QbHGXbqN6Dt90ZmMui0Rv_8pGo9q4yi6C8KQ1Zad2QWhZOcC6vwHEqSR8ISEyUp5yHcpSJl4C62Zku1lB-QTtuIFZ-el3mw&__tn__=R]-R
https://www.facebook.com/della.benak?__cft__[0]=AZUTlYXLFRuCtNzlYi7djUeLyPgkwuDxKDMceIcru9n4EyDvvnv_gnIel0Oy_lVSU3HmgypVk1-KTy5QbHGXbqN6Dt90ZmMui0Rv_8pGo9q4yi6C8KQ1Zad2QWhZOcC6vwHEqSR8ISEyUp5yHcpSJl4C62Zku1lB-QTtuIFZ-el3mw&__tn__=R]-R
https://www.facebook.com/mpescatello/posts/pfbid0X7ubCH77JwTPxXXRqEx9KwuiRES33ujgWrdS3xaC4d1pKjoTSWfUiPEfmeVqNz7Al?comment_id=6472599569522957&reply_comment_id=3522119841365264&__cft__[0]=AZUTlYXLFRuCtNzlYi7djUeLyPgkwuDxKDMceIcru9n4EyDvvnv_gnIel0Oy_lVSU3HmgypVk1-KTy5QbHGXbqN6Dt90ZmMui0Rv_8pGo9q4yi6C8KQ1Zad2QWhZOcC6vwHEqSR8ISEyUp5yHcpSJl4C62Zku1lB-QTtuIFZ-el3mw&__tn__=R]-R
https://www.facebook.com/della.benak?comment_id=Y29tbWVudDoxMDIzMDUzNzUzNzY1MjQzNF8zNTIyMTE5ODQxMzY1MjY0&__cft__[0]=AZUTlYXLFRuCtNzlYi7djUeLyPgkwuDxKDMceIcru9n4EyDvvnv_gnIel0Oy_lVSU3HmgypVk1-KTy5QbHGXbqN6Dt90ZmMui0Rv_8pGo9q4yi6C8KQ1Zad2QWhZOcC6vwHEqSR8ISEyUp5yHcpSJl4C62Zku1lB-QTtuIFZ-el3mw&__tn__=R]-R
https://www.facebook.com/della.benak?comment_id=Y29tbWVudDoxMDIzMDUzNzUzNzY1MjQzNF8zNTIyMTE5ODQxMzY1MjY0&__cft__[0]=AZUTlYXLFRuCtNzlYi7djUeLyPgkwuDxKDMceIcru9n4EyDvvnv_gnIel0Oy_lVSU3HmgypVk1-KTy5QbHGXbqN6Dt90ZmMui0Rv_8pGo9q4yi6C8KQ1Zad2QWhZOcC6vwHEqSR8ISEyUp5yHcpSJl4C62Zku1lB-QTtuIFZ-el3mw&__tn__=R]-R
https://www.facebook.com/mpescatello?__cft__[0]=AZUTlYXLFRuCtNzlYi7djUeLyPgkwuDxKDMceIcru9n4EyDvvnv_gnIel0Oy_lVSU3HmgypVk1-KTy5QbHGXbqN6Dt90ZmMui0Rv_8pGo9q4yi6C8KQ1Zad2QWhZOcC6vwHEqSR8ISEyUp5yHcpSJl4C62Zku1lB-QTtuIFZ-el3mw&__tn__=R]-R
https://www.facebook.com/mpescatello/posts/pfbid0X7ubCH77JwTPxXXRqEx9KwuiRES33ujgWrdS3xaC4d1pKjoTSWfUiPEfmeVqNz7Al?comment_id=6472599569522957&reply_comment_id=948725269521365&__cft__[0]=AZUTlYXLFRuCtNzlYi7djUeLyPgkwuDxKDMceIcru9n4EyDvvnv_gnIel0Oy_lVSU3HmgypVk1-KTy5QbHGXbqN6Dt90ZmMui0Rv_8pGo9q4yi6C8KQ1Zad2QWhZOcC6vwHEqSR8ISEyUp5yHcpSJl4C62Zku1lB-QTtuIFZ-el3mw&__tn__=R]-R
https://www.facebook.com/mpescatello?comment_id=Y29tbWVudDoxMDIzMDUzNzUzNzY1MjQzNF85NDg3MjUyNjk1MjEzNjU%3D&__cft__[0]=AZUTlYXLFRuCtNzlYi7djUeLyPgkwuDxKDMceIcru9n4EyDvvnv_gnIel0Oy_lVSU3HmgypVk1-KTy5QbHGXbqN6Dt90ZmMui0Rv_8pGo9q4yi6C8KQ1Zad2QWhZOcC6vwHEqSR8ISEyUp5yHcpSJl4C62Zku1lB-QTtuIFZ-el3mw&__tn__=R]-R
https://www.facebook.com/mpescatello?comment_id=Y29tbWVudDoxMDIzMDUzNzUzNzY1MjQzNF85NDg3MjUyNjk1MjEzNjU%3D&__cft__[0]=AZUTlYXLFRuCtNzlYi7djUeLyPgkwuDxKDMceIcru9n4EyDvvnv_gnIel0Oy_lVSU3HmgypVk1-KTy5QbHGXbqN6Dt90ZmMui0Rv_8pGo9q4yi6C8KQ1Zad2QWhZOcC6vwHEqSR8ISEyUp5yHcpSJl4C62Zku1lB-QTtuIFZ-el3mw&__tn__=R]-R
https://www.facebook.com/della.benak?__cft__[0]=AZUTlYXLFRuCtNzlYi7djUeLyPgkwuDxKDMceIcru9n4EyDvvnv_gnIel0Oy_lVSU3HmgypVk1-KTy5QbHGXbqN6Dt90ZmMui0Rv_8pGo9q4yi6C8KQ1Zad2QWhZOcC6vwHEqSR8ISEyUp5yHcpSJl4C62Zku1lB-QTtuIFZ-el3mw&__tn__=R]-R
https://www.facebook.com/mpescatello/posts/pfbid0X7ubCH77JwTPxXXRqEx9KwuiRES33ujgWrdS3xaC4d1pKjoTSWfUiPEfmeVqNz7Al?comment_id=6472599569522957&reply_comment_id=217072844633290&__cft__[0]=AZUTlYXLFRuCtNzlYi7djUeLyPgkwuDxKDMceIcru9n4EyDvvnv_gnIel0Oy_lVSU3HmgypVk1-KTy5QbHGXbqN6Dt90ZmMui0Rv_8pGo9q4yi6C8KQ1Zad2QWhZOcC6vwHEqSR8ISEyUp5yHcpSJl4C62Zku1lB-QTtuIFZ-el3mw&__tn__=R]-R
https://www.facebook.com/carole.gilbert.31?comment_id=Y29tbWVudDoxMDIzMDUzNzUzNzY1MjQzNF8yMTcwNzI4NDQ2MzMyOTA%3D&__cft__[0]=AZUTlYXLFRuCtNzlYi7djUeLyPgkwuDxKDMceIcru9n4EyDvvnv_gnIel0Oy_lVSU3HmgypVk1-KTy5QbHGXbqN6Dt90ZmMui0Rv_8pGo9q4yi6C8KQ1Zad2QWhZOcC6vwHEqSR8ISEyUp5yHcpSJl4C62Zku1lB-QTtuIFZ-el3mw&__tn__=R]-R
https://www.facebook.com/carole.gilbert.31?comment_id=Y29tbWVudDoxMDIzMDUzNzUzNzY1MjQzNF8yMTcwNzI4NDQ2MzMyOTA%3D&__cft__[0]=AZUTlYXLFRuCtNzlYi7djUeLyPgkwuDxKDMceIcru9n4EyDvvnv_gnIel0Oy_lVSU3HmgypVk1-KTy5QbHGXbqN6Dt90ZmMui0Rv_8pGo9q4yi6C8KQ1Zad2QWhZOcC6vwHEqSR8ISEyUp5yHcpSJl4C62Zku1lB-QTtuIFZ-el3mw&__tn__=R]-R
https://www.facebook.com/della.benak?__cft__[0]=AZUTlYXLFRuCtNzlYi7djUeLyPgkwuDxKDMceIcru9n4EyDvvnv_gnIel0Oy_lVSU3HmgypVk1-KTy5QbHGXbqN6Dt90ZmMui0Rv_8pGo9q4yi6C8KQ1Zad2QWhZOcC6vwHEqSR8ISEyUp5yHcpSJl4C62Zku1lB-QTtuIFZ-el3mw&__tn__=R]-R
https://www.facebook.com/mpescatello/posts/pfbid0X7ubCH77JwTPxXXRqEx9KwuiRES33ujgWrdS3xaC4d1pKjoTSWfUiPEfmeVqNz7Al?comment_id=6472599569522957&reply_comment_id=576714391122389&__cft__[0]=AZUTlYXLFRuCtNzlYi7djUeLyPgkwuDxKDMceIcru9n4EyDvvnv_gnIel0Oy_lVSU3HmgypVk1-KTy5QbHGXbqN6Dt90ZmMui0Rv_8pGo9q4yi6C8KQ1Zad2QWhZOcC6vwHEqSR8ISEyUp5yHcpSJl4C62Zku1lB-QTtuIFZ-el3mw&__tn__=R]-R
https://www.facebook.com/carole.gilbert.31?comment_id=Y29tbWVudDoxMDIzMDUzNzUzNzY1MjQzNF81NzY3MTQzOTExMjIzODk%3D&__cft__[0]=AZUTlYXLFRuCtNzlYi7djUeLyPgkwuDxKDMceIcru9n4EyDvvnv_gnIel0Oy_lVSU3HmgypVk1-KTy5QbHGXbqN6Dt90ZmMui0Rv_8pGo9q4yi6C8KQ1Zad2QWhZOcC6vwHEqSR8ISEyUp5yHcpSJl4C62Zku1lB-QTtuIFZ-el3mw&__tn__=R]-R
https://www.facebook.com/carole.gilbert.31?comment_id=Y29tbWVudDoxMDIzMDUzNzUzNzY1MjQzNF81NzY3MTQzOTExMjIzODk%3D&__cft__[0]=AZUTlYXLFRuCtNzlYi7djUeLyPgkwuDxKDMceIcru9n4EyDvvnv_gnIel0Oy_lVSU3HmgypVk1-KTy5QbHGXbqN6Dt90ZmMui0Rv_8pGo9q4yi6C8KQ1Zad2QWhZOcC6vwHEqSR8ISEyUp5yHcpSJl4C62Zku1lB-QTtuIFZ-el3mw&__tn__=R]-R
https://www.facebook.com/mpescatello?__cft__[0]=AZUTlYXLFRuCtNzlYi7djUeLyPgkwuDxKDMceIcru9n4EyDvvnv_gnIel0Oy_lVSU3HmgypVk1-KTy5QbHGXbqN6Dt90ZmMui0Rv_8pGo9q4yi6C8KQ1Zad2QWhZOcC6vwHEqSR8ISEyUp5yHcpSJl4C62Zku1lB-QTtuIFZ-el3mw&__tn__=R]-R
https://www.facebook.com/mpescatello/posts/pfbid0X7ubCH77JwTPxXXRqEx9KwuiRES33ujgWrdS3xaC4d1pKjoTSWfUiPEfmeVqNz7Al?comment_id=6472599569522957&reply_comment_id=748073190423268&__cft__[0]=AZUTlYXLFRuCtNzlYi7djUeLyPgkwuDxKDMceIcru9n4EyDvvnv_gnIel0Oy_lVSU3HmgypVk1-KTy5QbHGXbqN6Dt90ZmMui0Rv_8pGo9q4yi6C8KQ1Zad2QWhZOcC6vwHEqSR8ISEyUp5yHcpSJl4C62Zku1lB-QTtuIFZ-el3mw&__tn__=R]-R
https://www.facebook.com/mpescatello?comment_id=Y29tbWVudDoxMDIzMDUzNzUzNzY1MjQzNF83NDgwNzMxOTA0MjMyNjg%3D&__cft__[0]=AZUTlYXLFRuCtNzlYi7djUeLyPgkwuDxKDMceIcru9n4EyDvvnv_gnIel0Oy_lVSU3HmgypVk1-KTy5QbHGXbqN6Dt90ZmMui0Rv_8pGo9q4yi6C8KQ1Zad2QWhZOcC6vwHEqSR8ISEyUp5yHcpSJl4C62Zku1lB-QTtuIFZ-el3mw&__tn__=R]-R
https://www.facebook.com/mpescatello?comment_id=Y29tbWVudDoxMDIzMDUzNzUzNzY1MjQzNF83NDgwNzMxOTA0MjMyNjg%3D&__cft__[0]=AZUTlYXLFRuCtNzlYi7djUeLyPgkwuDxKDMceIcru9n4EyDvvnv_gnIel0Oy_lVSU3HmgypVk1-KTy5QbHGXbqN6Dt90ZmMui0Rv_8pGo9q4yi6C8KQ1Zad2QWhZOcC6vwHEqSR8ISEyUp5yHcpSJl4C62Zku1lB-QTtuIFZ-el3mw&__tn__=R]-R
https://www.facebook.com/carole.gilbert.31?__cft__[0]=AZUTlYXLFRuCtNzlYi7djUeLyPgkwuDxKDMceIcru9n4EyDvvnv_gnIel0Oy_lVSU3HmgypVk1-KTy5QbHGXbqN6Dt90ZmMui0Rv_8pGo9q4yi6C8KQ1Zad2QWhZOcC6vwHEqSR8ISEyUp5yHcpSJl4C62Zku1lB-QTtuIFZ-el3mw&__tn__=R]-R


Friends See all friends
639 (3 mutual)

Julie Williams
1 mutual friend

Michael Pescatello
2 mutual friends

Myah Pescatello
1 mutual friend

Michelle Williams Pescatello

  92

Reply 13h

Heather Lynn Lambrecht
Michelle Williams Pescatello came across your post just now and I'm appaled at
an admitted elected officials attempt to silence you with thinly veiled threats of
harassment and being in court if you dare to exercise your right to voice your
opinion and ask others to do so.

The residents have the right to voice their opinion and that's why they were
required to send you that letter. Yet your elected officials think exercising that
right is tampering with their decisions?
Like

Michelle Williams Pescatello
Heather Lynn Lambrecht seems to be that way. However, I’m not easily silenced.

https://www.facebook.com/photo/?fbid=5453958278054146&set=pob.1540572353
https://www.facebook.com/photo/?fbid=5453757324740908&set=pob.1540572353
https://www.facebook.com/photo/?fbid=5523110954472211&set=pob.1540572353
https://www.facebook.com/photo/?fbid=5523110944472212&set=pob.1540572353
https://www.facebook.com/photo/?fbid=5482941458489161&set=pob.1540572353
https://www.facebook.com/photo/?fbid=5482941395155834&set=pob.1540572353
https://www.facebook.com/photo/?fbid=5461575207292453&set=pob.1540572353
https://www.facebook.com/photo/?fbid=5461575047292469&set=pob.1540572353
https://www.facebook.com/photo/?fbid=5461575037292470&set=pob.1540572353
https://www.facebook.com/mpescatello/friends
https://www.facebook.com/mpescatello/friends
https://www.facebook.com/julie.williams.9674
https://www.facebook.com/michael.pescatello
https://www.facebook.com/profile.php?id=100075750153958
https://www.facebook.com/julie.williams.9674
https://www.facebook.com/michael.pescatello
https://www.facebook.com/profile.php?id=100075750153958
https://www.facebook.com/kristymcdonald8
https://www.facebook.com/jennifer.garrett.798
https://www.facebook.com/profile.php?id=100001915254587
https://www.facebook.com/mpescatello
https://www.facebook.com/bookmarks/
https://www.facebook.com/
https://www.facebook.com/notifications/
https://www.facebook.com/mpescatello/posts/pfbid0X7ubCH77JwTPxXXRqEx9KwuiRES33ujgWrdS3xaC4d1pKjoTSWfUiPEfmeVqNz7Al?comment_id=6472599569522957&reply_comment_id=1928123340901907&__cft__[0]=AZUTlYXLFRuCtNzlYi7djUeLyPgkwuDxKDMceIcru9n4EyDvvnv_gnIel0Oy_lVSU3HmgypVk1-KTy5QbHGXbqN6Dt90ZmMui0Rv_8pGo9q4yi6C8KQ1Zad2QWhZOcC6vwHEqSR8ISEyUp5yHcpSJl4C62Zku1lB-QTtuIFZ-el3mw&__tn__=R]-R
https://www.facebook.com/heatherrapid?comment_id=Y29tbWVudDoxMDIzMDUzNzUzNzY1MjQzNF8xOTI4MTIzMzQwOTAxOTA3&__cft__[0]=AZUTlYXLFRuCtNzlYi7djUeLyPgkwuDxKDMceIcru9n4EyDvvnv_gnIel0Oy_lVSU3HmgypVk1-KTy5QbHGXbqN6Dt90ZmMui0Rv_8pGo9q4yi6C8KQ1Zad2QWhZOcC6vwHEqSR8ISEyUp5yHcpSJl4C62Zku1lB-QTtuIFZ-el3mw&__tn__=R]-R
https://www.facebook.com/heatherrapid?comment_id=Y29tbWVudDoxMDIzMDUzNzUzNzY1MjQzNF8xOTI4MTIzMzQwOTAxOTA3&__cft__[0]=AZUTlYXLFRuCtNzlYi7djUeLyPgkwuDxKDMceIcru9n4EyDvvnv_gnIel0Oy_lVSU3HmgypVk1-KTy5QbHGXbqN6Dt90ZmMui0Rv_8pGo9q4yi6C8KQ1Zad2QWhZOcC6vwHEqSR8ISEyUp5yHcpSJl4C62Zku1lB-QTtuIFZ-el3mw&__tn__=R]-R
https://www.facebook.com/mpescatello?__cft__[0]=AZUTlYXLFRuCtNzlYi7djUeLyPgkwuDxKDMceIcru9n4EyDvvnv_gnIel0Oy_lVSU3HmgypVk1-KTy5QbHGXbqN6Dt90ZmMui0Rv_8pGo9q4yi6C8KQ1Zad2QWhZOcC6vwHEqSR8ISEyUp5yHcpSJl4C62Zku1lB-QTtuIFZ-el3mw&__tn__=R]-R
https://www.facebook.com/mpescatello?comment_id=Y29tbWVudDoxMDIzMDUzNzUzNzY1MjQzNF8yMzE1MjYzNTQxOTkzMjYw&__cft__[0]=AZUTlYXLFRuCtNzlYi7djUeLyPgkwuDxKDMceIcru9n4EyDvvnv_gnIel0Oy_lVSU3HmgypVk1-KTy5QbHGXbqN6Dt90ZmMui0Rv_8pGo9q4yi6C8KQ1Zad2QWhZOcC6vwHEqSR8ISEyUp5yHcpSJl4C62Zku1lB-QTtuIFZ-el3mw&__tn__=R]-R
https://www.facebook.com/mpescatello?comment_id=Y29tbWVudDoxMDIzMDUzNzUzNzY1MjQzNF8yMzE1MjYzNTQxOTkzMjYw&__cft__[0]=AZUTlYXLFRuCtNzlYi7djUeLyPgkwuDxKDMceIcru9n4EyDvvnv_gnIel0Oy_lVSU3HmgypVk1-KTy5QbHGXbqN6Dt90ZmMui0Rv_8pGo9q4yi6C8KQ1Zad2QWhZOcC6vwHEqSR8ISEyUp5yHcpSJl4C62Zku1lB-QTtuIFZ-el3mw&__tn__=R]-R
https://www.facebook.com/heatherrapid?__cft__[0]=AZUTlYXLFRuCtNzlYi7djUeLyPgkwuDxKDMceIcru9n4EyDvvnv_gnIel0Oy_lVSU3HmgypVk1-KTy5QbHGXbqN6Dt90ZmMui0Rv_8pGo9q4yi6C8KQ1Zad2QWhZOcC6vwHEqSR8ISEyUp5yHcpSJl4C62Zku1lB-QTtuIFZ-el3mw&__tn__=R]-R


Ron Popp <supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com>

RE: Regarding the Requested Variance for Baggs Rd Condos
1 message

Zoning Administrator <zoning@whitewatertownship.org> Thu, Aug 17, 2023 at 1:19 PM
To: Emilee Machelle <emileemachelle@yahoo.com>

Hello Emilee –

 

I will print this communication and distribute to the Zoning Board of Appeals as correspondence at the August 24th, 2023
meeting.  The Zoning Board of Appeals have already received their packets for this meeting, so it is highly unlikely that
this will be distributed beforehand. 

 

Thank you for providing these comments for their review.

 

Bob

 

From: Emilee Machelle <emileemachelle@yahoo.com>
Sent: Thursday, August 17, 2023 12:36 PM
To: Ron Popp <supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com>; Robert Hall <zoning@whitewatertownship.org>
Subject: Re: Regarding the Requested Variance for Baggs Rd Condos

 

Thanks Ron,

 

Regardless, the feedback is necessary from residents for the entire township staff to hear and take into account in all
future decisions seeing as the urban sprawl will keep pushing into our township. 

 

Hello Bob,

 

Please confirm receipt and that these comments have been passed on to your board prior to the August 24th meeting. 

 

 

Sent from my iPhone

On Aug 14, 2023, at 9:30 AM, Ron Popp <supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com> wrote:

mailto:emileemachelle@yahoo.com
mailto:supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com
mailto:zoning@whitewatertownship.org
mailto:supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com


Yes Emilee I did receive your comments. Please know that this is a Zoning Board Of Appeals (ZBA) request
not a Township Board (TB) question. Mr. Bob Hall, the Zoning Administrator is responsible to get your
comments to that body.

 

On Mon, Aug 14, 2023, 9:08 AM Emilee Machelle <emileemachelle@yahoo.com> wrote:

I have received confirmation of receipt from only the clerk. Following up to ensure this feedback is
received by all necessary parties and to add the treasurer to the thread.

> On Aug 9, 2023, at 6:08 PM, Emilee Machelle <emileemachelle@yahoo.com> wrote:
>
> ﻿As a township resident I want to share the opinion of my household regarding the proposed condo
development on Baggs Rd/PIN 28-13-136-001-02.
>
> I request that the township does not grant the ratio variance requested for these units. Whitewater
already has rather loose ordinances in place which do not do a sufficient job in protecting the township’s
rural character, which is supposed to be a part of the township’s mission statement. Lot sizes and shapes
are a huge component to protecting this character because it determines how close houses can be
together. High density housing is the very antithesis of rural living and I hope that the township will stand
firm against the urban sprawl ruining the beauty of Whitewater.
>
> High density housing also affects traffic conditions negatively. M-72 has because very scary to turn on
and off from due to increased traffic. With most roads only having stop-sign access to the highway, 
increasing traffic flow to and from these roads is something the township needs to carefully plan and
consider. A prime example is our neighbors in Acme township; who did nothing to account for the change
in traffic flow for the Equestrian Festival and has resulted in far too many accidents at the intersection of
Bates and M-72.
>
> It is for these reasons I am firmly against any form of higher density housing being brought to this
township, and specifically against this variance request. I hope that this feedback will be considered by
all those necessary, and that you continue to fight to protect the rural character that makes Whitewater so
special to us all. Please know that many neighbors I speak with share the same sentiment, and we hope
that you’ll keep these concerns in mind for this and all future decisions.
>
>
> Emilee Bruce
> 5070 N Broomhead Rd
> Williamsburg, MI 49690

mailto:emileemachelle@yahoo.com
mailto:emileemachelle@yahoo.com
https://www.google.com/maps/search/5070+N+Broomhead+Rd++Williamsburg,+MI+49690?entry=gmail&source=g
https://www.google.com/maps/search/5070+N+Broomhead+Rd++Williamsburg,+MI+49690?entry=gmail&source=g


Ron Popp <supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com>

RE: Baggs Rd Appeal
1 message

Christopher Patterson <cpatterson@fsbrlaw.com> Wed, Aug 9, 2023 at 11:03 AM
To: Ron Popp <supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com>, "Cheryl A. Goss" <clerk@whitewatertownship.org>, Zoning Administrator
<zoning@whitewatertownship.org>
Cc: Matthew Kuschel <MKuschel@fsbrlaw.com>, Lindsey Gergel <lgergel@fsbrlaw.com>, Kaylin Marshall
<kmarshall@fsbrlaw.com>

Good morning Ron, Cheryl, and Bob:

 

Last night, I was contacted by Ron to discuss the “ZBA Packet” posted on the website. I was not aware that it has a cover
letter that references a third section related to components from our office. Consistent with the Township’s interest in
transparency, we also prepared our documents to be public. So, in short, I apologize for the delay in our materials getting
out and was not aware of the public concern it is creating for the Supervisor and other members of the elected board.  To
facilitate getting those documents made available, we would like to finalize the attached documents. Before doing so, I
would appreciate any feedback you can provide today. We will then send final PDFs tonight or tomorrow morning for
posting on the Township’s website and being made available at the Township hall.

 

Additionally, I have also been told that the website packet does not relate to a packet being made available at the
Township Hall. Our office did work with Bob in review of his “staff report” and the public hearing notice. But, we were not
tasked with actually assembling a final copy of the “packet” that is being provided on the website. I will call the Township
shortly, but I don’t have any personal knowledge of how or what is being provided on the website that is different from
what is available at the Township hall. I will work on getting to the bottom of that issue as well and provide any updates as
soon as possible.

 

Again, sorry for the inconvenience and look forward to any comments or concerns you have regarding our attachments.

 

Talk soon,

Chris

 

 

Christopher S. Patterson

Member  •  Fahey Schultz Burzych Rhodes

Direct: 517.381.3205  •  Cell: 269.744.4807
Office: 517.381.0100  •  Fax: 517.381.3185

fsbrlaw.com  •  cpatterson@fsbrlaw.com

http://fsbrlaw.com/
mailto:cpatterson@fsbrlaw.com


4151 Okemos Road, Okemos, MI 48864 USA
⧨ U.S. News & World Report Ranked Best Law Firm

 

This message is from a law firm, and thus may contain or attach privileged or confidential information, information exempt from disclosure, or
an attorney-client communication that is confidential and privileged by law. It is intended solely for the use of the addressee.  It is not intended
for transmission to, or receipt by, any unauthorized person. If you believe that you have received this message or any attachment in error, simply
delete both from your system without reading or copying, and notify the sender by e-mail or by calling 517-381-0100.

 

Neither this information block, the typed name of the sender, nor anything else in this message is intended to constitute an electronic signature
unless a specific statement to the contrary is included in this message.  Thank you.

 

2 attachments

2023.08.09 Draft ZBA Form (clean).docx
32K

2023.08.09 Letter to ZBA (final).docx
128K

https://www.google.com/maps/search/4151+Okemos+Road,+Okemos,+MI+48864+USA?entry=gmail&source=g
https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?ui=2&ik=d5568a8cbf&view=att&th=189dad3672ec720a&attid=0.1&disp=attd&safe=1&zw
https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?ui=2&ik=d5568a8cbf&view=att&th=189dad3672ec720a&attid=0.2&disp=attd&safe=1&zw


WHITEWATER TOWNSHIP 

ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 

WRITTEN DECISION OF ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 

 

Application Number: ____________ 

Hearing Date: August 24, 2023 

Applicant: Baggs Partners, LLC (“Applicant”). 

Site Address: 6631 Baggs Road, Williamsburg, MI 49690. Parcel No. 13-136-001-02 (the 

“Parcel”). 

Purpose of Request: Request a variance from the 4:1 depth to width ratio requirement of the 

Whitewater Township Ordinance No. 26 (The “Land Division Ordinance”). 

In 2020, the Township received and approved an application for a land division which created the 

Parcel. The parent parcel was a 125-acre parcel owned by Morrison Orchards, which was split to 

create the Parcel, which is approximately 30 acres in size. On February 2, 2022, the Parcel was 

sold to Baggs Partners, LLC. On May 3, 2023, the Township Board found that the Parcel is not 

compliant with the Land Division Ordinance and deemed the parcel ineligible for building permits 

or zoning approvals. Applicant seeks a variance from the 4:1 depth to width ratio requirements. 

Public Hearing: The ZBA opened the public hearing on August 24, 2023, to consider the subject 

matter of the Application for appeal. The ZBA heard comments from the Applicant, its 

representative, the Township attorney, and members of the public, along with exhibits submitted 

by the same.  

Standards of Review: The Whitewater Township Land Division Ordinance provides the standards 

for review by the Zoning Board of Appeals, and in particular the following sections: 

Section VII(D), provides that the ZBA “may approve a land division that creates a resulting parcel 

with a depth to width ratio greater than four to one if the applicant demonstrates that there are 

exceptional topographic or physical conditions with respect to the parcel and that the greater ratio 

would be reasonably compatible with the surrounding lands.” 

Section VIII, provides that where “there are practical difficulties” the ZBA may “vary or modify 

the application of the provisions of this Ordinance so that the intent and purpose of the Ordinance 

is observed, public safety secured and substantial justice done. The Township Board, or its 

designee [here, the ZBA], may attach reasonable conditions in approving any variance from any 

provision. The breach of any condition or the failure of any applicant to comply with conditions 

shall void the variance. 

In order for a variance to be granted, evidence must be presented at a public hearing that all of the 

following conditions exist: 



2 
 

• Exceptional or extraordinary circumstances exist such as exceptional 

topographical or physical conditions; or that the greater ratio would be 

reasonably compatible with the surrounding lands. 

• Strict compliance with the regulations of this Ordinance will unreasonably 

prevent the applicant from developing the property or will render conformity 

with the regulations of this Ordinance unreasonably burdensome. 

• The requested variance will not cause an adverse impact on the development of 

surrounding property, property values, or the use and enjoyment of property in 

the immediate area. 

• Health, safety and welfare will not be compromised. 

• The requested variance is the minimum variance necessary to permit reasonable 

use of the land. [Ordinance, Section VIII] 

 

Findings of Fact: The ZBA finds as follows based upon the Land Division Ordinance, the 

Application, information and comments received by the Applicant, its representative and the 

Township attorney, and based on input (both through comments and written submissions) received 

during the public hearing.  

1. By majority vote on July 11, 2023 the Township Board directed the ZBA to accept all 

relevant information and hear the application for a Land Division Ordinance variance for 

the Parcel. 

2. Pursuant to the Land Division Ordinance, Section VII and Section VIII, and the action of 

the Township Board, the ZBA has been delegated and does have the authority to hear the 

request for a variance. 

3. Applicant is the owner of 6631 Baggs Road, Williamsburg, MI 49690, the subject of this 

appeal. The Parcel is vacant, with no structures on the property. 

4. Previous owner Morrison Acres applied for the land division of a 125-acre parent parcel in 

2020. 

5. In 2020, the Zoning Administrator approved the application for a land division, and the 

division created the Parcel at issue, which is approximately 30 acres in size. 

6. On or about May 18, 2020, the Parcel was sold to former owner Debono. 

7. On or about January 14, 2022, the Parcel was sold to Derek Van Solkema. 

8. On or about February 2, 2022, the Parcel was quit-claimed to Baggs Partners, LLC. 

9. On August 29, 2022, the Township received a complaint alleging that the Parcel was 

improperly split because it did not conform with the 4:1 width to depth ratio under Section 

VII of the Land Division Ordinance. 



3 
 

10. At a special meeting of the Township Board on May 3, 2023, the Township Board made a 

number of findings, including that the Parcel is noncompliant with the Land Division 

Ordinance, specifically the ratio requirement. The Township Board further found that the 

Parcel is “not eligible for any building permits or zoning approvals such as special land use 

approval or site plan approval.” 

11. This Application followed, requesting a variance of the ratio requirement. 

 

Whether the Applicant has shown: 

12.  That exceptional or extraordinary circumstances exist such as exceptional 

topographical or physical conditions  

or  

that the greater ratio would be reasonably compatible with the surrounding lands, the ZBA 

specifically finds: 

             

             

             

             

 

13. Whether the Applicant has shown that strict compliance with the regulations of this 

Ordinance will unreasonably prevent the applicant from developing the property  

or  

will render conformity with the regulation of the Land Division Ordinance unreasonably 

burdensome, the ZBA specifically finds: 

             

             

             

             

 

14. Whether the Applicant has shown that the requested variance will not cause an adverse 

impact on the  

development of surrounding property,  



4 
 

property values or  

the use and enjoyment of property in the immediate area, the ZBA specifically finds: 

             

             

             

             

 

15. Whether the Applicant has shown that the health, safety and welfare will not be 

compromised, the ZBA specifically finds: 

             

             

             

             

16. Whether the Applicant has shown that the requested variance is the minimum variance 

necessary to permit reasonable use of the land, the ZBA specifically finds: 

             

             

             

             

 

Decision: 

For the reasons above and stated on the record, the ZBA  GRANTS / DENIES the 

Application for a depth-to-width variance. 

 

ADOPTED: 

 

YEAS: ______________________________________________________________________ 

 

NAYS: ______________________________________________________________________ 

 

__________________________    Dated: ______________, 2023 

Kenneth Bowen, ZBA Chair  



5 
 

 

 

CERTIFICATION 

 

 I, Therowin Lake, the duly qualified and acting Secretary of the Whitewater Township 

Zoning Board of Appeals, Grand Traverse County, Michigan, do hereby certify that the foregoing 

is a true and complete copy of a resolution adopted by the Whitewater Zoning Board of Appeals 

at a duly scheduled meeting of the Zoning Board of Appeals held on    , 2023 

 

 

      __________________________________ 

      Therowin Lake, Secretary 



 

 

 

 

 

 

September 15, 2023 

 

Zoning Board of Appeals 

Whitewater Township 

5777 Vinton Road 

Williamsburg, MI 49690 

 

Dear Board Members: 

 

 Re: Parcel Number 13-136-001-02 Variance Request 

 

This letter summarizes the background regarding the application to the Zoning Board of Appeals 

(the “ZBA”) to be heard on Thursday, August 24, 2023, at 7:00 p.m., for a variance request related 

to parcel number 13-136-001-02 (the “Parcel”). This letter also addresses the standards for 

reviewing variance requests under the Whitewater Township Land Division Ordinance (the 

“Ordinance,” attached as Attachment A).  

 

FACTS 

In 2020, a 125-acre parcel was divided and created the Parcel at issue, which is approximately 30 

acres in size. The depth to width ratio is approximately 6:1—greater than 4:1 as approved at that 

time. The Parcel was sold a number of times between 2020 and 2022 before finally being sold to 

the current owners. On August 29, 2022, neighboring property owners Frank and Connie Hymore 

submitted a complaint regarding the validity of the split. Since February 2023, the Township devoted 

extensive time reviewing its ordinances and the nature of the division. At a special meeting on May 

3, 2023, the Township Board made the following findings of fact (Attachment B, 5/3/23, Minutes): 

1. Request for variance is nonexistent. 

2. Parcel B could have been divided in a manner to make it comply with the ordinance, moving 

the north line. 

3. No record of topographical or environmental adverse circumstances. 

4. The ordinance is a local law, flawed or unflawed. 

5. Following township ordinance is important to the greater good. 

The Board determined that the Parcel is noncompliant with the Ordinance for failing to comply 

with the depth to width ratio. In the Board’s review, the record was insufficient to establish an 



 

 

2 

exemption. As a result, the Board held that zoning permits or building permits could not be issued 

for the nonconforming Parcel. Id. 

 

Following that decision, on June 19, 2023, the Township received a request for a variance 

(Attachment C) from the 4:1 depth to width ratio under Section 7(D) of the Land Division 

Ordinance. The variance request states: 

We are appealing the May 3, 2023 administrative decision of the Whitewater 

Township Board that declared parcel 28-13-136-001-02 was non-compliant with 

the Whitewater Township general ordinance #26 Amendment 3, effective 

3/19/2011, specifically; section 7(d) and is not eligible for any building permits or 

zoning approvals such as special land use approvals or site plan approvals and 

reconsider, reinstate and uphold the original land division approval of zoning 

administrator #2 seek a variance from the 4:1 depth to width ratio stated in section 

7.D of the Ordinance No.26 [Land Division Ordinance]. 

 

Supplemental materials were submitted on July 27, 2023, on behalf of the applicant and landowner 

(Attachment D, Owners Report for ZBA).  

 

Since the ZBA does not have the authority to hear appeals of Township Board decisions, the 

Township Board construed the application as a request for a variance. At its July 11, 2023, meeting, 

the Board directed the ZBA to hear the application for variance (Attachment E, 7/11/23, 

Minutes). See also MCL 125.3603(1) (The ZBA “shall also hear and decide on matters referred” to 

it). 

 

STANDARDS FOR CONSIDERATION 

Section VII of the Ordinance states that to approve a land division “[t]he ratio of depth to width of 

any parcel created by the division does not exceed a four to one ratio exclusive of access roads, 

easements, or non-buildable parcels . . . .” Ordinance, Section VII(D) (emphasis added). The same 

subsection provides that a “person designated” may “approve a land division that creates a resulting 

parcel with a depth to width ratio greater than four to one if the applicant demonstrates that there 

are exceptional topographic or physical conditions with respect to the parcel and that the greater 

ratio would be reasonably compatible with the surrounding lands.” Id.  

 

Section VIII allows for departure from the requirements of the Ordinance where “there are 

practical difficulties in the way of carrying out the strict letter of this Ordinance . . ..” Specifically, 

the Ordinance states “the Township Board, or its designee, shall have the power to vary or modify 

the application of the provisions of this Ordinance so that the intent and purpose of the Ordinance 

is observed, public safety secured and substantial justice done.” Ordinance, Section VIII. 

 



 

 

3 

A variance is “in essence, a license to use property in a way that would not be permitted under” an 

ordinance. Frericks v Highland Twp, 228 Mich App 575, 582 (1998). It grants permission for a specific 

deviation and exception from the typical ordinance requirements. The Ordinance, Section VIII, lists 

the following standards for approval of a variance, which must be established with evidence at a 

public hearing: 

• Exceptional or extraordinary circumstances exist such as exceptional 

topographical or physical conditions; or that the greater ratio would be 

reasonably compatible with the surrounding lands. 

• Strict compliance with the regulations of this Ordinance will unreasonably 

prevent the applicant from developing the property or will render conformity 

with the regulations of this Ordinance unreasonably burdensome. 

• The requested variance will not cause an adverse impact on the development 

of surrounding property, property values or the use and enjoyment of 

property in the immediate area. 

• Health, safety and welfare will not be compromised. 

• The requested variance is the minimum variance necessary to permit 

reasonable use of the land. [Ordinance, Section VIII (emphasis added)] 

 

ZONING PRINCIPALS GUIDING THE VARIANCE REQUEST 

The ZBA is not considering the variance request under the Zoning Ordinance; rather it must 

consider the variance request under the Land Division Ordinance. Still, several aspects of a zoning 

variance are present in the land division variance criteria.1 Therefore, the ZBA may consider 

interpretations regarding zoning ordinances and prior variance decisions under the Zoning 

Ordinance in interpreting and understanding the standards set forth by the Land Division 

Ordinance. 

 

Exceptional or Extraordinary Circumstances 

One condition the ZBA must consider is the existence of “[e]xceptional or extraordinary 

circumstances” such as topographical or physical conditions. Michigan courts have considered 

“exceptional or extraordinary circumstances” in the zoning context. In one case, the Court found 

“exceptional or extraordinary circumstances existed” when a property owner was unable to meet 

a critical dune zone, excessive dune slopes in the rear yard, and MDEQ building restrictions. Risko 

v Grand Haven Charter Twp Zoning Bd of Appeals, 284 Mich App 453, 454-55, 457, 459 (2009). These 

circumstances satisfied the criteria in the context of a variance request from a 50-foot setback. Id. 

 

 
1 For example, a “majority of the members of the zoning board of appeals” is required “to grant a [nonuse] 

variance in the zoning ordinance.” MCL 125.3603(2). Likewise, although this action is under the Land Division 

Ordinance, a majority of the Board is also required to grant this variance. See MCL 8.3c. 



 

 

4 

 

In another case, a variance was appropriate where 60% of the property was in a floodplain and 45% 

to 50% was wetlands. Engel v Monitor Twp Zoning Bd of Appeals, unpublished per curiam opinion of 

the Court of Appeals, issued September 13, 2016 (Docket No. 327701). These conditions 

constituted a practical difficulty from “exceptional topographic conditions or other extraordinary 

situation of the land.” Id.  

 

Unreasonably Prevent Development or Is Unreasonably Burdensome  

As a general rule, all regulation is burdensome in some sense; the mere fact of a burden does not 

rise to “unnecessarily burdensome.” For example, a size restriction on signs affected and burdened 

all commercial property owners similarly and was not unreasonable because it promoted safety and 

aesthetic goals. Norman Corp v City of East Tawas, 263 Mich App 194, 204 (2004).  

 

In one case, a church sought a variance from a ban on the demolition of buildings located within the 

historical districts. Heritage Hill Ass’n, Inc v City of Grand Rapids, 48 Mich App 765, 767 (1973). The 

church, on behalf of the landowners, proposed to demolish an adjacent four-unit apartment to 

relieve parking and seating problems at the church. Id. The apartment was nearly vacant and next 

to impossible to rent. Id. at 770. In addition, the apartment building had attempted to sell on three 

occasions and had been appraised at $22,000, but the best offer received was only for $15,000. The 

church offered to purchase it for $26,000. Id. at 771. The Court determined that a hardship existed. 

Id. The owner’s various unsuccessful attempts to otherwise dispose of the apartment property at a 

reasonable and fair market price supported the practical difficulty and showed the regulations in 

context were unreasonably burdensome. Id.  

 

In another case, the construction of a private road—instead of a public road—was a proper variance 

because strict conformance would prevent development and was unreasonably burdensome. Four 

parcels had an access easement and also evidenced some unique topography including a ravine and 

a creek. Swieckicki v City of Dearborn & Da’Fish Enterprises, unpublished per curiam opinion of the 

Court of Appeals issued September 12, 2006 (Docket Nos. 262892 & 263066). The property was 

zoned for single family residential but without a variance, the owner could not construct a single 

home. Id. Without the “private road, Lot D could never be developed for any purpose.” Id. The 

Court affirmed the grant of the variance. 

 

Finally, the last two categories—adverse impact as well as health and safety—extend beyond the 

zoning variance context and will be considered in the next section. 

 

PREVIOUS APPLICATIONS OF THE VARIANCE STANDARDS 

The ZBA has considered three variances under the Land Division Act in the years 2010, 2012, and 

2013. Generally, “an administrative agency may reexamine its prior decisions” for analytical guidance 



 

 

5 

or to determine existing precedent. See Melvindale-Northern Allen Park Federation of Teachers, Local 

1051 v Melvindale-Northern Allen Park Pub Sch, 216 Mich App 31, 37 (1996). A decision is more likely 

to be upheld if the rationale for following the prior decisions is articulated or the departure from 

previous decisions explained. Michigan Administrative Law § 4:20 (2019). The ZBA may review its 

prior interpretations of the Land Division Act and application of variance conditions to guide its 

interpretation of the facts and standards in the case at hand. 

 

In 2010, the ZBA approved a variance request related to the width to depth ratio of a parcel, but 

required that the width to depth ratio not exceed more than 1:17 (Attachment F, ZBA Draft 

Minutes, 11/10/2010, and associated documents). In this case, there was wetland in the east portion 

of the property. The drain field was required to be set well-off the shoreline to satisfy regulations. 

These contributed to 700 feet of depth being required for the property to develop. Additionally, 

two adjacent parcels were seeking or already had a similar configuration. The ZBA found that the 

ratio “is consistent with the area” and found that “there are exceptional topographical or physical 

conditions” related to the existence of wetlands in the area. 

 

In 2012, the ZBA granted a variance to allow a width to depth ratio of 1:6.18 on a parcel 

(Attachment G, ZBA Minutes, 12/18/2012, and associated documents). It also sought a lot width 

of 84 feet—a 16 foot variance from the 100 foot minimum lot width requirement. The Zoning 

Administrator found that exceptional or extraordinary circumstances existed and that strict 

compliance with the requirement would be unreasonably burdensome because all parcels on the 

south side of the property exceeded the 1:4 ratio. The Zoning Administrator also found that the 

variance would not cause an adverse impact to the development of surrounding property, property 

values, or use and enjoyment of the properties in the area because the lots in the area ranged from 

70 feet to 100 feet in width, and that the creation of two lots with 84 feet in width would not have 

an adverse impact on the area. Health, safety, and welfare would not be compromised because only 

70- to 100-foot-wide lots were buildable due to regulated wetlands encompassing most of the area’s 

parcels. Finally, the Zoning Administrator found that the requested variance is the minimum 

necessary for reasonable use of the land because “[o]ther split options would create one more 

non-conforming lot.” The ZBA granted both the lot width variance and the depth-to-width ratio 

variance. 

 

In 2013, the ZBA granted a variance from the 1:4 ratio requirement on a parcel with a complex 

history. It was purchased in 1979 and then combined in 1992 for unknown reasons and apparently 

without the knowledge of the applicant (Attachment H, ZBA Minutes, 2/19/2013, and associated 

documents). The Zoning Administrator had found that granting the variance was not contrary to 

the public interest because the parcels were combined with a 1:4 ratio, but erosion and collection 

of eroded material had increased the length of a portion of the parcel. The Zoning Administrator 



 

 

6 

found that granting the variance would not have an adverse effect on property in the area because 

other parcels in the area had dimensions similar to the parcel at issue. 

 

Adverse Impact & Health and Safety 

With these prior local ZBA cases in mind, we return to the next two standards in the variance 

consideration. They are broad in scope and specific to the neighborhood. An adverse impact on 

surrounding development, property values, or the use and enjoyment of property in the immediate 

area broadly considers all three factors for the parcels in the area. If the totality of the impact is 

neutral or positive, then there would be no adverse impact. 

 

Health, safety, and welfare are similarly broad. Safety and health concerns are more concrete, 

connecting to physical dangers or risks. For example, one request considered the health impacts of 

the drain field location. Other existing developments might consider the location or availability of 

water or sewer service. Since the parcel at issue is vacant, these concerns are less prevalent here. 

Because the proposed development itself is not for consideration here, however, we recommend 

that the ZBA consider not how any proposed development would impact these factors but only 

how the land division itself would affect the health, safety, and welfare of the Township area. 

 

In contrast to the more concrete health and safety, welfare is more challenging to conceptualize. 

Black’s Law Dictionary defines “welfare” as “[w]ell-being in any respect; prosperity.” Black’s Law 

Dictionary, 11th ed. “Welfare” is also defined as “state of doing well especially in respect to good 

fortune, happiness, well-being, or prosperity,” Merriam Webster Dictionary (online), and as “Health, 

happiness, and good fortune; well-being,” The American Heritage Dictionary (online). As the various 

definitions show, this condition is very broad and allows the ZBA to consider a number of different 

factors relating to the division. Again, if the totality of the impact to well-being is neutral or positive, 

then the variance would be consistent with the community welfare. 

 

REACHING A DECISION 

We have also included a form that the ZBA can utilize in making its decision. The relevant 

background and history are included as well as the variance standards from the Ordinance. The 

ZBA should carefully consider each of the factors and deliberate on whether each standard is met 

and what facts support each decision. Every member need not agree on each factor or analysis; 

rather the majority rules. After each standard, space is provided for the ZBA to clearly identify the 

facts applicable to each standard. How the current request is similar or different from other variance 

requests can also be articulated. The final determination for each factor should be included. 

 

  



 

 

7 

CONCLUSION 

The ZBA is permitted to consider only the conditions under Section VIII of the Land Division 

Ordinance. In interpreting the Land Division Ordinance, it may use familiar legal principles in the 

zoning context to apply by analogy to the Land Division Ordinance. It may also reference the 

historical application of the standards in the three prior variance requests attached as exhibits. 

 

In conclusion, the ZBA must review the information submitted by the Applicant, the public, and 

other interested parties to determine whether the evidence establishes exceptional topography or 

physical conditions; that it would be compatible with the surrounding lands; that conformity would 

be unreasonably burdensome; that it will not cause an adverse impact to surrounding property; that 

community welfare remains protected; and that any variance from the width-to-depth ratio is the 

minimal necessary to be appropriate for the Parcel. 

 

Please reach out with any questions or concerns on this matter. 

 

Sincerely, 

 

 

 
CHRISTOPHER S. PATTERSON 

MEMBER 

Direct: 517.381.3205 

cpatterson@fsbrlaw.com 

 

CSP/kjm 

 

Enclosures  

mailto:cpatterson@fsbrlaw.com


Ron Popp <supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com>

Re: ZBA
1 message

Vicki Beam <vickibeam@gmail.com> Thu, Jul 13, 2023 at 2:42 PM
To: Ron Popp <supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com>

I'm curious - what date was it signed and by whom was it signed?

On Wed, Jul 12, 2023 at 8:16 AM Ron Popp <supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com> wrote:
Good morning Vicki, I do not understand your question. Please define anything. If you mean an application to the ZBA
then yes, I believe Gary Vansloksma delivered an application for a variance on 6.20.2023 to the Clerk and or Treasurer.
I believe that was the reason for his presence on that day. 

Ron Popp
Whitewater Township Supervisor
231.267.5141 Ext. 23
supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com

On Tue, Jul 11, 2023 at 8:37 PM Vicki Beam <vickibeam@gmail.com> wrote:
Has anything been received regarding the illegal request for variance for Baggs Road Partners?

Sent from my iPhone

--

 

 

 

mailto:supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com
mailto:supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com
mailto:vickibeam@gmail.com


Ron Popp <supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com>

Request for Copy of Baggs Partners, LLC Variance Request - 6631 Baggs Rd.
1 message

Frank Hymore <fhymore@sbcglobal.net> Mon, Jul 10, 2023 at 12:09 PM
Reply-To: Frank Hymore <fhymore@sbcglobal.net>
To: Zoning Administrator <zoning@whitewatertownship.org>
Cc: Ron Popp <supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com>

Mr. Hall,

I see that the Township Board is allowing the Baggs Partners, LLC to appeal to the ZBA for a variance for the property at
6631 Baggs Rd., in total violation of Section IX of General Ordinance 26. After talking with Ron Popp, he says you have
the application, and it is public knowledge. Can you please send me a copy of the variance request submitted by Baggs
Partners, LLC?

Also, as I look through the July Township Board Agenda, in your June report you make numerous statements which are
clear, powerful and require no interpretation.

"We all (hopefully) understand that the Master Plan is the ‘guide’ for the future of Whitewater Township. The
Whitewater Township Zoning Ordinance is the ‘rule of law’ in effect at this time that regulates the land use
activity. If our zoning ordinance lists a use, then we are obligated to address an application.

The Zoning Administrator administers the Zoning Ordinance (precisely as it is written) without the authority to
interject personal decisions or opinions."

General Ordinance 26 Section IX is quite clear and requires no interpretation. When the Township Board followed the
Ordinance and deemed the property at 6631 Baggs Rd. as "not buildable", the land cannot be subject to an appeal and
sent to the ZBA. As Zoning Administrator, knowing the Ordinances, you should reply to the Whitewater Township Board
that their request is disallowed.

I look forward to receiving a copy of the variance request.

Thank you,

Frank Hymore



Ron Popp <supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com>

Re: ZBA
1 message

Frank Hymore <fhymore@sbcglobal.net> Thu, Jul 6, 2023 at 11:27 PM
Reply-To: Frank Hymore <fhymore@sbcglobal.net>
To: Vicki Beam <vickibeam@gmail.com>, Ron Popp <supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com>

All,

In my opinion, Bob Hall's error puts him in violation of Genral Ordinance 26 along with a possible monetary fine and jail
time. I believe he could benefit from an appeal. So yes, he has a conflict of interest. Also, per Genral Ordinance 26, this
parcel cannot be sent to the ZBA. Why are we blatantly violating section IX of General Ordinance 26? It is very clear, no
interpretation required. I am still waiting for an answer from Ron Popp and Mr. Patterson to respond to that question. 

Thank you,
Frank Hymore

On Thursday, July 6, 2023 at 12:07:28 PM EDT, Vicki Beam <vickibeam@gmail.com> wrote:

WTF

---------- Forwarded message ---------
From: Ron Popp <supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com>
Date: Thu, Jul 6, 2023 at 11:40 AM
Subject: Re: ZBA
To: Vicki Beam <vickibeam@gmail.com>

Vicki - A conflict of interest exists when a decision maker (or family) may benefit from the decision. Bob is not a decision
maker for the ZBA. 

In this case, you may consider Bob a lobbyist. I am not an attorney, but I do not believe conflict of interest concerns follow
lobbyists.  

I hope this helps. 
Ron Popp
Whitewater Township Supervisor
231.267.5141 Ext. 23
supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com

On Thu, Jul 6, 2023 at 10:41 AM Vicki Beam <vickibeam@gmail.com> wrote:
How is it that Bob Hall will be the one presenting it to the ZBA - isn't that a conflict of interest?

On Thu, Jul 6, 2023 at 9:14 AM Zoning Administrator <zoning@whitewatertownship.org> wrote:

Good Thursday-

 

I am ‘tentatively’ looking at the regularly scheduled meeting date of August 24th for the Zoning Board of Appeals.

 

Bob

 

mailto:vickibeam@gmail.com
mailto:supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com
mailto:vickibeam@gmail.com
mailto:supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com
mailto:vickibeam@gmail.com
mailto:zoning@whitewatertownship.org


From: Ron Popp <supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com>
Sent: Thursday, July 6, 2023 9:09 AM
To: Vicki Beam <vickibeam@gmail.com>; zoning@whitewatertownship.org
Subject: Re: ZBA

 

Good morning Vicki - I do not know the status of the appeal. Your request for information has been forwarded to Bob
Hall.I

 

 

Ron Popp

Whitewater Township Supervisor

231.267.5141 Ext. 23

supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com

 

 

On Wed, Jul 5, 2023 at 6:45 AM Vicki Beam <vickibeam@gmail.com> wrote:

Do we know status of Baggs in front of them?

Sent from my iPhone

--

 

 

 

--

 

 

 

mailto:supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com
mailto:vickibeam@gmail.com
mailto:zoning@whitewatertownship.org
mailto:supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com
mailto:vickibeam@gmail.com


Ron Popp <supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com>

Re: ZBA
1 message

Vicki Beam <vickibeam@gmail.com> Thu, Jul 6, 2023 at 10:41 AM
To: Zoning Administrator <zoning@whitewatertownship.org>
Cc: Ron Popp <supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com>

How is it that Bob Hall will be the one presenting it to the ZBA - isn't that a conflict of interest?

On Thu, Jul 6, 2023 at 9:14 AM Zoning Administrator <zoning@whitewatertownship.org> wrote:

Good Thursday-

 

I am ‘tentatively’ looking at the regularly scheduled meeting date of August 24th for the Zoning Board of Appeals.

 

Bob

 

From: Ron Popp <supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com>
Sent: Thursday, July 6, 2023 9:09 AM
To: Vicki Beam <vickibeam@gmail.com>; zoning@whitewatertownship.org
Subject: Re: ZBA

 

Good morning Vicki - I do not know the status of the appeal. Your request for information has been forwarded to Bob
Hall.I

 

 

Ron Popp

Whitewater Township Supervisor

231.267.5141 Ext. 23

supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com

 

 

On Wed, Jul 5, 2023 at 6:45 AM Vicki Beam <vickibeam@gmail.com> wrote:

Do we know status of Baggs in front of them?

Sent from my iPhone

--

 

mailto:zoning@whitewatertownship.org
mailto:supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com
mailto:vickibeam@gmail.com
mailto:zoning@whitewatertownship.org
mailto:supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com
mailto:vickibeam@gmail.com


 

 



Ron Popp <supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com>

RE: ZBA
1 message

Zoning Administrator <zoning@whitewatertownship.org> Thu, Jul 6, 2023 at 9:14 AM
To: Ron Popp <supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com>, Vicki Beam <vickibeam@gmail.com>

Good Thursday-

 

I am ‘tentatively’ looking at the regularly scheduled meeting date of August 24th for the Zoning Board of Appeals.

 

Bob

 

From: Ron Popp <supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com>
Sent: Thursday, July 6, 2023 9:09 AM
To: Vicki Beam <vickibeam@gmail.com>; zoning@whitewatertownship.org
Subject: Re: ZBA

 

Good morning Vicki - I do not know the status of the appeal. Your request for information has been forwarded to Bob
Hall.I

 

 

Ron Popp

Whitewater Township Supervisor

231.267.5141 Ext. 23

supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com

 

 

On Wed, Jul 5, 2023 at 6:45 AM Vicki Beam <vickibeam@gmail.com> wrote:

Do we know status of Baggs in front of them?

Sent from my iPhone

mailto:supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com
mailto:vickibeam@gmail.com
mailto:zoning@whitewatertownship.org
mailto:supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com
mailto:vickibeam@gmail.com


Ron Popp <supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com>

Variance Request
1 message

Zoning Administrator <zoning@whitewatertownship.org> Thu, Jun 29, 2023 at 4:02 PM
To: Derek Van Solkema <derek.vansolkema@gmail.com>, Gary Van Solkema <vansolkema@gmail.com>, Ryan Sheffer
<Sheffer82@gmail.com>
Cc: Christopher Patterson <cpatterson@fsbrlaw.com>, mherringlaw@oulook.com

Hello Folks-

 

My apologies if this email drags on too long – in reviewing the record, the Whitewater Township Board at their June 20th

special meeting accepted the … applicants request to pursue a variance and directed the ZA to accept the application …

To that end, the ZBA will not entertain an appeal of the Boards decision as requested on the application, but will instead
review the requested variance under the conditions listed in Section VIII of General Ordinance No. 26, being the
Whitewater Township Land Division Ordinance.

Additionally, and to serve the best interest of Whitewater Township and to serve the applicant, more time will be needed to
devote to a comprehensive report in preparation for a ZBA meeting.  While I initially proposed July 2th as a targeted
meeting date, it is evident that this will not allow sufficient time to prepare.  I am now proposing an August 24th meeting
date as more realistic.

I am copying Attorneys Patterson and Herring as well as the appropriate Township personnel to confirm applicable
availability.

I will need the applicant’s to submit a statement to the Zoning Board of Appeals that addresses the conditions listed in
Section VIII as soon as possible so that we can work towards properly publishing and noticing the public hearing that will
be required.

 

Thank you,

 

Bob

 

Robert (Bob) Hall

Zoning Administrator

 

Whitewater Township

P.O. Box 159

Williamsburg, Michigan 49690

 

231-267-5141 x 21

 

www.whitewatertownship.org

http://www.whitewatertownship.org/


 



Ron Popp <supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com>

RE: Whitewater Twp - ZBA
1 message

Christopher Patterson <cpatterson@fsbrlaw.com> Thu, Jun 29, 2023 at 11:39 AM
To: Zoning Administrator <zoning@whitewatertownship.org>
Cc: "Cheryl A. Goss" <clerk@whitewatertownship.org>, Ron Popp <supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com>, Lindsey Gergel
<lgergel@fsbrlaw.com>, Matthew Kuschel <MKuschel@fsbrlaw.com>, Kaylin Marshall <kmarshall@fsbrlaw.com>

Bob:

 

I think we need to discuss the application at issue and the Board’s motion. There is no appeal that has been authorized to go to the
ZBA. Instead, the applicant is entitled to pursue a variance. So that clarification resolves and doesn’t require the ZBA to worry about
Nos. 1 and 2. Also, the Township Board’s determination that is unbuildable is based on the documents the Board reviewed. Those
same documents will likely overlap and be relevant for the ZBA to review. We can assemble all of those and transmit them to you.

 

I can also copy and paste the sections from the ordinance for purposes of No. 3. It comes from language in Article 8 of the Zoning
Ordinance or provide a statement for the ZBA. Which do you prefer?

 

Also, did the applicant submit no further information regarding the form you have? That is it?

 

Sincerely,

 

Chris

 

 

Christopher S. Patterson

Member  •  Fahey Schultz Burzych Rhodes

Direct: 517.381.3205  •  Cell: 269.744.4807
Office: 517.381.0100  •  Fax: 517.381.3185

fsbrlaw.com  •  cpatterson@fsbrlaw.com

4151 Okemos Road, Okemos, MI 48864 USA
⧨ U.S. News & World Report Ranked Best Law Firm

 

 

http://fsbrlaw.com/
mailto:cpatterson@fsbrlaw.com
https://www.google.com/maps/search/4151+Okemos+Road,+Okemos,+MI+48864+USA?entry=gmail&source=g


From: Zoning Administrator <zoning@whitewatertownship.org>
Sent: Thursday, June 29, 2023 11:29 AM
To: Christopher Patterson <cpatterson@fsbrlaw.com>
Cc: 'Cheryl A. Goss' <clerk@whitewatertownship.org>; 'Zoning Administrator' <zoning@whitewatertownship.org>
Subject: Whitewater Twp - ZBA

 

Good Thursday, Chris –

 

Rather than bore you with the background info, of which you are intimately aware, I need some guidance as I prepare my
staff report for the ZBA based upon the application of the appellant (see attached) and the direction of the Whitewater
Township Board.

Motion by Goss to accept the applicant’s request to pursue a variance before the ZBA and direct the ZA
to accept the application and send all relevant information to the ZBA for hearing the application; second
by Benak.

 

Roll call vote:  Popp, yes; Goss, yes; Vollmuth, no; Benak, yes; Glenn, yes.  Motion carried.

 

As I prepare my report I always attempt to address the processes followed and the facts which were relied upon that lead
to the final decision.  My experience tells me that ZBA members will undoubtedly have questions which I am not prepared
to answer.  I would appreciate your comments on the following:

 

1. By what authority (statutorily) did the Whitewater Township Board act to essentially reverse / overturn the decision
of the Zoning Administrator three (3) years after the ‘fact’?

                                                                                                                                     See bottom of
page #1 and top of page #2 of Minutes of May 3, 2023 special meeting

a. If the Board ‘did’ have the authority to act, what standards were used to base findings upon?
b. If the Board ‘did not’ have the authority to act, is the Board decision valid?

1. What standards does the ZBA apply / use in examining the appeal of what was clearly an administrative decision
of the Township Board applicable to a non-zoning ordinance?

2. Regarding the appellants’ request for a variance from the 4:1 lot depth to width ratio, if #1(b) above is true, is it
necessary to even address the variance request?

 

Thank you for any guidance that you able to offer in assistance to the Whitewater Township ZBA.

 

Bob

 

Robert (Bob) Hall

Zoning Administrator

 

Whitewater Township

P.O. Box 159

Williamsburg, Michigan 49690

mailto:zoning@whitewatertownship.org
mailto:cpatterson@fsbrlaw.com
mailto:clerk@whitewatertownship.org
mailto:zoning@whitewatertownship.org
https://www.whitewatertownship.org/uploads/2/1/9/6/21966412/20230503_township_board_minutes.pdf


 

231-267-5141 x 21

 

www.whitewatertownship.org

 

http://www.whitewatertownship.org/


Ron Popp <supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com>

RE: Whitewater Twp - ZBA
1 message

Christopher Patterson <cpatterson@fsbrlaw.com> Thu, Jun 29, 2023 at 1:41 PM
To: Zoning Administrator <zoning@whitewatertownship.org>
Cc: "Cheryl A. Goss" <clerk@whitewatertownship.org>, Lindsey Gergel <lgergel@fsbrlaw.com>, Matthew Kuschel
<MKuschel@fsbrlaw.com>, Ron Popp <supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com>

Bob:

 

I think the Board assumed that the ZBA would and should have questions. I think they should have a complete understanding of
what transpired to the extent it relates to their decision and the scope of the question being set forth under their jurisdiction.

 

If the ZBA does not think they have authority, they could so decide that. The Board action was to send the application for variance
to the Zoning Board of Appeals. If they believe they lack such authority, that would have to be in a final decision with proper findings
of fact and legal conclusions.

 

Great point on Article 8; I just referenced the wrong ordinance. The ZBA should be guided by the LDA ordinance as to the
applicable standard. The use and terms are of common parlance in the zoning ordinance as well, and so some guidance may be
gleamed from the ZO to the extent we are talking about the meaning of terms as opposed to the actual standards. But the standards
and legal application in the ZBA’s final decision must be based on the standards in the LDA ordinance—not the ZO.

 

I would like to see the applicant’s submittal when it arrives (and your staff report when available). And I would note that the timing of
that is crucial because nothing should be noticed to proceed until the applicant has identified and submitted a complete application.
As is consistent with most noticed processes, the public and others will then have an opportunity to review the submission in
preparation for the hearing. To further suggest that timing of the hearing is crucial, if you are preparing a report and we are being
asked to prepare a report, then we would like to coordinate the date of that hearing for purposes of when our deliverable would be
due to the Township (we prefer to get it to the ZBA and applicant a week in advance). Thus, we would probably be recommending a
hearing date 4 to 5 weeks out from the applicant’s submittal. Moreover, if our attendance would be of assistance, I would prefer to
attend in-person on this issue given the importance and novel nature of the process that is proceeding. August and September have
more availability for me.

 

To clarify the Board’s document, we can transmit the factual records. I cannot transmit the legal opinions to the ZBA without
consent from the Board. I also think that would confuse the question being asked of the ZBA, and thus I don’t recommend they have
our legal opinions anyway. The ZBA’s issue is much narrower than what the Board has to consider.

 

As my final recommendation, I strongly recommend that the Township prepare a report that explains to the ZBA the standard(s)
that applies under the ordinance, what the ZBA is being asked of, and the potential decision options for the ZBA. Is this going to be
set forth in your staff report?  If not, I would ask if we would be authorized to prepare such an explanation? I can confirm the same
with Ron as well. I just think to do justice to the Board’s direction for it to proceed to the ZBA, the ZBA should get sufficient
direction on what is applicable under the ordinance.

 

As for what the applicant should provide, I don’t have specific direction from the Board that I may assist the applicant. However, the
applicant has legal counsel and has already made demands against the Township. My recommendation to the applicant would be to
consult with legal counsel and have legal counsel prepare the supplemental filing of the application to conform to the requirements
of the ordinance. And note that the burden is on the applicant to satisfy the standards.



 

This may raise more questions than it answers. But in short, I just want to make sure the Township is preparing the ZBA for this
process. With Township authorization and direction, our office would like to be involved to assist this moving forward.

 

Chris

 

 

Christopher S. Patterson

Member  •  Fahey Schultz Burzych Rhodes

Direct: 517.381.3205  •  Cell: 269.744.4807
Office: 517.381.0100  •  Fax: 517.381.3185

fsbrlaw.com  •  cpatterson@fsbrlaw.com

4151 Okemos Road, Okemos, MI 48864 USA
⧨ U.S. News & World Report Ranked Best Law Firm

 

 

From: Zoning Administrator <zoning@whitewatertownship.org>
Sent: Thursday, June 29, 2023 1:26 PM
To: Christopher Patterson <cpatterson@fsbrlaw.com>
Subject: RE: Whitewater Twp - ZBA

 

Thank you for the quick response Chris. 

Anyhow – I believe that a written statement from you addressed to the ZBA would be very beneficial.

My point is that I have a very inquisitive ZBA membership that is going to want to know the how and why ‘we’ got from
‘my’ original May 2020 decision to the ZBA over a period of 3+ years and ‘how’ did the Township Board get involved, and
is this request within the realm of ‘their’ authority.

 

Are you suggesting that the ZBA should / could somehow merge both the non-use variance standards from the zoning
ordinance and the variance standards from Section VIII of Ordinance No. 26, or perhaps you simply inadvertently
referenced the ZO instead of the LD ordinance??

 

As is typical – the applicant will be requested to submit an additional narrative supporting their position related to the
requested variance.

 

I do believe that the ZBA should have access to all of the documents that the Board had access to that were reviewed –
thank you for sending those at your earliest convenience.

 

http://fsbrlaw.com/
mailto:cpatterson@fsbrlaw.com
https://www.google.com/maps/search/4151+Okemos+Road,+Okemos,+MI+48864+USA?entry=gmail&source=g
mailto:zoning@whitewatertownship.org
mailto:cpatterson@fsbrlaw.com


What other materials would you expect the applicant to submit for the record in this unique and particular situation?

 

Bob

 

From: Christopher Patterson <cpatterson@fsbrlaw.com>
Sent: Thursday, June 29, 2023 11:39 AM
To: Zoning Administrator <zoning@whitewatertownship.org>
Cc: 'Cheryl A. Goss' <clerk@whitewatertownship.org>; Ron Popp <supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com>; Lindsey Gergel
<lgergel@fsbrlaw.com>; Matthew Kuschel <MKuschel@fsbrlaw.com>; Kaylin Marshall <kmarshall@fsbrlaw.com>
Subject: RE: Whitewater Twp - ZBA

 

Bob:

 

I think we need to discuss the application at issue and the Board’s motion. There is no appeal that has been authorized to go to the
ZBA. Instead, the applicant is entitled to pursue a variance. So that clarification resolves and doesn’t require the ZBA to worry about
Nos. 1 and 2. Also, the Township Board’s determination that is unbuildable is based on the documents the Board reviewed. Those
same documents will likely overlap and be relevant for the ZBA to review. We can assemble all of those and transmit them to you.

 

I can also copy and paste the sections from the ordinance for purposes of No. 3. It comes from language in Article 8 of the Zoning
Ordinance or provide a statement for the ZBA. Which do you prefer?

 

Also, did the applicant submit no further information regarding the form you have? That is it?

 

Sincerely,

 

Chris

 

 

Christopher S. Patterson

Member  •  Fahey Schultz Burzych Rhodes

Direct: 517.381.3205  •  Cell: 269.744.4807
Office: 517.381.0100  •  Fax: 517.381.3185

fsbrlaw.com  •  cpatterson@fsbrlaw.com

4151 Okemos Road, Okemos, MI 48864 USA
⧨ U.S. News & World Report Ranked Best Law Firm

 

mailto:cpatterson@fsbrlaw.com
mailto:zoning@whitewatertownship.org
mailto:clerk@whitewatertownship.org
mailto:supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com
mailto:lgergel@fsbrlaw.com
mailto:MKuschel@fsbrlaw.com
mailto:kmarshall@fsbrlaw.com
http://fsbrlaw.com/
mailto:cpatterson@fsbrlaw.com
https://www.google.com/maps/search/4151+Okemos+Road,+Okemos,+MI+48864+USA?entry=gmail&source=g


 

From: Zoning Administrator <zoning@whitewatertownship.org>
Sent: Thursday, June 29, 2023 11:29 AM
To: Christopher Patterson <cpatterson@fsbrlaw.com>
Cc: 'Cheryl A. Goss' <clerk@whitewatertownship.org>; 'Zoning Administrator' <zoning@whitewatertownship.org>
Subject: Whitewater Twp - ZBA

 

Good Thursday, Chris –

 

Rather than bore you with the background info, of which you are intimately aware, I need some guidance as I prepare my
staff report for the ZBA based upon the application of the appellant (see attached) and the direction of the Whitewater
Township Board.

Motion by Goss to accept the applicant’s request to pursue a variance before the ZBA and direct the ZA
to accept the application and send all relevant information to the ZBA for hearing the application; second
by Benak.

 

Roll call vote:  Popp, yes; Goss, yes; Vollmuth, no; Benak, yes; Glenn, yes.  Motion carried.

 

As I prepare my report I always attempt to address the processes followed and the facts which were relied upon that lead
to the final decision.  My experience tells me that ZBA members will undoubtedly have questions which I am not prepared
to answer.  I would appreciate your comments on the following:

 

1. By what authority (statutorily) did the Whitewater Township Board act to essentially reverse / overturn the decision
of the Zoning Administrator three (3) years after the ‘fact’?

                                                                                                                                     See bottom of
page #1 and top of page #2 of Minutes of May 3, 2023 special meeting

a. If the Board ‘did’ have the authority to act, what standards were used to base findings upon?
b. If the Board ‘did not’ have the authority to act, is the Board decision valid?

1. What standards does the ZBA apply / use in examining the appeal of what was clearly an administrative decision
of the Township Board applicable to a non-zoning ordinance?

2. Regarding the appellants’ request for a variance from the 4:1 lot depth to width ratio, if #1(b) above is true, is it
necessary to even address the variance request?

 

Thank you for any guidance that you able to offer in assistance to the Whitewater Township ZBA.

 

Bob

 

Robert (Bob) Hall

Zoning Administrator

 

Whitewater Township

P.O. Box 159

mailto:zoning@whitewatertownship.org
mailto:cpatterson@fsbrlaw.com
mailto:clerk@whitewatertownship.org
mailto:zoning@whitewatertownship.org
https://www.whitewatertownship.org/uploads/2/1/9/6/21966412/20230503_township_board_minutes.pdf


Williamsburg, Michigan 49690

 

231-267-5141 x 21

 

www.whitewatertownship.org

 

http://www.whitewatertownship.org/


Ron Popp <supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com>

Would like a response
1 message

Vicki Beam <vickibeam@gmail.com> Thu, Jun 29, 2023 at 6:34 AM
To: Ron Popp <supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com>

I would like to find out how the improper division of the property on Baggs Road that does not adhere to General
Ordinance 26 is being sent to the ZBA?  The division of the property of the proposed site condos owned by Baggs
Road Partners LLC was completed and does not comply with the maximum 4 to 1 ratio of depth to width and the
consequences are outlined in Section IX of GA 26.

The board voted on it last month to uphold the Ordinance – as the board should.  If you don’t enforce our Ordinances
why do we have them?

How can the ZBA overturn the administrative decision made by the board?  More importantly – no where in the
General Ordinance does it say that the ZBA can ignore a General Ordinance.  There was no request for a variance for
this property when Morrison split it – that is the ONLY time a request for variance could have been made.  Please do
your homework – based upon the vote that occurred after the closed session it appears to me that Trustee Vollmuth
was the only one that did her homework – I’m not even confident the WWT attorney did his homework.

In addition, how is it possible that ZA Bob Hall can even take this in front of the ZBA?  He has admitted his mistake in
this division – him taking it in front of the ZBA to correct his error is like having the fox look over the henhouse!

I also want to express my disappointment in Clerk Goss and Treasurer Benak taking as much time and putting so much
effort toward Gary Vansolkema – he is a builder, not a tax payer of the township.  Both claim to not have time to do
their elected duties – yet have hours to spend giving a non resident and non taxpayer time to help go against our
ordinances.

Enough is enough – read the consequences of this improper division.  Stop this nonsense.

--

 

 

 



Ron Popp <supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com>

FW: 6631 Baggs Rd Attorney Fees Refund
1 message

Christopher Patterson <cpatterson@fsbrlaw.com> Mon, Jun 26, 2023 at 12:28 PM
To: Ron Popp <supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com>, "Cheryl A. Goss" <clerk@whitewatertownship.org>
Cc: Zoning Administrator <zoning@whitewatertownship.org>, Jacob Witte <jwitte@fsbrlaw.com>

Ron and Cheryl:

 

I am not familiar with the status of his application, but if he wants the escrow back and the applications has not had a final decision, I
would just confirm he is willing to withdraw his current application. If so, I would see no reason to not disburse the unused escrow. If
you need an itemized accounting from us on the amounts subject to legal review, please let us know.

 

Chris

 

 

Christopher S. Patterson

Member  •  Fahey Schultz Burzych Rhodes

Direct: 517.381.3205  •  Cell: 269.744.4807
Office: 517.381.0100  •  Fax: 517.381.3185

fsbrlaw.com  •  cpatterson@fsbrlaw.com

4151 Okemos Road, Okemos, MI 48864 USA
⧨ U.S. News & World Report Ranked Best Law Firm

 

 

From: Derek Van Solkema <derek.vansolkema@gmail.com>
Sent: Monday, June 26, 2023 12:23 PM
To: Ron Popp <supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com>; Christopher Patterson <cpatterson@fsbrlaw.com>; Cheryl A. Goss
<clerk@whitewatertownship.org>; heidivyourtrustee@gmail.com; dglenn419@gmail.com; Michael Herring
<mherringlaw@outlook.com>; Ryan Sheffer <Sheffer82@gmail.com>; Debra Van Solkema <vansolkema@gmail.com>
Subject: 6631 Baggs Rd Attorney Fees Refund

 

Whitewater Township Board,

 

http://fsbrlaw.com/
mailto:cpatterson@fsbrlaw.com
https://www.google.com/maps/search/4151+Okemos+Road,+Okemos,+MI+48864+USA?entry=gmail&source=g
mailto:derek.vansolkema@gmail.com
mailto:supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com
mailto:cpatterson@fsbrlaw.com
mailto:clerk@whitewatertownship.org
mailto:heidivyourtrustee@gmail.com
mailto:dglenn419@gmail.com
mailto:mherringlaw@outlook.com
mailto:Sheffer82@gmail.com
mailto:vansolkema@gmail.com


We have not been given any information or an itemized receipt of our $2,500 deposit for our site condominium/HOA
review.

 

On 3/9/2023 I emailed Bob Hall the updates/corrections to the Master Deed and HOA per your attorney review.  The only
two things the township attorney wanted changed were below and which was completed within 1 hr on my end.  The fact
that those changes were so miniscule, the review process should not have taken longer than 1-2 hours.  Therefore, we
want a detailed and itemized receipt as soon as possible of the time spent otherwise.  We also want our refund back for
any unused money which should be about $2,000+ as soon as possible since you've held that money hostage for over 1
year.  Please let us know when we can expect a check.

 

"Per the township attorney's review, I corrected the language in the Master Deed to include: 

 

"Whitewater Township, Williamsburg, MI , Grand Traverse County Condominium Subdivision Plan No. 1
containing"  

 

I removed section 6.2,6.3,6.4,6.5,6.6 from the Master Deed.  I corrected  Section 6.1 that states under
Expandability of the Condominium "This condominium is not expandable." 

 

I believe these corrections take care of the Township attorney's review in order to move our project
forward." 

 

Thank you,

Derek

 

 

 

 

 

 



Ron Popp <supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com>

RE: Comments Regarding Whitewater Township Boards Decision to Send 6631
Baggs Rd. to ZBA for Appeal
1 message

Cheryl A. Goss <clerk@whitewatertownship.org> Mon, Jun 26, 2023 at 12:45 PM
To: Kaylin Marshall <kmarshall@fsbrlaw.com>, Ron Popp <supervisor@whitewatertownship.org>
Cc: Christopher Patterson <cpatterson@fsbrlaw.com>, Matthew Kuschel <MKuschel@fsbrlaw.com>, Lindsey Gergel
<lgergel@fsbrlaw.com>

Kaylin –

 

Thank you for sending the correspondence.  However, I find it appalling that the Hymores feel entitled to approach the
township’s law firm directly and attempt to quiz them about what advice your law firm gave the township board in this
matter, what was discussed in a closed session, and why the township board took the action that it did.    

 

With all due respect to all of the attorneys at the Fahey Schultz firm, I will vehemently protest any response going back to
the Hymores.  If the Hymores want legal advice, they can go hire, and pay for, their own attorney. 

 

Thank you.

 

Cheryl A. Goss

Whitewater Township Clerk

5777 Vinton Road, P.O. Box 159

Williamsburg, Michigan 49690

Telephone:  231.267.5141 x24

Fax:  231.267-9020

clerk@whitewatertownship.org

Office Hours:  Mon/Tue/Wed/Thurs 9:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m.

I Pledge Allegiance to the Flag of the United States of America, and to the REPUBLIC for which it stands, One
Nation, Under God, Indivisible, with Liberty and Justice for All.

 

From: Kaylin Marshall <kmarshall@fsbrlaw.com>
Sent: Monday, June 26, 2023 12:02 PM
To: Ron Popp <supervisor@whitewatertownship.org>; Cheryl A. Goss <clerk@whitewatertownship.org>
Cc: Christopher Patterson <cpatterson@fsbrlaw.com>; Matthew Kuschel <MKuschel@fsbrlaw.com>; Lindsey Gergel
<lgergel@fsbrlaw.com>
Subject: FW: Comments Regarding Whitewater Township Boards Decision to Send 6631 Baggs Rd. to ZBA for Appeal

 

Good afternoon,

https://www.google.com/maps/search/5777+Vinton+Road?entry=gmail&source=g
mailto:clerk@whitewatertownship.org
mailto:kmarshall@fsbrlaw.com
mailto:supervisor@whitewatertownship.org
mailto:clerk@whitewatertownship.org
mailto:cpatterson@fsbrlaw.com
mailto:MKuschel@fsbrlaw.com
mailto:lgergel@fsbrlaw.com


 

Please see the email correspondence below received from Frank and Connie Hymore. Please let us know if you have
any questions, as we are happy to address it for the Board.

 

Thank you.

 

Kaylin Marshall

Legal Assistant  •  Fahey Schultz Burzych Rhodes

Direct: 517.381.3164
Office: 517.381.0100  •  Fax: 517.381.5051

fsbrlaw.com  •  kmarshall@fsbrlaw.com

4151 Okemos Road, Okemos, MI 48864 USA
⧨ U.S. News & World Report Ranked Best Law Firm

This message is from a law firm, and thus may contain or attach privileged or confidential information, information exempt from disclosure, or
an attorney-client communication that is confidential and privileged by law. It is intended solely for the use of the addressee.  It is not intended
for transmission to, or receipt by, any unauthorized person. If you believe that you have received this message or any attachment in error, simply

delete both from your system without reading or copying, and notify the sender by e-mail or by calling 517-381-0100.

 

Neither this information block, the typed name of the sender, nor anything else in this message is intended to constitute an electronic signature

unless a specific statement to the contrary is included in this message.  Thank you.

 

From: Frank Hymore <fhymore@sbcglobal.net>
Sent: Saturday, June 24, 2023 10:53:26 PM
To: Christopher Patterson <cpatterson@fsbrlaw.com>
Cc: Ron Popp <supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com>
Subject: Comments Regarding Whitewater Township Boards Decision to Send 6631 Baggs Rd. to ZBA for Appeal

 

Mr. Patterson

 

We are surprised to hear, that after closed session with you, the Whitewater Township Board voted to allow the owners
of 6631 Baggs Rd. to apply for a variance with the Zoning Board of Appeals. This happens to be strictly prohibited in
Section IX of General Ordinance 26.

SECTION IX

http://fsbrlaw.com/
mailto:kmarshall@fsbrlaw.com
https://www.google.com/maps/search/4151+Okemos+Road,+Okemos,+MI+48864+USA?entry=gmail&source=g
mailto:fhymore@sbcglobal.net
mailto:cpatterson@fsbrlaw.com
mailto:supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com
https://www.google.com/maps/search/6631+Baggs+Rd?entry=gmail&source=g


"Any such parcel shall also be designated as “not buildable” in the Township records, and
shall not thereafter be the subject of a request to the Zoning Board of Appeals for variance
relief from the applicable lot and/or area requirements, and shall not be developed with any
building or above ground structure exceed four feet in height."

Was General Ordinance 26 not reviewed during your closed session with the Board on 6/20/2023? Did you identify the
restriction to the Board?  Did you advise them to go against the Township General Ordinance?

On 5/3/2023, the Board voted and passed a motion that deemed 6631 Baggs Rd (aka Parcel 28-13-136-001-02) "Not
Buildable" per the Townships Zoning and General Ordinances. Section IX above, clearly states that the parcel "shall
not thereafter be the subject of a request to the Zoning Board of Appeals for variance relief…". Why did the Board vote
to go against the Ordinance? Why would  the Board put the members of the ZBA in such an inappropriate situation?

If this continues to track to the ZBA, it is the responsibility of the Zoning Administrator to prepare the appeal and
present it to the them. However, that is definitely a conflict of interest, since it is the Zoning Administrators error that
resulted in the non compliance. Through investigation, in cases like this, a third party Zoning Administrator must be
brought in to submit the appeal. However, this appeal should never get to the ZBA.

Thank you,

Frank & Connie Hymore 

 

https://www.google.com/maps/search/6631+Baggs+Rd?entry=gmail&source=g


Ron Popp <supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com>

6631 Baggs Rd Attorney Fees Refund
1 message

Derek Van Solkema <derek.vansolkema@gmail.com> Mon, Jun 26, 2023 at 12:23 PM
To: Ron Popp <supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com>, cpatterson@fsbrlaw.com, "Cheryl A. Goss"
<clerk@whitewatertownship.org>, heidivyourtrustee@gmail.com, dglenn419@gmail.com, Michael Herring
<mherringlaw@outlook.com>, Ryan Sheffer <Sheffer82@gmail.com>, Debra Van Solkema <vansolkema@gmail.com>

Whitewater Township Board,

We have not been given any information or an itemized receipt of our $2,500 deposit for our site condominium/HOA
review.

On 3/9/2023 I emailed Bob Hall the updates/corrections to the Master Deed and HOA per your attorney review.  The only
two things the township attorney wanted changed were below and which was completed within 1 hr on my end.  The fact
that those changes were so miniscule, the review process should not have taken longer than 1-2 hours.  Therefore, we
want a detailed and itemized receipt as soon as possible of the time spent otherwise.  We also want our refund back for
any unused money which should be about $2,000+ as soon as possible since you've held that money hostage for over 1
year.  Please let us know when we can expect a check.

"Per the township attorney's review, I corrected the language in the Master Deed to include: 

 

"Whitewater Township, Williamsburg, MI , Grand Traverse County Condominium Subdivision Plan No. 1
containing"  

 

I removed section 6.2,6.3,6.4,6.5,6.6 from the Master Deed.  I corrected  Section 6.1 that states under
Expandability of the Condominium "This condominium is not expandable." 

 

I believe these corrections take care of the Township attorney's review in order to move our project
forward." 

Thank you,

Derek

 

 



Ron Popp <supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com>

FW: Comments Regarding Whitewater Township Boards Decision to Send 6631
Baggs Rd. to ZBA for Appeal
1 message

Kaylin Marshall <kmarshall@fsbrlaw.com> Mon, Jun 26, 2023 at 12:02 PM
To: Ron Popp <supervisor@whitewatertownship.org>, "Cheryl A. Goss" <clerk@whitewatertownship.org>
Cc: Christopher Patterson <cpatterson@fsbrlaw.com>, Matthew Kuschel <MKuschel@fsbrlaw.com>, Lindsey Gergel
<lgergel@fsbrlaw.com>

Good afternoon,

 

Please see the email correspondence below received from Frank and Connie Hymore. Please let us know if you have
any questions, as we are happy to address it for the Board.

 

Thank you.

 

Kaylin Marshall

Legal Assistant  •  Fahey Schultz Burzych Rhodes

Direct: 517.381.3164
Office: 517.381.0100  •  Fax: 517.381.5051

fsbrlaw.com  •  kmarshall@fsbrlaw.com

4151 Okemos Road, Okemos, MI 48864 USA
⧨ U.S. News & World Report Ranked Best Law Firm

This message is from a law firm, and thus may contain or attach privileged or confidential information, information exempt from disclosure, or
an attorney-client communication that is confidential and privileged by law. It is intended solely for the use of the addressee.  It is not intended
for transmission to, or receipt by, any unauthorized person. If you believe that you have received this message or any attachment in error, simply

delete both from your system without reading or copying, and notify the sender by e-mail or by calling 517-381-0100.

 

Neither this information block, the typed name of the sender, nor anything else in this message is intended to constitute an electronic signature

unless a specific statement to the contrary is included in this message.  Thank you.

 

http://fsbrlaw.com/
mailto:kmarshall@fsbrlaw.com
https://www.google.com/maps/search/4151+Okemos+Road,+Okemos,+MI+48864+USA?entry=gmail&source=g


From: Frank Hymore <fhymore@sbcglobal.net>
Sent: Saturday, June 24, 2023 10:53:26 PM
To: Christopher Patterson <cpatterson@fsbrlaw.com>
Cc: Ron Popp <supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com>
Subject: Comments Regarding Whitewater Township Boards Decision to Send 6631 Baggs Rd. to ZBA for Appeal

 

Mr. Patterson

 

We are surprised to hear, that after closed session with you, the Whitewater Township Board voted to allow the owners
of 6631 Baggs Rd. to apply for a variance with the Zoning Board of Appeals. This happens to be strictly prohibited in
Section IX of General Ordinance 26.

SECTION IX

"Any such parcel shall also be designated as “not buildable” in the Township records, and
shall not thereafter be the subject of a request to the Zoning Board of Appeals for variance
relief from the applicable lot and/or area requirements, and shall not be developed with any
building or above ground structure exceed four feet in height."

Was General Ordinance 26 not reviewed during your closed session with the Board on 6/20/2023? Did you identify the
restriction to the Board?  Did you advise them to go against the Township General Ordinance?

On 5/3/2023, the Board voted and passed a motion that deemed 6631 Baggs Rd (aka Parcel 28-13-136-001-02) "Not
Buildable" per the Townships Zoning and General Ordinances. Section IX above, clearly states that the parcel "shall
not thereafter be the subject of a request to the Zoning Board of Appeals for variance relief…". Why did the Board vote
to go against the Ordinance? Why would  the Board put the members of the ZBA in such an inappropriate situation?

If this continues to track to the ZBA, it is the responsibility of the Zoning Administrator to prepare the appeal and
present it to the them. However, that is definitely a conflict of interest, since it is the Zoning Administrators error that
resulted in the non compliance. Through investigation, in cases like this, a third party Zoning Administrator must be
brought in to submit the appeal. However, this appeal should never get to the ZBA.

Thank you,

Frank & Connie Hymore 

 

mailto:fhymore@sbcglobal.net
mailto:cpatterson@fsbrlaw.com
mailto:supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com


Ron Popp <supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com>

Re: Comments Regarding Whitewater Township Boards Decision to Send 6631
Baggs Rd. to ZBA for Appeal
1 message

Ardella Benak <treasurerwhitewater@gmail.com> Mon, Jun 26, 2023 at 9:43 AM
To: Ron Popp <supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com>

Why are the Hymore's communicating directly with the township attorneys?   We don't let anyone but the township board
members contact legal but now the Hymore's are freely giving their opinions as legal advice to our attorneys?   Unless
they want to pay for the council? Should we direct our legal to bill them and not the township?  I am not on board with
letting this continue.   Any suggestions?  

On Mon, Jun 26, 2023, 9:17 AM Ron Popp <supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com> wrote:
FYI Board - Here is correspondence from Frank Hymore through Chris Patterson

Ron Popp
Whitewater Township Supervisor
231.267.5141 Ext. 23
supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com
bcc: Township Board

---------- Forwarded message ---------
From: Christopher Patterson <cpatterson@fsbrlaw.com>
Date: Sun, Jun 25, 2023 at 8:37 AM
Subject: Re: Comments Regarding Whitewater Township Boards Decision to Send 6631 Baggs Rd. to ZBA for Appeal
To: Frank Hymore <fhymore@sbcglobal.net>
Cc: Ron Popp <supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com>, Kaylin Marshall <kmarshall@fsbrlaw.com>, Lindsey Gergel
<lgergel@fsbrlaw.com>, Matthew Kuschel <MKuschel@fsbrlaw.com>

Mr Hymore:

Received; we will forward to the Township.

Christopher S. Patterson
Member
Fahey Schultz Burzych Rhodes PLC

From: Frank Hymore <fhymore@sbcglobal.net>
Sent: Saturday, June 24, 2023 10:53:26 PM
To: Christopher Patterson <cpatterson@fsbrlaw.com>
Cc: Ron Popp <supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com>
Subject: Comments Regarding Whitewater Township Boards Decision to Send 6631 Baggs Rd. to ZBA for Appeal
 
Mr. Patterson

We are surprised to hear, that after closed session with you, the Whitewater Township Board voted to allow the owners
of 6631 Baggs Rd. to apply for a variance with the Zoning Board of Appeals. This happens to be strictly prohibited in
Section IX of General Ordinance 26.

SECTION IX

"Any such parcel shall also be designated as “not buildable” in the Township records,
and shall not thereafter be the subject of a request to the Zoning Board of Appeals for

mailto:supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com
mailto:supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com
mailto:cpatterson@fsbrlaw.com
mailto:fhymore@sbcglobal.net
mailto:supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com
mailto:kmarshall@fsbrlaw.com
mailto:lgergel@fsbrlaw.com
mailto:MKuschel@fsbrlaw.com
mailto:fhymore@sbcglobal.net
mailto:cpatterson@fsbrlaw.com
mailto:supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com


variance relief from the applicable lot and/or area requirements, and shall not be
developed with any building or above ground structure exceed four feet in height."

Was General Ordinance 26 not reviewed during your closed session with the Board on 6/20/2023? Did you identify the
restriction to the Board?  Did you advise them to go against the Township General Ordinance?

On 5/3/2023, the Board voted and passed a motion that deemed 6631 Baggs Rd (aka Parcel 28-13-136-001-02) "Not
Buildable" per the Townships Zoning and General Ordinances. Section IX above, clearly states that the parcel "shall not
thereafter be the subject of a request to the Zoning Board of Appeals for variance relief…". Why did the Board vote to
go against the Ordinance? Why would  the Board put the members of the ZBA in such an inappropriate situation?

If this continues to track to the ZBA, it is the responsibility of the Zoning Administrator to prepare the appeal and
present it to the them. However, that is definitely a conflict of interest, since it is the Zoning Administrators error that
resulted in the non compliance. Through investigation, in cases like this, a third party Zoning Administrator must be
brought in to submit the appeal. However, this appeal should never get to the ZBA.

Thank you,

Frank & Connie Hymore 
 



Ron Popp <supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com>

Comments Regarding Whitewater Township Boards Decision to Send 6631 Baggs
Rd. to ZBA for Appeal
1 message

Frank Hymore <fhymore@sbcglobal.net> Sat, Jun 24, 2023 at 10:53 PM
Reply-To: Frank Hymore <fhymore@sbcglobal.net>
To: "cpatterson@fsbrlaw.com" <cpatterson@fsbrlaw.com>
Cc: Ron Popp <supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com>

Mr. Patterson

We are surprised to hear, that after closed session with you, the Whitewater Township Board voted to allow the owners of
6631 Baggs Rd. to apply for a variance with the Zoning Board of Appeals. This happens to be strictly prohibited in Section
IX of General Ordinance 26.

SECTION IX

"Any such parcel shall also be designated as “not buildable” in the Township records, and
shall not thereafter be the subject of a request to the Zoning Board of Appeals for variance
relief from the applicable lot and/or area requirements, and shall not be developed with any
building or above ground structure exceed four feet in height."

Was General Ordinance 26 not reviewed during your closed session with the Board on 6/20/2023? Did you identify the
restriction to the Board?  Did you advise them to go against the Township General Ordinance?

On 5/3/2023, the Board voted and passed a motion that deemed 6631 Baggs Rd (aka Parcel 28-13-136-001-02) "Not
Buildable" per the Townships Zoning and General Ordinances. Section IX above, clearly states that the parcel "shall not
thereafter be the subject of a request to the Zoning Board of Appeals for variance relief…". Why did the Board vote to go
against the Ordinance? Why would  the Board put the members of the ZBA in such an inappropriate situation?

If this continues to track to the ZBA, it is the responsibility of the Zoning Administrator to prepare the appeal and present it
to the them. However, that is definitely a conflict of interest, since it is the Zoning Administrators error that resulted in the
non compliance. Through investigation, in cases like this, a third party Zoning Administrator must be brought in to submit
the appeal. However, this appeal should never get to the ZBA.

Thank you,

Frank & Connie Hymore 

 



Ron Popp <supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com>

RE: Comments Regarding Whitewater Township Boards Decision to Send 6631
Baggs Rd. to ZBA for Appeal
1 message

Christopher Patterson <cpatterson@fsbrlaw.com> Mon, Jun 26, 2023 at 9:21 AM
To: Ron Popp <supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com>
Cc: Lindsey Gergel <lgergel@fsbrlaw.com>, Matthew Kuschel <MKuschel@fsbrlaw.com>, Kaylin Marshall
<kmarshall@fsbrlaw.com>

Ron:

 

I can call you later this afternoon. Mr. Hymore is misreading the ordinance. I spoke to Trustee Vollmuth about the same section and
this same language last week, explaining that the reference to the ZBA in this section doesn’t apply to the stage of the matter now
present before the Board because the language cited below is limited by a temporal restraint that doesn’t exist in Section 8 and the
Board’s action that was taken last Tuesday.

 

We can issue a supplemental opinion to the Board explaining the same. The Board wouldn’t have to convene on it, but at least they
would have accurate information if asked by community members.

Chris

 

 

Christopher S. Patterson

Member  •  Fahey Schultz Burzych Rhodes

Direct: 517.381.3205  •  Cell: 269.744.4807
Office: 517.381.0100  •  Fax: 517.381.3185

fsbrlaw.com  •  cpatterson@fsbrlaw.com

4151 Okemos Road, Okemos, MI 48864 USA
⧨ U.S. News & World Report Ranked Best Law Firm

 

 

From: Ron Popp <supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com>
Sent: Monday, June 26, 2023 9:18 AM
To: Christopher Patterson <cpatterson@fsbrlaw.com>
Subject: Fwd: Comments Regarding Whitewater Township Boards Decision to Send 6631 Baggs Rd. to ZBA for Appeal

 

http://fsbrlaw.com/
mailto:cpatterson@fsbrlaw.com
https://www.google.com/maps/search/4151+Okemos+Road,+Okemos,+MI+48864+USA?entry=gmail&source=g
mailto:supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com
mailto:cpatterson@fsbrlaw.com


Let me know when you have time to talk about this Chris.

Ron Popp

Whitewater Township Supervisor

231.267.5141 Ext. 23

supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com

 

---------- Forwarded message ---------
From: Christopher Patterson <cpatterson@fsbrlaw.com>
Date: Sun, Jun 25, 2023 at 8:37 AM
Subject: Re: Comments Regarding Whitewater Township Boards Decision to Send 6631 Baggs Rd. to ZBA for Appeal
To: Frank Hymore <fhymore@sbcglobal.net>
Cc: Ron Popp <supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com>, Kaylin Marshall <kmarshall@fsbrlaw.com>, Lindsey Gergel
<lgergel@fsbrlaw.com>, Matthew Kuschel <MKuschel@fsbrlaw.com>

 

Mr Hymore:

 

Received; we will forward to the Township.

 

Christopher S. Patterson

Member

Fahey Schultz Burzych Rhodes PLC

 

From: Frank Hymore <fhymore@sbcglobal.net>
Sent: Saturday, June 24, 2023 10:53:26 PM
To: Christopher Patterson <cpatterson@fsbrlaw.com>
Cc: Ron Popp <supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com>
Subject: Comments Regarding Whitewater Township Boards Decision to Send 6631 Baggs Rd. to ZBA for Appeal

 

Mr. Patterson

 

We are surprised to hear, that after closed session with you, the Whitewater Township Board voted to allow the owners
of 6631 Baggs Rd. to apply for a variance with the Zoning Board of Appeals. This happens to be strictly prohibited in
Section IX of General Ordinance 26.

SECTION IX

"Any such parcel shall also be designated as “not buildable” in the Township records, and
shall not thereafter be the subject of a request to the Zoning Board of Appeals for variance
relief from the applicable lot and/or area requirements, and shall not be developed with any
building or above ground structure exceed four feet in height."

Was General Ordinance 26 not reviewed during your closed session with the Board on 6/20/2023? Did you identify the
restriction to the Board?  Did you advise them to go against the Township General Ordinance?

On 5/3/2023, the Board voted and passed a motion that deemed 6631 Baggs Rd (aka Parcel 28-13-136-001-02) "Not
Buildable" per the Townships Zoning and General Ordinances. Section IX above, clearly states that the parcel "shall

mailto:supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com
mailto:cpatterson@fsbrlaw.com
mailto:fhymore@sbcglobal.net
mailto:supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com
mailto:kmarshall@fsbrlaw.com
mailto:lgergel@fsbrlaw.com
mailto:MKuschel@fsbrlaw.com
mailto:fhymore@sbcglobal.net
mailto:cpatterson@fsbrlaw.com
mailto:supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com


not thereafter be the subject of a request to the Zoning Board of Appeals for variance relief…". Why did the Board vote
to go against the Ordinance? Why would  the Board put the members of the ZBA in such an inappropriate situation?

If this continues to track to the ZBA, it is the responsibility of the Zoning Administrator to prepare the appeal and
present it to the them. However, that is definitely a conflict of interest, since it is the Zoning Administrators error that
resulted in the non compliance. Through investigation, in cases like this, a third party Zoning Administrator must be
brought in to submit the appeal. However, this appeal should never get to the ZBA.

Thank you,

Frank & Connie Hymore 

 



Ron Popp <supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com>

Zoning Board of Appeals Contact Information
1 message

Frank Hymore <fhymore@sbcglobal.net> Fri, Jun 23, 2023 at 12:30 PM
Reply-To: Frank Hymore <fhymore@sbcglobal.net>
To: Ron Popp <supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com>

Ron,

I have a correspondence for the ZBA. However, the Township website does not have their contact information. Can you
forward their contact information?

Thanks
Frank



Ron Popp <supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com>

RE: 6631 Baggs Rd Appeals Process
1 message

Christopher Patterson <cpatterson@fsbrlaw.com> Tue, Jun 20, 2023 at 12:11 PM
To: "mherringlaw@outlook.com" <mherringlaw@outlook.com>
Cc: "Cheryl A. Goss" <clerk@whitewatertownship.org>, Ron Popp <supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com>, Matthew Kuschel
<MKuschel@fsbrlaw.com>, Lindsey Gergel <lgergel@fsbrlaw.com>, Zoning Administrator <zoning@whitewatertownship.org>

Good afternoon Mr. Herring:

 

Following up on my prior email, I met with the Township Board this morning at a special meeting. In open session, the Township
Board authorized the receipt of an application for a variance from you client to go before the Zoning Board of Appeals. The Zoning
Administrator is authorized to accept that application and provide a report and relevant background information. The applicant must
also present any appropriate supporting documentation/supplemental information to satisfy the standards required for a variance.
The standards for a variance are within the Township Land Division Ordinance.

 

I expect that the Zoning Board of Appeals would take the application up at a properly noticed public hearing held as part of a public
meeting. Notice would also be provided for purposes of due process and notice to the surrounding properties (i.e., mailed notice
and published notice).

 

Sincerely,

Chris

 

 

Christopher S. Patterson

Member  •  Fahey Schultz Burzych Rhodes

Direct: 517.381.3205  •  Cell: 269.744.4807
Office: 517.381.0100  •  Fax: 517.381.3185

fsbrlaw.com  •  cpatterson@fsbrlaw.com

4151 Okemos Road, Okemos, MI 48864 USA
⧨ U.S. News & World Report Ranked Best Law Firm

 

 

From: Christopher Patterson
Sent: Wednesday, May 31, 2023 3:45 PM

http://fsbrlaw.com/
mailto:cpatterson@fsbrlaw.com
https://www.google.com/maps/search/4151+Okemos+Road,+Okemos,+MI+48864+USA?entry=gmail&source=g


To: mherringlaw@outlook.com
Cc: Ron Popp <supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com>; Matthew Kuschel <MKuschel@fsbrlaw.com>; Lindsey Gergel
<lgergel@fsbrlaw.com>
Subject: RE: 6631 Baggs Rd Appeals Process

 

Good afternoon Mr. Herring:

 

I apologize for the delay. Your email originally went into my spam folder. I was able to locate it after being provided notice from the
Township that you sent it.

 

We are preparing to take your correspondence to the Township Board at an upcoming meeting to discuss the points made below. As
soon as I have direction from the Board to respond further, I will do so. If you have any additional questions or comments, please feel
free to send those and I will include those with our update to the Township Board on this issue.

 

Sincerely,

 

Chris

 

 

Christopher S. Patterson

Member  •  Fahey Schultz Burzych Rhodes

Direct: 517.381.3205  •  Cell: 269.744.4807
Office: 517.381.0100  •  Fax: 517.381.3185

fsbrlaw.com  •  cpatterson@fsbrlaw.com

4151 Okemos Road, Okemos, MI 48864 USA
⧨ U.S. News & World Report Ranked Best Law Firm

 

-----Original Message-----
From: Michael Herring <mherringlaw@outlook.com>
Sent: Thursday, May 25, 2023 3:14 PM
To: Derek Van Solkema <derek.vansolkema@gmail.com>; Ron Popp <supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com>; Ryan Sheffer
<Sheffer82@gmail.com>; Cheryl A. Goss <clerk@whitewatertownship.org>
Cc: Christopher Patterson <cpatterson@fsbrlaw.com>; zoning@whitewatertownship.org
Subject: RE: 6631 Baggs Rd Appeals Process

Hello Everyone,

 

My name is Michael Herring, I am the attorney for Derek Van Solkema and Ryan Sheffer.

 

mailto:mherringlaw@outlook.com
mailto:supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com
mailto:MKuschel@fsbrlaw.com
mailto:lgergel@fsbrlaw.com
http://fsbrlaw.com/
mailto:cpatterson@fsbrlaw.com
https://www.google.com/maps/search/4151+Okemos+Road,+Okemos,+MI+48864+USA?entry=gmail&source=g
mailto:mherringlaw@outlook.com
mailto:derek.vansolkema@gmail.com
mailto:supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com
mailto:Sheffer82@gmail.com
mailto:clerk@whitewatertownship.org
mailto:cpatterson@fsbrlaw.com
mailto:zoning@whitewatertownship.org


Now that we know the Baggs property is unbuildable, per Section X, the property was split improperly. Section XI now
demands that any person who violates any of the provision of the Ordinance shall be deemed guilty of a misdemeanor.
The ordinance is a local law, flawed or unflawed. Following the township ordinance is important to the greater good.

 

When will the violations be sent to Morrison Orchard, LLC?

 

Further, MCL 560.265 Sec. 265 Any municipality, board of county road commissioners or county plat board may bring an
action in its own name to restrain or prevent any violation of this act or any continuance of any such violation. Such action
shall be brought in the county where the land is located, the defendant resides or has his principal place of business.

 

When can we anticipate your action to stop the continuance of the violation?

 

As you can imagine a large amount of litigation will be coming. My clients are bonified purchasers who, along with the
realtor, the title company, insurance companies and others have substantial damages. Thankfully, we know who is
responsible for the chaos… Morrison Orchard, LLC.

 

Have a great weekend and govern yourself accordingly,

 

Michael Herring

2029 Celadon Dr.

Grand Rapids, MI 49525

Phone: 616-916-6704

 

The information or document(s) contained in this electronic mail message is intended to be privileged and confidential
information only for the use of the individual or entity named herein or above. If you are not the intended recipient, you are
hereby notified that any dissemination, distribution or copy of this message or document is strictly prohibited. If you have
received this electronic mail transmission in error, notify the sender by reply e-mail and delete all copies from your
system. Michael Herring is not responsible for errors in this electronic mail message. Any personal comments made do
not necessarily reflect the views of Michael Herring.

 

 

 

 

 

From: Derek Van Solkema <derek.vansolkema@gmail.com>
Sent: Wednesday, May 24, 2023 4:07 PM
To: Ron Popp <supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com>; mherringlaw@outlook.com; Ryan Sheffer <Sheffer82@gmail.com>;
Cheryl A. Goss <clerk@whitewatertownship.org>
Cc: cpatterson@fsbrlaw.com; zoning@whitewatertownship.org
Subject: Re: 6631 Baggs Rd Appeals Process

https://www.google.com/maps/search/2029+Celadon+Dr.+%0D%0A+%0D%0AGrand+Rapids,+MI+49525?entry=gmail&source=g
mailto:derek.vansolkema@gmail.com
mailto:supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com
mailto:mherringlaw@outlook.com
mailto:Sheffer82@gmail.com
mailto:clerk@whitewatertownship.org
mailto:cpatterson@fsbrlaw.com
mailto:zoning@whitewatertownship.org


 

Ron,

 
I can't imagine you are unaware of your own Finding of Facts and vote on 5/3/2023.  It is our understanding based on the
email below from Cheryl Goss and the letter from Bob Hall that your decision in the 5/3/2023 meeting regarding our
parcel of land was deemed unbuildable and is not eligible for any building permits or zoning approvals such as special
land use approval or site plan approval.  Please confirm the decision of the township.

 

Thanks,

Derek

Baggs Partners, LLC

 

See attached letter from Bob Hall and a copy of the email received by my father Gary Van Solkema from Cheryl Goss.

 

Gary –

 

These were the findings of fact, motion and vote today on the Hymore Complaint.

 

Findings of Fact:

1.    Request for variance is nonexistent.

2.    Parcel B could have been divided in a manner to make it comply with the ordinance, moving the north line.

3.    No record of topographical or environmental adverse circumstances.

4.    The ordinance is a local law, flawed or unflawed.

5.    Following township ordinance is important to the greater good.

 

Based on the findings of fact, we find parcel 28-13-136-001-02 noncompliant with Whitewater Township general
ordinance number 26, amendment 3, effective 03/19/2011, specifically section 7(d) and is not eligible for any building
permits or zoning approvals such as special land use approval or site plan approval.

 

Popp stated he will make that motion.

 

Glenn seconded.

 

Roll call vote:  Goss, no; Vollmuth, yes; Glenn, yes; Popp, yes; Benak, absent.  Motion carried.

 



FYI -

 

Cheryl A. Goss

Whitewater Township Clerk

5777 Vinton Road, P.O. Box 159

Williamsburg, Michigan 49690

Telephone:  231.267.5141 x24

Fax:  231.267-9020

clerk@whitewatertownship.org <mailto:clerk@whitewatertownship.org>

Office Hours:  Mon/Tue/Wed/Thurs 9:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m.

I Pledge Allegiance to the Flag of the United States of America, and to the REPUBLIC for which it stands, One Nation,
Under God, Indivisible, with Liberty and Justice for All.

 

On Wed, May 24, 2023 at 10:57 AM Ron Popp <supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com <mailto:supervisorwhitewater@
gmail.com> > wrote:

        Good morning Derek - I have no knowledge of correspondence sent to you by the Township. If you can provide a
copy I may be able to direct your question to the proper folks. As for 3rd party costs, I believe the condominium deeds
review process continued during the timeframe the parcel status was being determined. I will verify that is the case and
advise.

        

        I look forward to a copy of the correspondence.
       

        

        

        Regards,

        Ron Popp

        Whitewater Township Supervisor

        231.267.5141 Ext. 23

        supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com <mailto:supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com>

        bcc: Township Board

        

        

        On Tue, May 23, 2023 at 2:04 PM Derek Van Solkema <derek.vansolkema@gmail.com <mailto:derek.vansolkema@
gmail.com> > wrote:

                Ron, Cheryl, and Bob,

                

https://www.google.com/maps/search/5777+Vinton+Road?entry=gmail&source=g
mailto:clerk@whitewatertownship.org
mailto:clerk@whitewatertownship.org
mailto:supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com
mailto:supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com
mailto:supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com
mailto:supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com
mailto:derek.vansolkema@gmail.com
mailto:derek.vansolkema@gmail.com


                We received your letter about our property. Is there any more information we are owed in addition to the letter
from Bob Hall regarding the township board's decision deeming our property unbuildable?

                

                Does Whitewater Township have an appeals process that we need to be aware of based on your decision?

                

                If so, please use this email as our formal confirmation to begin our appeals process. Let us know if you need
any additional documentation.

                

                Also, when can we anticipate our refund of the $2,500 Escrow Check from 5/26/2022 Check #105? Obviously
we did not require any of the township's legal resources for our site condo project. 
               
                Signed,
               
                Baggs Partners LLC



Ron Popp <supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com>

Trustee's Homework
1 message

Derek Van Solkema <derek.vansolkema@gmail.com> Tue, Jun 20, 2023 at 11:50 AM
To: heidivyourtrustee@gmail.com, "Cheryl A. Goss" <clerk@whitewatertownship.org>, Ron Popp
<supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com>, dglenn419@gmail.com, Michael Herring <mherringlaw@outlook.com>, Ryan Sheffer
<Sheffer82@gmail.com>, Debra Van Solkema <vansolkema@gmail.com>, cpatterson@fsbrlaw.com

Heidi, 

What additional "Homework" do you need to do?  It has been 18 months with a 6 MONTH moratorium which we feel
is/was vindictive and meant specifically hurt Baggs Partners LLC.

Is 18 months not enough time to do your homework?  How much more time do you need to find the information you are
looking for?  What else could you possibly be researching?

I appreciate your help in understanding your process.  I look forward to hearing your research and findings in great detail.

Regards,

Derek



Ron Popp <supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com>

RE: APPEAL - 6631 BAGGS RD - COMPLETED DOCUMENT 6/19/2023
1 message

Christopher Patterson <cpatterson@fsbrlaw.com> Tue, Jun 20, 2023 at 11:36 AM
To: Zoning Administrator <zoning@whitewatertownship.org>
Cc: Ron Popp <supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com>, "Cheryl A. Goss" <clerk@whitewatertownship.org>, Kaylin Marshall
<kmarshall@fsbrlaw.com>

Bob:

 

Mr. Van Solkema’s email is not completely accurate. Please note that the Board authorized the application to be accepted and
processed by you for review by the Zoning Board of Appeals. You would not have authority to approve it. I would wait to do anything
further until you have the exact motion that the Township Board authorized.

 

Sincerely,

Chris

 

 

Christopher S. Patterson

Member  •  Fahey Schultz Burzych Rhodes

Direct: 517.381.3205  •  Cell: 269.744.4807
Office: 517.381.0100  •  Fax: 517.381.3185

fsbrlaw.com  •  cpatterson@fsbrlaw.com

4151 Okemos Road, Okemos, MI 48864 USA
⧨ U.S. News & World Report Ranked Best Law Firm

 

 

From: Derek Van Solkema <derek.vansolkema@gmail.com>
Sent: Tuesday, June 20, 2023 11:31 AM
To: Robert Hall <zoning@whitewatertownship.org>; Michael Herring <mherringlaw@outlook.com>; Ryan Sheffer
<Sheffer82@gmail.com>; Debra Van Solkema <vansolkema@gmail.com>
Cc: firstname lastname <supervisor@whitewatertownship.org>; supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com; Cheryl A. Goss
<clerk@whitewatertownship.org>; Christopher Patterson <cpatterson@fsbrlaw.com>
Subject: Re: APPEAL - 6631 BAGGS RD - COMPLETED DOCUMENT 6/19/2023

 

http://fsbrlaw.com/
mailto:cpatterson@fsbrlaw.com
https://www.google.com/maps/search/4151+Okemos+Road,+Okemos,+MI+48864+USA?entry=gmail&source=g
mailto:derek.vansolkema@gmail.com
mailto:zoning@whitewatertownship.org
mailto:mherringlaw@outlook.com
mailto:Sheffer82@gmail.com
mailto:vansolkema@gmail.com
mailto:supervisor@whitewatertownship.org
mailto:supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com
mailto:clerk@whitewatertownship.org
mailto:cpatterson@fsbrlaw.com


Bob, 

 

Whitewater Township board approved the review of the variance request.  Please approve the variance request so we
can move forward.  Again, we've waited 18 months including an absurd, vindictive 6 MONTH moratorium.  Enough time
has passed.  We appreciate it.

Thank you,

Derek 

 

On Mon, Jun 19, 2023 at 2:49 PM Robert Hall <zoning@whitewatertownship.org> wrote:

Hello Everyone-

Im reaching out for assistance here as I have no experience whatsoever when someone is appealing (what I believe to
be) an administrative decision of the legislative body.  The application appears to be very straight-forward in what it’s
seeking.  I have copied Chris so that he is aware and can offer guidance to the Township. 
What is the appropriate response regarding this application and how does the ZA play into this situation?

Thank-you,

Bob

---------- Original Message ----------

From: Derek Vansolkema <derek.vansolkema@gmail.com>

To: Ron Popp <supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com>, Zoning Administrator
<zoning@whitewatertownship.org>, "Cheryl A. Goss" <clerk@whitewatertownship.org>, Ryan Sheffer
<Sheffer82@gmail.com>, Gary <vansolkema@gmail.com>, Michael Herring
<mherringlaw@outlook.com>

Date: 06/19/2023 2:32 PM

Subject: Fwd: APPEAL - 6631 BAGGS RD - COMPLETED DOCUMENT 6/19/2023

 

 

See below for variance form. Sent 6/19/2023. Confirm receipt. 

Sent from my iPhone

Begin forwarded message:

From: Gary <vansolkema@gmail.com>
Date: June 19, 2023 at 11:40:36 AM EDT
To: Robert Hall <zoning@whitewatertownship.org>
Cc: Derek Van Solkema <derek.vansolkema@gmail.com>
Subject: APPEAL - 6631 BAGGS RD - COMPLETED DOCUMENT 6/19/2023

Good Afternoon,

 

Please see attached completed document filed 6/19/2023 and confirm receipt. 

 

mailto:zoning@whitewatertownship.org
mailto:derek.vansolkema@gmail.com
mailto:supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com
mailto:zoning@whitewatertownship.org
mailto:clerk@whitewatertownship.org
mailto:Sheffer82@gmail.com
mailto:vansolkema@gmail.com
mailto:mherringlaw@outlook.com
mailto:vansolkema@gmail.com
mailto:zoning@whitewatertownship.org
mailto:derek.vansolkema@gmail.com


Thank you.

 

Gary Van Solkema

(616) 437-4368

 

tel:(616)%20437-4368


Ron Popp <supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com>

Re: APPEAL - 6631 BAGGS RD - COMPLETED DOCUMENT 6/19/2023
1 message

Derek Van Solkema <derek.vansolkema@gmail.com> Tue, Jun 20, 2023 at 11:30 AM
To: Robert Hall <zoning@whitewatertownship.org>, Michael Herring <mherringlaw@outlook.com>, Ryan Sheffer
<Sheffer82@gmail.com>, Debra Van Solkema <vansolkema@gmail.com>
Cc: firstname lastname <supervisor@whitewatertownship.org>, "supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com"
<supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com>, "Cheryl A. Goss" <clerk@whitewatertownship.org>, "cpatterson@fsbrlaw.com"
<cpatterson@fsbrlaw.com>

Bob, 

Whitewater Township board approved the review of the variance request.  Please approve the variance request so we
can move forward.  Again, we've waited 18 months including an absurd, vindictive 6 MONTH moratorium.  Enough time
has passed.  We appreciate it.

Thank you,

Derek 

On Mon, Jun 19, 2023 at 2:49 PM Robert Hall <zoning@whitewatertownship.org> wrote:
Hello Everyone-
Im reaching out for assistance here as I have no experience whatsoever when someone is appealing (what I believe to
be) an administrative decision of the legislative body.  The application appears to be very straight-forward in what it’s
seeking.  I have copied Chris so that he is aware and can offer guidance to the Township. 
What is the appropriate response regarding this application and how does the ZA play into this situation?
Thank-you,
Bob

---------- Original Message ----------
From: Derek Vansolkema <derek.vansolkema@gmail.com>
To: Ron Popp <supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com>, Zoning Administrator
<zoning@whitewatertownship.org>, "Cheryl A. Goss" <clerk@whitewatertownship.org>, Ryan Sheffer
<Sheffer82@gmail.com>, Gary <vansolkema@gmail.com>, Michael Herring
<mherringlaw@outlook.com>
Date: 06/19/2023 2:32 PM
Subject: Fwd: APPEAL - 6631 BAGGS RD - COMPLETED DOCUMENT 6/19/2023

See below for variance form. Sent 6/19/2023. Confirm receipt. 

Sent from my iPhone

Begin forwarded message:

From: Gary <vansolkema@gmail.com>
Date: June 19, 2023 at 11:40:36 AM EDT
To: Robert Hall <zoning@whitewatertownship.org>
Cc: Derek Van Solkema <derek.vansolkema@gmail.com>
Subject: APPEAL - 6631 BAGGS RD - COMPLETED DOCUMENT 6/19/2023

Good Afternoon,

Please see attached completed document filed 6/19/2023 and confirm receipt. 

Thank you.

mailto:zoning@whitewatertownship.org
mailto:derek.vansolkema@gmail.com
mailto:supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com
mailto:zoning@whitewatertownship.org
mailto:clerk@whitewatertownship.org
mailto:Sheffer82@gmail.com
mailto:vansolkema@gmail.com
mailto:mherringlaw@outlook.com
mailto:vansolkema@gmail.com
mailto:zoning@whitewatertownship.org
mailto:derek.vansolkema@gmail.com


Gary Van Solkema
(616) 437-4368

tel:(616)%20437-4368


Ron Popp <supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com>

RE: APPEAL - 6631 BAGGS RD - COMPLETED DOCUMENT 6/19/2023
1 message

Michael Herring <mherringlaw@outlook.com> Tue, Jun 20, 2023 at 7:31 AM
To: Derek Vansolkema <derek.vansolkema@gmail.com>, Ron Popp <supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com>, Zoning
Administrator <zoning@whitewatertownship.org>, "Cheryl A. Goss" <clerk@whitewatertownship.org>, Ryan Sheffer
<Sheffer82@gmail.com>, Gary <vansolkema@gmail.com>

Quick question, does any of you know Duncan Morrison? He was the plant manager at Shoreline Fruit until recently. I am
trying to track him down. I’m still digging, but it looks like he was the one in charge of Morrison Orchard, LLC, the
company that sold my clients the land.

 

Again, not 100%, because there are a lot of Morrison’s in the area. But he would be related to Pete Morrison Sr. and Ron
Morrison. I’m trying to get in contact with them to defend our split.

 

If we have to go to the Zoning Board of Appeals, my clients Warranty Deed need to be defended. I’m still working on it,
but because Morrison Orchard is responsible for the spit they should be responsible to pay the costs of defending it.
Again, per the warranty they gave the buyers in the deed.

 

I might be wrong, but more than anything, I want Morrison Orchard to know that this board is putting all of their prior splits
into question.

 

 

Thank you,

 

Michael Herring

2029 Celadon Dr.

Grand Rapids, MI 49525

Phone: 616-916-6704

 

 

 

 

 

From: Derek Vansolkema <derek.vansolkema@gmail.com>
Sent: Monday, June 19, 2023 2:32 PM
To: Ron Popp <supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com>; Zoning Administrator <zoning@whitewatertownship.org>; Cheryl A.
Goss <clerk@whitewatertownship.org>; Ryan Sheffer <Sheffer82@gmail.com>; Gary <vansolkema@gmail.com>;

https://www.google.com/maps/search/2029+Celadon+Dr.+%0D%0A+Grand+Rapids,+MI+49525?entry=gmail&source=g
https://www.google.com/maps/search/2029+Celadon+Dr.+%0D%0A+Grand+Rapids,+MI+49525?entry=gmail&source=g
mailto:derek.vansolkema@gmail.com
mailto:supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com
mailto:zoning@whitewatertownship.org
mailto:clerk@whitewatertownship.org
mailto:Sheffer82@gmail.com
mailto:vansolkema@gmail.com


Michael Herring <mherringlaw@outlook.com>
Subject: Fwd: APPEAL - 6631 BAGGS RD - COMPLETED DOCUMENT 6/19/2023

 

See below for variance form. Sent 6/19/2023. Confirm receipt. 

Sent from my iPhone

Begin forwarded message:

From: Gary <vansolkema@gmail.com>
Date: June 19, 2023 at 11:40:36 AM EDT
To: Robert Hall <zoning@whitewatertownship.org>
Cc: Derek Van Solkema <derek.vansolkema@gmail.com>
Subject: APPEAL - 6631 BAGGS RD - COMPLETED DOCUMENT 6/19/2023

Good Afternoon,

 

Please see attached completed document filed 6/19/2023 and confirm receipt. 

 

Thank you.

 

Gary Van Solkema

(616) 437-4368

mailto:mherringlaw@outlook.com
mailto:vansolkema@gmail.com
mailto:zoning@whitewatertownship.org
mailto:derek.vansolkema@gmail.com


Ron Popp <supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com>

Re: APPEAL - 6631 BAGGS RD - COMPLETED DOCUMENT 6/19/2023
1 message

Derek Vansolkema <derek.vansolkema@gmail.com> Mon, Jun 19, 2023 at 3:26 PM
To: Robert Hall <zoning@whitewatertownship.org>, Michael Herring <mherringlaw@outlook.com>, Ryan Sheffer
<Sheffer82@gmail.com>, Gary Van Solkema <vansolkema@gmail.com>, "Cheryl A. Goss" <clerk@whitewatertownship.org>,
Ron Popp <supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com>
Cc: firstname lastname <supervisor@whitewatertownship.org>, supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com, "Cheryl A. Goss"
<clerk@whitewatertownship.org>, cpatterson@fsbrlaw.com

Ron,

We know how much you like to push things off (a ridiculous 6 month moratorium to fix “site condo language”) since the
township allegedly  didn’t have site condo language in the township ordinances prior to our application. Why it took 6
MONTHS - I’d love to have a better understanding! I doubt you’ll give up that info up to your constituents though. We
expect it in the FOIA though. 

That said, confirm receipt. This should and better be a priority in your “attorney/client“ meeting addressing our property.
We expect an answer immediately since you’ve already had 17-18 months. 

Derek 

Sent from my iPhone

On Jun 19, 2023, at 2:49 PM, Robert Hall <zoning@whitewatertownship.org> wrote:

Hello Everyone-
Im reaching out for assistance here as I have no experience whatsoever when someone is appealing (what
I believe to be) an administrative decision of the legislative body.  The application appears to be very
straight-forward in what it’s seeking.  I have copied Chris so that he is aware and can offer guidance to the
Township. 
What is the appropriate response regarding this application and how does the ZA play into this situation?
Thank-you,
Bob

---------- Original Message ----------
From: Derek Vansolkema <derek.vansolkema@gmail.com>
To: Ron Popp <supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com>, Zoning Administrator
<zoning@whitewatertownship.org>, "Cheryl A. Goss" <clerk@whitewatertownship.org>, Ryan
Sheffer <Sheffer82@gmail.com>, Gary <vansolkema@gmail.com>, Michael Herring
<mherringlaw@outlook.com>
Date: 06/19/2023 2:32 PM
Subject: Fwd: APPEAL - 6631 BAGGS RD - COMPLETED DOCUMENT 6/19/2023

See below for variance form. Sent 6/19/2023. Confirm receipt. 

Sent from my iPhone

Begin forwarded message:

From: Gary <vansolkema@gmail.com>
Date: June 19, 2023 at 11:40:36 AM EDT
To: Robert Hall <zoning@whitewatertownship.org>
Cc: Derek Van Solkema <derek.vansolkema@gmail.com>

mailto:zoning@whitewatertownship.org
mailto:derek.vansolkema@gmail.com
mailto:supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com
mailto:zoning@whitewatertownship.org
mailto:clerk@whitewatertownship.org
mailto:Sheffer82@gmail.com
mailto:vansolkema@gmail.com
mailto:mherringlaw@outlook.com
mailto:vansolkema@gmail.com
mailto:zoning@whitewatertownship.org
mailto:derek.vansolkema@gmail.com


Subject: APPEAL - 6631 BAGGS RD - COMPLETED DOCUMENT 6/19/2023

Good Afternoon,

Please see attached completed document filed 6/19/2023 and confirm receipt. 

Thank you.

Gary Van Solkema
(616) 437-4368

<zba form completed.pdf>

tel:(616)%20437-4368


Ron Popp <supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com>

Fwd: APPEAL - 6631 BAGGS RD - COMPLETED DOCUMENT 6/19/2023
1 message

Robert Hall <zoning@whitewatertownship.org> Mon, Jun 19, 2023 at 2:49 PM
To: firstname lastname <supervisor@whitewatertownship.org>, "supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com"
<supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com>, "Cheryl A. Goss" <clerk@whitewatertownship.org>
Cc: "cpatterson@fsbrlaw.com" <cpatterson@fsbrlaw.com>, Robert Hall <zoning@whitewatertownship.org>

Hello Everyone-
Im reaching out for assistance here as I have no experience whatsoever when someone is appealing (what I believe to
be) an administrative decision of the legislative body.  The application appears to be very straight-forward in what it’s
seeking.  I have copied Chris so that he is aware and can offer guidance to the Township. 
What is the appropriate response regarding this application and how does the ZA play into this situation?
Thank-you,
Bob

---------- Original Message ----------
From: Derek Vansolkema <derek.vansolkema@gmail.com>
To: Ron Popp <supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com>, Zoning Administrator <zoning@whitewatertownship.org
>, "Cheryl A. Goss" <clerk@whitewatertownship.org>, Ryan Sheffer <Sheffer82@gmail.com>, Gary
<vansolkema@gmail.com>, Michael Herring <mherringlaw@outlook.com>
Date: 06/19/2023 2:32 PM
Subject: Fwd: APPEAL - 6631 BAGGS RD - COMPLETED DOCUMENT 6/19/2023

See below for variance form. Sent 6/19/2023. Confirm receipt. 

Sent from my iPhone

Begin forwarded message:

From: Gary <vansolkema@gmail.com>
Date: June 19, 2023 at 11:40:36 AM EDT
To: Robert Hall <zoning@whitewatertownship.org>
Cc: Derek Van Solkema <derek.vansolkema@gmail.com>
Subject: APPEAL - 6631 BAGGS RD - COMPLETED DOCUMENT 6/19/2023

Good Afternoon,

Please see attached completed document filed 6/19/2023 and confirm receipt. 

Thank you.

Gary Van Solkema
(616) 437-4368

zba form completed.pdf
1405K

mailto:derek.vansolkema@gmail.com
mailto:supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com
mailto:zoning@whitewatertownship.org
mailto:clerk@whitewatertownship.org
mailto:Sheffer82@gmail.com
mailto:vansolkema@gmail.com
mailto:mherringlaw@outlook.com
mailto:vansolkema@gmail.com
mailto:zoning@whitewatertownship.org
mailto:derek.vansolkema@gmail.com
tel:(616)%20437-4368
https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?ui=2&ik=d5568a8cbf&view=att&th=188d4fdc4681fdf4&attid=0.1&disp=attd&safe=1&zw


Ron Popp <supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com>

RE: APPEAL - 6631 BAGGS RD - COMPLETED DOCUMENT 6/19/2023
1 message

Cheryl A. Goss <clerk@whitewatertownship.org> Mon, Jun 19, 2023 at 2:46 PM
To: Derek Vansolkema <derek.vansolkema@gmail.com>, Ron Popp <supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com>, Zoning
Administrator <zoning@whitewatertownship.org>, Ryan Sheffer <Sheffer82@gmail.com>, Gary <vansolkema@gmail.com>,
Michael Herring <mherringlaw@outlook.com>

Derek –

 

Received; thank you. 

 

Cheryl A. Goss

Whitewater Township Clerk

5777 Vinton Road, P.O. Box 159

Williamsburg, Michigan 49690

Telephone:  231.267.5141 x24

Fax:  231.267-9020

clerk@whitewatertownship.org

Office Hours:  Mon/Tue/Wed/Thurs 9:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m.

I Pledge Allegiance to the Flag of the United States of America, and to the REPUBLIC for which it stands, One
Nation, Under God, Indivisible, with Liberty and Justice for All.

 

From: Derek Vansolkema <derek.vansolkema@gmail.com>
Sent: Monday, June 19, 2023 2:32 PM
To: Ron Popp <supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com>; Zoning Administrator <zoning@whitewatertownship.org>; Cheryl A.
Goss <clerk@whitewatertownship.org>; Ryan Sheffer <Sheffer82@gmail.com>; Gary <vansolkema@gmail.com>;
Michael Herring <mherringlaw@outlook.com>
Subject: Fwd: APPEAL - 6631 BAGGS RD - COMPLETED DOCUMENT 6/19/2023

 

See below for variance form. Sent 6/19/2023. Confirm receipt. 

Sent from my iPhone

Begin forwarded message:

From: Gary <vansolkema@gmail.com>
Date: June 19, 2023 at 11:40:36 AM EDT
To: Robert Hall <zoning@whitewatertownship.org>
Cc: Derek Van Solkema <derek.vansolkema@gmail.com>
Subject: APPEAL - 6631 BAGGS RD - COMPLETED DOCUMENT 6/19/2023

https://www.google.com/maps/search/5777+Vinton+Road?entry=gmail&source=g
mailto:clerk@whitewatertownship.org
mailto:derek.vansolkema@gmail.com
mailto:supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com
mailto:zoning@whitewatertownship.org
mailto:clerk@whitewatertownship.org
mailto:Sheffer82@gmail.com
mailto:vansolkema@gmail.com
mailto:mherringlaw@outlook.com
mailto:vansolkema@gmail.com
mailto:zoning@whitewatertownship.org
mailto:derek.vansolkema@gmail.com


Good Afternoon,

 

Please see attached completed document filed 6/19/2023 and confirm receipt. 

 

Thank you.

 

Gary Van Solkema

(616) 437-4368



Ron Popp <supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com>

Code Enforcement Complaint
1 message

Derek Van Solkema <derek.vansolkema@gmail.com> Tue, Jun 13, 2023 at 4:32 PM
To: Ron Popp <supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com>, "Cheryl A. Goss" <clerk@whitewatertownship.org>, Zoning Administrator
<zoning@whitewatertownship.org>

Ron and Board, 

Your handling of today's meeting was so unprofessional by not addressing that you removed Baggs Rd from the Agenda.
We waited almost 8 hours to hear what was going on.  Your lack of courtesy is almost unbearable.  

We are people with young families and your decision significantly impacts our families lives.  Your complete lack of care is
just shocking.  In the same breath, it doesn't surprise me that you would kick the can down the road another week. 
Instead, bickering about complete and utter nonsense for 6 hours takes precedent.  

That said, Vicki beam has had this shipping container in her yard for approximately 2 YEARS. it obstructs our views and
does not conform to the Rural character you and they are trying to hard to "save"  

what is the board and ZA doing to immediately rectify this situation?  It needs to be removed immediately or hopefully you
can start fining Vicki Beam for keeping this on her property.  

If shipping containers are allowed on property for years and years, PLEASE let me know.  We have 30 acres we could fill
with junk and shipping containers.

---------- Forwarded message ----------
From: acscan@acadviser.com
To: derek.vansolkema@gmail.com
Cc: 
Bcc: 
Date: Tue, 13 Jun 2023 16:39:56 -0400
Subject: beam complaint

---------- Forwarded message ----------
From: Derek Vansolkema <derek.vansolkema@gmail.com>
To: Derek Van Solkema <derek.vansolkema@gmail.com>
Cc: 
Bcc: 
Date: Tue, 13 Jun 2023 16:25:43 -0400
Subject: Beam Shipping Container

Sent from my iPhone

4 attachments



IMG_6109.jpg
142K

Scan06-13-2023-163955.pdf
628K

beam complaint.eml
865K

Beam Shipping Container.eml
195K

https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?ui=2&ik=d5568a8cbf&view=att&th=188b6762c290026c&attid=0.2.0.1&disp=inline&safe=1&zw
https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?ui=2&ik=d5568a8cbf&view=att&th=188b6762c290026c&attid=0.1.0.0&disp=attd&safe=1&zw
https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?ui=2&ik=d5568a8cbf&view=att&th=188b6762c290026c&attid=0.1&disp=inline&realattid=f_liuqooa50&safe=1&zw
https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?ui=2&ik=d5568a8cbf&view=att&th=188b6762c290026c&attid=0.2&disp=inline&realattid=f_liuqoprs1&safe=1&zw




Ron Popp <supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com>

Re: 06/13/2023 Twp Board Meeting - 6631 Baggs Rd
1 message

Derek Van Solkema <derek.vansolkema@gmail.com> Tue, Jun 13, 2023 at 9:14 AM
To: "Cheryl A. Goss" <clerk@whitewatertownship.org>, Ron Popp <supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com>

Cheryl and Ron,

I am waiting to get into the Zoom meeting. It states that Zoom has notified you. Please let me into the Zoom meeting as
your decision has a substantial impact on my property and my property rights. 

On Mon, Jun 12, 2023 at 3:46 PM Cheryl A. Goss <clerk@whitewatertownship.org> wrote:

Gary/Derek –

 

I see that agenda item #8 under New Business is “6631 Baggs Road – Condominiums.” 

 

I haven’t gotten that far in the board packet, so I don’t know what is going to be discussed, but I wanted to let you know
about it.

 

Here is the link to Zoom for tomorrow’s meeting in this document that apparently just went up on the website today: 

 

https://www.whitewatertownship.org/uploads/2/1/9/6/21966412/whitewater_zoom_is_inviting_
you_to_a_scheduled_zoom_meeting.pdf

 

Also, you can find the 6/13 board packet at this link:

 

https://www.whitewatertownship.org/uploads/2/1/9/6/21966412/2023.06.13_township_board_packet.pdf

 

FYI -

 

Cheryl A. Goss

Whitewater Township Clerk

5777 Vinton Road, P.O. Box 159

Williamsburg, Michigan 49690

Telephone:  231.267.5141 x24

Fax:  231.267-9020

clerk@whitewatertownship.org

Office Hours:  Mon/Tue/Wed/Thurs 9:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m.

mailto:clerk@whitewatertownship.org
https://www.whitewatertownship.org/uploads/2/1/9/6/21966412/whitewater_zoom_is_inviting_you_to_a_scheduled_zoom_meeting.pdf
https://www.whitewatertownship.org/uploads/2/1/9/6/21966412/2023.06.13_township_board_packet.pdf
https://www.google.com/maps/search/5777+Vinton+Road?entry=gmail&source=g
mailto:clerk@whitewatertownship.org


I Pledge Allegiance to the Flag of the United States of America, and to the REPUBLIC for which it stands, One
Nation, Under God, Indivisible, with Liberty and Justice for All.

 

WWT Zoom.docx
488K

https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?ui=2&ik=d5568a8cbf&view=att&th=188b4e4b288ac60d&attid=0.1&disp=attd&realattid=f_liub182l0&safe=1&zw


Ron Popp <supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com>

Board Meeting Public Comment 6/13/2023 - In the absence of Zoom
1 message

Frank Hymore <fhymore@sbcglobal.net> Sun, Jun 11, 2023 at 8:22 PM
Reply-To: Frank Hymore <fhymore@sbcglobal.net>
To: Ron Popp <supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com>, Don Glenn <dglenn419@gmail.com>, Heidi Vollmuth
<heidivyourtrustee@gmail.com>, "Cheryl A. Goss" <clerk@whitewatertownship.org>, "Ardella M. Benak"
<treasurer@whitewatertownship.org>
Cc: "cpatterson@fsbrlaw.com" <cpatterson@fsbrlaw.com>, "mherringlaw@outlook.com" <mherringlaw@outlook.com>, Vicki
Beam <vickibeam@gmail.com>, Karin Boyd <karin@greatlakesweld.net>, Linda Slopsema <lindaslopsema@gmail.com>,
Amy K Haskell <amy.k.haskell@gmail.com>, Vern Gutknecht <verngutknecht@sbcglobal.net>, Kim and Deanna Elliott
<kelliottwill@gmail.com>

All,

In the absence of Zoom and not being able to attend in person, I am sending out my Public Comment to as much of the
public as I can. My comments deal solely with the "Code Enforcement Complaint" and the misinformation that is floating
around in numerous emails about ownership, an appeal process, who to prosecute, etc. Again, information that is not fact
based with no ordinance or state statute referenced.

 

Frank Hymore

6761 Baggs Rd.

Public comment for the 6/13/2023 & 6/20/2023 Whitewater Township Board Meetings

 

First, Per the Michigan Zoning Enabling Act MCL 125.3208,

Nonconformity travels with the land. If you are the owner of the land, then you are the owner of the nonconformity. As for
Mr. Herrings clients being "bonified purchasers", (not sure what "bonified" is on page 230 of the 6/13 agenda), they are
also bona fide owners of the nonconformity. It is the responsibility of the purchaser to do their due diligence, when
purchasing property, that it can be used per their intent.

Second, Per Whitewater Township General Ordinance 26,

Again on page 230 of the 6/13 agenda, Morrison Orchards LLC did nothing wrong! They are not the violators! They
submitted a properly filled out land division application. It is up to the Township, i.e. the Zoning Administrator, the Assessor
and the Treasurer to validate that application. Specifically, the Zoning Administrator is responsible that the application
meets all code and general ordinance criteria. By allowing this application, knowledgeable or unknowledgeable to the
requirements of the ordinances, fault lies with the Zoning Administrator.

Third, again per Michigan Zoning enabling Act MCL 125.3208,

There is no appeal process as asked for on page 233 of the 6/13 agenda. "There are only two ways a nonconformity
comes to an end or stops. The first is if the local government purchases the nonconformity from the property
owner. That can be done on a willing seller-buyer basis or might be done with adverse condemnation. The
second is if the property owner chooses on their own volition to stop the nonconformity", i.e. the land is deemed
"not buildable" not eligible for any building permits or zoning approval such as special land use approval or site
plan approval, and deemed "not buildable" through deed restriction with the County Register of Deeds and designated as
"not buildable" in the municipal records 

Fourth, again per Whitewater Township General Ordinance 26,

There is no appeal process for nonconformity to the ordinance. A variance could have been applied for at the time of the
division, if the APPLICANT demonstrated a need, but that was not done.

https://www.google.com/maps/search/6761+Baggs+Rd?entry=gmail&source=g


Finally,

The lack of due diligence on the purchasers part, not to investigate if the land would be usable for their intent, is no one's
fault but the purchaser.

The property at 6631 Baggs Rd. is in violation of Whitewater Township General Ordinance 26, as motioned and passed
by the Whitewater Township Board on 5/3/2023, and deemed "not buildable" through deed restriction with the County
Register of Deeds and designated as "not buildable" in the municipal records.

From the Whitewater Township Code Enforcement Policy and Procedures Manual

"The mission of Code Enforcement is to enhance Whitewater Township’s livability by protecting the health,
safety and welfare of Township residents and visitors by assuring compliance with the Township’s Zoning and
General Ordinances. The Township will assure compliance both by encouraging voluntary compliance and by
following progressive steps, including legal action for Ordinance violators."

 

As an added note,

How is it that a non-resident, non property owner, a person with no physical interest in the Township, is officially contacted
by the Township Clerk, representing the Township, using her Township email and Township salutation, responds about the
results of a code violation complaint and the submitters of the complaint are never contacted. And, when the submitters
contacted the Township to get closure of their complaint  and assurance that the documentation with the Township and
County have been filed, their request is forwarded to the attorney. Why are we paying an attorney to answer an email
concerning a resolved complaint?

Thank you.

https://www.google.com/maps/search/6631+Baggs+Rd?entry=gmail&source=g


Ron Popp <supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com>

Vicki Beam Shipping Container
1 message

Derek Van Solkema <derek.vansolkema@gmail.com> Mon, Jun 12, 2023 at 9:56 AM
To: Ron Popp <supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com>, "dglenn419@gmail.com" <dglenn419@gmail.com>,
"heidivyourtrustee@gmail.com" <heidivyourtrustee@gmail.com>, treasurer@whitewatertownship.org, "Cheryl A. Goss"
<clerk@whitewatertownship.org>

Hello Board,

Vicki Beam has had a shipping container on her property for over a year.  It obstructs our view and does NOT conform to
the "Rural" character of Whitewater Township. 

Was this structure approved by the board or zoning administrator?  If not, should she be getting fined? 

Does the township board consider a shipping container "Rural Character" ? 
 
When will the township force her to remove it?

Every time I visit my property I do not want to look at a shipping container. It is not fair to all the neighbors to have to look
at this eye soar for 1+ Years.

Bottom line, when can we expect this to be removed from her property?

Thank you,

Derek Van Solkema



Ron Popp <supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com>

Comments for board meeting
1 message

Vicki Beam <vickibeam@gmail.com> Fri, Jun 9, 2023 at 9:29 AM
To: Ron Popp <supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com>, "Cheryl A. Goss" <clerk@whitewatertownship.org>, Heidi Vollmuth
<heidivyourtrustee@gmail.com>, Don Glenn <trustee02@whitewatertownship.org>, Ardella M Benak
<treasurer@whitewatertownship.org>

I am writing to express my concern about several items that I feel need to be addressed - and I would like this to be read
in the board meeting.

First of all - it is a travesty that the meetings are not able to be attended via zoom - I'm not sure why one individual in each
of the township meetings could not be trained to push the zoom button, push the record button and then push the button
at the end of the meeting.  Zoom access is now a part of our lives - regardless if the "pandemic" is over or not.  It is just
good practice to allow yet another way for members of the township to be a part of the process - and it helps with overall
transparency - especially since the minutes of the meetings do not include all commentary that takes place in a meeting. 
It would be VERY easy to make zoom available again - do you not want more to attend and participate?  If you are not
going to provide zoom - then the board meetings MUST go back to the evening time slot so that more people can attend.

Second - who gave Clerk Goss the authority to reach out to the 6631 Baggs Road group and recap the board meeting -
including votes?  Who gave Clerk Goss the authority to send an email to the same group that I had divided my property -
including giving them my parcel numbers?  I realize it is public record - but I don't believe it is proper to have an elected
official voluntarily give out information about a resident to another taxpayer!!!  I have not seen any evidence that the
information was requested by the VanSlokema group - so why did she do that?

Clerk Goss had NO BUSINESS whatsoever to send that email.  Clerk Goss has also called out private residents in board
meetings because we have simply discovered the error that occured with the land division on Baggs Road.  Enough is
enough.  Keep my name out of your comments Clerk Goss!

I'd like to know what relationship Clerk Goss has with Gary VanSlokema and the rest of the group?  Why is she being
paid by taxpayer dollars to reach out to a potential developer to give them information that they could easily obtain if they
attended meetings like the rest of us?  Is there collusion going on?

--

 

 

 



Ron Popp <supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com>

Code Enforcement Complaint Closure
1 message

Frank Hymore <fhymore@sbcglobal.net> Tue, Jun 6, 2023 at 8:16 PM
Reply-To: Frank Hymore <fhymore@sbcglobal.net>
To: Ron Popp <supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com>

Ron,

Since the board has ruled on our code enforcement complaint, we would like an official response from Whitewater
Township. Please include the actions taken along with documentation that the land was deemed unbuildable with
Whitewater Township and Grand Traverse County.

Thanks

Frank & Connie Hymore



Ron Popp <supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com>

Re: 6631 Baggs Rd Appeals Process
1 message

Ardella Benak <treasurerwhitewater@gmail.com> Mon, Jun 5, 2023 at 10:36 AM
To: Ron Popp <supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com>

Yes.  Did not see it the first time.  June is very difficult for me with setting up for the new tax year and the newsletter.   You
chose to open this can of worms in an open meeting.  So why would you want a possible closed session now?

On Mon, Jun 5, 2023, 10:29 AM Ron Popp <supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com> wrote:
Did the forward with that information not show up?
Ron Popp
Whitewater Township Supervisor
231.267.5141 Ext. 23
supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com

On Mon, Jun 5, 2023 at 10:24 AM Ardella Benak <treasurerwhitewater@gmail.com> wrote:
I would need the dates before committing.   I'm assuming this is not a closed meeting. 

On Mon, Jun 5, 2023, 10:23 AM Ron Popp <supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com> wrote:
All - Here are some dates Mr. Patterson can be available for a special meeting to discuss next steps of General
Ordinance 26 Land Division.

Please comment as to your availability and we can get a special meeting organized.

Thank you
Ron Popp
Whitewater Township Supervisor
231.267.5141 Ext. 23
supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com
bcc: Township Board

---------- Forwarded message ---------
From: Christopher Patterson <cpatterson@fsbrlaw.com>
Date: Thu, Jun 1, 2023 at 7:28 PM
Subject: RE: 6631 Baggs Rd Appeals Process
To: Ron Popp <supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com>
Cc: Matthew Kuschel <MKuschel@fsbrlaw.com>, Lindsey Gergel <lgergel@fsbrlaw.com>, Jamy Staffeld
<jstaffeld@fsbrlaw.com>

Ron:

With the dates you provided below, I could do the following:

 

1. June 15th – 9:00 a.m. to 12:00 p.m. (hard stop at 12, but Matt could continue presumably).
2. June 20th – 7:00 a.m. to 3:30 p.m.
3. June 21 – 8:30 a.m. to 1:00 p.m.
4. June 23 – 1 p.m. until 6:00 p.m. (hard stop).

 

Sincerely,

mailto:supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com
mailto:supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com
mailto:treasurerwhitewater@gmail.com
mailto:supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com
mailto:supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com
mailto:cpatterson@fsbrlaw.com
mailto:supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com
mailto:MKuschel@fsbrlaw.com
mailto:lgergel@fsbrlaw.com
mailto:jstaffeld@fsbrlaw.com


 

Chris

 

Christopher S. Patterson

Member  •  Fahey Schultz Burzych Rhodes

Direct: 517.381.3205  •  Cell: 269.744.4807
Office: 517.381.0100  •  Fax: 517.381.3185

fsbrlaw.com  •  cpatterson@fsbrlaw.com

4151 Okemos Road, Okemos, MI 48864 USA
⧨ U.S. News & World Report Ranked Best Law Firm

 

 

From: Ron Popp <supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com>
Sent: Thursday, June 1, 2023 4:42 PM
To: Christopher Patterson <cpatterson@fsbrlaw.com>
Subject: Fwd: 6631 Baggs Rd Appeals Process

 

Chris please confirm 6.13.2023 is no longer on the table and you have received my email of 1:03 pm today
explaining why 6.13.2023 will not work.

 

Thank you

Ron Popp

Whitewater Township Supervisor

231.267.5141 Ext. 23

supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com

 

---------- Forwarded message ---------
From: Ron Popp <supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com>
Date: Thu, Jun 1, 2023 at 1:03 PM
Subject: Fwd: 6631 Baggs Rd Appeals Process
To: <cpatterson@fsbrlaw.com>

 

Sorry for the back to back emails. On second thought, please disregard the 6.13.2023 meeting. It has been recent
common practice to schedule a special meeting for items of high importance. I would categorize this item as high
importance. 

 

http://fsbrlaw.com/
mailto:cpatterson@fsbrlaw.com
https://www.google.com/maps/search/4151+Okemos+Road,+Okemos,+MI+48864+USA?entry=gmail&source=g
mailto:supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com
mailto:cpatterson@fsbrlaw.com
mailto:supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com
mailto:supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com
mailto:cpatterson@fsbrlaw.com


I will create a business item for 6.13.2023 asking the Board to schedule a special meeting with possible closed
session for a different day that week or in the following week of June. If you could comment as to your
availability for June 15 or 16, 2023 or week of June 19 thru 23, 2023 that would be great. 

 

Thank you

Ron Popp

Whitewater Township Supervisor

231.267.5141 Ext. 23

supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com

 

---------- Forwarded message ---------
From: Ron Popp <supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com>
Date: Thu, Jun 1, 2023 at 12:46 PM
Subject: Re: 6631 Baggs Rd Appeals Process
To: Christopher Patterson <cpatterson@fsbrlaw.com>

 

Chris - We currently are offline with zoom which could make remote participation of the 6.13.2023 meeting an
issue. We could use a speaker phone unless you believe this conversation should be in a closed session. If this is
the case, please generate a motion and a zoom link for the session and provide it to all board members. If the
board decides a closed session is in order we will be prepared. I will create a business item to discuss the topic for
the 6.13.2023 agenda.

 

Thank you

Ron Popp

Whitewater Township Supervisor

231.267.5141 Ext. 23

supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com

 

 

On Wed, May 31, 2023 at 3:45 PM Christopher Patterson <cpatterson@fsbrlaw.com> wrote:

Good afternoon Mr. Herring:

 

I apologize for the delay. Your email originally went into my spam folder. I was able to locate it after being provided notice
from the Township that you sent it.

 

We are preparing to take your correspondence to the Township Board at an upcoming meeting to discuss the points
made below. As soon as I have direction from the Board to respond further, I will do so. If you have any additional
questions or comments, please feel free to send those and I will include those with our update to the Township Board on
this issue.

 

Sincerely,

mailto:supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com
mailto:supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com
mailto:cpatterson@fsbrlaw.com
mailto:supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com
mailto:cpatterson@fsbrlaw.com


 

Chris

 

 

Christopher S. Patterson

Member  •  Fahey Schultz Burzych Rhodes

Direct: 517.381.3205  •  Cell: 269.744.4807
Office: 517.381.0100  •  Fax: 517.381.3185

fsbrlaw.com  •  cpatterson@fsbrlaw.com

4151 Okemos Road, Okemos, MI 48864 USA
⧨ U.S. News & World Report Ranked Best Law Firm

 

-----Original Message-----
From: Michael Herring <mherringlaw@outlook.com>
Sent: Thursday, May 25, 2023 3:14 PM
To: Derek Van Solkema <derek.vansolkema@gmail.com>; Ron Popp <supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com>;
Ryan Sheffer <Sheffer82@gmail.com>; Cheryl A. Goss <clerk@whitewatertownship.org>
Cc: Christopher Patterson <cpatterson@fsbrlaw.com>; zoning@whitewatertownship.org
Subject: RE: 6631 Baggs Rd Appeals Process

Hello Everyone,

 

My name is Michael Herring, I am the attorney for Derek Van Solkema and Ryan Sheffer.

 

Now that we know the Baggs property is unbuildable, per Section X, the property was split improperly. Section
XI now demands that any person who violates any of the provision of the Ordinance shall be deemed guilty of a
misdemeanor. The ordinance is a local law, flawed or unflawed. Following the township ordinance is important to
the greater good.

 

When will the violations be sent to Morrison Orchard, LLC?

 

Further, MCL 560.265 Sec. 265 Any municipality, board of county road commissioners or county plat board may
bring an action in its own name to restrain or prevent any violation of this act or any continuance of any such
violation. Such action shall be brought in the county where the land is located, the defendant resides or has his
principal place of business.

 

When can we anticipate your action to stop the continuance of the violation?

 

http://fsbrlaw.com/
mailto:cpatterson@fsbrlaw.com
https://www.google.com/maps/search/4151+Okemos+Road,+Okemos,+MI+48864+USA?entry=gmail&source=g
mailto:mherringlaw@outlook.com
mailto:derek.vansolkema@gmail.com
mailto:supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com
mailto:Sheffer82@gmail.com
mailto:clerk@whitewatertownship.org
mailto:cpatterson@fsbrlaw.com
mailto:zoning@whitewatertownship.org


As you can imagine a large amount of litigation will be coming. My clients are bonified purchasers who, along
with the realtor, the title company, insurance companies and others have substantial damages. Thankfully, we
know who is responsible for the chaos… Morrison Orchard, LLC.

 

Have a great weekend and govern yourself accordingly,

 

Michael Herring

2029 Celadon Dr.

Grand Rapids, MI 49525

Phone: 616-916-6704

 

The information or document(s) contained in this electronic mail message is intended to be privileged and
confidential information only for the use of the individual or entity named herein or above. If you are not the
intended recipient, you are hereby notified that any dissemination, distribution or copy of this message or
document is strictly prohibited. If you have received this electronic mail transmission in error, notify the sender
by reply e-mail and delete all copies from your system. Michael Herring is not responsible for errors in this
electronic mail message. Any personal comments made do not necessarily reflect the views of Michael Herring.

 

 

 

 

 

From: Derek Van Solkema <derek.vansolkema@gmail.com>
Sent: Wednesday, May 24, 2023 4:07 PM
To: Ron Popp <supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com>; mherringlaw@outlook.com; Ryan Sheffer
<Sheffer82@gmail.com>; Cheryl A. Goss <clerk@whitewatertownship.org>
Cc: cpatterson@fsbrlaw.com; zoning@whitewatertownship.org
Subject: Re: 6631 Baggs Rd Appeals Process

 

Ron,

 
I can't imagine you are unaware of your own Finding of Facts and vote on 5/3/2023.  It is our understanding
based on the email below from Cheryl Goss and the letter from Bob Hall that your decision in the 5/3/2023
meeting regarding our parcel of land was deemed unbuildable and is not eligible for any building permits or
zoning approvals such as special land use approval or site plan approval.  Please confirm the decision of the
township.

 

Thanks,

Derek

Baggs Partners, LLC

https://www.google.com/maps/search/2029+Celadon+Dr.+%0D%0A+%0D%0AGrand+Rapids,+MI+49525?entry=gmail&source=g
mailto:derek.vansolkema@gmail.com
mailto:supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com
mailto:mherringlaw@outlook.com
mailto:Sheffer82@gmail.com
mailto:clerk@whitewatertownship.org
mailto:cpatterson@fsbrlaw.com
mailto:zoning@whitewatertownship.org
https://www.google.com/maps/search/6631+Baggs+Rd?entry=gmail&source=g


 

See attached letter from Bob Hall and a copy of the email received by my father Gary Van Solkema from Cheryl
Goss.

 

Gary –

 

These were the findings of fact, motion and vote today on the Hymore Complaint.

 

Findings of Fact:

1.    Request for variance is nonexistent.

2.    Parcel B could have been divided in a manner to make it comply with the ordinance, moving the north line.

3.    No record of topographical or environmental adverse circumstances.

4.    The ordinance is a local law, flawed or unflawed.

5.    Following township ordinance is important to the greater good.

 

Based on the findings of fact, we find parcel 28-13-136-001-02 noncompliant with Whitewater Township general
ordinance number 26, amendment 3, effective 03/19/2011, specifically section 7(d) and is not eligible for any
building permits or zoning approvals such as special land use approval or site plan approval.

 

Popp stated he will make that motion.

 

Glenn seconded.

 

Roll call vote:  Goss, no; Vollmuth, yes; Glenn, yes; Popp, yes; Benak, absent.  Motion carried.

 

FYI -

 

Cheryl A. Goss

Whitewater Township Clerk

5777 Vinton Road, P.O. Box 159

Williamsburg, Michigan 49690

Telephone:  231.267.5141 x24

Fax:  231.267-9020

clerk@whitewatertownship.org <mailto:clerk@whitewatertownship.org>

https://www.google.com/maps/search/5777+Vinton+Road?entry=gmail&source=g
mailto:clerk@whitewatertownship.org
mailto:clerk@whitewatertownship.org


Office Hours:  Mon/Tue/Wed/Thurs 9:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m.

I Pledge Allegiance to the Flag of the United States of America, and to the REPUBLIC for which it stands, One
Nation, Under God, Indivisible, with Liberty and Justice for All.

 

On Wed, May 24, 2023 at 10:57 AM Ron Popp <supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com
<mailto:supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com> > wrote:

        Good morning Derek - I have no knowledge of correspondence sent to you by the Township. If you can
provide a copy I may be able to direct your question to the proper folks. As for 3rd party costs, I believe the
condominium deeds review process continued during the timeframe the parcel status was being determined. I
will verify that is the case and advise.

        

        I look forward to a copy of the correspondence.
       

        

        

        Regards,

        Ron Popp

        Whitewater Township Supervisor

        231.267.5141 Ext. 23

        supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com <mailto:supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com>

        bcc: Township Board

        

        

        On Tue, May 23, 2023 at 2:04 PM Derek Van Solkema <derek.vansolkema@gmail.com
<mailto:derek.vansolkema@gmail.com> > wrote:

                Ron, Cheryl, and Bob,

                

                We received your letter about our property. Is there any more information we are owed in addition to
the letter from Bob Hall regarding the township board's decision deeming our property unbuildable?

                

                Does Whitewater Township have an appeals process that we need to be aware of based on your
decision?

                

                If so, please use this email as our formal confirmation to begin our appeals process. Let us know if
you need any additional documentation.

                

                Also, when can we anticipate our refund of the $2,500 Escrow Check from 5/26/2022 Check #105?
Obviously we did not require any of the township's legal resources for our site condo project. 
               

mailto:supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com
mailto:supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com
mailto:supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com
mailto:supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com
mailto:derek.vansolkema@gmail.com
mailto:derek.vansolkema@gmail.com


                Signed,
               
                Baggs Partners LLC



Ron Popp <supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com>

Re: 6631 Baggs Rd Appeals Process
1 message

Ardella Benak <treasurerwhitewater@gmail.com> Mon, Jun 5, 2023 at 10:24 AM
To: Ron Popp <supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com>

I would need the dates before committing.   I'm assuming this is not a closed meeting. 

On Mon, Jun 5, 2023, 10:23 AM Ron Popp <supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com> wrote:
All - Here are some dates Mr. Patterson can be available for a special meeting to discuss next steps of General
Ordinance 26 Land Division.

Please comment as to your availability and we can get a special meeting organized.

Thank you
Ron Popp
Whitewater Township Supervisor
231.267.5141 Ext. 23
supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com
bcc: Township Board

---------- Forwarded message ---------
From: Christopher Patterson <cpatterson@fsbrlaw.com>
Date: Thu, Jun 1, 2023 at 7:28 PM
Subject: RE: 6631 Baggs Rd Appeals Process
To: Ron Popp <supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com>
Cc: Matthew Kuschel <MKuschel@fsbrlaw.com>, Lindsey Gergel <lgergel@fsbrlaw.com>, Jamy Staffeld
<jstaffeld@fsbrlaw.com>

Ron:

With the dates you provided below, I could do the following:

 

1. June 15th – 9:00 a.m. to 12:00 p.m. (hard stop at 12, but Matt could continue presumably).
2. June 20th – 7:00 a.m. to 3:30 p.m.
3. June 21 – 8:30 a.m. to 1:00 p.m.
4. June 23 – 1 p.m. until 6:00 p.m. (hard stop).

 

Sincerely,

 

Chris

 

mailto:supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com
mailto:supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com
mailto:cpatterson@fsbrlaw.com
mailto:supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com
mailto:MKuschel@fsbrlaw.com
mailto:lgergel@fsbrlaw.com
mailto:jstaffeld@fsbrlaw.com


Christopher S. Patterson

Member  •  Fahey Schultz Burzych Rhodes

Direct: 517.381.3205  •  Cell: 269.744.4807
Office: 517.381.0100  •  Fax: 517.381.3185

fsbrlaw.com  •  cpatterson@fsbrlaw.com

4151 Okemos Road, Okemos, MI 48864 USA
⧨ U.S. News & World Report Ranked Best Law Firm

 

 

From: Ron Popp <supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com>
Sent: Thursday, June 1, 2023 4:42 PM
To: Christopher Patterson <cpatterson@fsbrlaw.com>
Subject: Fwd: 6631 Baggs Rd Appeals Process

 

Chris please confirm 6.13.2023 is no longer on the table and you have received my email of 1:03 pm today explaining
why 6.13.2023 will not work.

 

Thank you

Ron Popp

Whitewater Township Supervisor

231.267.5141 Ext. 23

supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com

 

---------- Forwarded message ---------
From: Ron Popp <supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com>
Date: Thu, Jun 1, 2023 at 1:03 PM
Subject: Fwd: 6631 Baggs Rd Appeals Process
To: <cpatterson@fsbrlaw.com>

 

Sorry for the back to back emails. On second thought, please disregard the 6.13.2023 meeting. It has been recent
common practice to schedule a special meeting for items of high importance. I would categorize this item as high
importance. 

 

I will create a business item for 6.13.2023 asking the Board to schedule a special meeting with possible closed session
for a different day that week or in the following week of June. If you could comment as to your availability for June 15 or
16, 2023 or week of June 19 thru 23, 2023 that would be great. 

 

Thank you

http://fsbrlaw.com/
mailto:cpatterson@fsbrlaw.com
https://www.google.com/maps/search/4151+Okemos+Road,+Okemos,+MI+48864+USA?entry=gmail&source=g
mailto:supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com
mailto:cpatterson@fsbrlaw.com
mailto:supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com
mailto:supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com
mailto:cpatterson@fsbrlaw.com


Ron Popp

Whitewater Township Supervisor

231.267.5141 Ext. 23

supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com

 

---------- Forwarded message ---------
From: Ron Popp <supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com>
Date: Thu, Jun 1, 2023 at 12:46 PM
Subject: Re: 6631 Baggs Rd Appeals Process
To: Christopher Patterson <cpatterson@fsbrlaw.com>

 

Chris - We currently are offline with zoom which could make remote participation of the 6.13.2023 meeting an issue.
We could use a speaker phone unless you believe this conversation should be in a closed session. If this is the case,
please generate a motion and a zoom link for the session and provide it to all board members. If the board decides a
closed session is in order we will be prepared. I will create a business item to discuss the topic for the 6.13.2023
agenda.

 

Thank you

Ron Popp

Whitewater Township Supervisor

231.267.5141 Ext. 23

supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com

 

 

On Wed, May 31, 2023 at 3:45 PM Christopher Patterson <cpatterson@fsbrlaw.com> wrote:

Good afternoon Mr. Herring:

 

I apologize for the delay. Your email originally went into my spam folder. I was able to locate it after being provided notice from
the Township that you sent it.

 

We are preparing to take your correspondence to the Township Board at an upcoming meeting to discuss the points made
below. As soon as I have direction from the Board to respond further, I will do so. If you have any additional questions or
comments, please feel free to send those and I will include those with our update to the Township Board on this issue.

 

Sincerely,

 

Chris

 

 

mailto:supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com
mailto:supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com
mailto:cpatterson@fsbrlaw.com
mailto:supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com
mailto:cpatterson@fsbrlaw.com


Christopher S. Patterson

Member  •  Fahey Schultz Burzych Rhodes

Direct: 517.381.3205  •  Cell: 269.744.4807
Office: 517.381.0100  •  Fax: 517.381.3185

fsbrlaw.com  •  cpatterson@fsbrlaw.com

4151 Okemos Road, Okemos, MI 48864 USA
⧨ U.S. News & World Report Ranked Best Law Firm

 

-----Original Message-----
From: Michael Herring <mherringlaw@outlook.com>
Sent: Thursday, May 25, 2023 3:14 PM
To: Derek Van Solkema <derek.vansolkema@gmail.com>; Ron Popp <supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com>; Ryan
Sheffer <Sheffer82@gmail.com>; Cheryl A. Goss <clerk@whitewatertownship.org>
Cc: Christopher Patterson <cpatterson@fsbrlaw.com>; zoning@whitewatertownship.org
Subject: RE: 6631 Baggs Rd Appeals Process

Hello Everyone,

 

My name is Michael Herring, I am the attorney for Derek Van Solkema and Ryan Sheffer.

 

Now that we know the Baggs property is unbuildable, per Section X, the property was split improperly. Section XI
now demands that any person who violates any of the provision of the Ordinance shall be deemed guilty of a
misdemeanor. The ordinance is a local law, flawed or unflawed. Following the township ordinance is important to the
greater good.

 

When will the violations be sent to Morrison Orchard, LLC?

 

Further, MCL 560.265 Sec. 265 Any municipality, board of county road commissioners or county plat board may
bring an action in its own name to restrain or prevent any violation of this act or any continuance of any such
violation. Such action shall be brought in the county where the land is located, the defendant resides or has his
principal place of business.

 

When can we anticipate your action to stop the continuance of the violation?

 

As you can imagine a large amount of litigation will be coming. My clients are bonified purchasers who, along with
the realtor, the title company, insurance companies and others have substantial damages. Thankfully, we know who
is responsible for the chaos… Morrison Orchard, LLC.

 

Have a great weekend and govern yourself accordingly,

http://fsbrlaw.com/
mailto:cpatterson@fsbrlaw.com
https://www.google.com/maps/search/4151+Okemos+Road,+Okemos,+MI+48864+USA?entry=gmail&source=g
mailto:mherringlaw@outlook.com
mailto:derek.vansolkema@gmail.com
mailto:supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com
mailto:Sheffer82@gmail.com
mailto:clerk@whitewatertownship.org
mailto:cpatterson@fsbrlaw.com
mailto:zoning@whitewatertownship.org


 

Michael Herring

2029 Celadon Dr.

Grand Rapids, MI 49525

Phone: 616-916-6704

 

The information or document(s) contained in this electronic mail message is intended to be privileged and
confidential information only for the use of the individual or entity named herein or above. If you are not the intended
recipient, you are hereby notified that any dissemination, distribution or copy of this message or document is strictly
prohibited. If you have received this electronic mail transmission in error, notify the sender by reply e-mail and delete
all copies from your system. Michael Herring is not responsible for errors in this electronic mail message. Any
personal comments made do not necessarily reflect the views of Michael Herring.

 

 

 

 

 

From: Derek Van Solkema <derek.vansolkema@gmail.com>
Sent: Wednesday, May 24, 2023 4:07 PM
To: Ron Popp <supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com>; mherringlaw@outlook.com; Ryan Sheffer
<Sheffer82@gmail.com>; Cheryl A. Goss <clerk@whitewatertownship.org>
Cc: cpatterson@fsbrlaw.com; zoning@whitewatertownship.org
Subject: Re: 6631 Baggs Rd Appeals Process

 

Ron,

 
I can't imagine you are unaware of your own Finding of Facts and vote on 5/3/2023.  It is our understanding based
on the email below from Cheryl Goss and the letter from Bob Hall that your decision in the 5/3/2023 meeting
regarding our parcel of land was deemed unbuildable and is not eligible for any building permits or zoning approvals
such as special land use approval or site plan approval.  Please confirm the decision of the township.

 

Thanks,

Derek

Baggs Partners, LLC

 

See attached letter from Bob Hall and a copy of the email received by my father Gary Van Solkema from Cheryl
Goss.

 

Gary –

https://www.google.com/maps/search/2029+Celadon+Dr.+%0D%0A+%0D%0AGrand+Rapids,+MI+49525?entry=gmail&source=g
mailto:derek.vansolkema@gmail.com
mailto:supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com
mailto:mherringlaw@outlook.com
mailto:Sheffer82@gmail.com
mailto:clerk@whitewatertownship.org
mailto:cpatterson@fsbrlaw.com
mailto:zoning@whitewatertownship.org
https://www.google.com/maps/search/6631+Baggs+Rd?entry=gmail&source=g


 

These were the findings of fact, motion and vote today on the Hymore Complaint.

 

Findings of Fact:

1.    Request for variance is nonexistent.

2.    Parcel B could have been divided in a manner to make it comply with the ordinance, moving the north line.

3.    No record of topographical or environmental adverse circumstances.

4.    The ordinance is a local law, flawed or unflawed.

5.    Following township ordinance is important to the greater good.

 

Based on the findings of fact, we find parcel 28-13-136-001-02 noncompliant with Whitewater Township general
ordinance number 26, amendment 3, effective 03/19/2011, specifically section 7(d) and is not eligible for any building
permits or zoning approvals such as special land use approval or site plan approval.

 

Popp stated he will make that motion.

 

Glenn seconded.

 

Roll call vote:  Goss, no; Vollmuth, yes; Glenn, yes; Popp, yes; Benak, absent.  Motion carried.

 

FYI -

 

Cheryl A. Goss

Whitewater Township Clerk

5777 Vinton Road, P.O. Box 159

Williamsburg, Michigan 49690

Telephone:  231.267.5141 x24

Fax:  231.267-9020

clerk@whitewatertownship.org <mailto:clerk@whitewatertownship.org>

Office Hours:  Mon/Tue/Wed/Thurs 9:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m.

I Pledge Allegiance to the Flag of the United States of America, and to the REPUBLIC for which it stands, One
Nation, Under God, Indivisible, with Liberty and Justice for All.

 

On Wed, May 24, 2023 at 10:57 AM Ron Popp <supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com <mailto:supervisorwhitewater@
gmail.com> > wrote:

https://www.google.com/maps/search/5777+Vinton+Road?entry=gmail&source=g
mailto:clerk@whitewatertownship.org
mailto:clerk@whitewatertownship.org
mailto:supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com
mailto:supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com


        Good morning Derek - I have no knowledge of correspondence sent to you by the Township. If you can provide
a copy I may be able to direct your question to the proper folks. As for 3rd party costs, I believe the condominium
deeds review process continued during the timeframe the parcel status was being determined. I will verify that is the
case and advise.

        

        I look forward to a copy of the correspondence.
       

        

        

        Regards,

        Ron Popp

        Whitewater Township Supervisor

        231.267.5141 Ext. 23

        supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com <mailto:supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com>

        bcc: Township Board

        

        

        On Tue, May 23, 2023 at 2:04 PM Derek Van Solkema <derek.vansolkema@gmail.com
<mailto:derek.vansolkema@gmail.com> > wrote:

                Ron, Cheryl, and Bob,

                

                We received your letter about our property. Is there any more information we are owed in addition to the
letter from Bob Hall regarding the township board's decision deeming our property unbuildable?

                

                Does Whitewater Township have an appeals process that we need to be aware of based on your decision?

                

                If so, please use this email as our formal confirmation to begin our appeals process. Let us know if you
need any additional documentation.

                

                Also, when can we anticipate our refund of the $2,500 Escrow Check from 5/26/2022 Check #105?
Obviously we did not require any of the township's legal resources for our site condo project. 
               
                Signed,
               
                Baggs Partners LLC

mailto:supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com
mailto:supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com
mailto:derek.vansolkema@gmail.com
mailto:derek.vansolkema@gmail.com


Ron Popp <supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com>

RE: 6631 Baggs Rd Appeals Process
1 message

Christopher Patterson <cpatterson@fsbrlaw.com> Thu, Jun 1, 2023 at 8:04 PM
To: Ron Popp <supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com>

Thank you!

 

 

Christopher S. Patterson

Member  •  Fahey Schultz Burzych Rhodes

Direct: 517.381.3205  •  Cell: 269.744.4807
Office: 517.381.0100  •  Fax: 517.381.3185

fsbrlaw.com  •  cpatterson@fsbrlaw.com

4151 Okemos Road, Okemos, MI 48864 USA
⧨ U.S. News & World Report Ranked Best Law Firm

 

 

From: Ron Popp <supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com>
Sent: Thursday, June 1, 2023 8:02 PM
To: Christopher Patterson <cpatterson@fsbrlaw.com>
Subject: Re: 6631 Baggs Rd Appeals Process

 

Thank you I will pass this information along and try to get folks to commit before 6.13.2023

 

On Thu, Jun 1, 2023, 7:28 PM Christopher Patterson <cpatterson@fsbrlaw.com> wrote:

Ron:

With the dates you provided below, I could do the following:

 

1. June 15th – 9:00 a.m. to 12:00 p.m. (hard stop at 12, but Matt could continue presumably).
2. June 20th – 7:00 a.m. to 3:30 p.m.
3. June 21 – 8:30 a.m. to 1:00 p.m.
4. June 23 – 1 p.m. until 6:00 p.m. (hard stop).

http://fsbrlaw.com/
mailto:cpatterson@fsbrlaw.com
https://www.google.com/maps/search/4151+Okemos+Road,+Okemos,+MI+48864+USA?entry=gmail&source=g
mailto:supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com
mailto:cpatterson@fsbrlaw.com
mailto:cpatterson@fsbrlaw.com


 

Sincerely,

 

Chris

 

FSBR Christopher S. Patterson

Member  •  Fahey Schultz Burzych Rhodes

Direct: 517.381.3205  •  Cell: 269.744.4807
Office: 517.381.0100  •  Fax: 517.381.3185

fsbrlaw.com  •  cpatterson@fsbrlaw.com

4151 Okemos Road, Okemos, MI 48864 USA
⧨ U.S. News & World Report Ranked Best Law Firm

 

 

From: Ron Popp <supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com>
Sent: Thursday, June 1, 2023 4:42 PM
To: Christopher Patterson <cpatterson@fsbrlaw.com>
Subject: Fwd: 6631 Baggs Rd Appeals Process

 

Chris please confirm 6.13.2023 is no longer on the table and you have received my email of 1:03 pm today explaining
why 6.13.2023 will not work.

 

Thank you

Ron Popp

Whitewater Township Supervisor

231.267.5141 Ext. 23

supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com

 

---------- Forwarded message ---------
From: Ron Popp <supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com>
Date: Thu, Jun 1, 2023 at 1:03 PM
Subject: Fwd: 6631 Baggs Rd Appeals Process
To: <cpatterson@fsbrlaw.com>

 

Sorry for the back to back emails. On second thought, please disregard the 6.13.2023 meeting. It has been recent
common practice to schedule a special meeting for items of high importance. I would categorize this item as high
importance. 

http://fsbrlaw.com/
mailto:cpatterson@fsbrlaw.com
https://www.google.com/maps/search/4151+Okemos+Road,+Okemos,+MI+48864+USA?entry=gmail&source=g
mailto:supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com
mailto:cpatterson@fsbrlaw.com
mailto:supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com
mailto:supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com
mailto:cpatterson@fsbrlaw.com


 

I will create a business item for 6.13.2023 asking the Board to schedule a special meeting with possible closed session
for a different day that week or in the following week of June. If you could comment as to your availability for June 15 or
16, 2023 or week of June 19 thru 23, 2023 that would be great. 

 

Thank you

Ron Popp

Whitewater Township Supervisor

231.267.5141 Ext. 23

supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com

 

---------- Forwarded message ---------
From: Ron Popp <supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com>
Date: Thu, Jun 1, 2023 at 12:46 PM
Subject: Re: 6631 Baggs Rd Appeals Process
To: Christopher Patterson <cpatterson@fsbrlaw.com>

 

Chris - We currently are offline with zoom which could make remote participation of the 6.13.2023 meeting an issue.
We could use a speaker phone unless you believe this conversation should be in a closed session. If this is the case,
please generate a motion and a zoom link for the session and provide it to all board members. If the board decides a
closed session is in order we will be prepared. I will create a business item to discuss the topic for the 6.13.2023
agenda.

 

Thank you

Ron Popp

Whitewater Township Supervisor

231.267.5141 Ext. 23

supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com

 

 

On Wed, May 31, 2023 at 3:45 PM Christopher Patterson <cpatterson@fsbrlaw.com> wrote:

Good afternoon Mr. Herring:

 

I apologize for the delay. Your email originally went into my spam folder. I was able to locate it after being provided notice from
the Township that you sent it.

 

We are preparing to take your correspondence to the Township Board at an upcoming meeting to discuss the points made
below. As soon as I have direction from the Board to respond further, I will do so. If you have any additional questions or
comments, please feel free to send those and I will include those with our update to the Township Board on this issue.

 

Sincerely,

mailto:supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com
mailto:supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com
mailto:cpatterson@fsbrlaw.com
mailto:supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com
mailto:cpatterson@fsbrlaw.com


 

Chris

 

 

FSBR Christopher S. Patterson

Member  •  Fahey Schultz Burzych Rhodes

Direct: 517.381.3205  •  Cell: 269.744.4807
Office: 517.381.0100  •  Fax: 517.381.3185

fsbrlaw.com  •  cpatterson@fsbrlaw.com

4151 Okemos Road, Okemos, MI 48864 USA
⧨ U.S. News & World Report Ranked Best Law Firm

 

-----Original Message-----
From: Michael Herring <mherringlaw@outlook.com>
Sent: Thursday, May 25, 2023 3:14 PM
To: Derek Van Solkema <derek.vansolkema@gmail.com>; Ron Popp <supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com>; Ryan
Sheffer <Sheffer82@gmail.com>; Cheryl A. Goss <clerk@whitewatertownship.org>
Cc: Christopher Patterson <cpatterson@fsbrlaw.com>; zoning@whitewatertownship.org
Subject: RE: 6631 Baggs Rd Appeals Process

Hello Everyone,

 

My name is Michael Herring, I am the attorney for Derek Van Solkema and Ryan Sheffer.

 

Now that we know the Baggs property is unbuildable, per Section X, the property was split improperly. Section XI
now demands that any person who violates any of the provision of the Ordinance shall be deemed guilty of a
misdemeanor. The ordinance is a local law, flawed or unflawed. Following the township ordinance is important to the
greater good.

 

When will the violations be sent to Morrison Orchard, LLC?

 

Further, MCL 560.265 Sec. 265 Any municipality, board of county road commissioners or county plat board may
bring an action in its own name to restrain or prevent any violation of this act or any continuance of any such
violation. Such action shall be brought in the county where the land is located, the defendant resides or has his
principal place of business.

 

When can we anticipate your action to stop the continuance of the violation?

 

http://fsbrlaw.com/
mailto:cpatterson@fsbrlaw.com
https://www.google.com/maps/search/4151+Okemos+Road,+Okemos,+MI+48864+USA?entry=gmail&source=g
mailto:mherringlaw@outlook.com
mailto:derek.vansolkema@gmail.com
mailto:supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com
mailto:Sheffer82@gmail.com
mailto:clerk@whitewatertownship.org
mailto:cpatterson@fsbrlaw.com
mailto:zoning@whitewatertownship.org


As you can imagine a large amount of litigation will be coming. My clients are bonified purchasers who, along with
the realtor, the title company, insurance companies and others have substantial damages. Thankfully, we know who
is responsible for the chaos… Morrison Orchard, LLC.

 

Have a great weekend and govern yourself accordingly,

 

Michael Herring

2029 Celadon Dr.

Grand Rapids, MI 49525

Phone: 616-916-6704

 

The information or document(s) contained in this electronic mail message is intended to be privileged and
confidential information only for the use of the individual or entity named herein or above. If you are not the intended
recipient, you are hereby notified that any dissemination, distribution or copy of this message or document is strictly
prohibited. If you have received this electronic mail transmission in error, notify the sender by reply e-mail and delete
all copies from your system. Michael Herring is not responsible for errors in this electronic mail message. Any
personal comments made do not necessarily reflect the views of Michael Herring.

 

 

 

 

 

From: Derek Van Solkema <derek.vansolkema@gmail.com>
Sent: Wednesday, May 24, 2023 4:07 PM
To: Ron Popp <supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com>; mherringlaw@outlook.com; Ryan Sheffer
<Sheffer82@gmail.com>; Cheryl A. Goss <clerk@whitewatertownship.org>
Cc: cpatterson@fsbrlaw.com; zoning@whitewatertownship.org
Subject: Re: 6631 Baggs Rd Appeals Process

 

Ron,

 
I can't imagine you are unaware of your own Finding of Facts and vote on 5/3/2023.  It is our understanding based
on the email below from Cheryl Goss and the letter from Bob Hall that your decision in the 5/3/2023 meeting
regarding our parcel of land was deemed unbuildable and is not eligible for any building permits or zoning approvals
such as special land use approval or site plan approval.  Please confirm the decision of the township.

 

Thanks,

Derek

Baggs Partners, LLC

 

https://www.google.com/maps/search/2029+Celadon+Dr.+%0D%0A+%0D%0AGrand+Rapids,+MI+49525?entry=gmail&source=g
mailto:derek.vansolkema@gmail.com
mailto:supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com
mailto:mherringlaw@outlook.com
mailto:Sheffer82@gmail.com
mailto:clerk@whitewatertownship.org
mailto:cpatterson@fsbrlaw.com
mailto:zoning@whitewatertownship.org
https://www.google.com/maps/search/6631+Baggs+Rd?entry=gmail&source=g


See attached letter from Bob Hall and a copy of the email received by my father Gary Van Solkema from Cheryl
Goss.

 

Gary –

 

These were the findings of fact, motion and vote today on the Hymore Complaint.

 

Findings of Fact:

1.    Request for variance is nonexistent.

2.    Parcel B could have been divided in a manner to make it comply with the ordinance, moving the north line.

3.    No record of topographical or environmental adverse circumstances.

4.    The ordinance is a local law, flawed or unflawed.

5.    Following township ordinance is important to the greater good.

 

Based on the findings of fact, we find parcel 28-13-136-001-02 noncompliant with Whitewater Township general
ordinance number 26, amendment 3, effective 03/19/2011, specifically section 7(d) and is not eligible for any
building permits or zoning approvals such as special land use approval or site plan approval.

 

Popp stated he will make that motion.

 

Glenn seconded.

 

Roll call vote:  Goss, no; Vollmuth, yes; Glenn, yes; Popp, yes; Benak, absent.  Motion carried.

 

FYI -

 

Cheryl A. Goss

Whitewater Township Clerk

5777 Vinton Road, P.O. Box 159

Williamsburg, Michigan 49690

Telephone:  231.267.5141 x24

Fax:  231.267-9020

clerk@whitewatertownship.org <mailto:clerk@whitewatertownship.org>

Office Hours:  Mon/Tue/Wed/Thurs 9:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m.

https://www.google.com/maps/search/5777+Vinton+Road?entry=gmail&source=g
mailto:clerk@whitewatertownship.org
mailto:clerk@whitewatertownship.org


I Pledge Allegiance to the Flag of the United States of America, and to the REPUBLIC for which it stands, One
Nation, Under God, Indivisible, with Liberty and Justice for All.

 

On Wed, May 24, 2023 at 10:57 AM Ron Popp <supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com <mailto:supervisorwhitewater@
gmail.com> > wrote:

        Good morning Derek - I have no knowledge of correspondence sent to you by the Township. If you can provide
a copy I may be able to direct your question to the proper folks. As for 3rd party costs, I believe the condominium
deeds review process continued during the timeframe the parcel status was being determined. I will verify that is the
case and advise.

        

        I look forward to a copy of the correspondence.
       

        

        

        Regards,

        Ron Popp

        Whitewater Township Supervisor

        231.267.5141 Ext. 23

        supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com <mailto:supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com>

        bcc: Township Board

        

        

        On Tue, May 23, 2023 at 2:04 PM Derek Van Solkema <derek.vansolkema@gmail.com
<mailto:derek.vansolkema@gmail.com> > wrote:

                Ron, Cheryl, and Bob,

                

                We received your letter about our property. Is there any more information we are owed in addition to the
letter from Bob Hall regarding the township board's decision deeming our property unbuildable?

                

                Does Whitewater Township have an appeals process that we need to be aware of based on your
decision?

                

                If so, please use this email as our formal confirmation to begin our appeals process. Let us know if you
need any additional documentation.

                

                Also, when can we anticipate our refund of the $2,500 Escrow Check from 5/26/2022 Check #105?
Obviously we did not require any of the township's legal resources for our site condo project. 
               
                Signed,

mailto:supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com
mailto:supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com
mailto:supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com
mailto:supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com
mailto:derek.vansolkema@gmail.com
mailto:derek.vansolkema@gmail.com


               
                Baggs Partners LLC



1 

 Office of the 
Whitewater Township 
Supervisor  

Memo 
To: Whitewater Township Board of Trustees 

CC: None 

Date: 9.15.2023 

Re: Confidential legal opinions for 9.19.2023 -      

Board Members –  

    I have the follow confidential writings pertaining to the 9.19.2023 special meeting.  

 Email dated 6.16.2023 

 Email dated 6.19.2023 

 Email dated 6.20.2023 

 Email dated 8.25.2023 

   If anyone has a different list or cannot locate a specific opinion please provide/request the document 

one via email to supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com 

      

                Respectfully submitted, 

  

Whitewater Township FOIA Coordinator  

Supervisor, Whitewater Township  

supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com


1 

 Office of the 
Whitewater Township 
Supervisor  

Memo 
To: Whitewater Township Board of Trustees 

CC: None 

Date: 9.15.2023 

Re: Vollmuth Packet Submittals -      

Board Members –  

    The following attached 7 articles were provided by Trustee Heidi for the 9.19.2023 special meeting 

packet for discussion purposes.  

 Heidi email - Agenda packet 1 

 Heidi email – Agenda packet 2 

 Heidi email – Agenda packet 3 

Heidi email – Agenda packet 4 

Heidi email – Agenda packet 5 

Heidi email – Agenda packet 6 

Heidi email – Agenda packet 7 

 

No Motion is made pending Board discussion.   

      

                Respectfully submitted, 

  

Whitewater Township FOIA Coordinator  

Supervisor, Whitewater Township  



Ron Popp <supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com>

Agenda packet 1
1 message

Heidi Vollmuth <heidivyourtrustee@gmail.com> Thu, Sep 14, 2023 at 5:41 PM
To: Ron Popp <supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com>

There are several attachments 

Dear Board,

Here is where we stand, please see the following attachments for discussion.

Current State of the Baggs Rd parcel is…

Parcel 28-13-136-001-02 is noncompliant with Whitewater Township general ordinance number 26, 
amendment 3, effective 03/19/2011, specifically section 7(d), and is not eligible for any building 
permits or zoning approvals such as special land use approval or site plan approval.

Bob Hall Wrote in the packet…

At a special meeting on May 3, 2023, the Whitewater Township Board by way of a motion 
declared that the above-referenced parcel is not eligible for any building permits or zoning 
approvals such as special land use approval or site plan approval.

Per our approved Meeting Minutes…

"Motion by Popp to uphold the elements of general ordinance 26, amendment 3, as written. 

Findings of fact: 
1. Request for variance is nonexistent. 
2. Parcel B could have been divided in a manner to make it comply with the ordinance, moving the 
north line. 
3. No record of topographical or environmental adverse circumstances. 
4. The ordinance is a local law, flawed or unflawed. 
5. Following township ordinance is important to the greater good. 

Based on the findings of fact, we find parcel 28-13-136-001-02 noncompliant with Whitewater 
Township general ordinance number 26, amendment 3, effective 03/19/2011, specifically section 7(d), 
and is not eligible for any building permits or zoning approvals such as special land use approval or site 
plan approval. 

Popp stated he will make that motion. 

Glenn seconded.
 
Roll call vote: Goss, no; Vollmuth, yes; Glenn, yes; Popp, yes; Benak, absent. Motion carried."



Bob Hall wrote in the packet…

At a June 20, 2023 meeting, the Whitewater Township Board directed the ZBA to hear an 
application for a variance related to the above referenced parcel, requesting a deviation 
from the 4:1 (four to one) lot depth to width ratio requirements. 

My homework shows…

General Ordinance 26 Section IX does not allow this parcel to be sent to the Zoning Board of Appeals.

SECTION IX

"Any such parcel shall also be designated as “not buildable” in the Township records, and shall not 
thereafter be the subject of a request to the Zoning Board of Appeals for variance relief from the 
applicable lot and/or area requirements, and shall not be developed with any building or above ground 
structure exceed four feet in height."

Bob Hall wrote in the packet…

At an August 24, 2023, meeting, the Whitewater Township Zoning Board of Appeals did 
grant a variance from the 4:1 (four to one) lot depth to width ratio requirements for parcel 
#28-13-136-001-02. Based upon the above occurrences, the findings relied upon at the 
May 3, 2023 meeting wherein the above-referenced parcel was declared ‘not eligible for 
any building permits or zoning approvals such as special land use approval or site plan 
approval’ by the Whitewater Township Board, appear to have been negated. 

Response:

The Township Boards decision has not been negated! Our findings of fact are still actual and relevant. 
The ZBA did not consider or discuss the townships findings of fact. The only mistake the Board made 
was allowing this appeal to be sent to the ZBA. I voted no because I did my homework. Since the ZBA 
cannot hear an appeal of this nature, it appears the ZBA’s decision has been negated.

Bob Hall wrote in the packet…

The Zoning Board of Appeals was ‘not’ authorized to consider an appeal of the May 3, 2023 decision of 
the Whitewater Township Board.

Possible motion language: 

Motion to rescind the motion of the Whitewater Township Board made on May 3, 2023, declaring that 
parcel #28-13- 136-001-02 is not eligible for any building permits or zoning approvals such as special 
land use approval or site plan approval; further, finding that based upon the variance granted from the 
4:1 (four to one) lot depth to width ratio requirements by the Zoning Board of Appeals on August 24, 
2023, that the subject property is now in compliance with all applicable Whitewater Township 
ordinances.

Response:

True, the ZBA is not authorized to consider an appeal of a Whitewater Township Board decision. Also, 
the ZBA is not allowed to consider appeals of parcels in violation of General Ordinance 26. Their 
decision to allow a variance is not allowed. 



Possible motion language: 

Motion to declare that the decision of the Whitewater Township Board made on June 20, 2023, to send 
this appeal for variance to the ZBA was in error. The parcel #28-13- 136-001-02 cannot be sent to the 
Zoning Board of Appeals for variance relief per General Ordinance 26. Any decision made by the ZBA is 
null and void. The Whitewater Township Board decision on May 3,2023 remains intact. The subject 
property remains noncompliant with the Whitewater Township ordinances.

Thank you,
Heidi V your trustee



Ron Popp <supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com>

Agenda packet 2
1 message

Heidi Vollmuth <heidivyourtrustee@gmail.com> Thu, Sep 14, 2023 at 5:42 PM
To: Ron Popp <supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com>

1 – The Zoning Administrator admits the land division is in error and that he committed the 
error. Again, at the 3-2-2022 Planning Commision Meeting.  

2 – There is no time limit on a code violation. MSU Land Division Office 

3 – Non-conformity follows the land. No matter how many times it has been sold. MSU Land 
Division Office 

4 - If a zoning violation occurred when it was first started. It remains a zoning violation and 
should be handled with enforcement measures. MSU Land Division Office 

5- "A township ordinance is ineffective unless it is uniformly enforced

DEFINITIONS

plural noun: definitions

1.  a statement of the exact meaning of
a word, especially in a dictionary.
"a dictionary definition of the verb"

2.  the degree of distinctness in outline of an object, image, or sound,
especially of an image in a photograph or on a screen.
"the clarity and definition of pictures can be aided by using
computer graphics"

All …..means everything and everyone.

Shall meaning:

 In just about every jurisdiction, courts have held that “shall” can mean not just “must” and “may”,
but also “will” and “is”.

Any

one or some of a thing or number of things, no matter how much or how many.



Ron Popp <supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com>

Fwd: agenda packet 3
1 message

Heidi Vollmuth <heidivyourtrustee@gmail.com> Thu, Sep 14, 2023 at 5:42 PM
To: Ron Popp <supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com>

Pages 35 and 36 reference 
Zoning ordinance, number 12

---------- Forwarded message ---------
From: Heidi Vollmuth <heidivyourtrustee@gmail.com>
Date: Thu, Sep 14, 2023 at 4:08 PM
Subject: Zoning ordinances
To: <heidivyourtrustee@gmail.com>

Refer to zoning ordinance 12

whitewater-township-zoning-ordinance---last-revision-effective-11.11.2021.pdf
14648K

mailto:heidivyourtrustee@gmail.com
mailto:heidivyourtrustee@gmail.com
https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?ui=2&ik=d5568a8cbf&view=att&th=18a95a59aa51c903&attid=0.1&disp=attd&realattid=18a95739635d64ec10b1&safe=1&zw


 
 
 
 
 
 
 

WHITEWATER TOWNSHIP 
 
 

ZONING ORDINANCE 
 
 
 

TOWNSHIP ORDINANCE #6 
 
 
 

ADOPTED AND EFFECTIVE 
DECEMBER 23, 1972 

 
 
 
 



TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 

ARTICLE ONE (1) 
 - Zoning Ordinance Whitewater Township, Michigan 
 
ARTICLE TWO (2) 
 - Interpretation 
 
ARTICLE THREE (3) 
 - Definitions 
 
ARTICLE FOUR (4) 
 - Accessory and Nonconforming Uses and Buildings 
 
ARTICLE FIVE (5) 
 - Districts 
 
ARTICLE SIX (6) 
 - Residential R-1 
 
ARTICLE SEVEN (7) 
 - Multiple Residential R-2 and R-3 
 
ARTICLE EIGHT (8) 
 - Commercial C and Village V 
 
ARTICLE NINE (9) 
 - Industrial N 
 
ARTICLE TEN (10) 
 - Agricultural A-1 
 
ARTICLE ELEVEN (11) 
 - Recreational RC-1 
 
ARTICLE TWELVE (12) 
 - Building Sizes, Lot Sizes and Yard Requirements  
 
ARTICLE THIRTEEN (13) 
 - Essential Public Services 
 
ARTICLE FOURTEEN (14) 
 - Waterfront Property 
 
ARTICLE FIFTEEN (15) 
 - Sanitation Requirements 
 



ARTICLE SIXTEEN (16) 
- Outdoor Storage

ARTICLE SEVENTEEN (17) 
- Administration

ARTICLE EIGHTEEN (18) 
- Zoning Board of Appeals

ARTICLE NINETEEN (19) 
- Request for Amendment

ARTICLE TWENTY (20) 
- Separability

ARTICLE TWENTY-ONE (21) 
- Violations

ARTICLE TWENTY-TWO (22) 
- Effective Date

ARTICLE TWENTY-THREE (23) 
- Repeal

ARTICLE TWENTY-FOUR (24) 
- Sanitary Landfill and Waste Disposal Facilities

ARTICLE TWENTY-FIVE (25) 
- Site Plan Review and Special Land Uses

ARTICLE TWENTY-SIX (26) 
- Reserved for Future Use

ARTICLE TWENTY-SEVEN (27)) 
- Reserved for Future Use

ARTICLE TWENTY-EIGHT (28) 
- Condominium Development Regulations

ARTICLE TWENTY-NINE (29) 
- Exterior Lighting Regulations

ARTICLE THIRTY (30) 
- Sign Regulations

ARTICLE THIRTY-ONE (31) 
- Planned Unit Development



ARTICLE THIRTY-TWO (32) 
 - Corridor Overlay Planned Unit Development Zoning District 
 
ARTICLE THIRTY-THREE (33) 
 - Landscape Standards 
 
ARTICLE THIRTY-FOUR (34) 
 - Off-Street Parking and Loading 
 
ARTICLE THIRTY-FIVE (35) 
 - Telecommunications Towers 
 
ARTICLE THIRTY-SIX (36) 
 - Mobile Home Standards 
 
ARTICLE THIRTY-SEVEN (37) 
 - Supplementary Provisions 
 
 

 



1.00 

1.00 

1 

ZONING ORDINANCE 
WHITEWATER TOWNSHIP,MICIDGAN 

Ord. No. 6 eff. Dec. 23,1972 

An Ordinance to establish zoning district and regulations in the Township of 
Whitewater, County of Grand Traverse and State of:Mjchigan, in accordance 
with the provisions of Act 184 of the Public Acts pf\~43, as amended, and Act 
231 of the Public Acts of 1970, as amended (N~1:uralRiver Act); and to define 
certain terms used herein; to provide for regulations g~~erning nonconforming 
uses and structures; to establish a Board, of,APpeals ari'adefine its duties and 
powers; to provide for the administra:tjop/and enforc;tn~nt; to provide for 
amendments; and to provide penalties f(ii.the violation of tbiSQrdinance. 

">, 

THE TOWNSIDP ()j1~TEWA:TER ORDAINS , , ,, .. •.. ,;:]'.¥Jiii . 

(WHITEWATER TOWNSHIP ZONING ORDINANCE) 



Section 2.10 Purposes 

ARTICLE II 
INTERPRETATION 

(Effective July 28, 2017) 

The fundamental purpose of this Ordinance is to promote the health, safety, and general welfare 
of the inhabitants of the Township by: 

1. Promoting the orderly development of the Township. 

2. Encouraging the use oflands and resources of the Township in accordance with their 
character and adaptability. 

3. Securing safety from fire and other dangers and providing for safety in traffic, adequacy of 
parking and reduction in hazards to life and property. 

4. Facilitating the development of adequate systems of fire protection, education, recreation, 
water supplies and sanitary facilities. 

5. Conserving the use of public funds for public improvement and services to conform with the 
most advantageous use oflands, properties and resources of the Township. 

6. Protecting fish and wildlife resources, water quality, scenic and aesthetic qualities, historical 
and recreational values. 

7. Preventing flood damages due to interference with natural drainage characteristics of rivers 
and streams. 

8. Promoting the economic progress of the Township and protecting and enhancing the property 
values thereof. 

Section 2.11 Scope 
It is not intended by this Ordinance to repeal, abrogate, annul, or in any way impair or interfere 
with existing provisions of law or ordinance, except as hereinafter specifically repealed, or with 
any rules, regulations or permits previously adopted or issued or which shall be adopted or issued 
pursuant to law, relating to the use of buildings or premises, or with any private restrictions 
placed upon property by covenant or deed; provided, however, that where this Ordinance 
imposes a greater restriction upon the use of buildings or premises than are imposed or required 
by such existing provisions of law or ordinance or by such rules, regulations or permits or by 
such private restrictions, the provisions of this Ordinance shall control. 



Section 2.12 Splitting Lots Within Recorded Subdivisions 
No lot, outlot or other parcel of land in a recorded plat shall be further partitioned or divided 
unless in conformity with the standard of the district in which it exists. The township may 
permit the partitioning of land into not more than four ( 4) parts. 

Section 2.13 Rules of Interpretation 
The following rules are intended to clarify the intent of the standards within this Ordinance. The 
following shall apply, except when clearly indicated otherwise: 

1. Terms not defined shall be assumed to have the customary meaning assigned them. 

2. Any interpretation of this Ordinance shall be defined by the Whitewater Township Zoning 
Board of Appeals. 

3. The particular shall control the general. 

4. The word "shall" is always mandatory and never discretionary. The word "may" is 
permissive. 

5. The phrase "used for" includes "arranged for," "designed for," "intended for," "maintained 
for," and "occupied for." 

6. Unless the context clearly indicates otherwise, where a regulation involves two (2) or more 
items, conditions, provisions or events, the terms "and," "or," "either ... or," such 
conjunction shall be interpreted as follows: 
A. "And" denotes that all the items, conditions, provisions or events apply in combination. 
B. "Or" indicates that the items, conditions, provisions or events may apply individually or 

in any combination. 

7. "Township" shall refer specifically to "Whitewater Township." 

8. The term "person" shall mean an individual, firm, corporation, association, partnership, 
limited liability company or other legal entity, or their agents. 



 
3.00         ARTICLE III 

DEFINITIONS 
 

(Definition of Condominium Conversion added; Effective 03/28/2021) 
 
 
ACCESSORY BUILDING:  A supplemental building or structure located on the same lot as or 
a lot contiguous to the primary building or where a primary use is being established.   
 
ACCESSORY USE:  A use naturally incident to and subordinate to the main use of the land or 
building.  
 
AGRICULTURAL COOLING PAD:  The area and its related equipment where crops, 
cherries in particular, are collected, temporarily stored, and rinsed with water to lower the 
temperature and prepare the crop for transport and processing. 
 
AGRICULTURAL PREMISES:  A premises used or occupied for the cultivation of field crops, 
truck crops, nurseries, orchards, greenhouses, woodlots, pastures, husbandry of livestock, poultry or 
small animals, or any activities of a similar nature.  
 
AGRICULTURAL STAGING AREA:  An area where trucks, transport equipment, harvesting 
coordination, and assembly and loading of agricultural products takes place related to the logistics 
of harvesting and transporting agricultural crops.  
 
BED AND BREAKFAST ESTABLISHMENT:  A private residential dwelling in which the 
owner provides overnight accommodations and breakfast to transient guests for compensation.   
 
BILLBOARD:  A sign structure generally available for lease or rent, although sometimes owned 
by the user, intended to support an off-premises business.  Commercial Outdoor Advertising and 
Outdoor Advertising are other terms commonly applied to larger billboards.        
 
BUILDING:  A structure having a roof supported by columns or walls for the shelter, support, 
or enclosure of persons, animals, or property.  
 
BUILDING HEIGHT:  The building height is the vertical distance measured from the finished 
grade level to the highest point of the roof surface if a flat roof; to the deck of mansard roofs; and to 
the average height level between eaves and ridges of gable, hip and gambrel roofs.  Where the 
building may be situated on sloping terrain, this height shall be measured from the highest finished 
grade at the building wall. 
 
BUFFER STRIP:  A strip of land reserved or used for plant material, berms, walls, or fencing to 
serve as a visual and/or sound barrier between properties, often required between properties in 
different zoning districts.  
 



CABIN:  A simple housing structure providing temporary accommodation for recreational 
purposes. 
 
CAMPGROUND, COMMERCIAL:  A campground owned and operated expressly for the 
purpose of renting space in the campground on a transient basis for profit to the general public.  
A campground owned and operated by a non-profit organization for the exclusive temporary use 
and enjoyment of its members shall also be considered a commercial campground.   
 
CAMPGROUND, PRIVATE FAMILY:  Parcels of land owned and operated exclusively for 
the temporary use and enjoyment of those sharing in the ownership of the parcel, their invited 
guests and not for remuneration.   
 
CONDOMINIUM CONVERSION:  Any property or group of properties whose form of 
ownership is changed to condominium units from another form of ownership. 
 
CONDOMINIUM UNIT:  That portion of a condominium project or site condominium 
subdivision which is designed and intended for separate ownership and use, as described in the 
master deed, regardless of whether it is intended for residential, office, industrial, business, 
recreational, use as a time-share unit, or any other type of use.  The owner of a "condominium unit" 
also owns a share of the common elements.  The term "condominium unit" shall be equivalent to the 
term "lot" for purposes of determining compliance of a site condominium subdivision with 
provisions of this Ordinance pertaining to minimum lot size, minimum lot width, maximum lot 
coverage, and maximum floor area ratio. 
 
CONDOMINIUM PROJECT:  A plan or project consisting of not less than two (2) condominium 
units if established and approved in conformance with the Condominium Act (Public Act 59 of 
1978). 
 
COMMERCIAL PREMISES:  A premises used or occupied for transportation, retail sales or 
service businesses, wholesale sales facilities, apartments, hotels, motels, or commercial recreation.   
 
COMMUNITY IMPACT STATEMENT:  An assessment of the developmental, ecological, 
social, economic and physical impacts of a project on the natural environment and the physical 
improvements on and surrounding the development site.  Information required for compliance 
with other ordinances shall not be required to be duplicated in the Community Impact Statement.  
 
CORRIDOR OVERLAY PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT (COPUD):  A corridor 
overlay zone which employs the methods and techniques of a planned unit development.  
 
CUL-DE-SAC:  A circular vehicular turn-around at the end of a private road or easement.  
 
DEED RESTRICTION:  A restriction on a property that is recorded as part of a deed with the 
County Register of Deeds.  A deed restriction is binding on subsequent owners and enforced by 
the parties to the agreement.    
 
DOMESTIC PETS:  Dogs, cats, and other animals customarily housed within a dwelling. 



 
DWELLING:  Any building or structure or portion thereof legally occupied as the home, 
residence, or sleeping place of one or more persons. 
 
 MULTIPLE FAMILY DWELLING:  A building, structure, or portion thereof used or 

designed as a residence for three (3) or more families living independently of each other and 
independently doing their own cooking in said building.  This definition includes three-
family houses, four-family houses and apartments, but does not include trailer camps or 
mobile home parks. 

 
SINGLE FAMILY DWELLING:  A building, structure, or portion thereof containing not 
more than one dwelling unit designed for residential use and attached to a permanent 
foundation except where hereinafter exempt. 
 
TEMPORARY DWELLING:  A building, structure, or portion thereof that is intended to 
be used on a temporary basis, has some of the facilities of a conventional dwelling, and is 
used in conjunction with the construction of a permanent residence.   
 

 TWO FAMILY DWELLING:  A building, structure, or portion thereof designed for or 
occupied exclusively by two families living independently of each other and attached to a 
permanent foundation except where hereinafter exempt.  

 
EASEMENT:  A grant of one or more of the property rights by a property owner to and/or for use 
by the public, or another person or entity.  
 
EQUIPMENT:  Tangible property, excluding land, buildings, and vehicles, which is used in 
the operations of a business or completion of a task.  
 
EXISTING BUILDING:  A building existing or for which the foundations are in place or upon 
which there has been substantial work done prior to the effective date of this Ordinance or any 
amendment thereto. 
 
EXISTING USE:  A use of premises or buildings or structures actually in operation, openly, 
visibly and notoriously, prior to the effective date of this Ordinance or any amendment thereto. 
 
FENCE:  A fence is a structure usually constructed from posts that are connected by boards, 
wire, rails or netting enclosing an area of ground to mark a boundary, control access, prevent 
escape, or provide a decorative feature.  
 
FENCE, RESIDENTIAL STANDARDS: 

1. Fences shall have the finished side facing outward away from the property in which it is 
located. 

2. No fence shall be erected within the 50-foot setback of any lakes, rivers, streams. 
3. Fences shall not exceed a height of 6 feet. 
4. Prohibited fences include barbed wire, electric charges, or fences with sharp materials 

located on top. 



 
FOOTPRINT:  The area of land occupied by the foundation of a building and does not include 
appurtenances like decks unless they are on a permanent foundation. 
 
GREENBELT:  An area of grass, trees and other natural vegetation between a structure or parking 
area and a public thoroughfare. 
 
HAMMERHEAD TURNAROUND:  A T-shaped vehicular turnaround at the end of a road or 
easement. 
 
HAZARDOUS SUBSTANCES AND POLLUTING MATERIALS:  Hazardous substances and 
polluting materials shall mean hazardous chemicals as defined by the Michigan Department of 
Public Health and the Michigan Department of Labor; flammable and combustible liquids as 
defined by the Michigan State Police Fire Marshal Division; critical materials, polluting materials 
and hazardous waste as defined by the Michigan Department of Natural Resources; hazardous 
substances as defined by the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, and hazardous materials as 
defined by the U.S. Department of Transportation.   
 
HIGHWAY:  Any public thoroughfare in Whitewater Township, including federal and state roads  
and highways. 
 
HOME OCCUPATIONS:  An occupation or business activity located within a residential  
dwelling or in an accessory building which is clearly subordinate to the principal residential use. 
 
IMPLEMENT:  A tool or an instrument used in doing work.   
    
INSTITUTIONAL PREMISES:  Shall be interpreted to include such premises or portions thereof 
upon which is situated a public utility or other publicly owned, operated, or administered facility, 
any public, private or commercial vocational school, a cultural facility, including a museum, library 
or auditorium, or a religious or charitable facility.   
 
LAND DIVISION:  Creation of a new lot or parcel. 
 
LOT:  A parcel of land separated from other parcels of land by description on a recorded plat or by 
metes-and-bounds description which meets the requirements of this Ordinance, a condominium unit 
in a site condominium which meets the requirements of this Ordinance, a common area or element 
in a condominium project, a condominium unit. 
 

CORNER LOT:  Any lot having at least two (2) contiguous sides abutting upon one or 
more streets, provided that the interior angle at the intersection of such two sides is less than 
one hundred thirty-five (135) degrees.  A lot abutting a curved street(s) shall be a corner lot 
if the arc has a radius less than one hundred and fifty (150) feet.  Corner lots, for the 
purpose of setbacks, shall have two front lot lines and two side lot lines.  
 
INTERIOR LOT:  A lot which has only one lot line or portion thereof fronting on a street. 
 



LOT DEPTH:  The average horizontal distance between the front and rear lot lines, 
measured along the average midpoint between side lot lines.   

 
 LOT FRONTAGE:  The length of the front lot line. 
 

LOT OF RECORD:  A tract of land which is part of a subdivision shown on a plat or map 
which has been recorded in the Office of the Register of Deeds for Grand Traverse County, 
Michigan; or a tract of land described by metes-and-bounds which is the subject of a deed or 
land contract which is likewise recorded in the Office of the Register of Deeds. 
 
LOT WIDTH:  The average horizontal distance between the side lot lines measured 
perpendicular to the average depth, especially on irregularly shaped lots. 
 
NONCONFORMING LOT:  A lot of record which does not meet the requirements of this 
Ordinance. 
 
THROUGH LOT (also called a double frontage lot):  An interior lot having frontage on 
two (2) more or less parallel streets. 

 
LOT LINES:  The property lines bounding a lot or parcel. 
 
 FRONT LOT LINE:  The line separating a lot from any street right-of-way, private road 

or other access easement.  In the case of a waterfront lot, the line which fronts on a 
navigable waterway shall be a front lot line.  Corner lots, for the purpose of setbacks, 
shall have two front lot lines and two side lot lines.  
 
REAR LOT LINE:  The line opposite and most distant from the front lot line.  In the case 
of a triangular or otherwise irregularly shaped lot or parcel, an imaginary line ten (10) feet in 
length entirely within the lot or parcel, parallel to and at a maximum distance from the front 
line.   
 

 SIDE LOT LINE:  Any lot line other than a front or rear lot line. 
 

ZERO LOT LINE:  The location of a building on a lot in such a manner that one or more 
of the building's sides rest directly on or adjacent to a lot line. 

 
MANAGED VEGETATIVE STRIP:  A natural vegetative area extending along both sides of  
rivers, streams or watercourses, containing native trees, shrubs and other vegetation and natural 
materials.  The purpose of the managed vegetative strip is to stabilize the river banks, prevent 
erosion, absorb nutrients in water runoff from adjacent lands, provide shading for the stream to 
maintain cool water temperatures, and screening of adjacent man-made structures. 
 
MANUFACTURED HOME:  A dwelling unit constructed primarily within a factory in 
modules or components, which are then transported to a site where they are assembled on a 
permanent foundation to form a dwelling, and meet all codes and regulations applicable to 
conventional home construction.  



 
MASTER DEED:  The document recorded as part of a site condominium subdivision to which are 
attached as exhibits, and incorporated by reference, the approved bylaws for the site condominium 
subdivision and the site condominium subdivision plan. 
 
MOBILE HOME:  A structure, with a title issued by the State of Michigan, that is approved by 
the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD), and can be moved in one (1) 
or more sections, which is built on a chassis and designed as a dwelling with or without 
permanent foundation, when connected to the required utilities, and includes the plumbing, 
heating, and electrical systems.  "Mobile home" does not include a recreational vehicle or 
recreational trailer but shall include HUD housing. 
 
MOBILE HOME CONDOMINIUM PROJECT:  A condominium project in which mobile 
homes are located upon separate sites which constitute individual condominium units. 
 
MOBILE HOME PARK, TRAILER COACH PARK, OR PARK:  Any parcel or tract of 
land under the control of any person, upon which three (3) or more occupied trailer coaches are 
harbored on a continual basis, or which is offered to the public for that purpose, regardless of 
whether a charge is made therefor, together with any building, structure, enclosure, street, 
equipment or facility used or intended for use incident to the harboring or occupancy of trailer 
coaches; except as provided by Section 91, Public Act 172 of 1970. 
 
MOBILE HOME SUBDIVISION:  A subdivision approved under the Land Division Act 
(Public Act 288 of 1967), as amended, which by deed restriction has been designated solely for 
occupancy by mobile homes, HUD, or similar housing. 
 
MODULAR HOUSING UNIT:  See Manufactured Home. 
 
NATURAL FEATURES:  Natural features shall include soils, wetlands, floodplain, water 
bodies, sand dunes, topography, vegetative cover and geologic formations.  
 
NONCONFORMING USE:  A use which lawfully occupied a structure or site prior to the 
effective date of this Ordinance or any amendment thereto, and which does not conform with the 
current use regulations of the district in which it is located. 
 
NONCONFORMING STRUCTURE:  A structure lawfully existing prior to the effective date 
of this Ordinance or any amendment thereto which does not meet the current zoning ordinance 
standards for building size or location on a lot for its use and district.  
 
NUISANCE:  An offensive, annoying, unpleasant, or obnoxious thing or practice, especially 
when constant or repetitive.  A condition which is perceivable and extends its effect upon 
neighbors across property lines by the generation of excessive noise, odors, trash, abnormal 
traffic, congregation of people (particularly at night), or other similar conditions. 
 



ORDINARY HIGH WATER MARK:  The point on the bank or shore up to which the presence 
and action of the water is so continuous as to leave a distinct mark either by erosion, destruction of 
terrestrial vegetation, or other easily recognized characteristic.  
 
OUTDOOR DISPLAY AREA:  A designated outdoor area used for the display of merchandise 
visible to the public. 
 
OUTDOOR INVENTORY AREA:  A designated outdoor area designed to allow for storage of 
excess inventory in a manner not visible to the public. 
 
PARCEL:  A lot described by metes and bounds or described in a recorded plat. 
 
PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT (PUD):  A piece of property developed as a separate 
neighborhood or community unit.  This form of development is based on an approved site plan 
and allows flexibility of design not available under normal zoning district requirements.  The 
plan may contain a mixture of housing types, open spaces, and other various land uses. 
 
PLAT:  A map of a subdivision of land. 
 
PLOT PLAN:  The documents and drawings normally consisting of a drawing of the subject lot or 
parcel of land together with an outline drawing of the proposed structure(s) or modification(s), 
including all porches, extensions and roof overhangs, showing the principal dimensions of the 
structure(s) and all setback distances measured perpendicular to all lot lines.  The documents and 
drawings shall bear the name, address and telephone number of the landowner and applicant, and 
the date of the application. 
 
PREMISES:  A unit of contiguous real property under common ownership.   
 
PRIMARY or PRINCIPAL BUILDING:  A building which houses the main or principal use 
of the lot on which it is located.  All other buildings are accessory structures. 
 
PRIMARY OR PRINCIPAL USE:  The main use to which the lot or premises are devoted.  
For example, the main use of a single-family home is residential, and the main use of a retail 
store is commercial.  
 
RECREATIONAL PREMISES:  A premises used or occupied for recreational purposes, 
including parks, play areas, indoor or outdoor swimming pools, bathing beaches, boating and 
fishing areas, winter recreational areas, nature study areas, community halls and fairgrounds.   
 
RECREATIONAL UNIT:  A vehicular structure, primarily designed as temporary living quarters 
for recreational camping or travel use, which either has its own motive power or is mounted on or 
drawn by another vehicle which is self-powered.  Recreational units shall include travel trailers, 
camping trailers, motor homes, truck campers, slide-in campers and chassis-mounted dwellings. 
 
SIGN:  Any words, lettering, figures, numerals, phrases, sentences, emblems, devices, designs, 
trademarks, or combination thereof, by which anything is made known, such as the designation 



of an event, a firm, a profession, a business or product, which are visible from any street or road 
and used as an outdoor display.  
 
SIGN STRUCTURE:  A permanent physical structure on a fixed footing, foundation, column or 
base designed or used for the support and/or illumination of a sign.   
                              
SITE CONDOMINIUM SUBDIVISION:  A division of land on the basis of condominium 
ownership, which is not subject to the provisions of the Subdivision Control Act, Public Act 288 of 
1967, as amended, but is subject to the requirements of the Condominium Act, Public Act 59 of 
1978, as amended.  
 
SITE CONDOMINIUM SUBDIVISION PLAN:  The drawings attached to the master deed for a 
site condominium subdivision which describes the size, location, area, horizontal and vertical 
boundaries and volume of each condominium unit contained in the site condominium subdivision, 
as well as the nature, location and size of common elements. 
 
SITE PLAN:  A plan drawn to scale showing proposed uses and structures for a parcel 
of land, including any details necessary to illustrate the final proposed use.  A site plan may 
include elements such as the location of lot lines, the location of buildings, open spaces, parking, 
landscaping, and utility lines.  
 
SPECIAL USES:  Special uses are those uses which are not essentially incompatible with the 
uses permitted in a zoning district but require individual review and standards to avoid conflict 
with adjacent uses of land.   
 
SPECIAL USE PERMIT:  A permit issued by the Planning Commission following a public 
hearing which allows a specific activity in and on a property with additional specified 
requirements or provisions. 
 
STRUCTURE:  A structure is any production or piece of material artificially built up or 
composed of parts joined together in some definite manner; any construction, including 
dwellings, garages, building, mobile homes, signs and sign boards, tower, poles, antennae, stand 
pipes or other like objects, but not including fences. 
 
VARIANCE:  A variance is a modification of the literal provisions of the Zoning Ordinance 
granted by the Zoning Board of Appeals under qualifying circumstances.   
 
VEHICLE:  A device or structure for transporting persons or things; a conveyance. 
 
YARD:  The space surrounding a structure. 
 

FRONT YARD:  The space extending across the full width of the lot between the front of 
the principal building and the front lot line.  

 
 REAR YARD:  The space extending across the full width of the lot between the back of the 
 principal building and the rear lot line.  



 
 SIDE YARD:  The space between a principal building and side lot line, extending from the 
  front yard to the rear yard.  
 
ZONING ADMINISTRATOR (ZA):  The officer and/or his duly appointed deputies, agents, 
employees and inspectors charged with the administration and enforcement of this Ordinance.  



4.00 

10 

ARTICLE IV 
ACCESSORY AND NONCONFORMING USES 

AND BillLDINGS 

4.10 ACCESSORY BillLDINGS AND USES. 
Nothing contained herein shall be deemed to prevent the erection or maintenance of accessory 
buildings and uses excepting limitations pertaining to nonconforming uses. 

;</'>~. 
"'.;y/•if;-!'.'i.}:,., ~:~he ~~:J~~ ~!!~:~a~~~se of any builclif{~,f:cture, land or premises existing 

prior to the effective date of this Ordinance, although t4~)i~~ do~S•J?.Ot conform to the provisions of 
, ,.. . . .,,.,,,_ 

this Ordinance, may be continued; and such use o:f,@X Building nt~X~be extended throughout said 
building, provided no structural changes be msid¢?ffierein excepf'llios~ required for safety and 
sanitation. }JJtt1l'.t/· ' { 

~ne~~~!n~:nf~~g use ofany structur~tJ' · <f~;i.ghanged in w g):>or in part to a 
conforming use, such use shall nofathereafter be r~v .. to any nonconf onrting use. If the 
nonconforming use of any building, §fruchltt:/,or land i ... IS£Ontinued through vacancy, lack of 
operation or otherwise for a continuous'p~[iodi8t,twelve (1'2)':\Qnths, then any future use of said 
building, structure or land ~hall confornf;\in its eµtµe,ty, to', t~€>provisions of this Ordinance; 
provided, however, that.tp.~Jl:§i:ll;d of Appeals,may, 11p&rrpp12licat104';within six (6) months of the 

,_ - -c - _, _,-- __ -,--· ·-" , '·~=-r- ,-,,', ':-.. . _: -_.- ,,. . -_,, ~-c- -_ : - _, - ; ,c ,,. .. -: :::. ';, .'.:!'~\ .. 

termination of said pe,riod}permitJit~ resumpti~mofsuch noricoJ,iforming use. 
,,_;,):/ i<,, '\{1\'f ~1 -,:::f-;~il\-}-;J-- --L =~-_::x '~+t\~i~? 

4.13 RECONSTRUCTION OF D~GEff:NONCONFORMING STRUCTURE. 
Nothing in this.Qrdinance~liaj) p~,ey~.q.t)g~ reconstfu~tion, repair or restoration and the continued 
use of an.x ngiicon.foPlling bullc1jngJ6i'stni~tii!e.~arria~~# by fire, collapse, explosion, acts of God or 
acts ot 1B,~fpubllc:' e11jwy, stib*eqµent t~l\1{¥,f;?effect1ve date of this Ordinance, wherein the 
nonco~q~ng user has fII}t,~btaili~\~l~e approval'bf the Board of Appeals, wherein the Board of 
Appeals h~~J::fkst determined,1t,~t the 'CQ~!~ued use will be substantially the same as the previous 
nonconforming~:!JSe and that sii¢h continti~J!, use will not be detrimental to the health, safety and 
welfare of soodtigcliµg property1~~ers. v,v 

,.,, ),-'.··:_,\. it:\~li\ 
4.14 REPAIRAN1)1\LTERA'1710N OF NONCONFORMING STRUCTURES. 
Nothing in this Ordinahce. ,sli~Ii'.J'prevent the repair, alteration, reinforcement improvement or 
rehabilitation of a nonconrorrr1i:ng building or structure or part thereof existing on the effective date 
of this Ordinance that may be necessary to secure or insure the continued advantageous use of the 
building or structure during its normal life: provided, however, that such repair, alteration, 
reinforcement, improvement or rehabilitation proposes no change in the use of said building or 
structure or any part thereof. 

4.15 EXTENSION OF NONCONFORMING USE OR STRUCTURE. 
The extension of any nonconforming use or addition to any nonconforming structure for the 
purpose of extending such nonconforming use or structure throughout all or a portion of a given lot 
or parcel of land may be granted by the Zoning Board of Appeals if it shall first be determined that 
such extension shall not be inimical to public health, safety or welfare, particularly with regard to 
surrounding property owners. 

(WHITEWATER TOWNSHIP ZONING ORDINANCE) 



5.00 

ARTICLE V DISTRICTS 

For the purposes of this Ordinance, the township of Whitewater is hereby divided into 
seven (7) districts, viz: 

5.10 RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT R-1. 
This district shall comprise that portion of the Township described as follows: 

1. All that part of Sections 3, 4, 9, 10, 13, 14, 15, lfj, 71.,;:~3, 26 and 27, Town 28 
North, Range 9 West, lying within 1000 feet qf;J;~Lake. 

2. All that part of Section 23, Town 28 Northt,g@g~':'~'West, lying northerly of the 
East and West quarter line of said Secti9!h ,A".t · · 

3. All that part of Section 13, 24 and 25 .. J'~Wti 28 North, Raiigy 9 West, lying within 
1000 feet of Lake Skegemog (Roug4:thfaKe ). ·i,:;Gtt,, 

4. All that part of Section 24, Town 28]'1{Rrth, Range 9, West lytng'northerly of the 
East and West quarter line of said Section\ . (:\ '•\ 

5. All that part of Sections 5.~, 9 and 17, To~,3,§l[Jrlh, Range 9 w~;t~lying 
within 1000 feet of PetobijgcfLake. · ''1t~/· · · 

6. All that part of Sections 11/20,28; 4J and 33}1::d\\'Il 28 North, Range 9 West, 
lying within 300 feet of Peto~'e90 Cree;~.,, •••J:n,t,,, 

7. All that part of~~ftions 27, 3\Jind 3('To~28 Noff''J, ange 9 West, lying 
within 300 feite>fWilliamsburg"<:i;eek. yT ;:. , 

_,-· -- " c_s-·:r 'c/_?>-. ---- ·~: ~~ .-,_~, _:_-,~-:-, , -, 

8. All that p~rfofSectiout:26 and 35~,J()"Y!1J8 Norlij/R~ge 9 West, lying within 
300 feet ofl3:ot1:le Creek'.t\ . ·:, . .. 1 

9. All that part of~ectionsif;rown 27 North, Range 9 West, lying within 300 feet 
of Bottle Creek/V · 

lOfAU'tli~t~p~ of s~"ctip~l(' T~~'2ft:11qrtli;:R.ange 9 West lying within 300 feet of 
" '•· ~Williamsburg Creek:' ; . ";, " 'C'.' 
Tl{All that part of~~ction 4J'o"\ll{Il 27 North, Range 9 West, lying within 300 feet of 

.· tije,1mnamed creek:f:}owing tnrpugh said Section 4. 
12. Alrihatpart of Secti~p.,4, ToW!i27 North, Range 9 West, lying within 300 feet of 

Bissell)Ji~ek and Bi#~ll Pond. 
13. All thatJi}ll;tpf Sectiq~jl and 12, Town 27 North, Range 9 West, lying within 

1000 feet of Truax LARt. 
14. All that part ()fSectid~s 31 and 32, Town 27 North, Range 9 West, lying within 

the Plats of Nickerson Subdivision #1, Nickerson Subdivision #2, Island Lake 
Subdivision, Sherwood Shores Subdivision in said sections 31 and 32 including 
the 8 properties having the following property numbers: 28-13-032-007-00, 28-
13-032-008-00, 28-13-031-006-10, 28-13-031-006-02, 28-13-006-01, 28-13-031-
006-03, 28-13-031-006-04, 28-13-031-006-00. 

15 .. The North one-half of the Southeast one-quarter of Section 34, Town 28 North, 
Range 9 West and that part of the South half of the Southeast quarter, Section 34, 
town 28 North, Range 9 West, lying North of railroad right-of-way. 



5.11 RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT R-2. 
This district shall comprise that portion of the Township described as follows: 

1. The Southeast quarter of the Northwest quarter of Section 4, Town 27 North, 
Range 9 West, except that portion described in the Residential Rl District. 

2. The East half of the Southwest quarter of Section 4, Town 27 North, Range 9 
West, except that portion described in Residential District R-1. 

3. The East half of Section 4, Town 27 North, Range 9 West, except that portion 
described in the Residential Rl District, and except that portion lying northerly 
of a line which is 575 feet southerly of and parallel to the centerline of State 
Highway M-72. 

5.12 COMMERCIAL C-1 and VILLAGE V DIST 

A. 
+tttt"--::•:' ';:}, 

The Commercial C- 1 district shall comptj~e:;tha porti9fr9,f the Township described 
as follows: ,I{ JJ'f · · ' 

t,:·:,_ 

1. The Northwest quarter of SectiO. d the Northeast qu ··· er.pf section 4, Town 
27 North, Range 9 West, lyin " :.~n 575f~et of the'c~terline of State 
Highway M 72 betwee~ Vinton Rolttm11cg9"¢9t Broomhead 0R,~),~ except that 
portion described in t]j,;: _sidential Distnqt ·-x;; :/ ' 1lI;,} 

' _· _;-:'~•._ ,,,,-

tr r~;~I~~\f~ -__ -:,, ____ ;_ 
2. The Southwest quarter b i:hSnll.tlleast qu •·.·· .. "of Section 32, Town 28 North, 

Range 9 West, except th~J[9rilit11ij{l:qf the Noftii>talf of the Southwest quarter 
"".-~·'":"' i>j_;,,s--:-·-_:· ,-".-~"''""·'t}. 

of the Sou,tl],~w,stquarter ofSe tion 32l 28 Nt(:rth, Range 9 West (North of 
~', ?:':•.·~',_((· -'",,·: - ,_ -=-=--'~-- ' - . . if,<:::-:'.:) 

the Railroaclrightofway). \ . AijJ/ 

3. The ~~~,half ~ifll)-..rorthea~l{~t r of Sect1§t 5, Town 27 North, Range 9 
West. ·• ;;jr.1 ti\. 

'"-~?:')'{;~::::•< -•-----;• _ ' --_ :.:-:--. :{t.\/_-".' -__ ·:t.~.:~:~:> _ _ v~\\:::,_~~-
B. f'W~'.i'.Yillage,,V distiicffshall ··cqpiprise ili~tiportion of the Township described as 

+·1<!1;{ffollowst··•·::r,1:,,. ··.•··. ·it,, .,,;,;~:";i~ . .,y 
",. , :t(D;',. . ,,),)1,0, .. 

, J:,,,The South ½'6f;~e Soutfiw~st ¼ of Section 33 Town 28 North, Range 9 West. 
·=\t;l{>-,.. --.:::- ~ ~- ·:f.::.·-.:;_-c,,_,,-_ 

2. :Th~}forth ½ of\.· ... ·· North ½ of the North ½ of the Northwest ¼ of Section 4, 
Towrr,2,7 North, tai\ge 9 West (Parcel ofland North ofM-72, West of Elk Lake 
Road;0$;~:µth of QlaM-72 and East of Moore road) 

·-u~: \':----=>- ,;•~fYJ!~}lf? 
5.13 INDUSTRIALDlSTRICT N. 
This District Shall compri§t that portion of the Township described as follows: 

1. The North 1/2 of the Northwest quarter of Section 4, Town 27 North, Range 9 
West except that portion already described in the Commercial C-1 and Village V 
district. 

2. That part of the NW¼ of Sec 4, T27N, R9W, more fully described as: 
Commencing at the W ¼ comer of said Sec 4; Thence N 0°10'33" E, along 
the W Sec line, 750' to the POB; then N 0°10'33" E, along said Sec line, 
571.50'; thence N 89°55'28" E, along the N 1/8 line, 990'; thence S 0°10'33" 
W, 578.45'; thence N 89°40'22" W, 990'; to the POB. 



3. The North 1/2 of the Northwest quarter of Section 4, Town 27 North, Range 9 
West except that portion already described in the Commercial C-1 and Village V 
district. EXCEPT PART OF NW 1/4 COM N 1/4 COR TH S 784.14FT TO 
POB TH S 544.67 FT TH S 89 DEG 55'W 373 FT TH S 195 FT TH S 89 
DEG 55' W 194.63 FT TH N 923.31 FT TO SLY R/W HWY M-72 TH ELY 
ALG R/W & ARC OF CURVE TO LEFT 382.7 FT RAD EQUALS 43046.83 
FT LONG CHORD BEARS S 84 DEG 2' E 382.69 FT TH S 52 DEG 21' E 
234.37 FT TO POB. 

4. Whitewater Inn ';'f;'/ 
Part of the Southeast¼ of Section 32,:-I~o}Yllship 28 North, Range 9 West, 
Whitewater Township, Grand Tn1y~fsi~CC>1J11ty, Michigan, more fully 
described as: Commencing at the,,.easf¼ corhet,,pf the said Section of 32, 
thence S02°01'18"E, 1738.34Jeft}'along the Eist.line of Said Section 32 
to the Southerly line of theG§tO Railroad andth'e:\):loint of Beginning; 
thence continuing along saI~.East line S02°0l' 18", 87~~~3 feet (recorded 
as S02°01'18" East 875.66 feet)':tq the Nprth right of Ja~ijne of Old M-
72; thence S89°4Ji,l,8"W, 332.14 f~et{ri1/bfded as S89°4'3:.3Q"W,333.45 
feet) along said NQrtlt:right of way~{~ll~tice northwesterly ai'ong a 30.00 
foot radius curve tQ;theright a distanc'eJ',qf 47.01 feet (recorded as 47.39 
feet); thence N00°02'?,Q"E'3o'J?1..Jeet (recior9-~.d as N00°13'30" E, 30.64) 
thenc~:N;@-therly along1~242.0d'id~,t,r,adius7GmY,e to the right, a distance 
of §JS~i}fe~('(i:.~corded aif:? 1. 9,8}'fe~t);;\~~11ce 0N69° 42' 12"W, 66 .23 feet; 
thii{'g~Southerfybilong a 3Q&\Q(}{o6t radiu(curve tot the left, a distance of 
86:§ij'lfeet; then8e:·s00°02'20'tW: 29.61 feet;'thence Southwesterly along a 
30.0d'f8qt.radiusfcurve to theright, a distance of 46.96 feet to said north 

"~T'riglit of 0W~yJ1JJgOf;:QI~;l\:1-72;Jhence S89°43'18"W, 206.54 feet along 
.. ,,s~fcftl''fftrth riglitof wayli~~;~fu.in:Se N00°11'31"W, 238.62 feet; thence 

S69642}~16W,T90.4;9 feet; th~rtd'e Sl4°19'22"W, 349.86 feet (recorded as 
Sl4°18''3Q?''\i,V, 350,fe~t) to the south line of said section 32; thence 

. S89°43'18j~)1/5:,403.23f~et (recorded as S89°43'30"W, 403.12 feet) thence 
· N0l 0 23' 12"W{ItJ002.84 feet (recorded as N0l 0 21 '46"W, 1003.21 feet) to 
s~id,.southerl/;'ijne of the C & 0 Railroad; thence N89°14'22"E, 753.04 
feet7(rec::ordea'.a5s N89°15'22"E, 753.48 feet) along said Southerly line of 
the C~ORailroad; thence Southeasterly along said Southerly line and a 
1610.5l'fo6t radius curve to the right, a distance of 585.54 feet (recoded 
as 585.00 feet) and a long chord of S80°20'42"E, 582.32 feet to the Point 
of Beginning 

5.18 Corridor Overlay Planned Unit Development COPUD. 

1. PT W ½,NW¼, NW¼, LYING N OF NEW M-72, SEC 3 T27N R9W EXC 
COM AT SW CNR SD PARCEL, E ALG M-72 100', N 200', E 50', N 300' 
MIL TO RR R/W, W ALG SD RR R/W 150' MIL TOW SEC LINE OF SEC 
3; S ALG SEC LN 500' MIL TO POB EXC RD R/W & EXC RR R/W. 



2. W ¼ W ½ of NW ¼ of NW¼ S of New M-72 SEC 3 T27N R9W 

3. PT SE 1/4 SED 4 T27N R9W COM NE SEC CNR; S 684.76' TON M 72 
R/W; N84 DEG W ALG R/W 220.37' TO POB; N 84 DEG W 215'; N 325'; 
215.67' N 83 DEG E ALG RR R/W; S 363.95' TO POB EXC RD R/W. 

4. PART OF NW 1/4 COM N 1/4 COR TH S 784.14FT TO POB TH S 544.67 
FT TH S 89 DEG 55'W 373 FT TH S 195 FT TH S 89 DEG 55' W 194.63 FT 
TH N 923 .31 FT TO SLY R/W HWY M-72 TH ELY ALG R/W & ARC OF 
CURVE TO LEFT 382.7 FT RAD EQUALS 4J046.83 FT LONG CHORD 
BEARS S 84 DEG 2' E 382.69 FT TH S 52 DEG-i1' E 234.37 FT TO POB. 

~~, 



6.00  

ARTICLE VI 

RESIDENTIAL R-1 

(Revised in its entirety; Effective 06/28/2019) 

6.01 INTENT. 

It is the intent of the Residential District R1 to provide a dedicated space for residential 
structures, specifically Single-Family Dwellings, and the structures and uses typically associated 
with a residential area. 

6.10 PERMITTED USES.  

The following uses are permitted by Right in the Residential District R-1:  

A. Single family dwellings.  

B. Publicly owned and operated parks and recreational facilities.  

C. The keeping of animals for home use and enjoyment subject to all applicable 
requirements of Article 37, Supplementary Provisions.  

D. Adult foster care facilities serving 6 or less individuals. 

E. Family day-care homes serving 6 or less individuals.  

F. Churches under 5,000 square feet in area.  

G. Home occupations subject to the requirements of Article 37, Supplementary 
Provisions.  

H. Accessory buildings and uses customarily incidental to the same.  

6.11 USES PERMITTED BY SPECIAL USE PERMIT.  

The following uses are permitted upon securing a Special Use Permit in accordance with the 
procedures of Article 25:  

A. Bed and Breakfast Establishments. 

B. Schools.  

C. The keeping, breeding or training of dogs for monetary gain or for profit, subject to all 
applicable requirements of Article 37, Supplementary provisions.  

D. Adult foster care facilities serving more than 6 individuals. 

E. Family day-care homes serving more than 6 individuals. 

F. Group day-care homes serving more than 6 individuals.   



G. Churches 5,000 square feet or greater in area. 

H. Planned Unit Developments.  

6.12 BUILDING SIZES, LOT SIZES AND YARD REQUIREMENTS. 

All structures, lots and setbacks shall comply with the regulations established in Article 12 of 
this Ordinance.  

6.13 SUPPLEMENTARY STANDARDS. 
 

A. Churches and related buildings or structures customarily incidental thereto shall meet the 
following standards: 

  
1. Churches within under 5,000 square feet shall be allowed as a permitted 

use with site plan review.  
 

2. Any churches over 5,000 square feet shall require a special use permit per 
Article 25. 

 
3. Any playground equipment or accessory structures requiring a building 

permit shall meet the setback requirements for the district.  
 



7.00  

ARTICLE VII 

(Revised in its entirety; Effective 01/04/2020) 

MULTIPLE RESIDENTIAL R-2 & R-3 

RESIDENTIAL R-2 

7.01 INTENT. 

It is the intent of the Residential District R2 to provide a dedicated space for residential 
structures, specifically, single and two-family dwellings, and accessory structures incidental 
thereto. 

7.10 PERMITTED USES. 

The following uses are permitted by right in the R-2 District: 

A. All uses permitted by right in the Residential District R-1. 

B. Two family dwellings. 

C. Schools. 

D. Farming of all types, subject to the requirements of Article 37, Supplementary 
Provisions. 

E. Libraries. 

7.11 USES PERMITTED BY SPECIAL USE PERMIT. 

The following uses are permitted upon securing a Special Use Permit in accordance with the 
procedures of Article 25: 

A. All special uses permitted and as regulated in the Residential District R-1. 

B. Planned Unit Developments.  

C. Residential Care Facilities, Convalescent or Nursing Homes.  

7.12 BUILDING SIZES, LOT SIZES AND YARD REQUIREMENTS. 

All structures, lots and setbacks shall comply with the regulations established in Article 12 of 
this Ordinance. 

7.13 SUPPLEMENTARY STANDARDS – Reserved for Future Use. 

 

 

 



7.50 RESIDENTIAL R-3. 

7.51 INTENT. 

It is the intent of the Residential District R3 to provide a dedicated space for residential 
structures, specifically multi-family dwellings, townhouse, apartments, and other compatible 
uses. 

7.60 PERMITTED USES. 

The following uses are permitted by right in the R-3 District: 

A. All uses permitted by right in Residential District R-2. 

7.61 SPECIAL USES. 

The following uses are permitted upon securing a Special Use Permit in accordance with the 
procedures of Article 25: 

A. All special uses permitted and as regulated in the Residential District R-2. 

B. Multi-family dwelling such as townhouses and apartments. 

7.62 BUILDING SIZES, LOT SIZES AND YARD REQUIREMENTS. 

All structures, lots and setbacks shall comply with the regulations established in Article 12 of 
this Ordinance. 

7.63 SUPPLEMENTARY STANDARDS – Reserved for Future Use.  

 



ARTICLE VIII 
COMMERCIAL C and VILLAGE V 

(Effective September 15, 2017) 

8.00 COMMERCIAL DISTRICT C 

8.01 INTENT 
The purpose of the Commercial C District is to provide a location for a diversity of small and 
moderate scale business types and is situated along a regional arterial roadway, M-72, to serve 
local passers-by traffic and local needs. 

8.02 GENERAL STANDARDS 
The following standards will apply to all structures and uses within the Commercial C District as 
appropriate. 

A. All uses permitted within this zoning district shall conform to the entirety of this ordinance 
except those land uses which predate the effective date of this ordinance or any portion 
thereof, or its subsequent amendments. 

B. All applications for new or expanding uses will be reviewed by the Zoning Administrator for 
compliance with the required components of this Ordinance. Formal Site Plan Review may 
be conducted by the Planning Commission at the request of the Zoning Administrator or 
applicant. All reviews shall be conducted in accordance with Article 25. 

C. All applications for Special Uses shall be reviewed by the Zoning Administrator and 
Planning Commission for compliance with all relevant ordinances prior to the public hearing. 
All reviews shall be conducted in accordance with Article 25. 

D. LANDSCAPING: All new or expanding uses shall comply with the landscaping 
requirements of Article 3 3. 

E. LIGHTING: All new or expanding uses shall comply with the lighting requirements of 
Article 29. 

F. SIGNS: All new signs shall conform to the standards of Article 30. 
G. OFF-STREET PARKING AND LOADING: All new or expanding uses shall comply with 

the requirements of Article 34. 
H. USES which include the following shall require a special use permit: any use in a building that 

exceeds 10,000 square feet, any use that includes drive-through services, any use offering live 
entertainment or alcoholic beverages. 

8.10 PERMITTED USES 
Permitted uses include the following: 

A. All uses permitted in Residential District Rl, R2. 
B. Restaurants, bakeries, coffee shops, and diners. 
C. Office buildings and uses such as: accountants, legal services, medical, dental, and physical 

therapy offices. 
D. Financial institutions. 



E. Retail stores and shops; food, drug, variety, dry goods, clothing, music, hardware, equipment, 
and other similar light retail uses. 

F. Equipment, tool, and event rental establishments. 
G. Personal service establishments which perform services on the premises such as: barber and 

beauty shops, shoe repairs, business services, printing, publishing, and related trades. 
H. Places of public assembly, religious, civic, and social facilities not operated for profit and 

facilities customarily incidental thereto. 
I. Licensed daycare facilities. 
J. Assisted living, extended care, and licensed group homes facilities. 
K. Essential service, including public utility buildings with outside storage. 

8.11 USES PERMITTED BY SPECIAL USE PERMIT 
The following additional uses may be permitted subject to review and approval of the Planning 
Commission in accordance with procedures of Article 25. Any use including the following shall 
require a Special Use Permit: 

A. Any permitted use located in a building that exceeds 10,000 square feet, includes drive-through 
services, offers live entertainment or serves alcoholic beverages. 

B. Retail sales and/or rental of automobiles, watercraft, farming equipment, or recreational 
equipment including servicing, repair, and/or storing vehicles. 

C. Fuel and oil service stations. 
D. Hotels and motels. 
E. Dwelling units which are part of a commercial unit, such as second story "flats" or apartment 

units. 
F. Multi-family dwellings. 
G. Laundry and dry cleaning establishments. 
H. Indoor and outdoor recreational facilities (e.g. miniature golf or athletic clubs). 
I. Production, processing, assembly, manufacturing or packaging of goods or materials. Such 

facilities may include testing, repair, storage, distribution, and sale of such products. 
J. Schools licensed or chartered by the State of Michigan and private educational institutions. 
K. Funeral homes. 
L. Veterinary clinics, veterinary hospitals, and related kennel facilities. 
M. Carpentry, plumbing, contracting, and other skilled trades. 
N. Rental storage building, with the following conditions included in the rental contracts and 

posted on the premises: Excluding storage of flammable liquids or gases, explosives or toxic 
materials. 

0. Places of public assembly, event venues, and social facilities operated for profit. 
P. Sexually oriented businesses. 
Q. Billboards subject to the standards of Article 9.13. 
R. Any other use of a retail commercial nature designed primarily to serve the residents of the area 

and the traveling public. 

8.12 BUILDING SIZES, LOT SIZES AND YARD REQUIREMENTS: 
All structures, lots and structure setbacks from property lines shall comply with the regulations 
established in Article XII of this Ordinance. 



8.13 SUPPLEMENT ARY STANDARDS: Reserved for future use. 

8.50 VILLAGE DISTRICT V 

8.51 INTENT 
The purpose of the Village District is to maintain and enhance the traditional character of the 
village of Williamsburg, while allowing it to develop in a manner that follows the historic pattern 
of rural villages in the Grand Traverse Region. 

8.52 GENERAL STANDARDS 
The following standards apply to all properties in the Village District V: 

A. All uses permitted within this zoning district shall conform to the entirety of this ordinance 
except those land uses which predate the effective date of this ordinance or any portion 
thereof, or its subsequent amendments. 

B. All applications for new or expanding uses will be reviewed by the Zoning Administrator for 
compliance with the required components of this Ordinance. Formal Site Plan Review may 
be conducted by the Planning Commission at the request of the Zoning Administrator or 
applicant. All reviews shall be conducted in accordance with Article 25. 

C. All applications for Special Uses shall be reviewed by the Zoning Administrator and 
Planning Commission for compliance with all relevant ordinances prior to the public hearing. 
All reviews shall be conducted in accordance with Article 25. 

D. No lot or structure in existence on the effective date of Section 8.62 (October 5, 1998) shall 
be deemed to be a non-conforming lot or structure because of non-compliance with this 
Section or with any of the requirements in Section 12.11. 

E. LANDSCAPING: All new or expanding uses shall comply with the landscaping standards 
of Article 33. 

F. LIGHTING: All new or expanding uses shall comply with the lighting standards of Article 
29. 

G. SIGNS: All new signs shall conform to the standards of Article 30. 
H. OFF-STREET PARKING AND LOADING: All new or expanding uses shall comply with 

the standards of Article 34 and 8.63A. 
I. USES which include the following shall require a special use permit: any use in a building 

which exceeds 5,000 square feet, any use which includes drive-through services, any use 
offering live entertainment or alcoholic beverages. 

8.60 PERMITTED USES 
Permitted uses shall include the following: 

A. All uses allowed in the Rl, R2, R3, and C Districts in buildings not exceeding 5,000 square feet. 
B. Apartments and offices located above commercial uses in mixed-use buildings. 



8.61 SPECIAL USE 
Uses allowed by Special Use Permit shall include the following: 

A. PERMITTED USES allowed in the Rl, R2, R3, and C districts in buildings that exceed 5,000 
square feet. 

B. Light manufacturing. 
C. All SPECIAL USES allowed in the Rl, R2, R3, and C districts. 

8.62 BUILDING SIZES, LOT SIZES ANDY ARD REQUIREMENTS: 

A. All structures, lots and structure setbacks from property lines shall comply with the regulations 
established in Article XII of this Ordinance. 

B. Minimum lot dimensions shall be as follows: 
1. With common sewage disposal or water supply: minimum of 20,000 square feet lot 

area, 80 feet lot width. 
2. With common sewage disposal and water supply: minimum of8,000 square feet lot 

area, 50 feet lot width. 
3. Without common water supply or sewage disposal: 40,000 square feet lot area, 100 feet 

lot width. 
4. Minimum width to maximum depth ratio shall be 1:4. 

C. Minimum setbacks shall be as follows, except that they may be modified by the Planning 
Commission by site plan review. 

1. Side yard: 10 feet 
2. Rear yard: 15 feet 
3. Front Yard: There shall be no minimum front yard setbacks. New buildings shall be 

constructed so that their front facades are in one of the following locations: 
a. The same distance from the road as any adjacent principal building (on the same 

side of the road) within 100 feet, or 
b. The average distance from the road of both adjacent principal buildings (on the 

same side of the road) if within 100 feet, or 
c. If no principal buildings are within 100 feet on the same side of the road, the 

front setback shall be 15 or more feet from the front lot line or such other 
distance as the Planning Commission may approve by site plan review. 

8.63 SUPPLEMENTARY STANDARDS: 
The purpose of these design standards is to enable a variety of different uses to coexist 
harmoniously and allow compatible infill development while enhancing the historical fabric of 
the village. 

A. Parking and Loading 
1. The Planning Commission shall reduce the off-street parking and loading 

requirements of Article 34 if the applicant can demonstrate that full compliance is 
unnecessary because of characteristics of the proposed use, the availability of shared 
or public parking, or other circumstances. 

2. Rear parking lots shall be connected to adjoining parking lots and side streets or 
alleys. 



ARTICLE IX 
INDUSTRIAL N 

(Effective September 15, 2017) 

9.00 INDUSTRIAL DISTRICT N 

9.01 INTENT 
It is the intent of the Industrial District to provide a dedicated location to accommodate the potential 
noise, outdoor storage, and increased commercial traffic common to wholesale sales and light 
manufacturing facilities. 

9.02 GENERALSTANDARDS 
The following standards apply to all structures and uses within the Industrial District N as 
appropriate. 

A. All uses permitted within this zoning district shall conform to the entirety of this ordinance 
except those land uses which predate the effective date of this ordinance or any portion 
thereof, or its subsequent amendments. 

B. All applications for new or expanding uses will be reviewed by the Zoning Administrator for 
compliance with the required components of this Ordinance. Formal Site Plan Review may 
be conducted by the Planning Commission at the request of the Zoning Administrator or 
applicant. All reviews shall be conducted in accordance with Article 25. 

C. All applications for Special Uses shall be reviewed by the Zoning Administrator and 
Planning Commission for compliance with all relevant ordinances prior to the Public 
Hearing. All reviews shall be conducted in accordance with Article 25.00. 

D. LANDSCAPING: All new or expanding uses shall comply with the landscaping 
requirements of Article 3 3. 

E. LIGHTING: All new or expanding uses shall comply with the lighting requirements of 
Article 29. 

F. SIGNS: All new signs shall conform to the standards of Article 30. 
G. OFF-STREET PARKING AND LOADING: All new or expanding uses shall comply with 

the requirements of Article 34. 
H. USES which include the following shall require a special use permit: any use that includes 

drive-through services, any use offering live entertainment or alcoholic beverages. 
I. All uses may be required to be contained in an approved enclosure. 

9.10 PERMITTED USES 
Permitted uses include the following: 

A. All uses permitted and as regulated within the Commercial, Village, and Residential 
Districts. 

B. Wholesale warehouses. 
C. Storage warehouses. 
D. Outside storage of earth moving and similar large equipment. 
E. Billboards, subject to the standards of Section 9 .13. 



9.11 USES PERMITTED BY SPECIAL USE PERMIT 
The following additional uses may be permitted subject to review and approval of the Planning 
Commission in accordance with procedures of Article 25. 

A. Industry or business, the operation of which uses any product or by-product or other thing which 
may cause contamination to the water, air, or land of the area unless adequate provision is made 
for the disposition of such product, by-product or waste which meets the approval of the 
Planning Commission and shall not be offensive, objectionable, or in any way endanger public 
health, safety or welfare. 

B. Junk, scrap metal, or salvage yards. 
C. Stock yards, slaughterhouses, rendering plants, meat or pelt processing establishments. 
D. Establishments primarily engaged in heavy industry such as smelters, foundries, heavy 

industrial stamping operations. 
E. Any similar business or operation offensive or objectionable to public health, safety, or welfare. 
F. All special uses permitted within the Commercial, Village, and Residential Districts. 

9.12 BUILDING SIZES, LOT SIZES, AND YARD REQUIREMENTS 
All structures, lots and structure setbacks from property lines shall comply with the regulations 
established in Article XII of this Ordinance. 

9.13 SUPPLEMENTARY STANDARDS 

A. Billboards subject to the following regulations: 
1. Size: The size of a single sign panel shall not exceed 12 feet in height and 24 feet in 

width. Billboards may be double-faced, configured back-to-back, or V-shaped. 
Additional panels, faces or extensions of any size or shape located above, below or 
beside the permitted faces and panels shall not be permitted. Sign structures and the 
signs affixed to them shall not exceed twenty (20) feet in height. The height of the sign 
including decorative embellishments shall be measured from the surface grade beneath 
the sign. 

2. Location: Billboards shall not be located closer than 600 feet from any existing 
billboard. Measurement shall be made along a straight line from the nearest existing 
billboard to the proposed new billboard location. This line of measurement may cross 
road rights-of-way. 
Billboards and off-premise signs and their sign structures shall be located not closer than 
one hundred (100) feet from any road right-of-way and not closer than two hundred 
(200) feet from any road rights-of-way which intersect or abut. 

3. Lighting: Billboards may be illuminated except during the hours between 11 :00 p.m. 
and 7 :00 a.m. Eastern Standard Time. Illumination of billboards shall be from the top 
and directed downward. Fixtures shall have full cut-off shielding such that no light shall 
go above the horizontal regardless of type or wattage and also such that no light source 
shall be visible from any road right-of-way or any adjacent property. 



10.00 

28 

ARTICLEX 
AGRICULTURAL A-1 

10.10 USES PERMITTED. 

No building or structure or any part thereof shall be erected, altered or used, or land or premises 
used, in whole or in part for other than one or more of the following specified uses, viz: 

A. All uses permitted and as regulated in Residential Di 
or main building shall be located on a lot or parce 
thousand (40,000) square feet of area unbroken 
and having a minimum width of two hundred (2 . 

C. Golf courses. 

D. Riding academies and stabl 
enclosure or sp 
hundred (10 
from any hi 

R- 2, except that each dwelling 
d containing not less than forty 
blic road, street or thoroughfare 

ce of migrant worker's 
~!, that no enclosure or 
ls;:shall be located less 

an one hundred 

d kennels, provided that no 
be located less than one 

ess than one hundred (100) feet 

gr processed fruits and vegetables, raw forest 
grown or produced on said property, 

3. 12) feet to any road right-of-way. 

lftl 
."?-. ,,.·,> . ! 

F. The Plannin ' ~o~ssfon may permit agricultural dumps when the same are in a land 
area of not less thru(tienty (20) acres and are located at least three hundred (300) from the 
nearest lot line and ?(least one hundred (100) feet from the nearest right-of-way line and 
provided that they are utilized only for junk or refuse of the owner and from farming 
activities and provided that the Planning Commission shall impose as one of the conditions 
of usage that no bulky items be deposited in said dump. 

G. Farm markets for the sale of locally grown fresh and/or processed farm produce, raw 
forest products, cut flowers, potted plants, and other agricultural products, provided the 
following conditions are met. 
1. Structure shall not exceed six hundred (600) square feet in area and shall be set back 

at least fifteen (15) feet from the road right-of-way. Or shall not exceed six hundred 
( 600) square feet of sales area in a larger structure that has additional space for 

(WHITEWATER TOWNSHIP ZONING ORDINANCE) 



10.11 

storage or similar farming operation use in that same structure and shall comply with 
setbacks of the Agricultural A-1 district. 

2. Shall be operated in conjunction with a farm operation. 
3. Shall be deemed to be an agricultural accessory use. 
4. A majority of the agricultural products offered for sale shall be grown on premises. 

Other agricultural products may be sold, but must be grown in Michigan. 
5. An area not to exceed twenty-five percent (25%) of the total square footage of the 

structure may be devoted to non-farm products. 
6. Adequate entrance, exit, and off-street parking shall ge provided. 
7. Sign Restrictions ·'1t} . 

a. One of the following shall be chosen for, rem1se signs: 
(1) One (1) sign, double-sided, notL ... eeding twenty-four (24) square 

feet in area, designating afarni'marl{etor farm, and two (2) double­
sided temporary sign~fn:ot to exceedtiyelve (12) square feet. 

(2) One (1) sign, doubl 9\'Id~d, not to exce~~r . y-two (32) square feet. 
b. Five (5) off-premise tempot igns directing traffi ard the farm market, 

each sign not exceeding twel "i '12) square'.'.~eet and no re than two signs 
visible on the same road by a gt '.L),~ arm.ru~ket. 

• _.,.,,_ ";)hf",.I 
c. All signs shall b~,s~tback at least ;feet from the pub ght-of-way. 

'~+/'.-,;-• -_\---- Y'fh f 

d. All temporary sigii.&.&H·' hbe remove .. '··. e end of the selling season (May 1 
to December 31 ). ~;,tf·~ ,. t;; : 1: •\ .. 

H. Private Family Campgrounds's(" 'ec <f;Article XXXVII, Section 37.50. -,\-~lii?~=~t:~/~-~ --,,:c_ -_ -

,.< 

usEs PERMtTtt'ED B ECIAL u§E.PB .; rrs::•, 
A. Planned UrlitJ)evelopriil~t ',i;•tfr,w,, ·· 

B. Commerci_al C~pgrounri,i to,1Micle XXV, Section 25.21 D. 

(WHITEWATER TOWNSHIP ZONING ORDINANCE) 

:t 



( 
11.00 

29 

ARTICLE XI 
RECREATIONAL RC-1 

11.10 USES PERMITTED. 

No building or structure or any part thereof shall be erected, altered or used, or land or premises 
used, in whole or in part for other than one or more of the followmgspecified uses, viz: 

A. All uses permitted and as regulated in Residential .;R-2 except that each dwelling or main 
building shall be located on a lot or parcel or um(bf lan~:cpntaining not less than five (5) 

";'-. ·"'./ ·, ... '.. .'<°'>. 
acres of area unbroken by any public road,. ~ftyet or thoroug]µare and having a minimum 
width of three hundred (300) feet. · · :;.F ·· ·• 

B. Bed and breakfast establishments provicim. tourist/vacation accdnhnodations. !i;/ s::t;-, ·••; < 

C. Private Family Campgroup{l~.subject to Art1ct II, Section 37.5:6.ft} 

D. Riding academies and stabl~§, v~t~tjnarian h8§~itAls and kennels provided that no 
enclosure or space for the perm.aii~pt ·liou~iiig,, of a.riilfi.i#~>,shall be located less than one 
hundred (100) f~~tftmn.any adjoiruµg propertf'.line nor'ie~§i,than one hundred (100) feet 
from any high ,t;HgJ:ifJ?:{)~ay. T;;:':'~': l'· : t'?•;; ;, TV 

E. State-owned':c$~,frvati 

F .Jiy$-18Jeleptric pi1t 
{{:/' 

11.11 ; rt;f:)'~ermitted by Speciai'l):se! Permit 
;_· ,- ';. - --.),,_ ,,-- - ·,, 

A. P1fuin~d Unit Dev~ii1unent~:< 
B. Comtt1ercial Campgrbtip.ds Subje'ct to Article XXV, Section 25.21 D. 

(WHITEWATER TOWNSHIP ZONING ORDINANCE) 



ARTICLE XII 

BUILDING SIZES, LOT SIZES ANDY ARD REQUIREMENTS 

(Effective July 28, 2017) 

Section 12.10 Building Sizes, Lot Sizes and Yard Requirements Applicable to AifDistricts 

A. Each dwelling or other main building hereafter erected in any district shall have a pennanent 
foundation and a minimum of seven hundred (700) square feet of floor space, not including 
breezeways, porches and garages, unless specifically exempted elsewhere in this Ordinance. 

B. The floor area of a mobile home shall be that stated as the manufacturer's declared 
measurements. 

C. Campground cabins shall not exceed six hundred and fifty ( 650) square feet including 
covered porches. 

D. All structures, lots, and structure setbacks from property lines shall comply with the 
regulations established in Article XII of this Ordinance, unless specifically exempted 
elsewhere in this Ordinance. 

Section 12.11 Schedule of Regulations 

(see next page for table) 

NOTES: 
1. No structure shall be built within the minimum yards required except when expressly 

allowed elsewhere in this Ordinance. 
2. In no case shall a lot or parcel having frontage on the Boardman River or its tributaries be 

less than two hundred (200) feet wide at the water's edge or the building setback line, or be 
less than two hundred (200) feet deep. 

3. The water's edge shall be considered to be the ordinary high water mark. 
4. A dock may be constructed parallel to the bank, not exceeding ten (10) feet in length and not 

protruding in the stream, and when constructed of natural materials such as rocks or logs. 
5. Variance provisions for the width-to-depth ratio will be found in General Ordinance 26, Land 

Division Ordinance, Section VII D. 

Section 12.12 Hardship 

No requirements contained in this Article shall prevent the use of a lot or parcel of land of lesser 
size, provided the same was of legal record or had been laid out by a registered surveyor prior to 
the effective date of this Ordinance; and provided, further, that as to any lot or parcel ofland not 
of legal record or so laid out on the date of passage of this Ordinance, if any conditions shall 
create a hardship in complying with the restrictions contained in this Article, then the Planning 
Commission may grant deviation therefrom after first determining that the same shall not be 
inimical to the public health, safety or welfare. 



12,11 Schedule of Regulations 

Zones 

R-1 100' 

R-2 Single Family 100' 

R-2 Two Family 120' 

R-3 Single Family 100' 

R-3 Multi Family 120' 

A-1 200' 

RC-1 300' 

C-1 100' 

N 100' 

MHP 300' 

20,000 

12,000 

22,000 

12,000 
11,000 per 
dwelllng 

40,000 

5 acres 

Effective 04/09/2017 

30' 

30' 

30' 

30' 

30' 

30' 

30' 

50' 

50' 

15' 

15' 

15' 

15' 

15' 

15' 

15' 

10' 

Total30¾of 
width but not 
less than 15' 

.s 
~ 
'-' (U 
.c 

~ 
~ 
::::, 
ti 
::::, ... 
ii; 
E 
::::, 
E ·c 
~~ 
"E ~ 
~z 
... -(U .... 
(IJ (IJ 

0:: ~ 

30' 

30' 

30' 

30' 

30' 

30' 

30' 

30' 

30' 

17 acres Per Statute Per Statute Per Statute 

.... 
.c 
tlO 
'cij 
:c 
~ 
::::, 
ti 
2 
ii; 
E 
::::, 
E ·x 
(U 

~ 

35'(*) 

35'(*) 

35'(*) 

35'(*) 

35'(*) 

35'(*) 

35'(*) 

35'(*) 

35'(*) 

35'(*) 

40% 

40% 

SPECIAL SITUATIONS: (except for the specific requirement stated, the regulations for the underlying zone shall remain unchanged) 

Frontage on Boardman River and 
tributaries. See note 2 

Frontage on all other Lakes and 
Streams 

M-72 In A-1 Zone 

Supply Road 

Old M-72 in C-1 Zone 
Enclosures/structures for 
livestock, domestic animals 
(except house pets) 

M-72 In C-1, R-3 & N Zones 
(*) or 2·1/2 stories above grade 

200' 

2-1/2 acres 

100' 

100' from water's edge. Notes 3, 4 

SO' from water's edge. Note 3 

100' 

150' 

30' 0 

100' 100' 100' 

75' 30' 33% 

1:4 

1:4 

1:4 

1:4 

1:4 

1:4 

1:4 

1:4 

1:4 

1:4 

1:4 

-~ ~ 
u 0 
(U :;:::; 
.c (U 

~ :i 
Vl mi._ 
.5 
"C (IJ 
(IJ C: 
..., NO 
..!!! 
::::, Q) 

mi :c 
er:: ~ 
(IJ = 
VI 0. :::, g-

"C (IJ 
C: (IJ 

~.!!?. 

Yes 

Yes 

Yes 

Yes 

Yes 

Yes 



13.00 

33 

ARTICLE XIII 
ESSENTIAL PUBLIC SERVICES 

13.10 UTILITIES AND PUBLIC SERVICES; OPERATIONS. 

Utilities and public services shall continue to be operated and mctintained subject to the provisions 
of this Ordinance excepting that poles, wires and usual undergi;pt.lnd utilities shall be excepted from 
the requirements of this Ordinance and may be installed .\VJ,thout a land use permit and without 
compliance with setback requirements; provided, howev~t;(that nothing herein contained shall 
abrogate the necessity of any utility to obtain franchises and c~~pljtwith the provisions of any other 
law or ordinance and nothing herein contained shalf give any utility.pr municipality the right to 
install structures in this Township without comJJli~cewith the termsd:ftltl,s Ordinance excepting as 
otherwise provided in this Article. · · · · -~""-~., 

'/\~f:t:t:' 

(WHITEWATER TOWNSHIP ZONING ORDINANCE) 



ARTICLE XIV 

WATERFRONT PROPERTY 

(Revised in its entirety; Effective 01/04/2020) 

 

14.10 SHARED WATERFRONT EASEMENTS.  

In the event that a waterfront property is used for shared easement purposes the following 
conditions shall apply: 

A. A waterfront property accessed by one off-water dwelling unit shall have a minimum of 
twenty thousand (20,000) square feet and a minimum frontage on the water of not less than one 
hundred (100) feet. 

B. Where a waterfront property is accessed by more than one off-water dwelling unit, an 
additional fifty (50) feet of continuous frontage on the water is required for each additional off-
water dwelling unit accessing the property.  

14.11 SPECIAL REQUIREMENTS FOR THE BOARDMAN RIVER VALLEY.   

The following special requirements shall apply to all properties within fifty (50) feet of the 
Boardman River and its tributaries.   

A. A managed vegetative strip shall be maintained within fifty (50) feet of the water's edge, as 
follows: 

1. Vegetative strips shall consist of native trees, shrubs, vegetation and other natural 
materials. 

2. Existing native vegetation should be preserved whenever possible.  

3. No ponds shall be constructed, no earth moved, surface soils removed or filled for 
building within the managed vegetative strip. 

4. Utility lines shall be installed only as follows:  

(a) New distribution lines for utilities within the housing setback line shall be 
placed underground unless overhead lines are less disruptive to the environment. 

(b) Brushy vegetation shall be restored to the disturbed area in the managed 
vegetation strip. 

(c) Local service lines to private dwellings shall originate from the landward side 
of the dwelling. 

5.  Chemical control of vegetation shall be prohibited within the managed vegetative 
strip. 



6. Fencing, grazing, riding trails and soil tilling for farm crops is prohibited within the 
managed vegetative strip. 

7. The use of the managed vegetative strip for stock watering areas and stream crossing 
of horseback trails is subject to the approval of the Zoning Administrator, who may 
require a plan from the Soil Conservation District, or Department of Environmental 
Quality (DEQ) as part of the requirement for use. 

B.  Any variance from these standards shall be in accordance with a plan approved by the Zoning 
Board of Appeals.  In evaluating such applications, the Zoning Board of Appeals shall consider 
all relevant factors pertaining to the purpose of the vegetative strip which is to:  

 1. Stabilize the river banks. 

 2. Prevent erosion. 

 3. Absorb nutrients in water runoff from adjacent lands. 

 4. Provide shading for the stream to maintain cool water temperature. 

 5. Screen adjacent man-made structures. 



ARTICLE XV 
SANITATION REQUIREMENTS 

(Effective July 28, 2017) 

15.10 County Health Ordinance 
Compliance shall be had in all land uses and in all structures erected, altered, or moved upon a premise 
with all provisions of the County Health Ordinance in force in Grand Traverse County entitled "Sanitary 
Code of Minimum Standards Regulating Sewage Disposal, Water Supplies, and Sanitation of Habitable 
Buildings in Grand Traverse County Michigan" as the same may be amended from time to time, and 
violation of any provision of that Ordinance shall constitute a violation of this Ordinance. 

Section 15.11 Distance of System From Any Body of Water 
Every subsurface disposal system shall be located at least one hundred (100) feet from the ordinary high­
water mark of any body of water. 



i I 

16.00 

36 

ARTICLE XVI 
OUTDOOR STORAGE 

16.10 UNUSED, DISCARDED EQUIPMENT, CARS, JUNK. 

No land in any of the foregoing districts shall be used in whole or in part for the storage of unused 
or discarded equipment or materials or for the storage of unlicens(:!d cars, salvage, waste and junk 
outside of properly authorized buildings within said districts, except'as required for the storage of 
usable farm machinery necessary for permitted agricultural uses aiid except as permitted in 
connection with a use otherwise authorized in the Col11111ercial arid Industrial Districts. 

(WHITEWATER TOWNSHIP ZONING ORDINANCE) 



 
17.00                                                         ARTICLE XVII 
                                                                ADMINISTRATION 
 

(Effective January 26, 2018) 
 

 
17.10  ZONING ADMINISTRATOR; APPOINTMENT; DUTIES. 
A Zoning Administrator shall be appointed by and on such terms as shall be determined by the 
Township Board; provided that the Zoning Administrator shall not be a member of the Township 
Board, the Planning Commission or the Zoning Board of Appeals.  He/she shall perform such duties 
as the Township Board may prescribe in addition to any duties prescribed in this Ordinance. 
 
17.11  ZONING ADMINISTRATOR ELIGIBILITY. 
To be eligible for appointment, the Zoning Administrator shall be generally informed on good 
building construction, on good practice in fire prevention and the proper installation of safety, health 
and sanitary facilities.  He/she shall be in good health and physically capable of fulfilling his duties.  
In case he/she is personally interested in the construction of any building subject to the provisions of 
this code, the Township Board shall designate some other person to examine the plans, to inspect 
such building and to issue the necessary permits, approvals and certificates. 
 
17.12  ZONING ADMINISTRATOR; DUTIES. 
The Zoning Administrator shall: 

A. Receive and review all applications for land use permits and certificates of occupancy 
and approve or disapprove such applications based on compliance or non-compliance 
with the provisions of the Whitewater Township General and Zoning Ordinances. 

B. Receive all applications for site plan review and special use permits which the Planning 
Commission is required to decide under this Ordinance. 

C. Receive all applications for appeals, variances or other matters which the Zoning Board 
of Appeals is required to decide under this Ordinance. 

D. Receive applications for amendments to this Ordinance. 
E. Conduct field inspections and investigations, prepare maps, charts and other pictorial 

materials when necessary or desirable, and process applications so as to assist the 
Planning Commission, Zoning Board of Appeals and Township Board in formulating 
recommendations and/or approvals. 

F. Notify applicants in writing of any decision of the Planning Commission and implement 
the decisions of the Planning Commission. 

G. Maintain a map or maps showing current zoning classifications of all land in the 
Township. 

H. Maintain written records of all actions taken by the Zoning Administrator. 
I. Meet with the Township Board, Planning Commission, Zoning Board of Appeals and 

related committees as requested. 
J. Be responsible for providing forms necessary of the various applications to this 

Ordinance and any other forms as directed by the Township Board. 



K. Any additional responsibilities outlined in the Whitewater Township Zoning 
Administrator Job Description, as revised. 

 
 
17.13  ZONING ADMINISTRATOR; COMPENSATION. 
Compensation for the Zoning Administrator shall be established by the Township Board. 
 
17.14  LAND USE PERMIT REVIEW. 

A.  The Zoning Administrator shall verify that all applications for land use permits shall be 
accompanied by a clearly drawn plot plan which contains the following: 
1. Owner Information 
2. Parcel ID Number 
3. Property Address 
4. North Arrow 
5. Scale 
6. Existing and/or Proposed Structures (including fencing) 
7. Existing and/or Proposed Driveways 
8. Road Right of Way and/or Utility Easements 
9. Sanitary Facilities and Well 
10. Water Bodies on the Site 
11. Wetlands 

  
B.   The Zoning Administrator shall request that the applicant submit with the application 

such additional materials as may be needed to determine whether or not a permit should 
be issued, such as surveys, soil suitability tests, surface water disposal surveys, erosion 
control surveys and excavation disposal plans, abstracts, building plans, and permits 
from other government agencies. 

 
C. Evidence of Ownership.  The Zoning Administrator shall review evidence of ownership 

for all property affected by the permit application.   
 
D. Voiding of Permit.  The Zoning Administrator may suspend or revoke a permit issued 

under the provisions of this Ordinance whenever the permit is issued erroneously on the 
basis of incorrect information supplied by the applicant or his agent and is in violation of 
any of the provisions of this Ordinance or of any other Ordinances or regulations of the 
Township.   

 
E. The Zoning Administrator shall require submission of an application for Site Plan 

Review in accord with the provisions of Section 25.00 as required.  
 
17.15  LAND USE PERMITS; INSPECTIONS     

A. The construction or usage covered by any land use permit shall be subject to the 
inspection by the Zoning Administrator to ensure compliance with the provisions of this 
Ordinance  and the approved plot or site plan. 

 



B. The Zoning Administrator shall clearly communicate the inspections schedule to the 
applicant.  It shall be the duty of the holder of every permit to notify the Zoning 
Administrator when the construction or usage is ready for inspection. 

 
C. Inspections shall be made by the Zoning Administrator at the following intervals: 

1. At the time of staking out lot corners and proposed structures. 
2. When the building foundation forms are in place and/or poles are set, if required and 

noted on the permit. 
3. Upon completion of the work authorized by the permit. 

 
17.16  LAND USE PERMITS; DENIAL. 
The Zoning Administrator shall promptly inform the applicant, in writing, of the denial of a Land 
Use Permit if such planned building or structure or land use does not comply with the provisions of 
this Ordinance.  Applicants that have been denied a land use permit may appeal Zoning Ordinance 
decisions in accordance with Section 18.00 – Zoning Board of Appeals or the standards set forth in 
the applicable General Ordinance. 
 
17.17  LAND USE PERMITS; FEES. 
The fees for land use permits shall be established by the Township Board. 
 
 
 
 



ARTICLE XVIII 
Zoning Board of Appeals 

18.00 

18.10 Purpose of Board 

The Zoning Board of Appeals is established to ensure that the objectives of this Ordinance may 
be more fully and equitably achieved, that a means be provided for competent interpretation of 
this Ordinance, that reasonable flexibility be provided in the application of this Ordinance, and 
that the public health, safety and welfare is protected. 

18.20 Membership, Terms of Office 

The Zoning Board of Appeals shall consist of fiy~Ii)inembers appoi;tt,~d by the Township 
Supervisor and confirmed by the Township Bq ,, jf?·The first membei'oftb,e Board of Appeals 
shall be a member of the Planning Commissicl' e second member shal!'.Px a member of the 
Township Board. The remaining three (3) membe,K§~~p.all be,,~¢i~cted fromtli~15lectors of the 
Township and shall be representativs0 fthe populati"~!,f . ".•'''·1:tron and intereltt~f the 
Township. An elected officer ofth ·. ship shall rio as chairman ofthe'Zoning Board 
of Appeals. An employee or contract, ownship . i;i,r~ may not serve as a member. 

Terms shall be for three y~ar;:; except for' 
Planning CommissionJ>!GJ;o~):u Board, 
members of the Planaj11g'C~1nrtf" n of To 
the resolution appoirttllig,them. 

-- :. ; -~-;l~<--. 

·:)Uft 

,g beca."' f their membership on the 
,+rlflt:be '" ed to the time they are 

oard1fe§Q~,;tively, and the period stated in 
''·¾{{';itf 

Members 0Hg~r;z;2~ng Bd .. ~:igf.1'.~~fit!t~bllll bi:rx1r1:ovable by the Township Board for 
nonperf ?WJ~p.ce;rof ~-d.'t)r,J>r rnis'~611iuct in::of:qc.x,~,Poll·~tten charges and after public hearing. 
A mem,~e:yshall disqtialifx1J1im or'.)itfself from:·'a'yQte in which the member has a conflict of 
interest.)Et1,~lure of a mem:'15' .... o disqif:tli[Y himself or herself from a vote in which the member 
has a conflic*(){!~terest shal ' nstin{i~I(ti~onduct of office. 

18.30 Organ~a.t~o11 and Proce µres . -~J 

A. Rules of Pro
02i~ift~. ;r:t\%iZoning Board of Appeals shall adopt its own rules of procedure 

as may be necessatyJo;c6nduct its meetings properly. 

B. Vote. 
1. The concurring vote of a majority of members of the Zoning Board of Appeals 

shall be necessary to reverse any order, requirement, decision, or determination of 
the Zoning Administrator or Planning Commission and to decide non-use 
variances. Use variances shall require a vote of2/3 of the members of the Zoning 
Board of Appeals. 

2. A member of the Zoning Board of Appeals who also is a member of the Planning 
Commission or Township Board shall not participate in a public hearing on or 



vote on the same matter that the member voted on as a member of the Planning 
Commission or Township Board. However, the member may consider and vote 
on other unrelated matters involving the same property. 

C. Meetings. Meetings shall be open to the public and shall be held at the call of the 
Chairperson and at such other times as the Zoning Board of Appeals shall specify in its 
rules of procedure. The Board shall choose its own Chairperson, and in his/her absence, 
an acting Chairperson. 

D. Records. Minutes shall be recorded of all proceedings .-»ehl,ch shall contain evidence and 
data relevant to every case considered together with vol~~ofthe members and the final 
disposition of each case. The ground of every detetmi~ation shall be stated and such 
determination from which the appeal is taken. I~~~1Fnijf);!tes shall accompany and be 
attached to the standard forms required of P~f~OllS appeaf~~.~s part of the Zoning Board 
of Appeals permanent records. Such mirwtes,i'Jhall be filedii11)q,e office of the Township 
Clerk and shall be public record. A cqp~]~Jthe decision shalfff"'!: nt promptly to the 
applicant or appellant and to the Zoniri'g1'rt 'nistrator. 

E. Secretary and Counsel. The J;:9,wnship Cle .. ,. 
secretarial services for the Zcl'9111g•Board of App, 
give legal counsel to the Zoniit\ ·• Jtcb~gJ Appeal 

F. Hearings. When aJ1.ptice of appe 
of Appeals, the,.Zgiµyg\~\~!llinistra , 
the calendar fqt'Jie~ring, aij'd shall ca . 
hearing to be· s~ty~~ personally or by m 
appeal. · ·. · · · · 

18.40 

omeymay 

in prd 'hform with the Zoning Board 
>.i~ts:JY pla.c~ the request for appeal upon 

y stati.ng~7 time, place and object of the 
dressed to' the parties making the request for 

An app' .. ~st~YS all proceiai,iig,s in. ,\·,:~ranee of the action appealed from, unless the Zoning 
Administr~torg~rtifies to the Zoning 'i:r$~~of Appeals after the notice of appeal has been filed 
that, for reasonJ>fJacts stated itj t~e certitiblte, a stay would, in his/her opinion, cause immediate 
peril to life or property, in whicncase the proceedings shall not be stayed otherwise than by 
restraining order, wli19ll.may begrsmted by the Zoning Board of Appeals, or on application, by 
the Circuit Court, on U()f\c~,. toJh~}t>fficer from whom the appeal is taken, when due cause can be 
shown. ·•· .. , ··· ... , ·1 

18.50 Fee for Appeal 

A fee in accordance with the duly adopted schedule of fees shall be paid at the timing of filing an 
application with the Zoning Board of Appeals. The purpose of the fee is to cover all necessary 
notification and investigation expenses incurred by the Zoning Board of Appeals in connection 
with said appeal. 

18.60 Duties and Powers of the Zoning Board of Appeals 



;( The Zoning Board of Appeals shall have all powers and duties granted by State law, by this 
Ordinance and the Township Board including the following specified duties and powers: 

A. Review. Shall hear and decide appeals from and review any order, requirement, decision 
or determination made in the administration of this Ordinance by the Zoning 
Administrator or Planning Commission. 

B. Interpretation. Shall have the power to: 
1. Hear and decide upon appeals for the interpreta · 

Ordinance. 
2. Determine the precise location of the bo 

when there is dissatisfaction with a decist,.,/ 
3. Classify a use which is not specific a X m~htion 
4. Consider use variances. ,;p:; 
5. Consider non-use variances. 

of the provisions of this 

s between zoning districts 
by the Zoning Administrator. 

e Zoning Ordinance. 

18.70 Application of the Variance Power 

A. 

2. 

·t a use variance o y upon finding 
variance that permits a use that is 

unnecessary hardship shall 

que circ stances particular to the property 
a or to others properties in the same zoning 

ariance has not been self-created by the 

B. Non-Use Van ning Board of Appeals may grant a non-use variance only 
upon finding that - .. ··. difficul exists. A non-use variance is variance from any 
standard or requirenilht of the Ordinance, such as, but not limited to, a deviation from 
density, bulk, setback, parking landscaping and sign standard requirements. A finding if 
practical difficulty shall require demonstration by the applicant of the following: 

1. Granting the variance will not be contrary to the public interest and will not be 
contrary to the spirit and intent of this Ordinance. 

2. Granting the variance shall not permit the establishment within a zoning district of 
any use, which is not permitted by right within the district. 

3. Granting the variance will not cause any significant adverse effect to property in 
the vicinity or in the zoning district or the Township. 



4. There are practical difficulties on the site which unreasonably prevent the owner 
from using the property for a permitted purpose without presenting an excessive 
burden and the practical difficulty not resulting from any act of the applicant. 

5. The variance will do substantial justice to the applicant, but the decision shall not 
bestow the property special development rights not enjoyed by other properties in 
the same district, or which might result in substantial adverse impacts on 
properties in the vicinity which may endanger the public health, safety or welfare. 

6. The requested variance is the minimum necessary to permit reasonable use of the 
land. 

7. The practical difficulty is not self-created. 

18.80 Rules 

In addition to the foregoing conditions the following,rtil6' shalrbe)1pplied in the granting of 
variances: 

A. The Zoning Board of Appeals may sp~2iw'<::in writing, to the a;pli .. }lt such conditions in 
'?',"-\''"~. . -'\""~ /\~. 

connection with the granting that will, in'1t~j~1gment,i§~cure substrui,tf5;ltlY the objectives 
of the regulations or provisio.is to which sucn1R~!t1f1p~::applies includiri~'.:}~e requirement 
of a bond. The breach of any" ondition sfia~f~µtbmatically invalidaft' the permit 

granted. • ~- ""<;o\~ 
B. No more than the ]11\nimum variahc~.,from th¢t~1:rns oftnjtQrdinance shall be granted 

which is neces~ai.<{q,5:~lteye the pra9fi~al dif.fi,cuf>,,, X ll111iJ~¢ssary hardship. 
t/~"-

c. Each varianc Jmted sh;U{W~come m'.C/. ,.ff~oid unless the provisions of the variance 
have been utiliz~ttlg~,the apglic:~t withirif$:ue (1) year after the granting of the variance. 
An e)!,tensio11, not to'~~ceecl.gri~)fe, may B~f;granted upon request of the applicant. 

;A'",,,-,:,----,' -,-____ , ~ ,·., -·~ C ,- - '-~¥.~,::;:.·.f.·.:, 
-tiJ:Lt1[:;:,·+ -___ - ::-,·::~~-, _ . ~t: ___ ~ '.)<';;J 

D. 'if116f to granting avariartce,,,jl other e:ids\tng infractions related to this Ordinance or 
btlier Township Ordinances'h~ye been resolved. 

1t;;:~i~tb. •·. ,:,\ <,:~~),~"· 
E. The appirgfl,nt shall, in writing, receive the decision upon completion of the hearing. 

'\.·,, ~g, .,y;·_\ 

18.90 Appeal t~ ~it~Ait Cou!ili} 
, <~ -___ -/\\- "'-'), :/f)'_)' <f· 

The decision of the ZoningBo~d of Appeals rendered pursuant to Article 18 shall be final. 
However, a person having al'interest affected by the decision may appeal to Circuit Court within 
30 days of the decision. Upon appeal, the Circuit Court shall review the record and decision of 
the Zoning board of Appeals to insure that the decision: 

A. Complies with the Constitution and Laws of the State. 

B. Is based upon proper procedure. 

C. Is supported by competent, material and substantial evidence on the record. 



D. Represents the reasonable exercise of discretion granted by law to the Zoning board of 
Appeals. 

If the court finds the record of the Zoning Board of Appeals inadequate to make the review 
required by this section, or that there is additional evidence which is material and with good 
reason was not presented to the Zoning Board of Appeals, the court shall order further 
proceedings before the Zoning board of Appeals on conditions which the court considers proper. 
The Zoning Board of Appeals may modify its findings and decision as a result of the new 
proceedings, or may affirm its original decision. The 1--'L'-'UL\,g•~J.J record and decision shall be 
filed with the court. 



 
19.00                                                         ARTICLE XIX 
                                                     REQUEST FOR AMENDMENT 
 

(Effective January 26, 2018) 
 

19.10    INTENT 
It is the intent of Article 19, Request for Amendment, to provide a means for individuals, 
businesses, or groups to formally request changes or alterations to the Whitewater Township Zoning 
Ordinance. 
 
19.11   PETITION. 
Any person proposing or recommending a change in the district regulations or district boundaries 
shall petition the Township Planning Commission for a consideration of said change per the 
following procedure:  

A. A request in writing shall be presented to the Township Clerk.  All petitions shall 
include the specific nature of said request accompanied by any relevant details the 
applicant believes to be pertinent.  

B. All such petitions shall be executed by the owner of the fee title to the subject property 
or his agent.   

C. The Township Clerk shall not accept any such petition for filing until there is filed with 
the Clerk the fee required to be paid by the person or persons requesting said change. 

D. The petitioner shall further provide to the Zoning Administrator and Planning 
Commission any additional information requested which is deemed relevant to 
consideration of said application.  

 
19.12   PROCEDURE 
The procedures for consideration of changes to the Ordinance are as follows:   

A. Petition in writing filed with clerk and deposit paid.  
B. Petitioner shall be notified in writing of the meeting date set for initial consideration of  

  petition no less than ten (10) days prior to said meeting. 
C. The Planning Commission shall formally notice and conduct at least one public hearing 

  on any request to amendment to the Zoning Ordinance.  The Planning Commission may 
propose alternative options or wording for consideration conducted within the same 
public hearing.  

D. Following all public hearings regarding amendment requests, the Planning Commission 
shall formally submit to the Township Board a summary of public input provided at the 
public hearing, along with the evaluation and recommendation of the Planning 
Commission.    

E. Following consideration, the Township Board may adopt, reject, or return to the 
Planning Commission for reevaluation any proposed Request for Zoning Amendment.  
Adopted ordinance changes shall be published.  
 



19.13   COST 
Any party proposing or recommending a change in the zoning district regulations or zoning district 
boundaries shall be responsible for payment of all costs and expense incurred by the Township in 
considering said proposal or recommendation, including but not limited to costs of special meetings, 
legal fees, costs of notices and publications as follows: 

A. Petitioner shall deposit with the Township Clerk the sum of Three Hundred ($300.00) 
Dollars toward payment of said costs.   

B. The Township Board may require the petitioner to deposit such additional sums with the 
Township Clerk as it determines to be necessary to cover any additional costs beyond 
said deposit before it considers any proposal or recommendation.  

C. In the event the amount of said costs incurred by the Township shall be less than the 
amount of funds deposited by the petitioner, the difference shall be refunded.   

D. It shall be understood that under no circumstances shall said sum or any part thereof be 
refunded for failure of said change recommended or proposed by the petitioner to be 
adopted by the Township Board.   

 
 



20.00 

20.10 VALIDITY. 

42 

ARTICLE XX 
SEP ARABILITY 

If any clause, sentence, sub-sentence, paragraph, section or part of this Ordinance be adjudged by 
any court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, such judgment, • l not affect, impair or invalidate 
the remainder thereof, but shall be confined in its operatio clause, sentence, sub-sentence, 
paragraph, section or part thereof directly involved in th sy in which said judgment shall 
have been rendered. 

(WHITEWATER TOWNSHIP ZONING ORDINANCE) 



21.00 

21.10 PENAL TIES. 

43 

ARTICLEXXI 
VIOLATIONS 

Any person who shall violate any provision of this Ordinance in any particular, or who fails to 
comply with any of the regulatory measures or conditions ofthe~qard of Appeals adopted pursuant 
hereto, shall, upon conviction thereof, be fined not to exceed Orte Hundred ($100.00) Dollars or 
may be imprisoned not to exceed ninety (90) days, or 111ay .. $id:>0th fined and imprisoned in the 
discretion of the Court, and each day such violation contim1es shalfbe deemed a separate offense. 

, :((~;:'.·~~:'.;-

21.11 NUISANCE PER SE. , ,,_,: p ',,~ 
Uses of land, dwellings, buildings or structures;:rq~!uding tent~ and trailef:'.co~ches used, erected, 
altered, razed or converted in violation of any 'pt~:V~siono;:qfJhis Ordinance::or the regulatory 

'''''.t1' ·:"''."'"'"'' ,, :'.' 
measures or conditions of the ·,· .. ,:,,·,u""·'· adopfog;pi$:$Want hereto are hereby declared to be 
nuisances per se. ,,~::&tt'.~~~ 

-~:--.i~:;-... 
<;~Z¾ 

(WHITEWATER TOWNSHIP ZONING ORDINANCE) 



i\ 
22.00 

44 

ARTICLE XXII 
EFFECTIVE DATE 

22.10 EFFECTIVE DATE. 

This Ordinance shall take immediate effect upon passage by the Township Board. [Passed. 
and Effective: December 23, 1972.] 

(WHITEWATER TOWNSHIP ZONING ORDINANCE) 



23.00 

23.10 REPEAL. 

45 

ARTICLE XXIII 
REPEAL 

Whitewater Township Ordinance No. 4, Interim Zoning Ordinance, is hereby repealed 

(WHITEWATER TOWNSHIP ZONING ORDINANCE) 



( 

46 

24.00 ARTICLE XXIV 
SANITARY LANDFILL AND WASTE DISPOSAL FACILITIES: 

24.01 SPECIAL USE 

Prior to approval of the Planning Commission of a special exception use for a sanitary landfill 
facility, as herein defined, in any area of the Township, said boarcl,,shall be certain that the following 
limitations and conditions are or shall be strictly compliyd/ with, in addition to any other 
requirements contained in the Township Zoning Ordinanc~;(?~t';'ih any other Township ordinance 
controlling such operations. The following rules and ryg4l~tlbQs shall apply specifically to each 
landfill area, unless county or state regulations on any+n~cu.falrequirement are more restrictive, 
and then such more restrictive regulation shall appl~::a,l!µ,rther provi.dediJhat no such sanitary landfill 
facilities shall be allowed within any areas zone '{'j:'R-2, R-3 or withiµ:any platted subdivisions. 

A. Location: 
; <-:; __ > ~?):~ 0) • _,_,: _ .-- v\, 

1. All such operations shall byl99ated on a statehj or county prirriarfroad, as defined 
by the County Road Commifif~tr~i,Prand Trav&",, unty, for ingress and egress thereto, 

.;;;_::; -_-,_c;,. ' ',_,F'Af¾,._,_ ·-0 :?' 

and on a road which does rl.of0cfif · traffic thi · an area developed primarily for 
residential purposes. Where neceS~ · , .· g · ssion may require the applicant 
to construct and/orjiµprove a roa. ac~ 0~11.te th' 9k travel necessitated by the 
operations, as,N°-?~ilif19~;Qf such '\b;:~tio r for",~e p se of routing traffic around 
residential ar~l!~;/A stop si~.,, shall be \r''"' d mamwwed by the owner/ operator at all 
egress roads oft,ft~tdisposal~i~a. Unde cumstances shall trucks use private drives or 
private .. access route~., fron1T0l~h~"applican roperty which are within 150 feet of any 
resideitc,y: l>, , ... ·, ,iq[;aillir;< 

!fcffeii'it:ienti'e 1Jll~ s~lip;uv;:~~~ property lines and public highways to assure 
a4eqµate lateral s1.ipgP.1t for a .. ent public and private property. No such disposal area shall 
be~p{i;ffiitted closer tli~~200 fe , :;:9m the interior boundary lines. In addition, no disposal 
areas 's~™J,,be permittetil§!pser thaq~:t 000 feet to any domicile, or within 1000 feet of any 
residential{dis,trict. No s ,,., 'disposal areas shall be permitted closer than 200 feet to adjacent 
public righti~r~:»7,ays, pro . ttY lines, lakes and streams. Such disposal areas shall at no time 
be permitted wlj~r ad·gfwhg lateral support for the maintenance of adjoining land is not 
maintained. · / 

3. Any permanent processing plant and its accessory structures shall not be located closer 
than 300 feet from the interior boundary lines. In addition, if located within 1,300 feet of a 
residence, it shall be obscured by a suitable barrier, not less than 10 feet high, with screening 
of a type to be decided on an individual basis by the Planning Commission at the time of 
application. Where practicable, the processing plant shall be as close to the center of the 
subject property as possible, and at a lower level than the surrounding terrain to lessen visual 
and noise impact. The foregoing shall not apply to the digging or excavating apparatus, nor 
to the stockpiling or loading and transportation equipment. 

(WHITEWATER TOWNSIITP ZONING ORDINANCE) 



B. 

47 

4. No disposal area shall interfere with the established natural flow of surface water or ( 
groundwater to the detriment of or damage to adjoining or nearby public or private 
properties. No waste, whether liquid or solid, may be disposed of, at or below ground level 
by spraying, burying, pumping, ponding or any other means if, in time, it may result in 
contamination of the soil or groundwater. The Planning Commission shall have the right to 
require an applicant to construct test wells, sediment basins and such other means of 
monitoring, controlling and/or containing sediment aI1d,\contaminants as it may deem 
necessary for the protection of soils, groundwater and arty;W~tercourse or wetland within the 
watershed in which the disposal area is to be )gc~t~'d. Disposal of such material in 
stormwater retention ponds is prohibited. 

5. Any sanitary landfill area, located wi~>the bound ~);:,9f the Township, whether 
publicly or privately owned shall be ,.off~nffo Township resi4~11ts, property owners and 
businesses, during established business'Ir~µrs, at a rate competitive:wi:tp. other disposal areas 
in Northwestern Michigan. Other persori§t:'~};,Harties ~f:1.¥\also be grant~~ access to a public 
facility by the Township, su~Jfct to paying•qb:i;S~.g~s established ·b e public body 
having jurisdiction. Special .J,j~~"•· g fees may H~,c;J:fMged for bulky or 1cult to process 
items. Hazardous materials, a&'Qe in PublicAct64 of 1979 for the State of Michigan 
and defined by the Department¥'{ .,,Jt~fSOurce/iijt:it~ Hazardous Waste Management 
Rules, Sections R 299.630 throu,: 4 R"29f&(iaJ7 incl ·ve, containing Rules 301-317 
exclusively, andqatl¥3?€ebruary 5, if' are · ::li . 

c;{~r,yffe,WN;;\,i;,(•J;,. /14 

6. Greater isofaµqµ distance§hnay be r by the a.tining Commission if the sanitary 
landfill area bellig~pi-oposea,IJs adjacent ecial quiet zones, as designated by local or 
state g9Y.~J:1.Jfllent. · · ,. ' · ' · 

~--..., __ 

,,tbarriers shaf "',,grovide Jalpng all setback lines of the sites which lack natural 
screefiili~,~onditions thtgµgh existin~ contours or evergreen growth. Such barriers shall 
consist 6¥:tfie.following:·'A_:'berm of at least 10 feet in height and plantings of evergreen 
trees, not nibt~ ¢.an 10 f~fJpart, or shrubbery not more than 5 feet apart, in staggered rows, 
on the berm, pfu:~!l,~l tg;tlie'Jl'>oundaries of the property. Evergreens shall be at least 2-year 
transplants at the.t$~Iqf planting, and shall grow to not less than 10 feet in height; and shall 
be sufficiently spacelHt> provide effective sight barriers when 10 feet in height. Trees or 
shrubs which die must be replaced. 

The requirements for screening by means of a berm and plantings may be reduced or 
eliminated by the Planning Commission if the particular site and terrain of the subject 
property (with screening of a reduced height), will afford adequate sight barriers for 
adjoining property owners, residents or passers-by. 

2.The sanitary landfill area is to be fenced with an 8 foot high chain link fence with 3 strands 
of barbed wire angled 45 degrees toward the outside of the premises on the top. Such fence 
shall be located inside of any berms or screening following the exterior boundaries. The 

(WHITEWATER TOWNSHIP ZONING ORDINANCE) 

i( 



:( 

entrance to the sanitary landfill area shall have a gate which shall be closed and locked at all 
times that the landfill is not open. 

48 

C. Nuisance Abatement. 

1. Air pollution, noise and vibration, and their effect upon adjacent properties shall be 
minimized by the utilization of adequate sound-proofed equipment and buildings designed 
to accomplish such minimization, and by the proper use of berms, walls and natural planting 
screens. Interior and adjoining roads used in the solidJ:y'~te disposal operations, shall have 
their surfaces treated to minimize any condition. ' · · ··• · 

.~>~/·~:r~'.:i// ;,:??.?'.\ 
2. Rodent traps, if needed, shall be placed eveJiYi[,Xbd'i~d;;;, around the perimeter of the 
sanitary landfill area, inside the fence, and sliijhbe' regularly.µi~ ected and cleaned, not less 
frequently than once each week. · ,,Y 

, +,\,'f~t'0,. 
3. Any security lighting deemed necessaryj}y,the ownertoperator shall:•lJ,e the sodium vapor 
type and shall be aligned so that no part oftb:~",· 1 · r•,d field shaU'fajl·9n any adjoining 
residential property. '° •,, 

//'..~.h ' --~).. 

4. Every sanitary landfill facih •.~ ~i~<2cepts re ~~?"shall have adequate water supply 
and facilities for quick delivery'{>.: :;;,wat l:'td)q1y part'.'tifllw property, for the purpose of 

,-___ ,.,~J..- '":_- • --,___ >, - • C : ;·- A - ,::, 

extinguishing fir~~IJf~~il,p~city shalf'fl~\'..such ffi~t~t)le,~st 50:gmlons of water per minute can 
'.;k;•'•·:•'.:'.•"'.':•'':'•"': '+'1th. ''':t>» > ', -'•":V 

be applied to 1~¥tfife;"'c\l~f uously;c(~J\a ~a§f;.10118~~~ Tlie source of the water supply 
and the faciUti~Kto provtq or the de\'" f the wat~:r shall be indicated on the plans 
submitted for apir~:yal by ·· , lanning 

' :, ' ' 'i't•:~ ?,,,, 
5 . . AlFlittetishall be coll ,. , :,s 

5 /~ithe; pla~~d in tli~)iIJ'( comp ~ti:. 
oritainer. ~ , ·,,. ·, 

andfill site by the end of each working day 
covered that day, or stored in a covered 

-. ';-~:~;r~, - ,--~. 
6. fu(\ylllter operation1, s*~w and i~~ shall be removed before any material, either refuse or 
earth c'o'tr,e,r,., is placed ''o,n\the filf A supply of unfrozen earth cover material shall be 
maintainecit:;m~l availabl ··· her in protected stockpiles or in a natural bank protected from, 

''Z',<'rcl\,, 
or not subjecffq;;;:#:eez· rozen cover materials shall not be placed on the fill. 

c.,,-__ Cc---,--,_:,. 

7. Prior to the co!tii¥ieR6~ment of the construction of any landfill within the Township, the 
owner/operator of the proposed landfill shall obtain from each lake, stream, creek, 
watercourse and private, residential, agricultural and commercial waterwells, a water 
sample for complete chemical analysis. These water samples shall be taken from each of 
the aforementioned water sources within a mile radius of the exterior boundaries of the 
property acquired for the construction of the landfill. These samples shall contain the exact 
location from which they were obtained, the name and address of the property owner who 
owns the land from which the water sample was taken, and the name and address of the 
principle user of the waterwell, if different from the owner of the property upon which the 
well is located. The owner/operator of the proposed landfill shall turn these samples over to 
a properly accredited laboratory for complete analysis. The results of the individual analysis 
shall be certified by the laboratory, and then filed with the Township Clerk, for the purpose 

(WHITEWATER TOWNSHIP ZONING ORDINANCE) 



of future reference, should there at some later date be suspected groundwater contamination. 
In addition, copies of the quarterly monitoring test well results shall be delivered to the 
Township promptly upon receipt by the owner/operator. 

49 

D. Time Limits. 

All operations, other than the maintenance of equipment within a fully-enclosed building, shall be 
conducted only between the hours of 7:00 a.m. and 6:00 p.m. fyfonday through Friday, and 7:00 
a.m. and 3:00 p.m. on Saturdays and legal holidays. A si@;·:it~ting the hours and prohibiting 
dumping of other items shall be placed in a conspicuoy~t!zl~¢~tion at the entrance. Keys for 
admittance to the disposal area shall be given to the Tovyri:~fup ~!erk. Disposal facilities shall have 
qualified ~ersonnel o~ duty during hours of operatio~>to:1;~µ-'e"ct th~~\J111ping, spreading, compaction 
and covenng of matenals. · ' · 

E. Liability Insurance. 
, _ ~~- _;_~_ ::--;r~}t, 

All applicants shall be required to carry personal inJ ./:~dyr§I:,:erty damage ili'.~~c,tnce, in addition 
to any and all bonds required by tht·.· statute, wli1(~:™1YJfdpen or un-rehabrliUtted area exists. 
Such insurance shall be in the amd ."t ")110! less thanlf~L000,000 for each person injured or 
property damaged, or for any injury orr~tpfagi:tQ,,,Elore thJ(~P:!?. person or one person's property, 
arising out of one occurrence. Such insut~~e snallJt:. er inj~;qr-.flamage occurring upon the site 
of the operation, as well JlSi'. ~ :;g1;1,,propertieslc{~joining t . , as tlie;;resµlt of conditions or activities 

,,t;,:"<-'t.! :;;·~· =--c' ':'"·•}.. • -__ ,; "'""· <'-~: -- < 

existing upon the site.,Jij,, 'oligf~s shall be''···' d wi~ ., 'lf: ·. 'pClerk, and shall be maintained 
in effect for a period.\19,g~ot less''flf~. 20 year qWmg final ure and termination of sanitary 
landfill activities. The'd~~11ctible wf{tten into 1 surance policy shall not exceed 5% of the per 
incident limi~ 9f the Habilit)f)>ftge11lli~Y:,: The c8y9rage obtained by the owner/operator to fulfill 
the requirement~. ofrtbis section:isnall iliglude th~jf provisions that the insurer shall notify the 

.~,--,-, --, ;:-~:-:-:-' ___ -.-,,-.--~--, - - -=_ -:·--1·-.'?t: -· , -(-\1--:=::,:>=( ~~\.:i-s-=,:--,~:-,J-r-___ . '~<$ 
Township 3,0·aays pnofigJhe can,c~]Jation oflli~'mfi.1,lYahCe for any reason. 

' . ''";;;\~{l't.t '{;,''"'), '?:,;l 

F. CIQ~,~f~ of Disposal'.At~as. " .. 
,,ttt~;ti~>> -:_ii{;j 

Reclamation of reµ~bilitation o £:~fl:llltary landfill areas shall be accomplished as soon as practical 
following the com:pJetipn of · · "'a. Where possible, such reclamation or rehabilitation shall be 
accomplished concutrently witlr facility's operations. Substantial completion ofreclamation and 
rehabilitation shall be eff~¢te 7 hin 2 years after the termination of the waste disposal facility. 
Inactivity for 12 consecutiV' onths shall constitute, for this purpose, termination of disposal 
activities. Technical standards which shall control the final reclamation and rehabilitation of the site, 
and the post-closure monitoring of the site shall be the rules and regulations written by the 
department of Natural Resources, Resource Recovery Division, Solid Waste Management, for the 
State of Michigan pursuant to Public Act 641 of 1978, as amended, being Section 299.401 et seq, of 
the Michigan Compiled Laws and known as the Solid Waste Management Act, or other similar acts 
which may provide such regulation hereafter. 

G. Submission of Operation and Closure Plans. 

No sanitary landfill activities shall be allowed or commenced until a plan has been submitted to the 
Township Planning Commission, disclosing compliance with all of the provisions within this , 1 

(WHITEWATER TOWNSHIP ZONING ORDINANCE) 



!i 

Ordinance, or the manner in which compliance will be secured by the applicant. Such plans shall 
include, among other things, the following: 

50 

1. A contour map of the tract ofland involved in the operations, including dimensions of the 
same, access thereto, abutting public streets, and whether or not the same are on state or 
county primary roads, additional roads, if any, to be constplcted and the location and nature 
of abutting improvements of adjoining properties. ,?:: ~; 

,>~lJ;?}~~~i0::··· 

2. The number of acres and the location of the sam~,,pfoposed to be operated upon within 
the following 12-month period after cornrnencemegt'bfoperations. 

/{1'.t}, \/ ,. . 
3. The type of sanitary landfill proposed t J 

used and the materials to be accepted. '.5 
)constructed, th n;~'j:µre of the equipment to be 

">'::~-8~"'-
4. A survey by a registered surveyor, showing/the 1 
the distance of any proposed, tions, and thef"" 

#tin of the ptfuciJ~l.c:lisposal site and 
<•es of the site. , .\ 

ht;,, 
5. A map disclosing the approx .,,,;,;grade an • :fil@;,Jevels to be established following 
completion of the disposal areas, u ''TgI;t. ropos~~~~~s being contemplated for the 
future use of the Jand;mnd other s · ,matter' evidence the bona fide nature of the 

/!·f:-~=~.-'"\:;_:i,'\:-~-:- ,_:_ '>,~. '\N?~i\ -~4,9-,.,n 
rehabilitation fatj}·ana:i~i~fact that•··'+· devfstated and rendered unusable 
by the propos ste dispos1ll area. 

',,;::\\\ 

6. A .ma _disclosi )fue lgbtliioi;ref all r,,~§, streams, creeks, water-courses and public, 
pri;y:!:tt~ I~~i;itial, agqgtj:ltutal anct~g9,W11ercfa,~,waterwells from which the samples will be 
. '.eJi or anfilyif' s sti~u,iaj:ed in C(7iqf;lm$,§6ction. 

_, u_, )• --,_, < ·\;,r;~-·- '"'~. ··ir-e }P 

. ilil:.>~tten agre~fii:,,,;;1J,, si ••i').~Y the owner/operator of the proposed disposal area, 
agreeing)to abide by th~JQllowing.pl,an for solutions to groundwater contamination, should 

., ,. ;'/¾, Cj••-"C'\ '•'; ,, 
such con(·. · ation occu:i;I~ a resulf, or suspected result of his disposal operations. 

'<J: iJ? ff~j 

H. A Trust Furi .;z~t,the • "gation of Landfill Problems. 
*i;_-:t1~;{;t; ;~.~ 

1. A trust fund shall'Hi established at a convenient bank, within the County, chosen by the 
Township Board. The operator shall agree to pay $.10 per cubic yard, of waste disposed of, 
into this trust fund for the life of the sanitary landfill. Expenditures from the trust fund are to 
be approved by a committee consisting of one citizen appointed by the Township Board, the 
Township Supervisor, and one representative of the owner/operator. Funds may be used but 
are not limited to off-site litter control, groundwater and surface water monitoring and 
payments to adjacent property owners, and others, at the discretion of the committee, for 
damages that have been caused as a result of the sanitary landfill or its operations. The trust 
fund shall exist and earn interest for 20 years following closure, and at that time the funds 
remaining shall be paid to the owner/operator or its successors or assigns. 

(WHITEWATER TOWNSHIP ZONING ORDINANCE) 



2. The mitigation of environmental degradation shall be accomplished by limiting the 
amount of new leachate produced; steps shall be taken which restrict the movement of 
existing pollutants in the water. When domestic, agricultural or commercial wells lie in the 
path of a contaminated plume, one of the following possible solutions to the problems of 
public health, hazard and environmental degradation shall, at the discretion of the Township 
be required of the owner/operator of the landfill: 

51 

a. Immediate purging of the groundwater. S14dies must be conducted, at the 
expense of the owner/operator of the waste dispc:fs~.area, to determine the extent of 
the groundwater contamination, cleanup required(and the timetable by which the 
cleanup will proceed. · 

'.-'A,---,-,,C 

b. Provision of an alternate water supply .. This shittlnclude, but not be limited to: 
>:,f:::· ';;;·t ·\t-=···· . 

. , ,:;.,;.;•>... 
1. Locating uncontamig{ ... ,J oundwater. ' ?'Ik 
2. Providing 1:>ottled wat(;!t{;:. This shall be a temporiit)\measure, designed to 

prevent health hazardiffµµtil anot!i~fs. system Cal\ 'be prepared. This 
service shaj! be terminlt~i·, Ij;&permanent wittet,,,supply system 
becomes dp~ra,,,ttQnal. )}f i/ ,;' 

3. Hooking intg:;a,h'~~~tiug munic1 :~)water supply system. 
. '\t~;~;~trt "<q,t~I1i.{;=~r-'.~~;:;r~;_>~-- '·~(HJt~:;>::, . . 

The owner/operator of a samtary landfill re~sonably;~q~pected of'~o,ntamrnatlon of the groundwater 
for residence, farms or q1J$i~f~~~~, shall gucir!wtee th~§~§~~l the,CQtI~!ruction of the extension of a 
municipal waterline to,1liy, affe?f~ct area, anl;'"/\ . .e:,,1_;; 'fthe':t ookup to this water supply. The 

•.,.,· .•• ,.,,,, ·;c;,(••. 

Township shall pay fol"·llllY oversi~g of th , permit ill xtension of service to areas not 
affected by the leachateI;J~f ownerZ;gperator of '> ;,anitary landfill may make an unrestricted cash 
payment to t~(;).,J'ownship:itt~};can;y"R:4h · 's resp6~~g,ility to the residents in obtaining for them 
uncontam,i1#t~di:Jat~1\, This'ottiq:ri;shall the d1~2t~tion of the proper authority. If the water is 

,.~ <:~,:·;:;·-,,-w...-::1,:,,,,;:="-~;:.ht·,~";»:.f·•~i¾.. ,;mT,-,,~, _:-'t{ - /-:--:> - ~:~,,-- _j 

available'.'.;tg)the res'iderit~;.,pf tne'.;.aff~cted ar . ,4t,\1/i.1F assume sole responsibility for establishing 
water i~t~:~ assessmentsi;~~\conrl~qft?~l charges0,"ahd for the granting of waivers of any of these 
charges t61It~s1dents whose\-vlt~r supp\y:J~ endangered by the leachate and for policies governing 
the system opir~t!on and waiv~t;cp9licy. ,c :/,~ 

. · -,,:i=-=~::;;:-r:>~~- -{}~!~, , -, ~/ 
If the Township 'dq;es not agree f&:":l\1.ake water available to its residents, the entire issue shall revert 
back to the landfill owher/operatot~ responsibility. The Township shall assume no responsibility or 
liability for any injuries ot'pr9perty1 damage resulting from the sanitary landfill operations. 

. .. 1/ 
-;:;, ,,/ 

I. Financial Guaranteet"ciosure and Rehabilitation: 
Financial Guarantee shall be given to the Township, insuring the proper closure and rehabilitation of 
the solid waste disposal area. The amount of the guarantee shall not be less that $5,000 (Five 
Thousand dollars) per acre of disposal area, but not less than $20,000 nor more than $200,000 for 
the area proposed to be licensed by the State, or which has previously been operated upon during 
any preceding period and which has not been reclaimed or rehabilitated. All such financial 
guarantees shall be reviewed annually on or about the anniversary date of the sanitary landfill 
construction permit, for adjustment in compliance of the foregoing requirements, by the Zoning 
Inspector of the Township or other such official as may be designated by the Township Board. In 
this regard, the amount of the financial guarantee may be increased or decreased, based upon the 
cost of living index, promulgated by the U.S. Department of Labor, using the effective date of this 
ordinance amendment as the base period for the $5,000 per acre amount. Such financial guarantee 

(WHITEWATER TOWNSHIP ZONING ORDINANCE) 

I 



shall be in the form of cash, certified check, irrevocable bank letter of credit or a corporate bond of a 
licensed insurance company, eligible to insure disposal facilities in Michigan. The corporate bond, 
if it is used, shall be a performance bond which shall be filed with the Township Clerk governing all 
portions of the sanitary landfill operation required to be maintained in accordance with these 
regulations, guaranteeing the satisfactory performance of these regulations. The bond shall not be 

52 

cancelable for nonpayment of premium on disposal areas alreac:ly worked, and shall continue in 
force for 1 year after closure and reclamation of the sanitary lari.d,fil1>£acility. 

,· .,•··<)~' 

For all sanitary landfill areas, the minimum financial guararJ.t~e M~all be at least $20,000, provided to 
the Township, if less than 5 acres are required to be coycif~J'[bytp:~fmancial guarantee at any time. 
The bond shall be filed with the Township before the"_p~rm.it is issiiecl, and on or before the first of 
each year thereafter. '· < • · · ·• 

A recommendation by the Planning CommissiJ~i~d approval by ~e 'To\yµship Board shall be 
based upon the criteria set forth within said C:>1·4ibance ancl,;,§hall be bi&~~;t;in addition, on a 
consideration of the following: . i;,ti~:};i, J~li~t;> 1f{;it!~, 

1. The most advantageous use h:(th~ lari.d, reso;2is:ahd property. 
'., ~\\? _, · ,_ ~t]i}r:-)> _ -- '10{fi·;~:~\, 

2. The character of the area in qu¥&tipri' arid its,particul~:~tability, if any, for the particular 
"'•',-_ ,__-_--_-v-·', •-•,:,;,,;,-,,, 

use. ',,-< -'.\\ .,,'i~ ~~(?J.~ 

3. Conservatt9~rs.f'pr~pbrtyxalues aJ'\~ll~~,JiJni~il~s.ou,r~~~ and the general appropriate 
trend and characf~r of develq_r,ment in the ~µbject area. .· .. 

'. i{J~;~l:>-. : ;:,~=:::,~;~:~i ~/--· '.: ;·:? ~ ~ , 
4. The r2tection aiip;' reserva,tjQ:t1pfthe generfll health, safety and welfare of the Township. 

,>c,--·-·.· ' --, . _._, - ---, - - ·-:-,,, 

s~J( c'fil'cit)';Qt,yaliie,g t~ di.spg~al ~~~;, as compared with the effect upon adjacent 
Pco}fununities neatcth~,propo,,,,, operatiort:I:Ii* 
. =·-:;:;\jf>~ --·::~;(!-/\~. '"\f];;t~~h,_ 

The Pl~g;>~ommission'. ;~;,: pr~~~~/or a periodic review of the proposed operations to 
ascertain compl! ce with the coJiqitions ahdilimitations imposed upon the same. 

'\,' ;<'.if~\ 
···· ..... /;,. ,J 

J. Existing Sanif!H:Y Landfill.Operations: 
•;itf\~?.:'" •... Jihri:F' 

All licensed sanitary land:fjH/;gperations existing on the effective date of this Ordinance shall be 
subject to the within regulittfons with regard to future operations; however, such pre-existing 
disposal area shall be allowed to continue in operation on its then existing land. A special Exception 
Use shall not be required therefor. 

(WHITEWATER TOWNSHIP ZONING ORDINANCE) 



25.00 
ARTICLE XXV 

SITE PLAN REVIEW AND SPECIAL LAND USES 

25.10 SITE PLAN REVIEW AUTHORIZATION 

A. The Zoning Administrator and/or Planning Commission as specified in this section shall 
review and approve, approve with conditions or deny all site plans submitted under this Ordinance. 
Each action taken with reference to site plan review shall be dul .. recorded in the official record by 
the Zoning Administrator or in the minutes of the Planning Q ,. · ssion. Those site plans which 
require Planning Commission review will then be submitt~fi,:fcf e Planning Commission for action 
along with the recommendation of the Zoning Administfjtd · ·. to compliance with Ordinance 
requirements. The Zoning Administrator shall also s~e},6the iec,'gmmendation of the Fire Chief, 
Road Commission, Drain Commission, Heal . p·artment ;,~: Michigan Department of 
Environmental Quality, where applicable. ··· 

B. Following approval of a site plan, the pel1 ,igger shall, 
County and/or State permits as may be required by s;a('' e11~[ 

ly for the appropriate Township, 
• ·•.>>>), 

25.11 SITE PLAN REVIEW: RE · 

A. SITE PLAN REVIEW: WHERE RE 
__ ,,, ___ ••,·~ '., '-\ 

Site plan review shall b ·qQji~gJor any oft11~. foll 
1. Erect" · . 0 6virtg;\l:ii1versionv 

than a sing. ·1 d ;+1Uin · . y W\,;,,"' g. 
Develop ,Jl!> of nq~i;single-famr 

ppment of~CJll:-c!.g'qf 0' 

g . ':,;};":}?" 
All spec1 ltland ·111t~h, 

2. sidential uses in single-family districts and 
~ agricultural district except for single-family 

,,_c,~~:'.t?.. _··:·.\t?'} 
··,4~·, , Any exca4~tihn, filltrt'>. oil removal or mining, except for the creation of ponds for 

·· "ttiggcultural use. · 
5. ·•· 11\Jl site condonufil1.UTI.s, co11ominium subdivisions and PUD's. 
6. All'.1}:lroposed us~!fQr devel;pments in environmentally sensitive areas as required 

o,;v,•:,,-.t~.,. '.L·:.>/-i: 
under Arlf' 27.00, ¥1t)Jironmentally Sensitive Areas. 

r,·Y~~:J 

B. . .~]JEQUIREMENTS 
The Township has establish~tl a range of site plan review procedures intended to allow the 
appropriate level of review relative to the scope of the project. The more complex the project, the 
more detailed the review process. The Township has also established two optional review 
procedures with staff and with the Planning Commission intended to provide applicants an 
opportunity to discuss projects on a conceptual level with minimal upfront expenditure. 

C. OPTIONAL PRE-APPLICATION CONFERENCE 
In order to facilitate processing of a site plan in a timely manner, the applicant may request a pre­
application conference with the Zoning Administrator, up to three (3) members of the Planning 
Commission and such other Township representatives as appropriate. The purpose of such a 
conference is to provide information and guidance to the applicant that will assist in preparation of 
the site plan. The applicant is encouraged to provide rough conceptual drawings or site plans 

(WHITEWATER TOWNSHIP ZONING ORDINANCE) 



indicating the location and boundaries of the subject property. No formal action shall be taken 
on a site plan at a pre-application conference. There is no fee to the applicant for the pre-application 
conference. 

D. PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW 
The applicant shall submit the following prior to being scheduled for Planning Commission review: 

1. Township Review Fee. 
2. Township Application. 
3. The name and address of the owner and any designated representative of the owner. 
4. Written description of the proposed use. "~1~81:;,¢> 
5. Ten copies of the preliminary site plan, illustrating e~$t!fig features, lot dimensions, general 

footprints for proposed buildings and parking,;;;r@r~t('h, 'p to adjacent land uses and a 
location map. .,,, +; •.•• · · 

6. One digital copy of the site plan in a form c1ccf8F)able to the 

Upon review, the Planning Commission ma 
preliminary site plan. 
such denial. 

The Zoning Administrator may waiv '"·•; .. 
by the applicant provided that all infonntt\ 
applicant. '.),. 

E. FINAL SIT&FL~t~w 
The applicant shall silb@t the folliiWhig prior t 

1. Township Revie~;fe,~ (if app~cable ). 

2. To · ;,6}pplicatiq~£(if,~~P#'.2!11liJ,:. 

or Planning Commission review: 

3. 1\:1 ".:g~s·cri tion 'tff fu!tproposeqlr,r9j;fCt ,,,,;1,; se. 
4 . . ,;';\)' , addition · onri:atfon the .,Plaijtilng'w Commission finds necessary to make 

'~ilfi~~rruinations re····· d herehf:i:;, ·,. · .. >' 

5. A'tept,<:,omplete site that ili¢lude the information listed in section 25 .11 (F), Required 
Inf orrtifition. , Mi) 

6. One digi~1°P9PY of the s. Ian in a form acceptable to the Township. 
,,,:-:,--·{\";\'-

Upon review, the Pl~titComh,u. ion may approve, approve with conditions or deny the final site 
plan. If the site plan is deni~4Rll;itPlanning Commission shall state the reasons for such denial. 

"~f¼ZiJiJ'l~ 

F. REQUIRED INFORMATION 
1. Each submittal for site plan review shall contain all information required in this Ordinance 

including the following: 
a. The applicant's name, address and phone number in full. 
b. Proof of property ownership, and whether there are any options on the property, or liens 
against it. 
c. A signed statement that the applicant is the owner of the property or officially acting on 
the owner's behalf. 
d. The name and address of the owner(s) ofrecord if the applicant is not the owner ofrecord 
( or firm or corporation having a legal or equitable interest in the land) and the signature of 
the owner(s). 

(WHITEWATER TOWNSHIP ZONING ORDINANCE) 

i( 



. l 

e. The address and/or parcel number of the property. 
f. Name and address of the developer (if different from the applicant) . 
g. Name and address_of engineer, architect, planner and/or land surveyor. 
h. Project title. 
i. Project description, including the total number of structures, units, bedrooms, offices, 
square feet, total and usable floor area, parking spaces, carports or garages, employees by 
shift, amount of recreation and open space, type of recreation facilities to be provided, and 
related information as pertinent or otherwise required by the Ordinance. 
j. A vicinity map drawn at a scale of 1" = 2000' with the n rth point indicated. 
k. The gross and net acreage of all parcels in the projec 
L Land uses, zoning classification and existing struc 
parcels within 300 feet of the site. 
m. Project completion schedule/development Rh' , . 
n. Written statements relative to project · . ,:c,•'\. on existing·:ifij:rastructure (including traffic 
capacity of streets, schools and existin es) and on the natilial, environment of the site 
and adjoining lands. A formal impacts nt may be required. 'ffftf,, 

> i'.b 

o. A listing of types and quantities of h 9:ius subs es and pol 
will be used, stored or generated on-site at th,¥:·, c · · d completio 
Substance Reporting Form fi · '. · flan Review11 

t,-_ .. f~~'· 

g materials which 
the "Hazardous 

2. The site plan shall consist of an ace J.1 rep·,.,. J1:9tble draw1y'~€l,t a scale of not less than 1" = 20' 
or more than 1 "=200', showing the site Kif4\all lartq:{~tµin 30Qt("' the site. If multiple sheets are 
used, each shall be label. preparei1{g\:µtified:;;Jt~ql1,sjte p all depict the following: 

a. Location 9f . ,cl/or exi~g ''pirtyf;ijii~~' dimensions, legal descriptions, 
setback lines ahtfi:nonume ''\ ations. < · - · ' 
b. Existing topdgtitp,hic el · ons at tw t intervals, proposed grades and direction of 
drain '2t~1~;to, 
c,f;:{ +r~i\;:d t1P;.,.3t;;¥l , site ~t least to the detail provided by U. S. 

;1~p3,1· onservat104;~~1:V1cei~~, any ce . 19n of bonngs. 
· af.:I,pcation and typ!:lo,f sigmfi@t!t existing vegetation. 
e. ·t;~~}ttion and el~$a~9ns of~~sting water courses and water bodies, including county 
drainsapiman-made su1:afe drailiige ways, :floodplains and wetlands. 
f. Locatio]j'J>f existing ajld proposed buildings and intended uses thereof, as well as the 
length, wiT:ftit;t;,,!lfld heigff " of each building and typical elevation views of proposed 
structures. 't;)h 
g. Proposed locafiqt,°',·;s1,ccessory structures, buildings and uses, including but not limited to 
all flagpoles, light ''p3fes, bulkheads, docks, storage sheds, transformers, air conditioners, 
generators and similar equipment, and the method of screening where applicable. 
h. Location of existing public roads, rights-of-way and private easements of record and 
abutting streets. 
i. Location of and dimensions of proposed streets, drives, curb cuts, and access easements, 
as well as acceleration, deceleration and passing lanes (if any) serving the development. 
Details of entryway and sign locations should be separately depicted with an elevation view. 
j. Location, design and dimensions of existing and/or proposed curbing, barrier free access, 
carports, parking areas (including indication of all spaces and method of surfacing), fire 
lanes and all lighting thereof. 
k. Location, size and characteristics of all loading and unloading areas. 
L Location and design of all sidewalks, walkways, bicycle paths and areas for public use. 

(WIIlTEWATER TOWNSHIP ZONING ORDINANCE) 



m. Location, design and specifications of existing and proposed service facilities and 
structures, above and below ground, including: 

(1) Public and private groundwater supply wells on-site and related distribution 
systems including fire hydrants and shut off valves. 
(2) Septic systems and other waste water treatment systems 
(3) Areas to be used for the storage, use, loading/unloading, recycling, or disposal of 
hazardous substances and polluting materials, including interior and exterior areas as 
well as any containment structures or clear zones required by government regulation 
or designed to meet the standards of this Article. 
( 4) Underground storage tank locations toge ·. ·th connected distribution and 
collection systems. 
(5) Location of exterior drains, dry well carc··,.basins, retention/detention areas, 
sumps and other facilities designed J Iiec , re or transport wastewater or 
stormwater to the naturally occ ·. /'. uifer. The · t of discharge for all drains 
and pipes shall be specified on (. ·t. plan. 

n. Location of all other utilities on the s eluding, but not lim1 to natural gas, electric, 
,-A,,_ 

cable TV, telephone and steam. ,.,,,,'.¾ 

o. Proposed location, dimensi~~ and details en spaces and~9mmon facilities 
such as community buildings,;g&'·· .. · · g poo ,~p icable. ·· ,,; 
p. Location, size and specifi~· t, ,,,,"}qf all signst't th temporary and permanent, and 
advertising features, with cross-sef}tions',!cil:1applicable 
q. Exterior lighting locations witnJ'1area ctBiij · atio· ill trated as well as the type of 
fixtures and shi~lsUiig[to:b~ used. . 
r. Location a11sJYt~P~t51:fid~~~J,1~ for all er screening features with cross 
sections: ··· ,.·. ·:,~"' 

s. Location and'1sp}c;,i;ficatiot1$Jor all pro .•. d perimeter and internal landscaping and other 
buff~~g;,f~~~es."F~t::~~9RM~iJ, scape rv\terial the proposed size at the time of planting 
DJ; ... "'. J,friqtiatf~: AU1v:~t~tatioi{f ,: . e~\~n the site must also be indicated, as well as 
... ,, ical sizebygep.era:Fig)~tion or r /;sizes as appropriate. 

''t ,.· .. ation, size ari<l·srecifi~~!QnS for SC "ening and fencing of all trash receptacles and 
ot ~l!$qlid waste or liquig wast~t~isposal facilities. 
u. DeiW:~~pon of areasII~v- the 'gft~)which are known or suspected to be contaminated, 
together"<·• a report on"tbe status of site clean-up. 
v. Identi?c 'i'l,:iff any s~ icant si~e amenities or unique ~atural features. . . . 
w. Identificatl6Q:J;>:fanx$, , · ficant views onto or from the site to or from adJmmng areas. 
x. A scale mode'i16f@~"pfoposed development may be required for all projects greater than 
40 acres, with more·\Raii 200 dwelling units, more than 40,000 square feet of building space 
or a proposed height of a principal structure of greater than 35 feet. 
y. North arrow, scale and date of original submittal and last revision. 
z. Seal of the registered engineer, architect, landscape architect, surveyor, or planner who 
prepared the plan. 

25.12 STANDARDS FOR DECISIONS: 

Each site plan shall conform to all provisions of the Zoning Ordinance and the standards listed 
below (unless variances have been granted): 

(WHITEWATER TOWNSHIP ZONING ORDINANCE) 



A. All elements of the site plan shall be harmoniously and efficiently organized in 
relation to topography, the size and type of the lot or unit, the character of adjoining property 
and the type and size of buildings. The site shall be so developed as not to impede the normal 
and orderly development or improvement of the surrounding property for uses permitted in this 
Ordinance. 

B. The landscape shall be preserved in its natural state, insofar as practical, by minimizing tree and 
soil removal, and by topographic modifications which result in maximum harmony with adjacent 
areas and will not adversely affect adjacent properties. 

!>1#!{1lih 
C. Special attention shall be given to proper site drainage §OttI'I':J;~moval of storm waters will not 

adversely affect neighboring properties. 

D. The site plan shall provide reasonable visual 
therein. Fences, walks, barriers and landscap· 
and enhancement of property and for the priV . 

J~ 

aJound privacx. ~r all dwelling units located 
Hall be used, as app):~priate, for the protection 

.·· :, of its occupants. C1':}, ',i\;-·~,:,:t> 
<~_f:~~~l>tt __ 

permit emerg~ij~y vehicle access 
-:---~i't:~l 

E. All buildings or groups of buildin . s shall be so ·· 
by some practical means to all sid( 

F. Every structure or dwelling unit sh lie street, walkway or other area 
dedicated to common use. 

,, .tun10:~lliih~~i'/•'.;;,:]t911;~side stor~ge areas, including areas for the storage of 
,,;,- -,, • c_--•,'4•<>,•.:••,< ,,-,,,-{?i,.: :C••;_,,;_·--: __ .:_

0
c_c ___ ,_ '>!• -'·••-:~cc-·t 

.J~.\9f are ·~~tble frdmi,;;f~tsi,g_ent1iff;districts or public thoroughfares, shall be 
_" · w,,, .• , ;;,~,~-,.·--~- ,,.-::,,,~th -,,_._-_,_,-_--•",'''•' ,,.-,_ -~ 

scr6~,7 • , by a vem9i1,,~creeni:~~~~isting ofs, .. Ju.ral or plant materials no less than six feet in 
heighfunless modifiecLoy.the Planning Commission. 

·. !:(f:;t;r), 0,1~rf f ~\ . 
I. Exterior ligh,!iJ1g shall be de'stgh,ed and' ,)alled to conform with the standards required in Article 

29.00, ExteiioJ!1,jghting RegµlaJions. 
/-.,,,~ . --- s 

J. All signs and adv~?ii~µig fea. .. ,,, '~ shall be designed and installed to conform with the standards 
and requirements of ~i~l~}30.00, Sign Regulations. 

'"'tf\/;:>~ 
K. The arrangement of public or common ways for vehicular and pedestrian circulation shall 

respect the pattern of existing or planned streets and pedestrian or bicycle pathways in the area. 
Streets and drives which are part of an existing or planned street pattern which serves adjacent 
development shall be of a width appropriate to the traffic volume they will carry and shall have 
a dedicated right-of-way equal to that specified in the Comprehensive Master Plan. 

L. All streets including streets in condominium developments shall be developed in accordance with 
the Subdivision Control Ordinance and County Road Commission or Township Private Road 
Standard specifications. 

(WHITEWATER TOWNSIIlP ZONING ORDINANCE) 



M. Site plans shall conform to all applicable requirements of state and federal statutes and 
approval may be conditioned on the applicant receiving necessary state and federal permits 
before final site plan approval or an occupancy permit is granted. 

N. All land use developments shall be consistent with and promote the intent and purpose of this 
ordinance and shall not be contrary to the public health, safety and welfare. 

0. All land uses and developments shall conform with the applicable goals, policies and objectives 
in the Township Master Plan. 

P. Standards for Groundwater Protection: 
1. The project and related improvements s.haJil ~signed to protect the natural 
environment, including lakes, ponds, streams wet,lru:ids, obd lains, groundwater and steep 
slopes. · 
2. Stormwater management and drainqgi! 1lities shall be de~igned to retain the natural 
retention and storage capacity of any~l'W;':,~.and, water body or''w~}Y~~ourse and shall not 
increase flooding or the potential for polluti~~il surfac5':Rf groundwa'f€~;,.pn-site or off-site. 
3. General purpose floor drains.shall be allow~glR ,,. - ~y are connected2!9 a public sewer 
system, an on-site holding~fa:n~: .. ,or a system'.:;!" 'zed through a sl~le groundwater 
discharge permit. · ··•·•··-•--·, -- --.. . 
4. Sites at which hazardous subst@ce 'pgHuting m ,,tials are stored, used, or generated 
shall be designed to prevent sp.ill~. an {fi's' ges f8!1};' air, surface of the ground, 
groundwater, lak ,,,.,~!l!l1:s, rivers:'b\\\yetl ,~:t,ad4itio'" ', , up-to-date contingency plan 
for the hand\: clea&'HP of uncoti'c: . Is'iqf~azar ous substances and polluting 
materials shat _.... laced oirtfile in thlt . es of the 0Zoning Administrator and the Fire ·- ··.<,', .. ,,-,.,,/ 
Chief. The req .• ~ent to\i-~port all unc;o;ntained spills immediately to both the Zoning 
Acrrt1:~.~~:t~r andwrn~i¥e ~J:if ~~~9f1l be reqijir~d as a condition of Site Plan approval. 
5~ ~ggal,;1S:taletand 'R~c.leral age:n uir~in,ents for storage, spill prevention, record 

: ~e~ping, emerg~u~~.resp&~~';,transpo -.,,lif!isposal of hazardous substances and polluting 
tnate"rials shall be ~me,t. Nc;>?i;;gJscharges ''fo groundwater, including direct and indirect 
disbharges, shall be au6)yed wttl{eqt required permits and approvals . 

.,,,:::·,·.,.-,·.,_ ·::('.',,:·>W,.. '',;::>·'.<<,0,._ 

6. In d{t~~g confofmH:Uce witij}he standards in this zoning ordinance, the municipality 
shall ~ak~t~l? considei~}!~1n the publication titled "Small Business Guide to Secondary 
Containment'.,' Wtd other rn:6 ences . 

.,_,T ;~<;i:,;;~0, 
Q. Standards for Abov~gt9\ui,_~;torage and Use Areas for Hazardous Substances and Polluting 

Materials: '· JP' 
1. Secondary containment, for above ground areas where hazardous and polluting materials 
are stored of used, shall be provided. Secondary containment shall be sufficient to store the 
substance for the maximum anticipated period of time necessary for the recovery of any 
released substance. 
2. Outdoor storage of hazardous substances and polluting materials shall be prohibited 
except in product-tight containers which are protected from weather, leakage, accidental 
damage and vandalism. 
3. Secondary containment structures such as out buildings, storage rooms, sheds and pole 
barns, shall not have floor drains which outlet to soils, groundwater, or nearby drains or 
rivers. 

(WillTEW ATER TOWNSHIP ZONING ORDINANCE) 



4. Areas and facilities for loading and unloading of hazardous substances and polluting 
materials, as well as areas where such materials are handled and used, shall be designed and 
constructed to prevent discharge or runoff to floor drains, rivers, lakes, wetlands, 
groundwater and soils. 

R. Standards for Underground Storage Tanks when Permitted: 
1. Existing and new underground storage tanks shall be registered with the authorized state 
agency in accordance with the requirements of the U. S. Environmental Protection Agency 
and the State Police Fire Marshal Division. .··· ., 
2. Installation, operation, maintenance, closure and reri).gyal of underground storage tanks 

·····"••i,·.,:/ 
shall be in accordance with the requirements of the ,M\f?lugan Department of Environmental 
Quality. Leak detection, corrosion protection,f spilfprevention and overfill protection 
requirements shall be met. Records of mo ·){lfuonitorirlKor inventory control must be 
retained and available for review by gove ·'' , officials. '<t'11&1.:·'~ 
3. Out-of-service abandoned undergro}W,~;,.. s shall be eniptif$.

0
~d removed from the 

ground in accordance with the requireih{ '7' of the Michigan Depatt,!JJ;ent of Environmental 
Quality. ·~•· < · 

25.13 CONFORMITY TO APPR 

·:'.S>,... '>,, 

n@lstr,ator ., .. . g.pq~.~d .. $ndment to an approved site plan does not 
'nistiatlye}approvat'~defined';mg~:::l '((A), Zoning Administrative Approval, he or 
d the to th:e,Elanniri'g't:p,ipmission :fdr consideration. 

rJ,fl\ ·,'.'Jitt2, . 
. TO INITIAtE,CONST::&UCTION 

•?~i~~h 

A. Failure to initiatij:c9p.structio,,.;,,,, an approved site plan within 365 days of approval shall require 
the applicant to appd.fk~fore Jl1~:IPlanning Commission and demonstrate why the approval should 

,~,,,,;c.."-.._ C,'-c:•_,,.«_c_._,'f 

not be revoked. After a hija;rjpg}the Planning Commission may revoke a previously approved site 
plan for property on whi~ItJii:if physical development activity has occurred upon making written 
findings that one or more of the following circumstances exist: 

1. An error in the original approval is discovered either because of inaccurate information 
supplied by the applicant or administrative error by a staff member or other agency; 
2. Zoning regulations applicable to the project have been changed and the previously 
approved site plan does not comply with them; 
3. A change in state law, local charter, or other local ordinance affecting the previous 
approval has occurred; 
4. Pollution, impairment or destruction of the environment or to another legally protected 
public interest would occur if the project were to be constructed as previously approved. 

(WHITEWATER TOWNSHIP ZONING ORDINANCE) 



B. Thirty days prior to expiration of an approved site plan, an applicant may make application for a 
one year extension of the site plan at no fee. The applicant shall explain in writing why the 
development has not proceeded, what the current time frame is and why an extension should be 
granted. If the original approval of the site plan was by the Planning Commission, the applicant 
shall present his/her case in person or by representative at the next meeting of the Planning 
Commission. 
C. Revocation of an approved site plan shall be communicated in writing by certified mail to the 
property owner. 
D. Any subsequent re-submittal shall be processed as a new request with new fees. 

';\,f-, 

25.16 PERFORMANCE GUARANTEE 

In the interest of insuring compliance with the Zonin,~ 1 
.. • .; JR.visions, protecting the natural 

resources and the health, safety and welfare of t "''":s"idents of tli~'.j(g~hip and future users or 
inhabit~:s of an ar~a for w~~h a site plan f~~ pose~ use has b~f~tubmitted, the Planning 
Commission or Zomng Admlllistrator may req . applicant to depos1tti:P~rformance guarantee 
as set forth herein. The purpose of the per . , a,nce gmu;~tee is to't~hl!e completion of 
improvements connected with the pro osed use a;(,r'r• .. · . e. ·· ·r1'Sthis Ordinantirmc,:Iuding, but not 
limited to, roadways, lighting, utiliti }Valks, draina ... { , es, screens, walls @ti landscaping. 

-~:~:>>- ·-;-yr~~/?¾-~ 

A. Performance guarantee as used her · 
bank letter of credit in the amount of 125 
determined by the appli~eyfi . rified b 

B. Where the Zoning ~cJministra 
said performance guaraiite~,. shall . eposited ,. 
Use Permitfg developfue1\~: · .J\[~ftp.e Ian· 
the To~!µ'•,;. . . psit ilie~ff~Gmi'ancg}1 · an 
check,.,~Ji;iffuterest .,,• .. ;,. escrowt4Qcount. · 

ssion quires a performance guarantee, 
he Treasurer prior to the issuance of a Land 
·, on the deposit of the performance guarantee 

if in the form of cash deposit or certified 

C. An a~i1Sve,\i site plan sh .so ;:i1;tijl?~ the period of time within which the improvements for 
which the perfomiance guarari . :'14as beeirf~quired are to be completed. The period will begin from 
the date of the is§~ance of the Lriti'ifUse Permit. 

D. In the event the p~'.ij rmW,it guarantee deposited is a cash deposit or certified check, the 
township shall rebate t~'" ,,,~·'Jfoant fifty (50) percent of the deposited funds when sixty (60) per 
cent of the required impro ?~nts are completed as confirmed by the Zoning Administrator, and 
the remaining fifty (50) percent of the deposited funds when one hundred (100) percent of the 
required improvements are completed as confirmed by the Zoning Administrator. 

E. In the event the applicant defaults in making the improvements for which the performance 
guarantee was required within the time period established by the Township, the Township shall 
have the right to use the performance guarantee deposited and any interest earned thereon to 
complete the improvements through contract or otherwise, including specifically the right to enter 
upon the subject property to make improvements. If the performance guarantee is not sufficient to 
allow the Township to complete the improvements for which it was posted, the applicant shall be 
required to pay the township the amounts by which the costs of completing the improvements 
exceeds the amount of the performance guarantee deposited. Should the Township use the 

(WHITEWATER TOWNSHIP ZONING ORDINANCE) 



performance guarantee or a portion thereof, to complete the required improvements, any 
amounts remaining after said completion shall be applied first to the Township administrative costs 
in completing the improvement with any balance remaining being refunded to the applicant. If the 
applicant has been required to post a performance guarantee or bond with another governmental 
agency other than the Township to insure completion of an improvement associated with the 
proposed use prior to the Township's conditional approval, the applicant shall not be required to 
deposit with the township a performance guarantee for that specific improvement. At the time the 
performance guarantee is deposited with the township and prior to the issuance of a Land Use 
Permit, the applicant shall enter an agreement incorporating the prqvisions hereof with the township 
regarding the performance guarantee. /j't 

\J' 

25.17 AS-BUILT SITE PLAN 
,:\ ,,: ;iii};;,c,,_ 

Upon completion of the installation of required llll:Pte,:Yements as snq,~ on the approved site plan, 
including changes and/or amendments, the pro y,:, " \%ner shall submlt1g};tp.e Zoning Administrator 
3 copies of an "as built" site plan, certified by t ,L _gineer or surveyor, ai'I~~t one week prior to the 

"!,fi;\[4\;;~ -'.c,: -, ,_ ',-, __ 

anticipated occupancy of any building. The Zoning\~,qministratq1,: shall circulat~Jhe "as built" plans 
among the appropriate departments for review to iristtf~,c,onfotmity with the apprq~~d site plan and 
other township requirements. Once ¢at}r:,qepartment 1:i<1sJ~ifpjcf~ed the "as built'iipfans the Zoning 

~-- ,-i---:~,-c _ ---~,:"-c-- ·, ~fhi,·',,c·,7°" 

Administrator may make the final inspectiol'.i1U14 issue the"(il~cu ancy Permit. 
:-:-,---)\ -,r.--,------- _-,°" •·~{'i-i 

25.18 ZONING ADMINISTRATIVE A£J>ROV 

A. The Zoning A 
following site plans 
applicant so requests: 

1. Acc~-~~o.1)'.,,!lses or'' 
existirig:IT$_~/;}'fhyre Sal 

t~~iKn req~i1e'ni~bi~ of 

,- --- \ . 

ve with conditions or deny the 
-~•~i,-, Commission except where the 

2. ':t~l{iJflllsion and/or"a~dNon t 
afff~A~!fements of thi$tQrdin ''·"''"- d does not increase the size of the existing or proposed 
structm:~;py more than l~QP squareJ'eet or does not increase the existing or proposed use by 
more than;j~n (10) percent;\vhichever is less. 

3. A change iii{ilie internal]ltjor plan which does not increase the intensity of use or parking 
requirements_,::?s'"t), _,;-;;,Jlt 

4. Movement of a btiilq.µig;;:diive, road or parking by up to twenty (20) feet during construction 
due to unanticipatecI\i.nd documented constraint, to improve safety or to preserve natural 
features. The site plan shall still meet all required setbacks and other standards of this 
Ordinance. 

5. An existing building and site to be re-occupied by a use permitted in the subject zoning 
district where the new use will not require significant changes in the existing site facilities. 

6. Expansion and alterations of landscaping areas, sidewalks, bike paths and fences consistent 
with this Ordinance. 

7. Relocation of a trash receptacle and/or installation of screening. 
8. Relocation or replacement of a sign meeting the dimensional and locational standards. 
9. Modifications to upgrade a building to state barrier free design. 

(WHITEWATER TOWNSHIP ZONING ORDINANCE) 



10. Increases in off-street parking areas, parking buildings and/or structures, 
increases in loading/unloading spaces in commercial and industrial Zoning Districts, and 
landscape improvements as required by this Ordinance. 

11. Alterations to the off-street parking layout or installation of pavement and curbing 
improvements provided that the total number of spaces remains constant and meets, or if 
necessary has been modified to meet, the ordinance requirements for the building and/or 
use. 

12. Changes to lighting consistent with this Ordinance. 
13. Situations similar to the above. 

B. The Zoning Administrator shall apply all applicable staµdiif · and procedures of this Ordinance 
in approving, conditionally approving or denying site,plaI_¥1a'.rtcl.determine if the submittal shall 
comply with Section 25 .11 (F), Required Information,. dr.S~cti6ii2519, Plot Plans in Lieu of a Site 
~~ ·~· -

C. The applicant shall submit the Township a 

D. The Zoning Administrator shall make a report 6:f' 
Commission. · 

25.19 APPEALS OF FINAL SITE 

A. Any person aggriev~d _._ :~ ptpmissigy, or Zoning Administrator in 
granting or denying P.I?PiPVa of:/ al site . tn if $p~al"~1g~R, decision to the Zoning Board of 
Appeals. The appeal'.*tij~t be filed .,Jhin seve <t::i}Hays of th~;,;eftcision and shall state the factual 
basis for the appeal. 1-ToJappeal sha,}1 stay actioij\pn the issuance of any permit pursuant to an 

~--- -- ,, , -- - ~-,.; ,' _,,_ <-~ 

approved sit~ p\;J.Q., < ,., _ 

_ ,,, .}:Js;:1 · 'ii,'~1 

B. Th~i:t~~g Boar ~pe ;'~~:~1 review . ~brd of action taken on the final site plan and 
shall det~rwJne whether '::.:rt::.eord S\!Pports the ac ion taken. No new evidence shall be presented. 
The Zoniii~fi89ard of Appe%ils);µall appi,hxe the final site plan if the requirements of this Section 
and other applfgijple ordinanc~j~guiremeiJls are met. The Zoning Board of Appeals shall make 
written findingsin,~µJ?pOrt of its"""• . on on the appeal. 

25.20 PLOT PLANSIN:.LEIUO A SITE PLAN 
-~ --. . \ '~!-~~~~~;} 

A. The Zoning Administr elf may accept a plot plan in specific instances upon determining a 
complete site plan is not considered essential to ensure compliance with the intent and standards of 
this Ordinance. 

B. A plot plan may be permitted for the following uses, when permitted in the zoning district: 
1. Group Day Care Homes. 
2. Essential Services Buildings. 
3. Home Occupations. 
4. Two-family Dwellings. 
5. Accessory Open Air Businesses. 
6. Accessory Buildings and Structures. 
7. Outdoor Recreational Facilities, not including Commercial Campgrounds. 

(WHITEWATER TOWNSHIP ZONING ORDINANCE) 



8. Temporary Uses and Seasonal Sales 
9. Bed and Breakfast Establishments. 
10. Dog Kennels 

C. Plot plan submittals shall include the following: 
1. Application form and fee. 

Activities. 

2. Name, address and phone number of the applicant. 
3. North arrow. 
4. Legal description of the property. 
5. A plan drawn to scale. 
6. Property lines and dimensions. A\,} .. 
7. Existing and proposed parking including the nw:n~.~r1,:9f:1~paces provided and the number 

required according to Section 34.00, Off Street P~g at1t'(~Q,fiding. If changes are made to 
the parking area, a detail of the pavement, s(frh water runct~l~Jculations and a description 
of detentions methods shall be provide ·· " ··,y·"" 

8. Details of any existing, new, or changes>. , ·veways. 
9. Location and details of existing or proposed~ignage. 
10. General illustration of existin~0£r proposed lart~}~~PM1~,.~J, 
11. Layout of existing or propos '',.,,;,.:ties. ';/4'{~!:fY 
12. Layout of existing or proposed 'jige1. · . . ,£ ,, 
13. Floor plan of the building under'Q()I).sid~t~'tigp and bui!dipg elevations if applicable. 
14. Any other items as requested by tff~J~pning}\:~strato , 

,,~,=,--y----::L:t~ ,_ , 

25.21 SPECIAL U · ~-, 

A public hearing shall ht:t1.,¥.9.uired~Rt all speci 
filed in prop.~t",;forw; and wi~'!hy,JeqHU'cd,gata, 
the said.~J?11J!~~ti•11~PRJ} thetaj~~darfoftij$)Jh 
object.~f:;~e·hearing'to~f:~.~rved);;;t\1}: 

Q~r:NTS: 

applications. When an application has been 
oning Administrator shall immediately place 

. d cause notices stating the time, place and 

-,,_'.!~l;~~,-~___ -:a{~f~~:~;~>~ -, 
One (1) noti~~J:hat said heaiiiig:i~ to b .c.~l.Q shall be published in a newspaper that circulates in the 
Township a.n:&~~~!l be served P~!~~nally'Bf~y mail not less than fifteen (15) days prior to the day of 
such hearing, up'1

~· e applicai,if}, or the appellant, the Zoning Administrator and all persons 
assessed for any re , .. Jwerty wtt)iw three hundred (300) feet, and to the occupants of any structure 
within three hundred'{3QQ), feetqfJhe premises in question. Such notices shall be served personally 
or by regular mail, add;es~~sf~!Q';fhe respective owners and tenants at the address given in the last 
assessment roll. If the name.+5f the occupant is unknown, the term "occupant" may be used in 
making notification. Any party may appear at such hearings in person or by agent or by attorney. 

25.22 ADDITIONAL CONDITIONS OF SPECIAL USES. 

A. BED AND BREAKFAST ESTABLISHMENTS. 

1. Statement of Intent. It is the intent of this Section to establish reasonable standards for 
Bed and Breakfast Establishments to assure that: 

a. The property is suitable for transient lodging facilities. 
b. The use is compatible with other uses in the residential and agricultural districts. 
c. Residential and agricultural lands shall not be subject to increased trespass. 

(WHITEWATER TOWNSHIP ZONING ORDINANCE) 



d. The impact of the establishment is no greater than that of a private 
home with house guests. 

2. Minimum Requirements. The following requirements for Bed and Breakfast 
Establishments together with any other applicable requirements of this Ordinance shall be 
complied with: 

a. The minimum lot size shall be one (1) acre. 
b. Off-street parking shall be provided ( one space per room). Vehicle parking is 
prohibited between the front of the building and public right-of-way. 
c. One non-illuminated sign, identifying the estc!bJishment, not to exceed four (4) 
square feet in area and not closer to the stre~tHh!e than fifteen (15) feet shall be 
allowed. i•i .. : •• \.;l,, 
d. Such Bed and Breakfast Establishmet11~}sli''' not be located less than fifteen 
hundred (1500) feet apart. ,,y'"'· :t\?j?" .. 
e. The residence shall be the princi''lij')dwelling ufiltt'• n the property and shall be 
owner-occupied at all times. 
f. The residence shall have at le 
g. Not more than three (3) sleep 

(2) exits to the out ncSrs. 
. residence/' 

purposes. . ... 
h. Not more than eigh{l$}9yernight gu 
i. The rooms utilized fojf#f~epll}g shall be . , of the primary residential use and 
not specifically construct~d/of"r~~!,@.!.purpos l·#l~:!t" 
j. The rental sleeping room't allirtix~'.~•;~inim&ij·~i?e of one hundred (100) square 

.. ''"''• . ·. .,. y., .. .• ,.. ·····2& 
feet for);··· ._rn'~l occupan ith ap}~q, itional • (30) square feet for each 

.. 'maxmiµm of fo " oc'cuf{ oom. 
valu~H'.6'ft;of the •. • '.dseptic s eln by the Health Department and 

\:-_:_,_,_: _,_ '¾'1,t~ ,";f 

to the ~g~ncy's requit~m.ents shall be supplied by the owner/occupant. 

. ., ,, ····•·· .··... .1fp~s·3:¼9J!.,~~all 't~qH,µ-e that a floor plan drawn to an architectural 
i!scalg,g(It~t le :llit:Jf/8 hlcB'ill?;tooi'~!}on file with the Fire Department. 

m. Eatht(j~er/op~mtor of a B~ d" Breakfast Establishment shall keep a guest 
.... . ,, registry whicl,~hal!B~'l~vailable for inspection by the Zoning Administrator, police 

'h 'Jt\,and fire offic:iJl~:4urinit1ij$nnal business hours. 
r.-?~\_ -:y:,r:}. \,_-;:,_ /''};: 
'~i\hThe length of;/~ for eacijiguest shall not exceed seven (7) days within any thirty .,,,,,), . . 

(30 ay period. 
o. >~t event t e Planning Commission determines that noise generation may 
be disfiittliQg tp"jq~tghbors, or that the location of the establishment is in an area 
where tresp;)t 4 tto adjacent properties is likely to occur, then the Planning 
Commission: y require that fencing and/or a planting buffer be constructed and 
maintained. 
p. Rental of snowmobiles, A TVs or similar vehicles, boats and other marine 
equipment, in conjunction with the operation of the establishment shall be 
prohibited. 
q. A special use permit shall not be granted if the essential character of a lot or 
structure within a residential or agricultural district, in terms of use, traffic 
generation or appearance will be changed substantially by the occurrence of the bed 
and breakfast use. 

B. Sexually Oriented Businesses. 
1. INTENT: 

(WHITEWATER TOWNSHIP ZONING ORDINANCE) 

I 



Sexually oriented businesses require special supervision in order to protect and 
preserve the health, safety, and welfare of the patrons of such business as well as the 

. ( citizens of the communities where they are located. 

There is convincing documented evidence that sexually oriented businesses, because of 
their nature, have a deleterious effect on both the existing businesses around them and the 
surrounding residential areas adjacent to them, causing increased crime and downgrading 
of property values. 

It is recognized that sexually oriented businesses, due. · ir nature, have serious 
objectionable characteristics, particularly when they",~~· ocated in close proximity to 
each other, thereby contributing to urban blight .. •.••·· 'do}Vtl rading the quality of life in the 

4/ 1/ ', 
adjacent area. ·1 ··· 

The Township of Whitewater desires t<;~,jpfj:yent these advers •s., .• ~"'cts and thereby protect 
the health, safety, and welfare of the citjt~pry, preserve the prop~•·"'- values and character 
of surrounding neighborhoods and detei'f 11t'::s read of u ban blight. . J:t,:,,_ 

.~2"' 
It is not the intent of this Ordin 
Amendment of the United St~ 
content neutral Ordinance whic 
oriented businesses. 

:"</,~:~~--. 
vity protected brt~e First 

· chigan Constitution, but to enact a 
condary effects of sexually 

It is not the u;it~atf h e . t~w~reAtt~~}l,qone or legitimize the 
distribution d±hne obscene materials, , ,., Jt'rownslnlHif Whitewater recognizes that 
state and federaH(&\y:.prohib~J~ the distribtltiqn of obscene materials and expects and 
encow;a;g~~ ~tate ertf{>lx~W,~A.t'.Offifi~ls to ~i]fqrce state and federal obscenity statutes 
agaiqst!any;tsii~h)lleg!~i\ff\••~[Hes;2w•'' . th ship of Whitewater. 

/ PURPOSE: 
. ··••YG"" , 

ll'~,!he purpose oEJpi,Kordin. ce to regula e sexually oriented businesses and related 
acttylties to promotetli~•J1.ealt ety, and general welfare of the citizens of the 
To~S~p, and to estaHl1ss1;l reason ... Je and uniform regulations to prevent the deleterious 
locatiori'ajJ?f:eoncentrati'q9,'pf sexually oriented businesses within the Township. The 
provisions 16~Jhts Ordi :,,9~ do not have the purpose of imposing a limitation or 
restriction on~tli,¢;~nt ··r any communicative material, including sexually oriented 
materials. Simirar,f~( ot the intent of this Ordinance to restrict or deny access by 
adults to sexually otiented materials protected by the First Amendment of the United 
States Constitution, or to deny access by the distributors and exhibitors of sexually 
oriented entertainment to their intended market. Neither is it the intent of this Ordinance 
to condone or legitimize the distribution of obscene materials. 

3. DEFINITIONS: 

a. ADULT BOOKSTORE OR ADULT VIDEO STORE means a commercial 
establishment, which, as one of its principal business purposes, offers for sale or 
rental one or more of the following: 
1. books, magazines, periodicals or other printed matter, photographs, film, 

motion pictures, video cassettes or video reproductions, slides, or other visual 

(WHITEWATER TOWNSHIP ZONING ORDINANCE) 



representations which depict or describe "specified sexual 
activities" or "specified anatomical areas"; or 

2. instruments, devices, or paraphernalia which are designed for use in 
connection with "specified sexual activities." 

A commercial establishment may have other principal business purposes that do 
not involve the offering fot sale or rental of material depicting or describing 
"specified sexual activities" or "specified anatomical areas" and may still be 
categorized as ADULT BOOKSTORE or ADU:f.,,J VIDEO STORE. The sale or 
rental of those items described in subparagrapl:(' and (b) above shall be 
deemed to constitute a principal business · ·., .. ·· · rises 50% or more of sales 
volume or display area of visible invento he establishment. 

For purposes ofthis section 25.20~t~~;sales vol~rii6}'¥iH mean-the total amount 
of sales in a six ( 6) month periqgJlj;l!Jitis, if more than'5,9,lJ(~ of the total sales comes 
from sexually oriented items, tfl~~'T! will be considered '~i~d11lt bookstore or 
adult video store; ''"'sif;'t:l:, _4f't• ·•·l<fth. 
Sales of Sexuall Oriented Items = Sat o~~e' of Sexually •;;,l~{.r_··.J) 

Total Sales c;~riented Items · 

Sexu 

,b'. ,Afi~bfl:.ENTER"L ·. NJJ1ESTABhISHMENT means a theater, concert hall, 
.•· auditdrt'"a"', or si±rtlf,,,~ommetdf«J;~Jt~blishment which regularly features persons 
who appea statefgfp.udity or Hve performances presented for the enjoyment 
pf the audien ·. hich'li'i{~aid or promised to pay an admission fee and which are 
' . ,';-: - ~~'>'.?;!\. 

haracterized b e expos(q:e of "specified anatomical areas" or by "specified 
~:.: .. ;)..,, .,,. 

seij:i,~ activities. 
c. ADUD'I MINI- . ATER means a commercial establishment where, for any 

form df'~~gsiq~f~Utm, in an enclosed area with a capacity ofless than ten (10) 
persons, 'rtlnisj;iti8tion pictures, videocassettes, slides, or similar photographic 
reproductioii"§iare shown which are characterized by an emphasis on the depiction 
or description of "specified sexual activities" or "specified anatomical areas." 

d. D. ADULT MOTEL means a hotel, motel or similar commercial 
establishment which: 
1. offers accommodation to the public for any form of consideration and 

provides patrons with closed-circuit television transmissions, films, motion 
pictures, video cassettes, slides, or other photographic reproductions which are 
characterized by the depiction or description of "specified sexual activities" or 
"specified anatomical areas"; and has a sign visible from the public right of 
way which advertises the availability of the adult type of photographic 
reproductions; or 

(WHITEWATER TOWNSHIP ZONING ORDINANCE) 



'I 

2. (b) offers sleeping rooms for rent for a period of time that 
is less than twenty-four (24) hours. 

e. ADULT MOTION PICTURE THEATER means a commercial establishment 
where, for any form of consideration, films, motion pictures, video cassettes, 
slides, or similar photographic reproductions are regularly shown which are 
characterized by the depiction or description of "specified sexual activities" or 
"specified anatomical areas." 

f. ESCORT means a person who, for a fee, tip, or other consideration, agrees or 
offers to act as a companion, guide, or date for at1other person, or who agrees or 

,-.,,_>~ 

offers to privately model lingerie or to privat~ly:p~rform a striptease for another 
AL,</ person. · .,, 

g. ESCORT AGENCY means a person or}>}-1 ,,,; ,,:;t4ssociation who furnishes, offers 
to furnish, or advertises to furnish, escort} as on~'~p;its primary business purposes 
for a fee, tip, or other consideratio · ·tfl\~ 

h. ESTABLISHMENT means and., . es any of the follQw,ing: 
1. the opening or commence:rfl . , f any sexually orientJij)~~siness as a new 

business; •f,f;~):i,,... . , ·· . ':t.;,s~,. 
2. the conversion of8:!: existing bu1~~~~ tg:;~. exually oriefit~}!,lmsiness; 
3. the additions of att· ually orienteci)jusTrfess to any other existing sexually 

oriented business;e/q · 
4. the relocation of an riented busifiess. 

1. PERMITTEE means a pJt§~Jl to ::~:n,,. . permitft3\:operate a sexually oriented 
business.' . issued, asc,f;~ 11 as {tjtliyiduabll~ted as an applicant on the 
applicll.ti,,. o ·t. F'\t:i( .• ;!Ic~,··.. ··~ 

j. PERlVII'f;;,iµeans a l<~cial use p XW+ or the operation of a sexually oriented 
busines.s~~ssued suant to tfil§l§ection 25.20 B. 

k. ,:;NUDITY oH,,S't ,:Nl.J,DITYm~fIDS the appearance of a human bare 
.tt1t}tauu~·e~•:tnus;l'J . _lilt,izr~1~!~ k~\µtals, or fe~al~ breas~ without a fully 

·· Jl' opaque c~mplete · .,,,;, .. ,;;rmg of tlie,:\t~.ast below a pomt immediately above the top 
",. of the areolaffOf hlllfi'"h,, ale genitafs in a discernible turgid state even if 
. 1 J'·,,~ompletely antt~~paque, sFered. 

I. i rl?ERSON meart~ •. "91 indiv dg'al, proprietorship, partnership, Limited Liability 
·cornpany, corpofc1tton, association, or other legal entity. 

m. SEXUALLY ORJE:1'lTED BUSINESS means an adult bookstore or video store, 
adult ent~rj:ai11111,eijf'establishment, adult mini-theater, adult motel, adult motion 
picture tlre&.l~t:·:eie~rt or escort agency. 

n. SPECIFIEDANATOMICAL AREAS includes: 
1. less than completely and opaquely covered human genitals, pubic regions, 

buttocks and/or female breasts below a point immediately above the top of the 
areola; 

2. human male genitals in a discernible turgid state even if completely and 
opaquely covered. 

o. SPECIFIED SEXUAL ACTIVITIES includes: 
1. acts of human masturbation, sexual intercourse, or sodomy; 

2. fondling or other erotic touching of human genitals, pubic regions, buttocks, 
or female breasts; 

3. hlillan genital in a state of sexual stimulation or arousal. 

(WHITEWATER TOWNSHIP ZONING ORDINANCE) 



4. 

p. TRANSFER OF OWNERSHIP OR CONTROL of a sexually 
oriented business means and includes any of the following: 
1. the sale, lease, or sublease of a business; 
2. controlling interest in the business, whether by sale, exchange, or similar 

means; 
3. the establishment of a trust, gift, or other similar legal device which transfers 

the ownership or control of the business, except for transfer by bequest or 
other operation of law upon death of the person possessing the ownership or 
control. 

SPECIAL LAND USE PERMIT REOUIREMENTS;t ·addition to the requirement for 
Site Plan Review (Article XXV). .£;t1lffeJ~·," 
A. It shall be unlawful for a person to om;:ttit~:l{ sexli~Jly,: oriented business without a 

valid Special Use Permit issued b ·<,t:;, lanning C'ts~ssion. 
B. An application for a permit mu§ ade on a form ptt>yiµed by the Township of 

Whitewater. The Township of .: tewater must providtif!t~application. A 
'"\;'<:::f{,.-.,., __ t'f.:f\:Tt,<·· 

sketch or diagram showing the con:ffgyration qfJhe premise§l:ft12luding a 
statement of display area occupied 1:,y~l\e. :~Js, must acc;riipflµy the 
application. This sk , diagram neec,iiy"';} 'e professionally prepared if the 
building is already es sv,. the towrffi{Ap,, but it must be drawn to a 
designated scale or dra w·=-•-ed dimensto11:8 of the interior of the premises 
to an accuracy of plus or · · ches. '"+ft .. , 

C. Applica!it>.. ermit s' eliver~~~to the Zoning 
AdmiBfs\ta' pplican ive the following information 
on the1~ppJication ... , . . : , 

1. The narnefstr-eet adij!~ss, and ma . address, if different, and driver's license 

,·r1'1~R~r oftli~·~~~~gq~!J~:.4~/~he ha~l~rch a driver's license . 
.. , ''.,;;;?JJh<t:11~~' stteet;adiffess;rati~~ ·:g;,gµdress, if different, of the owner(s), if 

diff erehtIJl;1k,, . J h. . "¥C> 

The name 'tui:cl~r which'the establis ent is to be operated and a general 
· description ofJftfl service~Jp be provided . 

.,e telephonefiiw}.ber oft~~iestablishment or, if unavailable, the applicant's. 
Pk dress and"f,f description of the tract of land on which the establishment 

is t '".;;~~cated. t 
6. All infdtf!l€ltiop,,,j;essary to answer the requirements in subsection 5(A.). 

D. The fact thai:'~~~i~'fiifpossesses other types of state or county permits and/or licenses 
does not exempt'liifu!her from the requirement of obtaining a Special Land Use 
Permit to run a sexually oriented business from the Township of Whitewater. 

E. The application shall be accompanied by the following: 
1. Payment of the application fee in full; 

2. Proof of current fee simple ownership of the tract of land on which the 
establishment is to be situated in the form of a copy of the recorded deed, land 
contract, or other instrument of conveyance; 

3. The lease, purchase contract, purchase option contract, lease option contract 
or other document(s) evidencing the legally enforceable right of the ownership 
or proposed by owners of the establishment to have or obtain the use and 
possession of the tract or portion thereof that is to be used for the 

(WHITEWATER TOWNSHIP ZONING ORDINANCE) 



5. 

establishment for the purpose of the operation of the establishment, if the 
persons identified as the fee simple owners(s) of the tract ofland in subsection 
{ 4. E (2)} are not also the owners of the establishment. 

4. A letter from the owner acknowledging the building is to be used for a 
Sexually Oriented Business, if the applicant is not in fact the owner of the 
building or tract of land. 

5. Proof of application to Grand Traverse County Health Department, 
Construction Code, Drain Commission or Department of Environmental 
Quality or other agency for the required penwts, if applicable. 

F. The application shall contain a notarized stateni,~µfhmder oath that: 
1. The applicant has personal knowledge of t4eJ:piohnation contained in the 

application and that the information con ;"'<''il("', ein and furnished therewith is 
true and correct; and . · • .... '' 

2. The applicant has read the provisi9~§~9fthis Artie , ,. (Site Plan Review) . 
. · >:;;V "/10/J)!fy" 

ISSUANCE OF PERMIT: .. ·•• \f:!~;,,. 
A. The Planning Commission shaift~ijR!~Ve the issuance of~ s~~9,!al Land use 

Permit so long as the applicant corifo~s to e terms and "c•trditions of this 
¾,f--,.,<'c'":',.. ,--' ' 

Zoning Ordinance sp~··• • cally Article's).}.. He Plan Review. /he Planning 
Commission shall issti it within Nlp~,Y (90) days after receipt of a 
complete application ....... ,, ,. nd one ot'ii:l)n:e of the following to be true: 

'.~-- ~t'i ,,~,~~ ~ii>-. 

1. An applicant is mi. ' tn,,(18) years(" age. 
, ''';~:~:i:-~?:1-' 1\ 

2. ~ffiif~aqt is over ,:,,)n his:i>iYtil~ntof ta , fines, or penalties 
ssed tfg~il}st him Jfliiup~§·~tr up6ttli}wvin relation to a sexually 

,, :·,)1ted busr11~ss. '<~£:;:~::?v •.•,,JJ' 

3. An:applicanthasfailed to"JJ{9Yide information required by this Ordinance 
or ha:S-:f~l~.. Sw~red a qu~:ition or request for information on the 

lic~lis:r: ' ,.,, · 'lf~j,~ 
· ' .: .l?Plic ... . ho has · enied a permit by the township to operate a 
sextiallx; orieh en.business within the preceding twenty-four (24) months, 

•'.".'. \i": ~::%. >. ,,:f,,/~:-r 
or whoey.~)permifEt,p:;,pperate a sexually oriented business has been revoked 

,,c·'.;':_*.<,·\_ ·-,fo\-::X'i';-:::, 

within tne,!proceeding twenty-four (24) months. 
The permit.Jee required by this Ordinance has not been paid. 
,;,te propo'cl establishment is in violation of or is not in compliance with 
aQ}\9C rovisions of the Whitewater Township Zoning Ordinance. 

7. AIY'~p'_fl;. ant has been convicted of any of the following criminal offenses 
in anyJurisdiction: 
a. prostitution, procuring a prostitute, or solicitation of a prostitute; 
b. sale, distribution or display of obscene material; 
c. soliciting, procuring or aiding and abetting an unlawful sexual 

performance by a minor; 
d. possession, sale or distribution of child pornography; 
e. public lewdness; 
f. indecent exposure; 
g. indecent conduct with a child; 
h. sexual assault or rape; 
1. incest; 

(WHITEWATER TOWNSHIP ZONING ORDINANCE) 



B. 

C. 

D. 

E. 

j. sexual solicitation of a child. 
The applicant shall certify, as a part of the application, that he/she has not been 
convicted of any one or more of the foregoing criminal offenses. 
The permit, if granted, shall state on its face the name of the person or persons to 
whom it is granted, and the address of the sexually oriented business. The permit 
shall be posted in a conspicuous place at or near the entrance to the sexually 
oriented business so that it may be easily read at any time. 
In the event that the Planning Commission determines that an applicant is not 
eligible for a permit, the applicant shall be given notice in writing of the reasons 
for the denial within sixty ( 60) days of the req~ipJJff a complete application to the 
Zoning Administrator. The applicant shall,Jlii:j~;fo days from the date of the 
notice to correct the grounds for denial. ,Jfl'.tljif$brrections are not made and notice 
of the corrections are not received in \Vtifi,rig to th~? ownship within the 10 days 
then the denial shall be deemed toJJ~ift; ~'±'feet. · .. ,-
An applicant may appeal the de9f~t6If'~fthe Planning·c·bmmission regarding a 

-/?f~~'?-~7.7 -:-<< ~'\- • 
denial to the Whitewater Townsgip, Zoning Board of Appeal . by filing a written 
notice of appeal within twenty-ori.ei(~l) days after the appli. · s provided with 

notice o~the Pl~~~.,Commission's~\~~ " . . . 
The Zomng Admllllst.r • ,1,nay also tal<.' s necessary to re ke a permit 1f 
he/she determines thaf'.~ .. ?~ttee gave f: ..• ~i\. misleading information in the 
material submitted duri:hg:JJ-ill1 . ation pr<:i(fes&, 

!--,.-. ' "';,£_: ~':-- ~'\ 

6. INSPECTION:. c/ .. ,,,.. i\ .·•• 

An applicant or perntl~ ·" "affaJ1cnv the Tow;n~h,i < .• ~, rulig: 0 .iro,inistrator or his appointed 
ct __ -: :A4\'•~-c-• ''<'.~::f-:=••-_ %'~:i••}: ___ ,-,,/'"=yt•,,ij/? "%?J#½w~$)= 

representative to inspeq}the premi~eS, of a sexu~Ui:oriented business for the purpose of insuring 
compliance with the la'Wat,any ti · 'tit is occupi~~f9y open for business. 

7. ~12§~:l:: ':j;Zf::, ..... 
An aI1¼],:™1t/ee for a sekµ~}li orie 
pay for:fij~11Rost of the adfuiW§trati· 
will detertnili:~Jhis annual fo'~.},'" 

'cf::~1~f tii:>, ·xJ:t,1\ 
8. ACTION;fQ REVOK.EPERMIT: 

,.'. ,(; __ 

-- , --'•{1, 

The Township Board 

The Whitewater Tbwm;hip Boar4.~hall take enforcement action, including the commencement of 
'VY}::(?:¾ __ (/·-'-:,": _ _,_'. 

suit seeking revocatidn::£1f"ta P,~yWiP~ if any of the following occurs: 
A. A permitte~i·g;j9;lalse or materially misleading information in the application 

B. 
process. 

,<" ---;;;, 

A permittee has been convicted of using and/or allowing the use of controlled 
substances within the establishment. 

C. A permittee has been convicted of prostitution or other activity fostering, 
promoting or otherwise facilitation prostitution, within the establishment or 
elsewhere. 

D. A permittee or employee of the sexually oriented business has been convicted of 
any crime of a sexual nature or involving sexual conduct or the solicitation 
thereof within the establishment or elsewhere. 

E. A permittee has been convicted of knowingly allowing a person under eighteen 
(18) years of age to enter the establishment. 

(WHITEWATER TOWNSHIP ZONING ORDINANCE) 

ii 



I 

,\ 

F. There has been a transfer of ownership or control of an establishment 
without the prior consent of the Planning Commission, as required herein. 

9. TRANSFER OF PERMIT: 
A permittee shall not transfer his permit to another without prior approval of the Planning 
Commission, nor shall a permittee operate a sexually oriented business under the authority of a 
permit at any place other than the address designated in the application. An application must be 
completed by the proposed permittee prior to the transfer and reviewed by the Planning 
Commission for continued compliance with section 25.20B. 

10. LOCATION RESTRICTIONS: 
A. A sexually oriented business may not b~56p~ra ~<!:,within 750 feet of: 

1. a church, synagogue or regular pliee offeJrgt.c.ms worship; 
2. a public or private element, ''9r secondarjff§!~qol; 
3. a boundary of any resid .:,."ii'. >foned district ot~y-Jesidential structure 

within or without a zon . a; ' 
4. a boundary of a public par )l\, 
5. a boundary of~ licensed daylqare ce 
6. another sexua!JYt9{tented busines~' 

B. A sexually oriented b~iri,es$;A1«;,1Y not be. din the same building, structure, 
or portion thereof, contatiwig'Fii~gph~r sexua · ented business. 

C. F ~r the purpose. 0~ this Or~]Th~nce;'ni~l~1Jrem~n 'i]ht~~~ be made in a strai~ht line, 
w1thou\Xi~., ·. rtervernng1~trucn.u:~,§,t,,, ects,*ftim the nearest port10n of the 
buildi11g?q'.Jt , ·· used as ipa,rtQftlfe p where a sexually oriented 
business\{~ condul o the nea_i~!t[pf operty 1 f the premises of a church, 

'f--.-.-'}\- --~-:-7'·-:c•-'.·--Y· 

synagogu~~):egular ce of worsn,j.p,,, or public or private elementary or secondary 
~chool, or to"llJ:e. :9µµdary '~f{an affected public park, residential district, 

ci!)i)\t'(i?':>__ ,-'.,~~~-t\ J.:t:it'·gt~?<-,, - • ❖~- ❖frlt_ . I • • • 

1 • 'J'.l:r::l!sgIJf~d day;; ·centet,ttt . t¼~ structure m a non-residential d1stnct. 
:D~~:' For pu.fi:>:Q§fS of s , .. ~~tion { lff. . fthis section, the distance between any two 

. •c:i:l'.;;",, sexually ·gnt~ttd bctsiti,~~,ses shall e made from the closest roofline of the 
· '·¥}·,~~ructure in wb.ic~ each o~~~ess is located. 

,_~:;.''"}\..,_ 

11. REGULATIONS PERTAINING TO ADULT ENTERTAINMENT 
ESTABLISHMENTS: 
A. A perso1(W,ho o : " · tes or causes to be operated an adult entertainment 

establishineilt:Ryffibh presents live entertainment for the enjoyment of an audience 
which has p1l:ilfor promised to pay an admission fee and which depicts specified 
sexual activities or displays specified anatomical areas, shall comply with the 
following requirements. 
1. Upon application for a sexually oriented business permit, the application 

shall be accompanied by a diagram of the premises showing a plan thereof 
specifying the location of one or more manager's stations and the location 
of all overhead lighting fixtures (indicating the type of illumination 
intensity of each such fixture) and designating any portion of the premises 
in excess of thirty (30) square feet of floor area. The diagram shall also 
designate the place at which the permit will be conspicuously posted, if 
granted. A professionally prepared diagram in the nature of an engineer's 
or architect's blueprint shall not be required, however, each diagram shall 

(WHITEWATER TOWNSHIP ZONING ORDINANCE) 



be oriented to the north or to some designated street or object and shall 
be drawn to a designated scale or with marked dimensions sufficient to 
show the various internal dimensions of all areas of the interior of the 
premises. 

2. The application shall be sworn to be tme and correct by the applicant. 
3. No alteration in the configuration or location of a manager's station may 

be made without the prior approval the Township Zoning Administrator. 
4. It is the duty of the owners and operator of the premises to ensure that at 

least one employee is on duty and situate in each manager's station at all 
times that any patron is present inside t ,· ennses. 

5. The interior of the premises shall b~ ured in such a manner that 
there is an unobstmcted view from~j, . <, .,. ger's station of every area of the 
premises to which any patron)s:~~rthittea•~ccess for any purpose 
excluding restrooms. Restrctcitits may not co:: . video reproduction ;,,,,,,7 ' 
equipment. If the premi§~~Jpas two or more ger's stations designated, 
then the interior of the Pr~\i,ses shall be configure~fi~ such a manner that 
there is an unobstmcted Vie}Y~t each aif~ of the pr~~~~§ to which any 
patron is permitted access fof "•'• f;,.,0 e1 from at leastfqµ~ of the 
manager's st .. , The view r . this subsection must be by direct 
line of sight fr '::rt!l<!nager' s ~ , ,ll• 

6. It shall be the d if;fit~,,,_ ers and,;t~~~ator, and it shall also be the duty 
of any agents and loy ~~ent int]'\~Jtwemises to ensure that the 
)'j~ix:,~~~-~.pecified ,;,,, pbsect ,,,·}J~,f(5J}!if~mains unobstmcted by any 

····• rs~ w t.,",. ercharicft§y,_" ·ra:cl<~~qf other materials at all times, 
,,, . d to ens at no pltiob', permitte1Vatcess to any area of the premises 
"'Ji,,<:.,}h, ''"i":,c-::;;._-,,· 

wuic,4 has b designate:otas, an area in which patrons will not be 
pe~t · catioi1}fi pursuant to subsection { 11 A(l)} of this 
,~~tio· .. 

:,;a.l\!~t£remr ''.'.';Pu}, hall be eq,,,,, u~a with overhead lighting fixtures of 
suffi~l~pt infe!tt:!Y to illuminate every place to which patrons are 
perrnitt~d acce~Y~tan illumination of not less than one (1.) foot-candle as 
measureg).t the tibof;level. 

8J;':'c , It shall be{tfl.,e duty of the owners and operator and it shall also be the duty 
i~of any agent~ and employees present in the premises to ensure that the 
;_41t11;pin~#<>µ described above is maintained at all times that any patron is 
ptesep;fdi'.irthe premises. 

9. The'~rehl.ises shall meet all barrier free requirements and building code 
requirements imposed by the County Building and Inspections 
Department. 

12. EXTERIOR PORTIONS OF SEXUALLY ORIENTED BUSINESSES: 
A. It shall be unlawful for an owner or operator of a sexually oriented business to 

allow the merchandise or activities of the establishment to be visible from a point 
that is outside the establishment. 

B. It shall be unlawful for the owner or operator of a sexually oriented business to 
allow the exterior portion of the sexually oriented business to have any words, 
lettering, photographs, silhouettes, drawing, or pictorial representations of a 

(WIDTEW ATER TOWNSHIP ZONING ORDINANCE) 

\ 



13. 

14. 

C. 

D. 

E. 

sexual or explicit manner except to the extent otherwise permitted by the 
provisions of this Ordinance. 
Proposed signage shall not include animated or flashing illumination of any type 
and otherwise conforms to the requirements of Township Zoning Ordinance 
Article XXX (Signs). Proposed signage may contain only the name of the 
sexually oriented business and shall not include photographs, silhouettes, 
2drawings, or pictorial representations of any type. 
All off-street parking areas shall be illuminated during all hours of operation in 
accordance with Article XXIX (Exterior Lighting.,Jlegulations) of the Whitewater 
Township Zoning Ordinance and shall othen.yi, '"ifl:re open to view from the 
adjacent roadway. Ji 
A sexually oriented business may not hc1.y(cn1ts!1eispeakers on the exterior of any 
buildings or anywhere on the outside,p:f,tjjei; proge+1y. 

:;·J)t) • •• ··.,.,:;,:;_:~~~,_ 

"' ~~ "" 
PERSONS YOUNGER THAN EIGHTEE#'PROHIBITED FROM ENTRY-
ATTENDANT REQUIRED: 
A. 

B. 

It shall be unlawful to allow ape . who is yg™?-ger than t~en (18) years of 
age to enter the premises of a sexual .. ie , ,,, f'usiness at any tirtl.e that the 
sexually oriented busfµ~~§:is open for " ' 
It shall be the duty of tije1011?rat~r of each .,,.",mLally oriented business to ensure 
that an attendant is statiotj~p aH::\91\Jmblic ln~iNice to the sexually oriented 
business at all times duririg.'~uch sexuldlx orien1:t;:a,), siness's regular business 

, <:'_,-~~::, ~_,::-:·:;:-_,:oJ> ,::\,, >:,{t,\ 

hours. JlJli he duty o{ffb:e atte9:a~~JQl1ot al any person under the age 
of ei~~j~~tt \:ts@,::f to ente1\\~e:~exyJ1Ily~'64aIJ;tid business. It ~hall be 
presUlllt~,!hat an att~'Qdant kne\¥8,JJerson was tinder the age of eighteen (18) 
unless su~Ji:attend '0 :" ked for antf::was furnished: 

a vMid?op~· ".,q!TIIller8'•''''\ perator's or chauffeur's license; or 
validiei;~onal 1 JtJ>,,. · rtificate reflecting that such person is 

igJ:\teen({t~;)~~ears o der. · 
Entrances'f~Jti.t~ prdpg)~d Sexually° Oriented Business will be posted on both the 

'\exterior and'lnt~~ior w~it~;tdearly visible to the public, indicating in lettering no 
''iles~ than one art«llne-haff;@ches in height that (a) "No one under the age of 

eigl:iy~en is perm\ft~p to enter the premises" and (b) "No alcoholic beverages of 
any typ~ are pemi.i.tfed within the premises" unless specifically allowed pursuant , ,,.,·,,< 
to a licer1se duly is$ued by the Michigan Liquor Control Commission. 

y,•J• - ,,, A--- __ ,-, -: 

\~if(f~.F::_s~f ;1/ 
GENERAL AND SPECIFICREOUIREMENTS: 
A. General requirements: In reviewing an application for special use permit for a 

sexually oriented business, the Planning Commission shall determine whether the 
following general standards have been met: 
1. that the applicant has met all the requirements for Article XXV (Site Plan 

Review) which pertain to one's application. 
2. that all required information has been provided. 

3. That the proposed use conforms to all specific density and setback 
regulations, etc. of the zoning district and Article XXV section 25.20 B. 

4. That the plan for the proposed use meets all applicable written and duly 
promulgated requirements of Whitewater Township for fire and 

(WHITEWATER TOWNSHIP ZONING ORDINANCE) 



5. 
6. 

7. 

enforcement protection, water supply, sewage disposal or treatment, 
storm drainage and other public facilities and services. 
That the submitted Landscape Plan complies with this Ordinance. 
That parking layout will not adversely affect the flow of traffic within the 
site, or to and from the adjacent streets. 
That the outdoor storage of garbage and refuse is contained, screened from 
view and located so as not to be visible from neighboring properties or the 
adjacent roadways. 

B. Specific requirements: To operate a sexually ori~nted business within the 
boundary of Whitewater Township the following specific reqtj'i.'{~fuents must be met and agreed 
upon by the owner (s), applicant and operators of the sexuallyiofiented business: 

1. Hours of operation shall be limit,eclt;gJ{~l:QP a.m. to 2:00 a.m. 

15. 

2. The proposed business will ngt, ha,'.y~- a det:g11,+~ntal impact upon the 
property values of properties'Jqcated withirt1§QJeet of such a proposed 

3. 

4. 

5. 

sexually oriented busin~~f "' ", • 
The proposed sexually cf_ ,,,, ed business applican ......... 11 have provided an 
exterior maintenance progi'run to the T ship Zonift . dministrator, 
together with it~ special use 1perinjt. pplicant sha . vide for the 
routine clearirilz½trash and ruoti{s m all parking are d other 
portions of the12r?n#s,e~.not less th ,h s ce-per-week. Continued 

,:, ... ,,,\ • cc, •/;. •sy<k 
adherence to suc]i;exteriQ:r'lllaintenarice'fprogram shall be a condition to 

'"'-;-.,.:-_,_-:~~'(lJ>.t .-~;t ?f'.?_;-·:, 

the issuance of an ecial u~el it pur~yWJ,t to this section. 
,flft~O~~~¼R~Y not rest,,j~Jn a s,'i';,: ' ;9riente~~usiness establishment. It 

/111ay be al{o'¥~d by pe~t 9,zjlytan ., ·~~~Q..pn the issuance of a permit on 
; !hspection"'S{Ji,ving arr~r,dkft ~~ts. · ·• 4t;:{Y 

TblPlanning~ommissic5' y impose such additional conditions and 
safegwirds deemednecess , to mitigate negative secondary effect 

ii;< r~asonably documented to erlfartate from sexually oriented businesses for 
'';<tp'.~,prntecttliP;;,Pf the genef'ijiielfare and individual property rights of 

afftl9)~4 prop~~owners, ~d for insuring that the intent and objectives of 
this O~(~nance'Wi}!Jl;?e observed. The breach of any condition, safeguard 
or requt~~ment sh!U:J$erve as grounds for revocation of the permit, after 
written ri''"'", e and an opportunity to be heard. 

It is a defense to prosecut1b:Q:; 'der this Ordinance that a person appearing in a state of nudity did 
so in a modeling class operated: 

16. 

1. by a proprietary school, licensed by the State of Michigan, a college, junior 
college, or university supported entirely or partly by taxation; 

2. by a private college or university that maintains and operates educational 
programs in which credits are transferable to a college, junior college, or 
university supported entirely or partly by taxation. 

NOTICES: 
A. Any notice required or permitted to be given by the Township or other agency 

under this Ordinance to any applicant, operator or owner of an establishment may 
be given either by prepaid, return receipt requested, addressed to the most recent 

(WHITEWATER TOWNSHIP ZONING ORDINANCE) 

'\ 



Revised by ZO Amendment #81
           Effective 11/11/2021 

. B. 

C. 

address as specified in the application for the permit, or transfer 
Application that has been received by the Township, or any notice of address 
change that has been received by the Township. Notices mailed as above shall be 
deemed given upon their deposit in the United States Mail. In the event that any 
notice given by mail is returned by the postal service, the Townsh.ip shall cause it 
to be posted at the principal entrance to the establishment. 
Any notice required or permitted to be given to the Township by any person under 
this Ordinance shall not be deemed given until and unless it is received in the 
principal office of the Township. 
It shall be the duty of each owner who is desigpj~o on the permit application and 
eac_h operator to_ ~umish notice to the Town ~,£~{ writing of any change of a 
residence or mailing address. . :f'WJ~ 

~-'~\,-· 

19. CONFLICTIN0:0 · .'·~CES · .,- Aw . . .-, 
To the extent that an~ cpnflict or 11~ ,0nsistency4,w.~ ·¥arise be~hn the provisions of the sexually 
oriented business Ordinanb.e, and otlie1: provisioM;of the Township Zoning Ordinance, the 
provisions of t4.e.~Ofdinan~e1~pcl-lH:Q}ifr '!~••,, -·~:0\ 

, •• h..-~ , f~ ~:., ! ~;P • ~ • ,' \ , , •:· \ 

-~r'l • • :-.~ •• i. ti ~:~ I}' •: • .~•"•~ , , r 

. ..... N. •.•• 'h _,.., " I 

(C) S~eJ:Jjll·Use prov1s_vj11~ for ~ ~jpr Home Q¢~u,pations 
M. . fi'Arr,-:f,R • '4Jt.,;c,i ,:.·•, • 

11llIIlU[Thi eqmrements: IJ. • ,,,.;;). 
3 ~ • ~ ~~ 

\"¾{,1._ At no time 'sl:iaµ the nt4p,J;1er of vehicles on site impose a negative impact on 
' - ' .adjacent uses5~f1;equent 'sliJ'pments or deliveries by vehicles having more than 

·1-t:. ; o __ drive axles~ ~ prohibited. 
2. Tne:q~,cupationtm~y offer for sale any article or service provided that the sale of 

any article_s o,r,..:~h,-vices shall not have a negative impact on the surrounding areas 
with regaiol. fq;.Jjoise, light, odors, etc. 

3. Hours of j°'pe?~tion shall be stipulated by the Planning Commission. 
4. Signage size and number(s) shall be determined by the Planning Commission. 
5. Home Occupations shall only be pcnnitted when endorsed by the property 

owner (if applicant is not the property owner). All application materials, 
site/plot plans and final conditions shall be authorized by the property owner. 

6. Such other conditions as may be determined by the Planning Com.mission. 

(WIUTEWATER TOWNSH1P ZONING ORDINANCE) 



D. 

(WI-IlTEWATER TOWNSf:llP ZONING ORDINANCE) 



26.00 ARTICLE XXVI 

(RESERVED FOR FUTURE USE) 



27.00     ARTICLE XXVII 
        (Effective 11/27/2019) 

 
                                               (RESERVED FOR FUTURE USE) 



 
ARTICLE XXVIII 

CONDOMINIUM DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS  
(Effective March 28, 2021) 

 
28.10 INTENT 
The intent of this Article is to provide procedures and standards for the review and approval or denial of 
condominium developments implemented under the provisions of the Condominium Act (Act 59 of 1978, as 
amended) and to insure that such developments are consistent and compatible with conventional platted 
subdivisions as provided for through the Land Division Act (P.A 288 of 1967, as amended), and promote the 
orderly development of adjacent areas. These regulations are enacted by authority of the Condominium Act, the 
Michigan Zoning Enabling Act, and this Ordinance, as amended, whereby all developments utilizing any form of 
condominium development shall be approved or disapproved by the Township.  
 
28.11 APPLICABILITY 
A. General Provisions  
Prior to recording of the master deed, required by Section 72 of the Condominium Act, the condominium 
development shall undergo a site plan review and approval by the Township in accordance with the provisions 
of this section. Approval under this section shall be required as a condition to the right to construct, expand or 
amend a condominium development in the Township.  
 
B. Condominium Conversions – All individuals proposing a Condominium Conversion shall present the township 
with two copies of all required documents as indicated in the Condominium Act (Act 59 of 1978, as amended).  
Said review shall be conducted by the township Zoning Administrator and township attorney for compliance 
with the Condominium Act (Act 59 of 1978, as amended).  Applicant shall be provided with a written response of 
approval or specific reason for failure to approve within 60 days of submission. 
 
C. Plat Approval 
There shall be no requirement for plat approval for a condominium development under the Township 
Subdivision Control Ordinance.  
 
D. Planned Developments 
The procedural provisions of this section shall not apply to condominium developments which are reviewed and 
approved through the Special Use Permit – Planned Unit Development procedure, Article 31 of this Ordinance.   
 
28.12 CONSULTATION    
In determining whether to approve a condominium development plan, the Township may, as the Zoning 
Administrator and Planning Commission deem necessary, charge for consultation with the Township Attorney 
and other experts, regarding the adequacy of the master deed, deed restrictions, utility systems, and streets, 
site layout and design, and compliance with all requirements of the Condominium Act and this Ordinance.  All 
reasonable costs related to said consultation, as established by the Township, shall be placed in escrow with the 
Township by the applicant prior to review in addition to the standard nonrefundable application fee.   
 
At any point during the review process, the Township may require that the applicant place additional funds with 
the Township to cover consultations deemed necessary to complete the review process.   If consultation funds 
are not provided promptly, all reviews shall cease until funds are made available to continue.  Any unused 
consultation funds remaining after the Township completes its review shall be returned to the applicant with a 
line item record of distributions. 
 
 



Page 2 of 6 
 

 
 
28.13 GENERAL REQUIREMENTS  
A. Compliance with Federal, State and Local Laws 
All condominium developments shall comply with all applicable Federal, State and local laws and ordinances. No 
condominium documents shall conflict with the standards of this Ordinance.  
 
B.  Fee Required 
Before the Township reviews a condominium development plan, the applicant shall submit to the Township a 
nonrefundable application fee or preliminary review fee as established by resolution of the Board to cover the 
Township’s cost of internal review.  Such application fee shall be independent of any required consultation costs 
as described in Section 28.12.                       
 
C.   Information Required 
All condominium development plans shall include the information required by Section 66 of the Condominium 
Act and the material required in Section 25.11 (F). A person, firm, or corporation intending to develop a 
condominium development shall provide the following information:  
 

1.  Size and Scale - Plans may be on paper and shall not be less than 24 inches by 36 inches, at a scale of at 
      least 1 inch to 200 feet showing the date and north arrow.  
2.  The name of the proposed condominium development. 
3.  The name, address, telephone number of: 

a.  All persons, firms, or corporations with an ownership interest in the land on which the 
condominium development will be located and a description of the nature of each entity’s 
interest (for example, fee owner, optionee, or land contract vendee) 
b.  All engineers, attorneys, architects, landscape architects, or registered land surveyors 
associated with the condominium development.  
c.  The individual or entity applying for the condominium development. 

4.  The legal description of the land on which the condominium development will be developed together 
      with any expansion plans and appropriate tax identification numbers.  
5.  The acreage of the land on which the condominium development will be developed. 
6.  The land use and existing zoning of the proposed condominium development.  
7.  The following information for subject parcel and all parcels within 300 feet of the proposed site: 

a.   Name and address of the owners 
b.  The zoning classifications  
c.   Existing structures or significant land marks  

8.  Location, type, dimensions and proposed use of all existing structures. 
9.  A location map showing the relationship of the proposed plan to the surrounding area.  

   10.  Statement of intended use(s).  Such as, residential single-family, residential multi-family, commercial,   
          industrial, etc. and the number of acres of each type of land use proposed.  
   11.  Condominium lot lines and the total number of condominium units to be developed on the subject  
          parcel.  
   12.  Description of water system to be provided.  
   13.  Description of sanitary waste disposal system to be provided.  
   14.  Right-of-way easements, showing location, width, and purpose. 
   15.  Existing topographic elevations at two (2) foot intervals, proposed grades and direction of drainage 
           flows. 
 
 
 



Page 3 of 6 
 

 
 
 
   16.   Location and types of all significant existing vegetation, water courses and bodies, flood plains and 

water retention areas, wetlands, and soil types.  
   17.   Any additional information required during site plan review 

 
D. Utility Easements 
The condominium development plan shall include all necessary easements for the purpose of constructing, 
operating, inspecting, maintaining, repairing, altering, replacing, and/or removing pipelines, mains, conduits, 
and other installations of a similar character providing public utilities.  
 
E. Performance Guarantees 
As a condition of approval of the condominium development plan by the Township, a performance guarantee 
may be required to ensure construction of required improvements and the completion of filing requirements 
before land use permits are issued. Upon fulfillment of all requirements and filings, the applicant shall apply to 
the Township for release of performance guarantees. Performance guarantees shall comply with the 
requirements in Section 25.16 of this Ordinance.  
 
28.14 MOBILE HOME CONDOMINIUM DEVELOPMENTS 
Mobile home condominium developments shall conform to the requirements of this Ordinance, in accordance 
with the Condominium Act and other applicable Local, State laws, ordinances and regulations. Such 
developments shall be located only in a zoning district that provides for mobile homes. The review and approval 
shall be processed in accordance with Section 28.15 Review Procedures.   
 
28.15 STANDARDS AND DESIGN FOR CONDOMINIUM DEVELOPMENTS  
A. Condominium Lots 
The Condominium Development Plan shall indicate specific parcel dimensions allocated to each condominium 
dwelling unit. For the purpose of this section and to assure compliance with the provisions herein, these parcels 
shall be referred to as “condominium lots”.  
 
B. Condominium Development Layout and Design 
The description, size, location and arrangement of the site condominium lots shall conform to the requirements 
of this Ordinance.  The design of a condominium development shall be subject to the following requirements. 
Should there be unusual topographic or other natural feature constraints, these standards may be modified to 
achieve greater or lesser conformance in accordance with the judgement of the township Planning Commission.  
 

1.  Each condominium lot in a site shall be considered a single lot and shall comply with the zoning district in 
which it is located. The area and setback requirements of a dwelling unit or structures are subject to the 
zoning district in which it is located.   
2.   Each condominium dwelling unit shall be located within a condominium lot. In a condominium 
development containing single-family detached dwelling units, not more than one (1) dwelling unit shall be 
located on a condominium lot.  
3.   The condominium lots size and required setbacks shall be measured from the designated front, rear and 
side condominium lot lines.  
4.   There shall be a proper relationship between existing streets and highways within the vicinity, and 
proposed deceleration lanes, service drives, entrance and exit driveways, and parking areas to assure the 
safety and convenience of pedestrian and vehicular traffic, and that the proposed streets and access plan 
conform to any street or access plan adopted by the Township or the County Road Commission.  
 



Page 4 of 6 
 

 
 
5.   Existing natural features which add value to a residential development and enhance the attractiveness of 
the community shall be retained, insofar as possible, in the design of the subdivision.  
6.   Lands subject to flooding or otherwise deemed by the Township to be uninhabitable shall not be used 
for uses that may increase the danger to health, life, or property or increase the flood hazard. Such land 
within a condominium development may be set aside for other uses, such as parks or other open space.  
7.   Easements shall provide for utilities when necessary.  
8.   All condominium development units shall be accessible to emergency vehicles.  
9.   Common open space provided shall remain open for recreational and conservational purposes, and 
recorded as part of the master deed.  
10.   Condominium development units having water frontage shall meet the requirements of Article 14 
Easement to Waterfront. 
11.   A plan for erosion control and storm water discharge must be approved by the appropriate public 
agency.  
12.   All condominium developments shall obtain approval from all applicable governing agencies. 

 
28.16 REVIEW PROCEDURES 

A.   Preliminary Review 
Any applicant can request a preliminary review of a proposed condominium development with the 
Zoning Administrator and one to three Planning Commissioners.  This review allows an open dialogue 
and an opportunity to discuss a proposed goals, features, location and scope of operations prior to a 
formal application.  Preliminary Review is available as a sounding board only, no decisions or approvals 
shall be rendered, either stated or implied.  

 
B.   Agency Submittal  

The applicant shall provide copies of the proposed condominium development plan to the following 
Grand Traverse County Agencies: Health Department (or Department of Public Works if proposed on 
municipal water and/or sanitary sewer), Drain Commission, Soil Erosion, and Road Commission (or 
Michigan Department of Transportation if proposed on a state highway), as well as the Michigan 
Department of Environment, Great Lakes, and Energy (when sensitive areas and wetlands are a 
concern), and the Whitewater Township Fire Department or the respective successor for any of the 
above agencies.  Four (4) hard copies and a digital print shall also be provided to the Whitewater 
Township.  The Zoning Administrator shall distribute the proposed condominium development plans to 
the Planning Commission and Board of Trustees for review.  
 

C. Public Hearing 
The Planning Commission shall hold a public hearing on the proposed site condominium development 
plan, for the purpose of reviewing and making a recommendation of approval, approval with conditions, 
or denial to the Township Board.  

 
D. Planning Commission Determination  

After preceding with the Article 25, Site Plan Review process, if the Planning Commission determines 
that the proposed plan meets all the requirements of this Ordinance and the Condominium Act, the 
Planning Commission shall recommend approval or approval with conditions of the site condominium 
development plan and shall send written notice of action taken with comments to the Township Board 
and applicant.  
 
 
 



Page 5 of 6 
 

 
 
If the Planning Commission determines that the condominium development plan does not meet all 
requirements, the Planning Commission shall state its reason in its official minutes and shall provide 
written notice of said decision to the Township Board and applicant.  The Planning Commission shall  
recommend to the Board, disapproval of the plan until the objections causing disapproval have been 
changed to meet the requirements of this Ordinance and the Condominium Act.  

 
E.   Township Board Procedure 

The Township Board shall not review, approve or reject a condominium development until it has 
received from the Planning Commission its report and recommendations. 
 
The Township Board shall consider the condominium development plan at its next meeting after receipt 
of the report and recommendations from the Planning Commission provided all documents are received 
15 days prior to meeting date.  The Board shall render a written decision within 15 days of their meeting 
unless the applicant and Board agree to a later deadline. 
 

F.   Township Board Determination  
The Township Board shall approve the condominium development plan, with or without conditions, 
reject the plan and give its reasons, table the proceedings pending further review or pending changes to 
the plan to make it acceptable to the Board, or refer that application back to the Planning Commission 
for further review and report.   

 
28.17 CONDITIONS AND DURATION OF APPROVAL 
A. Conditions 
The approval of the Board of Trustees will indicate that the proposed condominium development plan meets 
the ordinances and regulations of Whitewater Township, but does not cover additional permits that may be 
required after the Master Deed has been recorded. The Township may impose reasonable conditions on the 
approval of any condominium development plan consistent with the Condominium Act, this Ordinance, and the 
protection of public health, safety and welfare.  
 
B. Duration 
Approval of the condominium development plan by the Township shall be for a period of two (2) years from the 
date of approval. If no Master Deed is recorded with the Grand Traverse County Register of Deeds Office within 
two years of approval, such approval shall be considered null and void. The Zoning Administrator may extend 
the two-year period by one additional year if applied for by the applicant subject to satisfying the requirements 
of Section 25.15 Failure to Initiate Construction.  
 
C. Condominium Development Plan Approval Contract 
If the Township Board approves the site condominium development plan, it shall prepare a written order setting 
forth the conditions upon which the approval is based. Such order shall be entered into between the Township 
and the applicant prior to the issuance of a Land Use Permit for any construction in accordance with the 
approved site condominium development plan. All reasonable costs related to the preparation of said order, as 
established by the Township, shall be paid by the applicant to the Township Treasurer prior to Township 
signature and issuance of such order.  
 
 
 
 
 



Page 6 of 6 
 

 
 
28.18 FINAL FILINGS REQUIREMENTS 
Prior to the recording of the Master Deed the Township Treasurer shall certify that all taxes and special 
assessments are not delinquent.   A copy of the Master Deed, Bylaws/ Restrictive Covenants must be recorded 
with the County Register of Deeds.  The Township shall be provided with two (2) copies of each document, 
including as-built prints, and all pertinent attachments which shall remain on file with the Township.  
 
28.19 CONDOMINIUM DEVELOPMENT AMENDMENTS 
Condominium Development Plans may be amended as follows: 
 

A.  Minor Amendments 
Minor amendments are those which are determined by the Zoning Administrator to have no 
foreseeable effect beyond the condominium development boundary such as minor changes in the 
location of buildings, the alignment of utilities, and the alignment of interior roadways. Minor 
amendments for good cause may be authorized by the Zoning Administrator provided that no such 
changes shall increase the size or height of structures, reduce the efficiency of public facilities serving 
the site condominium, reduce usable open space, or encroach on natural features proposed by the plan 
to be protected.  
 
B.   Major Amendments. 
Any amendment not qualifying as a minor amendment as determined by the Zoning Administrator shall 
be considered a major amendment and must be approved by the Planning Commission according to the 
procedures authorized by this Article for approval of a condominium development.  

 
 

 
  



I 
J\ 
I 

29.00 

108 

ARTICLE XXIX 

EXTERIOR LIGHTING REGULATIONS 

29.10 DECLARATION OF POLICY AND INTENT: 
The Whitewater Township Board of Trustees finds and declares that the naturally lit night sky is an 
important aspect of our environment and a resource which contributes significantly to our quality of 
life by contributing to the public peace and to the health, safety and welfare of the residents of 
Whitewater Township and to its visitors, that to preserve and ct this resource it is necessary, 
essential, a public purpose and municipal affair for the To - regulate the use of outdoor light 
fixtures to minimize light pollution which has a detrimen n the environment, astronomical 
research, amateur astronomy, and general enjoymen sky, and causes unnecessary 
and/or unwanted illumination of adjacent and even · t it is in the public interest 
to conserve electrical energy; and that is in the vehicular and pedestrian 
traffic from dangerous glare and light pollutio 

29.11 DEFINITIONS: 
(1) Automatic Timing Devic 
fixtures or circuits. Photo­
automatic timing devices for ili 

(2) Light Polluti 
astronomical 
undesirable 
properties. 

effect on the environment, 
· mated night sky or causes 

ti.on of adjacent or even distant 

e which is permanently installed outdoors, 
· te signs. 

or method of construction which causes light emitted 
projected only below and imaginary horizontal plan 
light source. 

(5) Shielding. general, ~rpennanently installed, non~translucent shade, cowl, hood, baffle 
or other constnf tion,wl1,g~l'i limits, restricts or directs light or the visibility of a light source 
to meet the standar~uthis Article. 

(6) Security Lighting: such lighting fixtures and/or practices intended to discourage intrusion 
on the premises by unwanted persons. 

(7) Yard Lighting: such lighting fixtures and/or practices intended for the convenience, 
enjoyment and safety of a property owner or tenant or guest. 

(8) Light Source: the bulb which creates the light. 

(9) Motion Detector: a device triggered by motion and used to energize incandescent lights. 

(WHITEWATER TOWNSHIP ZONING ORDINANCE) 



109 

29.12 STANDARDS: 
A. Commercial and Industrial Zones and Land Uses: 

All outdoor light fixtures and lighting practices shall conform with either standard No. 1 or No. 2 
and with all of the remaining standards in this subsection: 

(1) All outdoor light fixtures shall have full cut-off shielding such that no light is emitted 
above an imaginary horizontal plane passing through +, fixture below the light source 
regardless of type or wattage, EXCEPT for gas lighti,pg;, ss tubes filled with Neon, Argon 
or Krypton, and small decorative fixtures such as por~tr'. 7 ts. 

(2) Baffles or shields shall be required as neede:~~2J:~at Ii hfs9urces are not visible beyond 
the property on which they are installeq,t[~o)nat direct light'tcl)~are not directed above a 
horizontal plane passing through the f12ffi!fe{ and also so that vem~ti\ and pedestrian traffic 
are protected from unnecessary and darig~rous glare and from th~';: pse light of directly 
visible light sources. · · 

(3) Exterior lighting should b 

a. using fixtures with goo, 
efficient manner .. 

tJ1e lighting criteria for safety and 

',l~J'.),;,. 
nrt•·.,...... outdoq~2;Jight fixtures where required and wherever 

'_):1., 

"ght fi~es only when necessary by means of automatic timing 
(t' the u 'of motion detection devices on security lighting. 

e:t~qtµring that q~ftain outdoor light fixtures be turned off between 11 :00 p.m. and 
sunrisl1'•, ··~rffe 

(4) Sodium light ·s , .cg~ shall be used for street lighting, parking lot lighting, and for 
security lighting when such security lighting is not to be energized by motion detection 
devices. Where feasible, low-pressure sodium lighting is to be encouraged. 

(5) All outdoor recreational facilities, including but not limited to tennis courts, baseball, 
football and softball fields, ski runs and trails, golf courses and driving ranges, shall be 
illuminated with fixtures equipped with full cut-off shielding as needed to direct and restrict 
light to the playing surface and playing air space as well as the immediate surrounding area 
and to eliminate glare in the night sky insofar as possible as well as unnecessarily reflected 
light in the immediate vicinity or on adjacent property. 

(WHITEWATER TOWNSHIP ZONING ORDINANCE) 

!/ 
I 

i{ 



,I 

110 

(6) Floodlights shall be directed downward, shielded as necessary so that the light source is 
not visible from roads or adjacent property, and located and directed so that light is neither 
unnecessarily reflected onto adjacent property or into the night sky. 

(7) In addition to fixture design and shielding, architectural and landscape design features 
may be incorporated into an outdoor lighting plan to meet the requirements and comply with 
the intent of this Article. 

B. Residential and Recreational Zones and Land Uses: " .;~\ 
All outdoor light fixtures and lighting practices shall confofl1} ~t}i the following standards: 

. ti::6:lf~,., 
(1) All outdoor fixtures shall have full cut-off sbJ;xJding:SJ)gli that no light is emitted above 
an imaginary horizontal plane passing througltJne fixture belg)'V the light source regardless 
of type or wattage, EXCEPT for gas l'' ··ting, glass tubeSfi.U d with Neon, Argon or 
Krypton, and small decorative fixtures porch lights. 

29.13 REQUIREMENTS, LIMITATIONS 
A. Commercial and Industrial Zones.· Land Uses: 

(1) Searchlights, lasers or other ... ghfiliten~ity light , )gned primarily to light the sky for 
,_, -- ' ,_ ,, ~' ,,--_ ------,~':>c-_ -~,~,:Jt~-,, ' 

advertising or entertainment purpo§~S are pr9bibited as?fJ:{igg contrary to the express intent 
of this Article. ., · ·· · ·.·· · 

-,.~,,f\, - ::;, ->·,., 

(2) Off-prentij~~"~dvert1sw'~, signs, f 
internally unlesM~%B!essly allq~ed as a . 

(3),iA.clX:?~i~~~. s;~i'~§; . o . ,,;,", ,: between one (1) hour after the close of 
,B\;i$giess" and'1'tl~~,;:p) ho~\.;1~fore tlie·<1p~,.. of business on the following day except by 

,~ip~pial permiss1otf~'!~ranted:~~';~ condit10n> f site plan approval. All fixtures or circuits 
ilH~!p~.Qating advertis~~• .. ~ighs11s~hl, be equipped with automatic t1ming device. If externally 
illuimn}1ted, all advertising, billbqaj-cls, advertising kiosks and Information boards shall be 
ilh1miriiti<ifrom the to1(d~wnward\vith full cut-off shielding and such other shielding to 
direct the:lig]:it,on the sigri'.or structure face only and shield the light source from view of 
vehicular ai1.tf'.~~~destrian'tp:affic and adjacent property. If illuminated from the interior, 
signs, billboard~t~~<i¥ft"tisfug kiosks and information boards, with the exception of theater 
marquee-type signs}l{$}iiiil have a dark background with lighter colored translucent (not 
transparent) lettering,··1ogos and designs. Signs shall not incorporate any :flashing or moving 
lights except as permitted under Article XXX, Sign Regulations. 

( 4) Quartz and mercury vapor lighting are prohibited because of the broad spectrum of 
visible light which these sources emit and because of the diffusive and reflective character 
of such light. 

(5) All parking lots in Commercial and Industrial zones shall be illuminated only when in 
use during regular business hours and thereafter only until the public and employees have 
left the premises. Approved security lighting will be permitted. 

JWHITEW ATER TOWNSHIP ZONING ORDINANCE) 



111 

(6) Entrance and traffic marker lights along access roads and drives, in parking lots and 
along pedestrian ways shall be sodium type and equipped with full cut-off shielding as well 
as shielding to keep the light source out of view of vehicular and pedestrian traffic. 

(7) The use of non-conforming bulbs and fixtures in Commercial and Industrial zones shall 
not be permitted land use. 

(8) Outdoor display areas including but not limited to}l:lutomobile or equipment dealer 
display or storage lots may be illuminated during the,lip~7fue business is open to the public 
or until 11:00 p.m. Metal halide light sources111~Y:P$_ used provided such fixtures are 
equipped with full cut-off shielding and project oply,::the'~um amount oflight necessary 

/ ·{>:::_:,·, __ , 

for good visibility. ·,· ·, ;c, \~_ 

(9) Lighting of building facades shall b_ ?::Pm the top and dire~t~tl\\gwnward with full cut­
off shielding and additional shielding to 'k~~p;Jhe light source from thA';y · ew of vehicular and 
pedestrian traffic and adjacent property. '\;;:,h 

,·•--->\ .. 
·«'/-".t;-• '-ii-:·-'.'-::Y' 

(10) Security lighting shall g;ld~~pte_d away fr6 
adjacent properties. "'lr- '' r!i'JJ , 

cl/or shielded from road traffic and 

B. Residential and Recr~~!~t>JJ!-!-~~nes and v:v-.\d Use _- _ _ --
(1) Residentials~9µfity\ligh.ting shalf _e ene. _, gPYt--rnoti n detectors unless otherwise 
permitted as ~t?pri<lition of~it~ plan or _ - plrtt( apprc5*a.l::Security lighting shall be directed 
away from and/ofs):l).elded fr9i:n road tra , j1nd adjacent properties. 

(2),,l{e~iJe - -~_\'\,Y,,_-_____ ar ___ F~k "":fill1~_ :_~;;s~;d~~\_light source in a fixture with full cut-off 
shlMaffif '- - ' - · ---
··' )' f, .. / 

. C~~'.·:~' -~~:--':>- ''v>··· J•••~ 
(3){Q;yartz and merctitlf, vap jghting are prohibited because of the broad spectrum of 
visibl~}light which thes_~?sources'f~mj,t and because of the diffusive and reflective character 
of such1;1ig}Jt. ·-)h "<;;:,;, 

···"i~:::;-~,\, t~\ 

29.14 APPRoviiri~TEfilM1s: 
A. The provisions of tfil;)'~i~l~/are -not intended to prevent the use of any design, material or 
method of installation, ~veii(i( not specifically prescribed by this Article, provided that such 
alternate has been approved by the Planning Commission and meets or exceeds the Illuminating 
Engineers Society (EIS) standards. 

29.15 EXEMPTIONS: 

The following uses and activities shall be exempt from these Exterior Lighting Regulations: 

(1) Emergency equipment. 

(WHITEWATER TOWNSHIP ZONING ORDINANCE) 



i 

112 

(2) Holiday decorations, provided that such decorative exterior lighting shall not include 
search lights, flood lights, stroboscopic lights, or lights which create glare or distractions 
potentially dangerous to vehicular or pedestrian traffic, or lights which create unnecessary 
and unwanted glare in the night sky. 

(3) All outdoor light fixtures producing light directly by the combustion of fossil fuels, such 
as kerosene lanterns or gas lamps, are exempt from the requirements of this Article. 

( 4) Voluntary compliance with the intent of this Arti9lf at any facility exempt from this 
.,·-~ ,,.::- ··,.-y-

Article is encouraged. 4{t;;;,0V 

29.16 RELIEF FROM EXTERIOR LIGHTING REGVLA'I'IQNS: 
Applications for relief from the regulations of this art!c~i;fuay be rii~4:e:}o the Whitewater Township 
Zoning Board of Appeals. Any ruling granting rnJier' shall contain allJcmditions upon which said 
permit has been granted, including, but not }J:rmtecl to, the effective '<lakes, times, locations and 
specifications of the lighting fixtures and plan pertfiitted. 

29.17 CONFLICTS: \,;~~~( ' ,t:,/ i;:·/i:• 

Where any provision of the statutes, ,1,,, ,J:Slf.}aws of ~li "¾:r'.'.!ed States of Ameri;; or the State of 
Michigan or the County of Grand Tra ,,~e'cgn;flict with anY'.°'f the provisions of this Article, the 
most restrictive shall apply unless otherwis~,reqritred law. ,\ ' 

\\[)\!~:, . . 

29.18 VIOLATION,ANDENFORCEMENT: 

(1) It shall be unlaw~{~~rany p~r~i~to viola~~~y':ofthe provisions of this Article. 
'-:,\,,-- ·,;cc·:f.c'; ,.·--,---

(2) Any p~t~<irt:i,}\'ll.£•§haU0,~6l~t(~fJ~~;yisipn d.f.~s Article shall be subject to the penalties 
specifi~~:~¢i'~t~icT :t;, of thifqrdinanc~.' ,$1 

',\:t,~~\ }1> _ A••-~i:;:;~;:f'-,:_,>._ , 

(3) The Zoijing Administratoi:Jii: his agent is hereby empowered to enforce this Article. 

(4) The 2ol\,tl\1rinislral<>:'~~J,: s ~~flhall notify each applicant for a Land Use Permit that 
compliance with tli~Jprovisions ~~ regulations of this Article is a condition of such Land User 
Permit. · fl 

; ..... f~1:;i? 
29.19 SEVERABILITY':W}}Y 
If any provision, clause, sentence, sub-sentence, paragraph, section or part of this Article be 
adjudged by any court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, such judgement shall not affect, 
impair or invalidate the remainder thereof, but shall be confined in its operation to the provision, 
clause, sentence, sub-sentence, paragraph, section or part thereof directly involved in the 
controversy in which said judgement shall have been rendered. 

(WHITEWATER TOWNSHIP ZONING ORDINANCE) 



'\ 
ARTICLE XXX 

30.10 General Provisions 

30.11 Purpose and Intent 

SIGN REGULATIONS 

A. Safety. Promote the safety of persons and property by providing that signs: 

1. Do not create traffic hazards by distracting or confusing motorists, impairing 
motorists' ability to see pedestrians, other vehicles, ob,~!{:lcles, or to read traffic signs. 
2. Do not create a hazard due to collapse, fire, colli~it~~'clecay or abandonment. 
3. Do promote the aesthetics, safety, health, ang;;g~ij'efal welfare and the assurance of 
protection of adequate light and air withb:i{;'§.a,id~J()~ship by regulation of the 
posting, displaying, erection, use and maipJ~iiartce of§f~ . 

.. :t,:/~~;'1'---

B. Public welfare. Protect the public v'f., and enhance th~itay.~rall appearance and 
economic value to the landscape and ., ,§~rve the unique na "k. nvironment that 
distinguishes the township. It is also acknowre'~ged that tqtJ9wnship ecop,()JJUC well being 
is heavily dependent upon the r rt and touri ·'§in,( This dependet!ge., makes the 
preservation of the environment, e a matter of criticaf importance 
to the township. 

30.12 Applicability 
This Article shall ~PTI 
owning, occupyip.g{9f' av 
Township of WhlteF, .er. 

\\-- ~-~ --~ \,, 

assopiations, and corporations 
premises located within the 

30.13 R911fli, With tlier:U 
In at),*!~~ei·v} · , ·· · •.• .. , . d to be in conflict with a provision of 
any)Z9lli.ng, Buil n .. ousing;··:Fire, Safetft); Health Article or Ordinance or Code of 
Whit~~<1ter Township ''.~:·§ting'ct e effecti;e date of this Article, the provision which 
establi;ti e higher stai\t{¥,d for . · ... >romotion and protection of the health and safety of 
the people:~u~1 prevail. liiAAY case "\vfi'ere a provision of any other Article, Ordinance or 
Code of Whif~\y.~ter Townsfilp, existing on the effective date of this Article establishes a 
lower standard 't~f:i~e promotitjh and protection of the people, the provisions of this Article 
shall be deemed·. toY'pi:eyll.j d such other Articles, Ordinances or Codes are hereby 
declared to be repealedJQ:th~ extent that they may be found in conflict with this Article. 

~:::~i':,f 

30.14 Definitions 
The following definitions will apply in the interpretation, administration and enforcement of 
this Article: 

"Agricultural Premises" shall mean premises used or occupied for the cultivation of field 
crops, truck crops, nurseries, orchards, green houses, woodlots, pastures, husbandry of 
livestock, poultry or small animals, or any activities of a similar nature. 



"Commercial Premises" shall mean premises used or occupied for transportation, retail sales 
or service businesses; wholesale sales facilities; apartment hotels, tourist homes or motels; 
or commercial recreation. 

"Construction Sign" shall mean a sign erected at a construction site identifying the 
architects, engineers, contractors or other parties responsible for a project, or identifying the 
intended purposes or uses of the building. 

"Development Entry Sign" shall mean a sign which idenf 
development or the developer or the type of resideU''1 

development, and which is harmonious in appearance wit> 
,f;-)-:-::--:·,; 

es the name of a residential 
structures included in the 

of the vicinity. 

f~{it,_::-:~--r/ , ,.,,:;.._ 
"Directional Sign" shall mean a sign identifying 1:p,¢"exit(s) antte11trance(s) of premises, and 
containing only the name or logo of the premise/:i;Rpinformationdi.rc~tional thereto. 

7:t~ -
v'v'i' 

"Free Standing Sign" shall mean a sign the p: 
building. 

"Height of Sign", except where : 
vertical distance from the uppe 
ground level at the base of the sign. 

,)~ defined m '%.0: s,: icle, shall mean t e maximum 
e ' ·ty of a ""sigt1: or sign support to the average 

,,_ ·::i':J)04\_ 
erior'light source. 

"Institutional Prerm"' i' shalt~!·\nterprete elude sue premises or portions thereof 
upon which is situaf64,;~,publicµtqity or oth. ublicly owned, operated, or administered 
facility any1_pµp!Jc, priv~t· ommercial voe ,,gal school, a cultural facility, including a 

. l<gall~D1Jhbr ... religious or charitable facility. 

'ii"' 
"Multiple Fartii,1)"1Residentia 
for three or more·,families or , 

Local Arterial, Principal Collectors, or 

, emises" shall mean premises used or occupied as residences 
oup housing. 

"Off-premises Sign"' , 
commodity, service or ac 
sign is located. 

mean a sign which directs attention to a use, business, 
vity not conducted, sold or offered upon the premises where the 

"On-premises Sign" shall mean a sign which identifies the occupant of the premises or 
relates solely to the use, business or profession conducted, or to a principal commodity, 
service or entertainment sold, offered, or provided upon the premises. 



"Political Sign" shall mean a sign relating to the election of a person or persons to public 
office or relating to a political party or relating to a matter to be voted upon at an election 
called by a public body. 

"Pole sign" shall mean a type of freestanding sign that is elevated above the ground on a 
pole. 

"Portable Sign" shall mean any sign which by its description or nature may be or is intended 
to be moved from one location to another. 

"Premises" shall mean a unit of contiguous real property ung. Jcbmmon ownership. 
7f 

"Projecting Sign" shall mean any sign attached t9:·i·,1~Uiillg which extends more than 
twelve ( 12) inches beyond any vertical surface of e bdllding'i/% '· h supports it. 

"Real Estate Sign" shall mean a sign adve1f e sale, rental, ~r L~ase of the premises or 
part of the premises on which the sign is di~;;,,"'····~d. ·. ;e;}):",, 

"'.~],},;;?),, <t> '"' 

"Recreational Premises" shall m.~81} premises us&i!;l~.r 1ed for recreatig)tcJ,l purposes, 
including parks, play areas, indc%t.ir\•QUtdoor s ; ;' ools, bathing heath.es, boating 
and fishing areas, winter recreatiQii.&t·#~as, nature \iy areas, community halls and 
fairgrounds. ""' 'XiiJi!'f•,",,. 

(.-t~Ttt __ 
"Roof Sign" shall. t11e~Jiirr~)§ign whic~~i§ attaciii~,t~t~bJJui and any part of which 
extends above ei ey\Jffe top Itn~)Qf the bui.I;' : ·uette dit~ portion of the roof surface. 

?::;-_'._}\ -,-:_;,v-J/ 
'~-/~?\ . 

cription, display, illustration, surface or 
device }X~f~:is>~:f!ixed "', ··1~~/i1 \«i~the represented directly or indirectly upon a 
bui~9ifi~;istrucnu-¢t;gr Ian· , .,. ·ch beats1!§$y,B1s tion, notice, motto or design, or which 
dir;cts'J~ttention t&V~it:gpject;i::;pf<:>~uct, place?~tivity, person, institution, organization, or 
busilie~ d which isiyisiple ft~m;;.a public street, right-of-way, sidewalk, alley, park or 
other l en to the pumXt\ •; 

"Surface DispJy-, Area" of· .,,.gn shall mean the area expressed in square feet, within a 
single continuchi~>:r~ctiline .. , rimeter of straight lines enclosing the extreme limits of 
writing, representatidh&,, e111bl~ihs or figures of a similar character together with all material 
or color forming an i#t~grll,l>part of the display or used to differentiate the sign from the 
background against whi6h11t is placed, provided that: 

1. In the case of a sign designed with more than one (1) exterior face, the area shall 
be computed as including only the maximum single displayed surface which is 
visible from any ground position. 

2. The supports, uprights, or structure on which any sign is supported shall not be 
included in determining the surface display area unless such supports, uprights or 
structure is designed in such a manner as to form an integral background of the 
display. 



3. The areas of lamps, neon tubing or artificial illumination on walls of any structure 
shall be counted as part of the total allowable sign area. 

"Temporary Sign" shall mean a sign not constructed or intended for long term use. 
Examples of temporary signs include signs which announce a coming attraction, a sale or 
bargain, a community or civic project or other special events that occur for a limited period 
of time. 

"Wall Sign" shall mean a sign which is attached directlyt9, or painted, or otherwise 
inscribed upon a building wall. ?' 

-=~':,)/ 

"Zoning Administrator" shall mean the officer or offtc~rs 6fi¥ged, pursuant to this chapter, 
with the administration and enforcement of t4,i,~Xbrciina1.1~e cl/or his duly appointed 

deputies, agents, employees, and inspectors~z.Y 

30.15 Signs Permitted - Single-Family aii4'.iJ;~o-Family Structur ,, 
A. On premises used or occupied as a singI~jf,µnily or.J~o-family re ,. ~~ce there shall 

B. 

be permitted one (1) ind' ectly illuminatl·",;', 'i~not to exceedt:toig (4) square 
foot in surface display ar 1 tt& 

\,,. 
·.· .. . it;),, 

On single-family or ,, i:-:6 . • ,,.,.developmept premises (subdivisions, 
""'''L.'.{h ··,,'> ·Ft'->- \,,,,,_-i-:_-_=c-:,._ 

condominium~'i.,Q~. apartmenf~t§J~veloprii~nts) thenf:~~p be permitted one (1) 
indirectly ill,~~f~·· developriiip.\ ent / Jf sigp. ol,;ft;ee standing sign at each 
entrance . O ,:subdivfat,,,,,A Free st~d:.i,}'.wtgns sli' ··. set back so that the face of 
the sign is ngtless tha.ri;;fi,fteen (15);:fe!;::t:i:from the nearest existing right of way and 
shall not exc•e~~:ifive (5){fi~! in heigh. e surface display area of such sign shall 

thirty{@i;o" · ·' '"'. ·~ feet. · 

'>,,,-_'¢ . __ ./ft" '_:·--.;' 
30,!~(,,>Signs Peririit,';'f<l,: Mul}f , . 
on· ni,lfltiple-family fgsf4~pce ·; . ,:.ses there· shall be permitted indirectly illuminated 
on-prerni~~>~all sign(sf·hfwn-prerrµse free standing development entry signs(s). The 
aggregate are~. of such sign:(~).shall notexceed two (2) square feet of surface display area. 
Free standing"j'igps shall nof'~0ceed five (5) feet in height and shall be set back at least 
fifteen (15) feet1 z,. the nealiif existing right of way. 

ct,'i0J 

30.17 Signs Permitte~l"~fb~mercial and Industrial 
A. Individual Developnierit Signs allowed: 

1. Wall signs. One or more on-premise wall sign(s) with an aggregate surface 
display area not to exceed one (1) square foot per two (2) foot of building 
frontage. 

2. Free standing signs. One (1) on-premises free standing sign, directly or 
indirectly illuminated, shall be permitted. Comer premises shall be permitted 
one (1) free-standing on-premises sign on each major street frontage. Such 
signs may be multi-faced but shall not exceed forty-five (45) square feet in 



3. 

surface display area per face and shall be set back fifteen (15) feet from the 
nearest existing right of way. Pole signs shall have a maximum height of 
twenty (20) feet. 

Directional signs. Each premise shall be permitted one (1) directional sign 
located immediately adjacent to each exit, entrance or change of direction of 
vehicular or pedestrian travel. The sign shall not exceed five (5) feet in 
height and shall not exceed four ( 4) square feet per side. The sign may be 
directly or indirectly illuminated. 

B. Multi-Tenant Identification Signs .... 
1. One (1) on-premise free-standing sign. The •. si.~{tnay not exceed ten (lO)_feet in 
height measured from the grade at the prop~ ., ''•e;gtthe predominant grade of the 
property area including berms, and m~!, · set b~i;g~J1fteen (15) feet from the 
nearest existing right of way. Such signsJnay be multi{f.dcyd and may not exceed 
sixty (60) square feet in surface dis •<ea per face. 't, h, 

2. One (1) on-premise wall sign per eas,};gidivid1JW.}1!ser with ,''·~egate surface 
display area not to exceed _enty (20) sq&V,?• f:'t's&face display'af~~,} 

,-,----~,;.~ 

30.18 Signs Permitted - Agricu 
-,::,--,iY~t\ 

A. Agricultural Pr~IJ-1lses: On agrkul 'ses t :r~ shall be permitted wall or 
free standing1'?{nf pr~n!ises sign~j{~?t to{··t•··· ?t6P)_square feet in surface 
display areiJnthe aggr,?i~te and ii~t'p ~·~I~to '"·"'"£!,thirty-two (32) square feet of 
surface displ~Yi ea. Si.@,1 signs sh' · bf exceed teff"(l 0) feet in height. The signs 
shall be loca&t t the ~U~'?eway o ~i~It:Ucture or facility on the premises and shall 
ggt;;Q~::}?J€1-ced i , '·" tPfi~, Temggiary signs shall be removed immediately 

.·• . :,~ltowmg;lth~,,~nd \ .,,W,approp easorr~} 
· ecreational;an,cl Institµtional Pre ., VJ On recreational or institutional premises 
. : ere shall be perfuLtted l:tpJal of five ( 5) indirectly illuminated wall or free standing 
~!BRremises signsJ{qtto e){c~~f¼, fifty (50) square feet in surface display area in the 
aggt:&ate and no on~)~ign to'"e*'6eed thirty-two (32) square feet of surface display 

<·th. < ,,, 

area. ,CSµ~b, signs sha, ·• 'ot exceed ten (10) feet in height. The signs shall be located 
at the ert,~,£eway o ·· tructure or facility on the premises and shall be set back at 
least twelvei<JJ2 feet ... m the nearest existing right of way. 

30.19 Temporary Signs~ 
The following temporary signs shall be permitted in accordance with the regulations 

herein. 
A. Grand Opening Sign 

A new business, as part of its start-up phase, may use a temporary sign for up to 
forty-five (45) days, not to exceed thirty-two (32) square feet. 

B. Portable Sign/Banner Sign 
One (1) portable sign/banner sign is permitted in the C-1 district per premise at any 
given time, but in no case shall it remain in place for six (6) non-consecutive 



fourteen (14) day periods per calendar year, not to exceed thirty-two (32) square 
feet. 

C. Civic and Charity Signs · 
Permission for civic and charity events shall be permitted by the Planning/Zoning 
Administrator. 

30.20 Temporary Off-Site Sign(s) for Advertising the Sale of Agricultural Products 
including Agritourism. 

Up to four (4) temporary, off-premise, way-finding signs may-shall be permitted that direct 
travelers to seasonal sales of agricultural products and related activities. Said 
signs shall conform with all state and countjr1:e~lations and shall be placed 
on private property with permission fro)llth~property owner(s) . 

.. tif- >t.--, 

Signs shall not exceed thirty-two (32) square feet ea6h.>Signs . , all be removed immediately 
.,, ', 

following the end of the appro "1,t. 
'-;--:=--_ :: :-,~t~?t:.:,_ 

Temporary Off-Premise Agricultural 
property owners. 

All signs shall bear the name, ad 

30.21 Signs Not Regulated. 
The following signs, e t as in this ··. , Jcle e 
requirements of t · xcept as11&t • 
construction. 

. •;•::" . . 
all not be counted ,a:g mst the hostmg 

,,;~, 

ly inch.id~tf;:.~hall be excluded from the 
Jt9 d sH?i]) not require permits for 

A. One (1) wall sighLO)t9ne . ound sign·'. <t exceeding four ( 4) square foot in surface 
display_f;We,,:' ~,signati;f~Jt-... ::~i:Ugy;~e nl.lilib~r or building name. Such signs shall not 
be couµte,d' ~tt9tal sign'ai-§l/penmtte~J~111tp.ep;femises. Such signs in excess of one (1) 
squar~J foot in surf'i:icy µi,splay::~~~ may be 'tf~r;tpitted as part of the total sign display area 
othefw.s~ permitted und~r:&ns Artipl~- ., .. 

:~}>,;;:f\_ 

B. Any sl~}ttraffic signanti:\warnin evice erected or displayed by any public agency, 
such signs ~h!fttvot be counted against the number of signs or against the total sign area 
permitted on theep,i;~Illises in&'yijich they are located. 

"'t:,(.t'= -, ,-_;--,'--i,,-,_~< 

\, ___ ,-'.t--:--f=·•:i-:Y 
C. Free standing sigris9r;\Viill signs indicating "No Parking", "Fire Lane", "Entrance" and 
similar wording when sl.idi signs are required to be erected by a public agency. Such signs 
shall not be counted against the number of signs or against the total sign area permitted on 
such premises, provided they do not exceed three (3) square feet per sign. No license shall 
be required for such sign if approved by the Zoning Administrator. 

D. Signs existing on the effective date of the adoption of this Article which are maintained 
by a church, school, community center or other public entity. 

\ ! 



,\ 
E. Vehicle mounted signs which are either painted or permanently attached and denote only 
the products, business or services offered by the owner of the vehicle. 

F. Memorial signs or tablets denoting the name or date of erection of a building when cut 
into any masonry surface or when constructed of bronze or other incombustible material. 

G. Flags bearing the official design of a unit of government, educational institution or civic 
league or organization, fraternal benefit societies, order or association or any organization 
operated exclusively for religious, charitable, scientific, literary or educational purposes. 

H. Signs not exceeding two (2) square feet which cont~: . , ;y non-commercial messages 
including designation of restrooms, telephone location o(gq-ection of door openings. 

'·\'·;\/'':::,, 
I. Seasonal decorations and community event signs '½:.,li:ich adi~rf!se public entertainment or 
events of public interest, providing the pla( the signg~~QalJ be approved and the 
locations designated by the Zoning Adminisp:g •.. hese signs slifil!):emain in place for not 
more than twenty-one (21) days before ahg)~even (7) days after lli .. vent and may not 
exceed ten (10) square feet in area. ;,;:;.'";,. 

J. Parking information signs c ·· 
vehicular warning and control m 
more than three (3) square feet and 

.,--;~p 

?'information o destrian or 
have a surface display area not 
eet in height. 

K. Parking reservation si~. not excee surface display area and 
not exceeding three(3);feef'iiiheight. 

1~~~tl' '• . 
L. One double-faced;~fe stan ·., . or wall ,,,,, ruction sign with a maximum limit of two 
(2) signs per premis~sJ~¼bje~tJtd,,Jh.f height'.'~~ clearance limitation applicable to said 
premis,es,Jdr ~jJerqianerit'~f /(i'' Jt::subj~ctto thelc;i'ij.pwing restrictions: 

~ ;--f:;• ~:!~}1;:~tl}L~ ~ •:~~= " - :---~~{,)t; "".'t} - • "?-; ;,~;·:-\~'.::; :-: :~;_:,, ---::-f•~ - • c\' ;: -_,: c~ 

;I':,;lf. Construct! ) igns sidenti;faiittict shall not exceed twelve (12) square feet 
, ::tlll,~urface displ~~i~~.a pe >"• and shall be set back at least fifteen(15) feet from the 

rieare~t existing righfof way:•. 
'+:~mt~. , ,, 

2. Corist;ll~tion signs,[@ all other districts shall not exceed fifty (50) square feet in 
surface display are~J~a shall be set back at least· one (1) foot from the nearest 
property lirie;/~ ' .• ,'.:, ,/ 

-, -~i;:,~:.;,~~;:~t1:'~ 
3. Construction signs shall not be permitted in any district for more than thirty (30) 
days after issuance of the occupancy permit. 

M. Political signs not exceeding three (3) in number per premises and not exceeding six (6) 
square feet in surface display area or three and one-half (3 1/2) feet in height per sign if not 
displayed for a period in excess of thirty (30) days prior to, and if removed within two (2) 
days after the election for which they are erected. All signs shall bear the name, address and 
telephone number of the person(s) responsible for the sign(s). 



N. One (1) wall or free standing real estate sign provided that such signs are removed ten 
(10) days after the sale, lease, or rental of the property upon which erected, subject to the 
following further conditions: 

1. Real estate signs in residential areas shall not exceed six ( 6) square feet in surface 
display area per face and shall not exceed three and one-half (3 1/2) feet in height, 
and if free standing shall be set back at least fifteen (15) feet from the nearest 
property line. 

2. Real estate signs in commercial areas shall not exce~d fifteen (15) square feet in 
surface display area per face or exceed ten (10) Je'~(ili height and if they are free 
standing shall be set back at least fifteen (15) fe'€tfr6m the nearest existing right of 
way. ,r"''i,'~~;}fJ\, 

.{;\?· \if jf)1,?', 
0. Signs maintained by a political subdivision of~ State of Mic.lug~. 

iJfl/fr "'rr:f~:,, 
P. Signs which do not contain any illustration'.tqr communicate any messag\:! other than time, 
temperature, barber poles or market quotations: · '? 

,i'.'.';;;,,. 
Q. Development entry signs id11v,, ···jt1.g the narri 
developments and any developme ;;iitry;}~j 
which is located and maintained p '!:uarw·· · 

1 . C . . ,~;1~\s. 
P anmng omrmss10n:4 '"ill't\ 

R. One wall or fr¥~-~f~dm ~ign iden~I,~,> eilt~;~d@P,a,.tion where permitted which 
shall not exceed foµi:{1) squar~feet in surfac~,",1splay area~'b'f five (5) feet in height and be 
of a character in keeph}~:)Yith the:' ~ighborhooo)'; 

30.22.1·;$(~l:7jiiotwt~d•. ' .. :,, 
Unl<!§f otherwise ·f11ymajtted by~,flllY of this Article no sign shall be 
constfucted, erected, of~~tain.~41)~,;c, 

,,,,.,,·,,->, 
'"':~'.'.?. 

A. Which'ptirps,rts to be, is''a,nimitaticn:ibf, resembles an official traffic sign or signal which 
bears the wof ,'''" top", "Go}How", "Caution", "Danger", "Warning", or similar words used 
in traffic control · 

B. Which by reason6fits'.~~e, location, context, coloring or manner of illumination may be 
confused with or construe8. as a traffic control sign which hides from view any approved 
traffic or street sign or signal, confuses or misleads traffic, obstructs vision necessary for 
traffic safety or distracts from visibility of traffic signs. 

C. Which consists of posters, pennants, ribbons, streamers, strings of light bulbs, spinners, 
and elements creating sound except seasonal decorations and community event signs. 



D. Which has any visible moving part, visible revolving parts, visible mechanical movement 
of any description or other apparent visible movement achieved by electrical, electronic or 
mechanical means, including intermittent electrical pulsations. 

E. Signs, other than those described in 30.21(16), which incorporate in any manner any 
flashing or moving lights. 

F. Which is structurally unsafe, constitutes a hazard to safety or health by reason of 
inadequate maintenance, dilapidation or abandonment, is not kept in good repair, and is 
capable of causing electrical shocks to persons likely to co )n contact with it or vehicles 
colliding with it. 

G. Which obstructs the ingress to or egress from a/r~[tlit~~rdoor, window, fire escape or 
other required exit way. · .· ,. '<~; 

H. Which is unlawfully installed, erected or 
;;,} 

~ 

I. Which consists or is part of an outdoor mefgli{l!ldise 
streets or adjacent residential prop 

J. Which is a projecting sign. 

L. Which is not e,x~t ,ed by t~~>~rtit:ti~f~lli6~'yiglates any provision thereof. 
;~\, -:-_-__ ,-,--.;::_ ,-,,-'?'.;J7 

--}\ 

m:,u;~~9i,~le 7o~~~::~ Ji:;:: or within a public 
ifl;::,'.;f . :,L .• ,,,; ~'; .. '\t!~; 

N.;W,hich is an of r~fujse sign]mless oth e}allowed within this Article. 
-=;~r·-· "tii~\:::~= ~-, ·- ~-1it~ 

\\- '\,,;; 
30.23 Exi~ting Signs ,,,J''\ '• ·':"'> 
Any existili&~s,ign on the effec,ive dat~bfthis Article or any amendment thereto, which does 
not at that tirtief¢qmply with aWpf the provisions thereof including any amendment: 

A. Shall not be ch~g~~l toJui~ther type of sign which is not in compliance with this Article. 
0,tJtiitry . 

B. Shall not have any changes made in the words or symbols used or the message displayed 
on the sign unless the sign is designed for periodic change of message. 

C. Shall not be structurally altered so as to prolong the life of the sign, change the shape, 
size, type or design of the sign. 

D. Shall not have its face or faces changed unless the sign is brought into conformance with 
the requirements of this Article or unless the sign is an off-premises sign or billboard 
constructed to permit a change of face. 



E. Shall not be re-established after the activity, business or usage to which it relates has been 
discontinued for a period of ninety (90) days or longer, unless the business is of a seasonal 
nature. 

F. Shall not be re-established after damage or destruction if the estimated expense of 
reconstruction exceeds fifty percent ( 5 0%) of the appraised replacement cost as determined 
by the Zoning Administrator. 

G. Shall not be placed, maintained or displayed by anyone oth~:r than the person who owned 
the premises on the date of adoption of this Article. . ..:f/l'JP 

r'•:~tf..'}/ 
--;> -'/.::')<1~'-. 

H. Shall not be placed, maintained or displayed by any:persop. on or after December 31, 
1999. · .. 7 .... ' 

'\l-.... 
' ,/.,)~. 

Additional Signage By Special Use , -:.;?~,~)t> 
In order to permit creativity in develop throughout the To\.vtiship, the Planning 
Commission shall have the authority to pe dditio:g::th.signage, irttlµqing additional 

· .fp'···'·"' c··,···~>, 
square footage, and in general, a.l1~matives to ,,J§lcl:IJ.c:lii:Vsign permit ieqwements, by 
special use under Section 25 .2dfiJ1.eµ_ an applicartfii'.w;!W6r owner submits rui application 
containing a complete sign schi~t· a.d'¼~~sing alf'i'sf~:ige proposed on the site and 
structure(s). Applications for spedi~l\useitµncl~r this s~~f n shall also contain, at a 
minimum, the following information: • ·· · · 

A. A detailed co!or~I vatiofi\gr §UCh imi 
B. A written staten1ent that describes how 

·§libw ;_;Qf()posed sign or signs. 
.·· or signs meets or exceeds the criteria for 

approval, specificag · 

~.gr s( ; . e c~iiiI~~ql>W: e building and the surrounding uses in 
terms 'd'f\~c1¥tectini1.\{spmpatibility}rp:iass, bulk, quality of materials and overall 
appearance~ w!th an erif phasis on maintaining or improving the existing fabric of 

\;the streets ar{dJor·ueighborhood. 
·;,:,,{;:!~?t~~ --~r:~~{;':~ , ,., "== ,; 

11. Si~-~,~hall be co~li:ucted in such a manner as to ensure the longevity of the sign 
and fhij!$~_fety oft 1general public. 

'";'>• -:---..,, 

'?''"'~;,,,,_ . ' ''''" 
The Planning Comniis····. ,.snall decide applications under this section in accordance with 
the the following procedffi~s and criteria: 

A. Signage shall be reviewed for consistency with the building and the surrounding uses in 
terms of architectural compatibility, mass, bulk, quality of materials and overall 
appearance, with an emphasis on maintaining or improving the existing fabric of the 
streets and/or neighborhood. 

B. Signs shall otherwise meet the requirements of this Ordinance. 

i' 



C. Signs shall be constructed in such a manner as to ensure the longevity of the sign and the 
safety of the general public. 

D. The Planning Commission shall have the ability to approve the sign or signs as 
presented, to deny the application in whole or in part, or to approve the application the 
conditions relative to the sign or signs. 

E. Owners or applicants who are aggrieved by the Planning Commission's decision on 
special uses under this section may appeal the decision to the Zoning Board of Appeals. 

30.25 Conflicts 
There any provision of the statutes, codes or laws ofthelJnited States of America or the 
State of Michigan or the County of Grand Trav~r3~:1\9SfilJ,~t with any provision of this 
Article, the most restrictive shall apply unless otherwi§e' requfreg,>py law. 

30.26 Violations and Enforcement . . .. , 'f;· t)O:-,"\ 
A. It shall be unlawful for any person to viola.tfany of the provisions of:ilji§Article. 

B. Any person who shall violate ap.y provision ~±\~si,. iril~hall be subjecftq)p.e penalties 
specified under Article XXI ofthiS,Qrd· ' < 

C. The Zoning Administrator or his;cig empoW~17ed to enforce this Article. 
-<···: 

D. The Zoning Admwf~t~!o):.-gr his ageh , hall np 
that compliance W:tti::tHe regtil~ti ns of this~;:n .. ,-

, __ --___ , -:, ,, ':-"'·-'.-

,: -~ 
cJtapphcant for a Land Use Permit 

c rtdttion of such Land Use Permit. 

E. The Zoning Ad~~~tor 9fljts.~gent sh~ll)~move improperly placed signs, contact the 
listed O)VN~r;;:~cl store said sign($) itWh!tewatef[Jownship Hall for a period of 7 days, after 
whicJ1:iliey;:wiH.be-::disposed-0f.-/ . ' . /\~>>. ::~~; 

-,-,-.:~· .. i:.~_.·_·~-,~·,·:)~fr' '··~ ';'--~-:~:;:_;~~,·-~ - --' --. --- ---- - - _,_ 

' . ; <:~;~/~!)?-:-' 
30.27:~~verability 0s,: h : . _ 
If any pi:9yi~ion, clause, 's~~tence, sti~?sI,mtence, paragraph, section or part of this Article be 
adjudged by,\any court of t9\µpetenf1tirisdiction to be invalid, such judgment shall not 
affect, impa:ir~r)11validate ther~mainder thereof, but shall be confmed in its operation to the 
provision, clatis¢\J~~1~ntenct!'{js,hb-sentence, paragraph, section or part thereof directly 
involved in the coiiti;qyersy:;ip;}Vhich said judgment shall have been rendered. 

.. /'i \:}i,{i/ 



ARTICLE XXXI 

PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT 

ARTICLE 31.10 PURPOSE, AUTHORITY, APPLICABILITY, AND 
PROCEDURES 

The purpose of a Planned Unit Development (PUD) is to preserve large tracts of intact 
open space land in order to maintain the rural landscape and environmental resources of 
Whitewater Township by allowing planned unit developm~i}>~tandards. This_ Article is 
adopted pursuant to MCL 125.286c and MCL 125.286d ·. t Rall apply only m the A-1, 
RC, R2 and R3 Districts. 

31.11 Conventional Developments 
Conventional developments are those that ar . 
conventional development requirements W;0 

• 

protected open space. The Township disc• 
detract from the Township's rural landscape 

31.12 Planned Unit Develo1&rt 

ply with the 
ermanently 

":ent where it may 
i'i~t· 

The Township encourages the us' . st,e'' ed Unit De 
conventional developments. Planne · :tv~l?pment · ·.:t' units to be clustered on 
those portions of a prqp .. most sui ,, for uete · ment, ffllt;J leaving substantial 
portions as undevet9i{~ .if~, space. Pl~ed ·· lt m~fil§ also may include a 
variety oflot siz~~}iangmgF ,¼:.tJarge f~}:! . all .. ,~ge-size lots. Planned unit 
development resuft~ii{l the pre~··· · ation ofc9 guous open space and important 

>C,,,,_,_;:c_:-,$';\ , ,_-

en~ironmental resourc{~rt~hil W'ing com ii'g~ development, more walkable . 
ne1ghbqi:h,gqg~d!Pd morec,lf!_ :,J:icm, conv~i!f1onal developments. Planned Umt 

_:/i-"~-;~<_N;:;· }'--_//1'7_J"'-:i <t:-. 'v'·/J:,< .,._,::-v·ts'~'c-'7,;'--_ :,;v·\·'¥} 

De;:;fJ~ppe~tsict,' · o,~y··~· •. tftJ:J~t of du~~,~~! tli)!ee or _more homes that share lot, par~el 
or ~}Jfsumt Imes. No ~9J1t1guo,;, land shalhi:q};be considered open space. Planned Umt 
Develo" ments must satts. the s . ds in Sections 31.20 and 31 .40. ,1 

31.21 ation 

ARDS FOR PLANNED UNIT 
OPMENTS 

The maximum density allowed for residential units is calculated by a formula based upon 
the "net" acreage of the property. 

A. Density calculations shall be based on contiguous parcels of land. If the 
parcels are not contiguous each tract shall be a separate application (road 
right of ways do not break continuity). 

WHITEWATER TOWNSHIP ZONING ORDINANCE 



B. To determine the net acreage of a piece of property verify with Section 
31.41 that your property has conservation value then subtract from the 
total (gross) acreage of the site the total acreage of all the existing road 
right-of-ways. 

C. To determine the number of allowable residential units on the site, divide 
the net acreage by .92 in the Al District, by 4.0 in the RC District, .27 in R-
2 and R-3 District. Fractional units shall be rounded up if .5 or greater and 
rounded down if less than .5. If the intent of this Article is met and 
Whitewater Townships private road requirements are used, the Planning 
Commission may also allow for additional Jo,tsJor units up to 15% of the 
gross acreage. tf];¥r:;r 

D. For parcels that are located within ,,;~,. 
be made separately for the portion,p each district. This 
dens~ty may then be combineq;~jttistribut~d ;(f~~e ~thin the parcel, 
provided that the plan prote ·· ·· n space with conse1,;y~t10n value (see 
Section 31 .40). ., 

"':~mum 
(20) a res .. 

'";~:ti1:lt t 
}i:>,, Without cfomiµon ob llllicipal sewage disposal services or water supply: 
'~ttlt:\,,The Planning';~ommisst&n may allow for lots or units to be a minimum of 

' S~Qi000 squarflet with 100 feet of road frontage. 

C. ,pmmg municipal sewage disposal services or water supply: The 
Platl11llj;g q§.;. · ssion may allow for lots or units to be a minimum of 
12,000''sqtjate feet in area with 80 feet of road frontage. 

D. With common or municipal sewage disposal services and water supply: 
The Planning Commission may allow for lots or units to be a minimum of 
8,000 square feet with 50 ft. of road frontage. 

E. The applicant shall submit proposed setback requirements if they deviate 
from the required setbacks in the zoning district. 

F. The above minimum requirements are subject to Health Department 
approval. 

WHITEWATER TOWNSHIP ZONING ORDINANCE 

'! 



G. Larger lots or units may be required for multi-family dwellings. 

31.24 Minimum Preserved Open Space 
Since the major purpose of a planned unit development is to preserve open space, all 
Planned Unit Developments shall preserve at least 50% of the parcel(s) as open space in 
the A-1, R2 and R3 districts, and 80% in the RC district. The requirements for 
preserving such open space are described in Section 31.40. 

31.25 Open Space Land 
Preserved open space may be included as a portion of one o:tilmore large lots. Such open 
space may be owned by, private landowner(s), a non-pi:9fi!;'sfrganization, the Township or 
another governmental entity, as provided in Section :};IA' · <(P long as it is protected from 

development by a conservation easement. ,,,~ .J~]v' , ~ 
The required open space land may not includ ,d within a · ·t,pwcel or a site condo 

unit. -~,f 

31.26 Arrangement of Lots or Sites 

31" 

7 

'tt ,,})~ 
• ,•tt';!)of conserv~h~,!iv~lue and 

t shall comply witli applicable 
.tl,t/(m Design for Subdivisions 

e sam~ f':t+'t;,. t with similar designs 
J\ copy of the publication 

designed to stand alone. Each phase shall 
n space in relation to the acreage being 

All in ,1~tructure shall ,,,1~~gpro ,/f~ Grand Traverse County and any other entity with 
jurisdictiq .. rivate road ii~yilopmei'il~all follow the Whitewater Township Private 
Road Ordma.µ9~. Drainage;}X~ctures such as detention / retention ponds shall be 
designed to hleii~:~ith the l@qscaping features of the project. 

,;\);'";k JiiVr: 

31.29 Recreatiorilit· ··· Ifif/ 
'.2 _-_-~;;~~"fl 

Recreational areas are .. r;F ended to be incorporated in a portion of the open space in 
order to create a park like setting. Paths for walking throughout the open space are 
required in a planned unit development. Outdoor basketball or tennis courts that create 
impervious surfaces may be allowed in 10% of the required open space in the planned 
unit development, structures such as buildings are not allowed in the open space. 

31.30 ASSESSMENTS 

The Planning Commission may require an Environmental Impact Statement, Traffic 
Impact Study or any other assessment to ensure the public health safety and welfare of 
the Whitewater Township residents. 

WHITEWATER TOWNSHIP ZONING ORDINANCE 



ARTICLE 31.40 PERMANENT OPEN SPACE 
Open space set aside in a planned unit development or as a condition of any Special Use 
Permit or Site Plan approval (see Article 25.00) shall be permanently preserved as 
required by this Section. Land set aside as permanent open space may be included as a 
portion of one or more large parcels on which dwellings and other structures are 
permitted, provided that a conservation easement is placed on such land pursuant to 
Section 31.43 below, and provided that the Planning Commtssion approves such 
configuration of the open space as part of its Subdivision,$p?cial Use Permit, or Site 
Plan approval. Any development permitted in connectj,9frh¥ith the setting aside of open 
space land shall not compromise the conservation v pfsuch open space land. 

\(~'.t 

31.41 Conservation Value of Open Spas,, · l~ 
The open space protected pursuant to this ~~9!t 31 .40 must hav~r''conservation value," 
which may include recreational, historic, e~2 JQgical, agricultural, wat~:t:esource, scenic 
or other natural resource value. Examples ofl~ds with C servation \Pall~ e include land 
in active _agricul~e, l~ge ~reas of co~tiguous";r~,i~ • J9f , stream co ·. '\\i)~it,ridgelines, 
and scemc areas mcludmg 1mpo> 1stas or vie en from public places. 
Wetlands are considered to have!" q,tion value · . ·u not count towards density 
calculation. Land of conservation ... " sh"'' ,11;,e include r purposes of calculating 
density in Section 31.21. Wheneverft~li' •:trf~:gmmi .~)}~pproves a plan with 
protected open spac$!~:J :· J make wrii;t~J? findi1}~~·1t~~11tifying,'A1~ specific conservation 
values protected cmdJh ·· .,. for prot~ftin ,'~ifian.d\: ·•/ 

s:~;.~:':~ . . ,/ 
31.42 Notatiori.i<ln Plato ite Plan 

Preserve.1 .. 9,.~~#.spac;:lt1\"~11w/ l~J!~ly def ted and labeled on the final plat or Site 
Plan as}cHt$ ti"s~;·"(:)~ershi'p,,,.,iji agemg4tt!:11;et ·., ... i of preservation, and the rights, if any, 
of J~~.?wners ofotlJ;~f}~ts 111i~q..?evelopmenf J9 ··such land. The plat or Site Plan shall 
clearl)':show that the'bpf11.spacej.:111d is permanently reserved for open space purposes, 
and sli1il1):pntain a notat1~p.,,£fescri£{~g.recording information for any conservation 
easemerit(~qestrictive CffV~hants r~qqhed to be filed to implement such restrictions. 

'\~:s~fX;>c 
31.43 Pe?fu~p~mt Pres~ ... ation by Conservation Easement 

A. A"'pin,i;Itu~l.;¢'6!servation easement restricting development of the open 
spacelaridJttrcI allowing use only for agriculture (not including structures), 
forestry}retreation, protection of natural resources, or similar 
conservation purposes, pursuant to MCL 324.2140 - 2144, shall be granted 
to the Township, with the approval of the Township Board, to a qualified 
not-for-profit conservation organization acceptable to the Planning 
Commission (see section 31.44). Such conservation easement shall be 
approved by the Planning Commission and shall be required as a condition 
of municipal approval. The Planning Commission may require that the 
conservation easement be enforceable by the Township if the Township is 
not the holder of the conservation easement. The conservation easement 
shall be recorded in the office of the Register of Deeds prior to or 

WHITEWATER TOWNSHIP ZONING ORDINANCE 



31.44 

simultaneously with the recording of any final plat or Master Deed in the 
office of the Register of Deeds. 

B. Access roads, driveways, water supply wells, septic waste disposal 
facilities, local utility distribution lines, trails, temporary structures for 
outdoor recreation, are permitted provided that they do not impair the 
conservation value of the land. The conservation easement shall prohibit 
residential, industrial, or commercial use of open space land. 

C. A development rights easement under MCL 324.36101 et seq. may be 
substituted for a conservation easement for pyij)oses of this Section 31.43 
only if its term is perpetual. ,,31:;}J? 

.·;\;C);f' 

Ownership of Open Space Land ,t;f[\i ,/'l:,,. 
A. Open space land may be dedicated,fo\TI:ownship'}~ounty, or State 

"'. Y: ;;. >lL. 
governments, home owners a~§Q~iation, private"'o~yrship, transferred to a 
non-profit organization acc,~pf)b16 to the Planning'C9'tmnission or held in 
such other form of ownershipJs,. the Planning Commis'~!0Etfinds adequate 
to properly manage the open spac~Jand protect its~!g11,servation 
value. · , · "11'iij}): 1 \iir \W 

31.45 Maintenance Standar .. ,1, . 

A. Ongoing maintenanlf}t ards shall be es ab~ished, enforceable by the 
Towns™'JJT!;!gainst an 6v)1!},~r of dp ·:·"·· J1ce lanc(a~a condition of 
dev,elopin¢:r1t~pgproval, tci1;~1,}sure"> . ,, lj:~?1>,_en space land is not used for 
st9:hi'ge1/or durtiJ:!m,g of reft1§~lj~ or ollie~2ffensive or hazardous 
mat~~~l~. ?,t•1 'f(t:r¥ .,~,· 

B. If the 0T6~shii,'l3~~d.finds tlia.t::t~e provisions of Subsection (A) above 
:';f~,YgQeing~vf~Ji1¥:lsJbliHna12the ~~~~ition of the land constitutes a public 
""· :·•······' ., . \. •J:: ·'''. ,.,., '.,,, .. nuis~q~, it m*y;,,µpon 30 i::l~y$;;w,rltten notice to the owner, enter the 

prenifa~~f9r nec~~S'lfY maintehance, and the cost of such maintenance by 
,·';l; 1:};;, the TOWI1$,lji,Q shaftli~!~ssessed against the landowner or, the owners of 

,,,, ,, properties "Wit4in the ·l:leyJ!lopment, and shall, if unpaid, become a tax lien 
·,1;;\on such propert}' or properties. · 

',j~i. 

ARTICLE 3L, "•'~·)·r~g~§EDURE FOR PUD APPROVAL 
The procedure for Plaiip'e~£Bnit Development review shall follow the Special Use Permit 
procedure and SubdiviirbK Ordinance #16 procedure concurrently. 

WHITEWATER TOWNSHIP ZONING ORDINANCE 



(! 32.00 

136 

ARTICLE XXXII 

CORRIDOR OVERLAY 
PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT ZONING DISTRICT 

A Corridor Overlay Planned Unit Development (COPUD) Zoning District is hereby established 
consistent with the goals and objectives of the Whitewater Township Master Plan adopted in 
1990 and amended in 1991 and pursuant to the zoning enabling $taqites of the State of Michigan, 
including but not limited to Act 184 ofl943 as amended. · ':97 

All developments proposed within this District shall bS1],§~ ecft~~he procedures, standards and 
guidelines specified in the following sections, in a~eW'olfto thos~'1§' dards pertaining to the 
particular base zoning district in which the deveL '' 0>eht occurs. 

The purposes of establishing this district are as 
1. To encourage the use of land in accor 

32.10 

,f~-:t1\~~ '\:<, 
2. To encourage economy an~~f~fjency in the1' 

the provision of public serviclil\'.·<:, .. iitUities. 
'~'\¾:tt: 

3. To encourage the,preservation i:\S,~d vie~}lJ,~ds. Further, to establish 
site and struc c~i~t'g11·s~dards wfiich v:':/';'' Jotlct~d enli:\nce property values and 
encourage Sll.:. sful co 't:'),, .rcial an&;~, iiHil defelppw.ent in the District. 

< -,--- y -,cc-~~r-

4. To preserve o ~rfuance. 
localJandowners ,ili'tft' e· 

fj[f~~66~'. . .. 
,:,:'.\'}~}-, 

yisual cha . ter of the corridor for the economic benefit to 
, stablisgipg and maintaining an orderly, well 

ct~~and values of the Township and the 

s."wt o:mford applic~tJ'\he grea ¼)}ijexibility of a Planned Unit Development regulated 
primarilf;,tlrrough perfclgiiance-b~~ea standards so that proposed designs can be reviewed 
with the'fppl,i9ant in a c&qierative manner to determine whether the proposed plan meets 
the standard§ ~4 guideU,ii~; of this zoning district. 

r r::0, J;11 

DEFINITIONS: 

BENEFIT, RECOGNIZABLE AND SUBSTANTIAL: 
A clear benefit, both to the ultimate users of the property in question and to the community, 
which would reasonably be expected to accrue, taking into consideration the reasonable 
foreseeable detriments of the proposed development and use(s); including without limitation: 
long-term protection and/or preservation of natural resources and natural features and/or 
historical and/or architectural features of a significant quantity and/or quality in need of 
protection or preservation on a local, state and/or national basis; reducing to a significant extent 
the non-conformity of a non-conforming use or structure so that, to a significant extent, it is 
rendered more conforming, or less offensive, to the zoning district in which it is situated. 

(WHITEWATER TOWNSHIP ZONING ORDINANCE) 



137 

COMMUNITY IMPACT STATEMENT: 
An assessment of the the developmental, ecological, social, economic and physical impacts of a 
project on the natural environment and the physical improvements on and surrounding the 
development site. Information required for compliance with other ordinances shall not be 
required to be duplicated in the Community Impact Statement. 

NATURAL FEATURES: 
Natural features shall include soils, wetlands, floodplain, water bodies, sand dunes, topography, 
vegetative cover and geologic formations. 

PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT: 
A planned unit development may include such concept·· • f)r, development, planned 
development, community unit plan, planned commerct , eveloi:f'.''.!;, nt, planned 
commercial/residential developemnt and other te,pnirt~logy denotin: .ning requirements 

@"'.'· j ·•,;•<·'·· 
designed to accomplish the objectives of this @&cf!nance through a larta.de_v,dopment review 
process based on the application of site pla:nnitig~riteria to achieve integra}i2.!1 of the proposed 
land development project with the characteristics"!.'>~: area and the\~t:1

• unity master 
plan. 

PUD: 
A planned unit development. 

COPUD: 
A corridor overlay zd~~.;,Whic 
development. ¥,;;'.;;~~>::-: 

c,'.:itif:~:0:aA, 

UNDERhYING ZON 
The zonirig;'~la'.§§ffi~::;,,,," 

designat!Q'ff~f the prop 
1 ; the property immediately preceding the 
planned Unit Development Zoning District. 

32,11 nE~~{;~~:~fl\it~g~;~~AY PLANNED UNIT 

The Corridor Ovetl,~x Planned TJ:mt Development zoning district shall include all those lands 
adjoining M-72 frofh;~~ek Roa%ifestward to the_ west township line and lying 500 feet north 
and 500 feet south of tli~;,[ij~Hle;r!f!le of the M-72 right-of-way. 

'!i)[-:{f;:-:---_--- :0:i 

32.12 APPLICABILITY:'o'F THIS ARTICLE 
Within this COPUD District, all development projects are eligible to employ the design 
standards and applicable procedures of this article. Development projects entailing principal 
structures with an over-all floor area in excess of 5,000 square feet shall be subject to the design 
standards and application procedures of this article (Sections 32.13 to end). Development 
projects in this Copud District on parcels of land fronting on M-72 but of greater depth than 500 
hundred feet may extend the applicability of these procedures and design standards by means of 
rezoning or through variances. 

(WHITEWATER TOWNSHIP ZONING ORDINANCE) 

'( 



( 

! 

138 

32.13 GENERAL DESIGN STANDARDS 
1. Subject to paragraph 2 of this section, all regulations applicable to lot size, lot width, lot 
coverage, setback, parking and loading, general provisions, and to other requirements and 
facilities, shall meet the regulations applicable in the underlying district in which the project is 
located. In addition, all projects in this COPUD Zoning District shall meet the design standards 
and guidelines of this article. 

2. Consistent with the planned unit development concept, and toward the end of encouraging 
flexibility and creativity in development, departures from compl,iance with the regulations 
provided for in the immediately preceding paragraph 32.13 Jim;~y'be recommended in the 
discretion of the Planning Commission and granted by th~'fo,~ship Board as part of the 
approval of a planned unit development. Such departuret'in:ay be'~uthorized on the condition that 

',':·SP .,,,,,.,,~ 
there are features or planning mechanisms, deemect~4eqtiate b)''ll¥~>P lanning Commission and 

,ri'·:<:\:,« .. '.,. ·~:, . .,.,~,ch 

the Township Board, designed into the project fgr';tli~'1purpose of aclµ~y,ing the objectives 
intended to be accomplished with respect to e c?i:'pfthe regulations frt'>A;,, hich a departure is 
sought. ,,.. ., · 

. ·,r,z)-}~·'c;, 
,,._:;.,})--..,.. 

3. The development shall be designe ... , tion of natural 't~squrces and 
natural features. In the interpretatio· s prov1s10n>na .__ resources and natural 
features may be impaired or altered, ni~l~fdQ.tJ,i~oved if'it/~},,1ip. the public interest to do so. In 
determining whether action is in the puB\.~l,Jnter~~}ii:!~e be~efi~~~ch would reasonably be 
expected to accrue from t 1,:9posal shall'&g~ balart , . ,ainst tli~tr,easonably foreseeable 
detriments of the activity .... • to consi"d~}ation, ffqal;,,statellffti national concerns for the 
protection and presevg-a.tion o n · al resou;~~~1~u:f, > atur~i f~i~es, and taking into account the 
provisions and stand~q~;:Qf Act 1 \ f the Pub k'< ·cts of 1970, is amended, the Michigan 
Environmental Protectidfll> 

-<(y:1~.i~~f}·;:~,:J~:~f~:~.-_ - 't/f:,:/ii;!~ _ t.{:J{'~t~:> 
4. The J:l}~ng Co~1~,~ion ~~t e Townslij,:e;1~.o /shall take into account the following 
consid~tattons, as the s'ruJI~ipay btflntevant to"'ff~icular project and insure compliance with all 
related appti,cable regulatfo·~~~stabiisij~g elsewhere in the Ordinance including, but not limited 
to, architecttif.~~design stancfru;a~, periilitf~5,.setbacks, grading and berming, roads and driveways, 
drainage, storrriY!I~ter runoff, sn~~ cleariifgYand storage, underground installation of utilities, 
insulating the pea~·~ll'.ian circulatipp. system from vehicular traffic, achievement of an integrated 
development with t6[r\~Qt to sigiia'ge, lighting, landscaping and building materials; and, noise 
reduction and visual scf~~:9:gfi~chanisms particularly in cases where nonresidential uses adjoin 
off-site residential uses or~!sl~entially zoned property. The Whitewater Township Commercial/ 
Industrial Designs Example''Book, which is available in the office of the Zoning Administrator, 
contains graphic and photographic examples of structures and landscaping which would comply 
with or approach compliance with the design standards of this article. 

32.14 SETBACKS FOR STRUCTURES ON PARCELS OR SITES FRONTING 
ON THE M-72 CORRIDOR 

Front Yard Setbacks: 
No permanent structure other than a free-standing sign approved by the Township shall 
be constructed closer to a public right-of- way than seventy-five (75) feet. 

(WHITEWATER TOWNSHIP ZONING ORDINANCE) 



139 

Side Yard Setbacks: 
No permanent or temporary structure shall be constructed or placed within twenty-five 
(25) feet of any side yard not facing a public right of way. Of this minimum side yard, an 
open strip of fifteen (15) feet in width shall be maintained as a service drive, as a lawn or 
planted in low-growing ground cover (such as myrtle or euonymous) to permit 
emergency equipment access. At least five (5) feet of the side yard adjacent to the 
property line shall be planted and maintained as a green-belt/buffer strip to the adjacent 
property (see Article XXXIII). In no case shall structures occupy more than sixty percent 
( 60%) of the width of any parcel when measured along.Jm,~s perpendicular to the 
centerline of the principal adjoining road. 4t";iff!fl}1 

ifti~'.,l!/ 
Rear Yard Setbacks: sJWJ:,fii'>::,,. 

The rear yard setback shall be thirty (30) fe~tpfos'the width::of any required green-belt or 
buffer zone. / L :!~') 

-,-,--- ,';---~F 

32.15 OFF-STREET PARKING AND LO .J~G < ,. 

1. All off-street parking and loading areaifsh~!l compl Jwith the standards and 
regulations of Article XXXI ;rQff-Street Parkplgafi ' oading. :;l:~;; 

, - A - <;;,,y 

2. Parking allowed in the fron . >: s~l:~1;1,ck in exces;~f six (6) vehicles shall be screened 
from view of the adjoining roacttr, foltai~:\+, i,,t}~,)\ 

a. In the S;i~~;.~, and N z g disffi'±k, • litoinirf~~~z2, par1;<ing ~hall b~ 
screenedJiy~m~ags.,of a buf zon 6; higlr:as described m Sect10n 
33.3. '" ':ft'er Zorle.},30 Feet, i. , Gre s, of Article XXXIII, 

,,.\~tandar ...... ,. Similar 'so;;,·. ning by means of a six (6) foot high buffer 
zone shaff B,itf~quir~<!;a\on~ side ya.f4s of corner lots where parking is located in 
!11e,sfqe yard{~djgini}1gth~•.~iµe stre~t:\ 

,-, \\{j: ' ,J - fr'r: ";~f/j 

32.16 fAR'tERIAL R . . A . ''')-\. Y, AND SERVICE DRIVE 
, I>·.. REGULA'.TiONS .. ~ 

Access to artiti,~l roads, sidel~'~ps on ij'tb,yr lots, and other roads; driveways; connections 
between parkirrg~l~ts on adjac~ri1~arcels·;c;fuid service drives shall comply with Article XXXV, 
Arterial Access Management Regulations. 

<~::Cf~{'';, •!~l~~, 
32.17 ARCHITECT~ 1!).$SIGN REVIEW AND STANDARDS 
The compatible relationslli~(~t}.the proposed development in the District is of critical public 
concern for any buildings nr'site improvements. The intent of the design review is not to stifle 
innovative architecture but to assure respect for existing designs that substantially comply with 
the intent and design standards of this article and to reduce incompatible and adverse impacts on 
the visual experience from the roadways in these corridors, parks, and residential districts. To 
accomplish this the Site Plan Review Committee and the Planning Commission shall exercise the 
following standards and guidelines in reviewing all such proposed development: 

1. Proposed development shall avoid excessive or unsightly grading, indiscriminate earth 
moving or clearing of property, and removal of trees and vegetation which could cause 
disruption of natural water courses or disfigure natural land forms. 

(WHITEWATER TOWNSHIP ZONING ORDINANCE) 



;( 

140 

2. Proposed development shall be located and configured in a visually harmonious 
manner with the terrain and vegetation of the land parcel and surrounding parcels. 
Structures shall impede, as little as reasonably practical, scenic views of the natural 
environment from the corridor. 

3. Although maximum site densities and special site regulations listed in the particular 
zoning districts of Articles VIII, IX,and XII shall be preserved, proposed structures shall 
not dominate, in an incompatible manner, any existing general development or adjacent 
building which is substantially in compliance with this.article. This may be 
accomplished by use of appropriate site design, architi!cfural features, and/or landscaping 
to reduce the appearance of excessive and inappropri~t?"leight or mass of proposed 
structures. When viewing the site in a directi01f<ll\t~tpen~tpylar to the adjacent roadway, no 
more than sixty (60) percent of the view to PNBiietfy or op~it~pace beyond the site may be 
obstructed by structures and in no case vyiJ.tmbte than threJ,r,:{ui~ed (300) feet of 
uninterrupted structure with no view t~l''li~~p;operty or open sp~]:' • eyond be allowed. 

4. The architectural design of structures jh,eir mat~ti~ls and cold' .:,]~,;:tll be visually 
harmonious with the overall 1!"a.gitional appe~artq~ly'}:J~;'t:~ltural historyfBfthe township 
and region, that is, structurel~w\»pµ11re designed~{ unobtrusive and which are situated 
and landscaped in a manner talt'"' ''ttd:Wit:4 or to be"c ' lementary to natural land forms 
and existing vegetation or vege .,, n Iiidigenous to tfii 

5. Structures sh<Jtf~lf~it~trate the g&p~ral IL , Pr':' · f goo esign including, but not 
limited to thq$edealing';'wf~,form, mij§;,~¢@~{heig ·· ture and color. Specific 

'•.. .. . '.>' ,,.., ,,,y•·• , •. ·,;/ 
consideration s~i:t:11,,.~e givei1,Jp compatitii, · ... ,,.with adjacent structures where such 
structures are sub~t!lJltiallyJ.ril{~p~plianc&,\ this Article. 

'tchelrogfswitlia''.'>., . um, e of 4/12 and with wide overhangs are 
gly eribti~t~ged. .· ~• ... ~ roofs are not acceptable. Shingles, metal 

stan in:g:r,§earrif\tile.pr other ·rstf)naterials which are nature-blending in texture 
and app~';'r~wice ir~~d!imsidered appropriate to the township and regional 
character. , "'~i:tt» 

''({k,-}:i 

ng monotd~gµs facade designs including, but not limited to, those 
terizeq~j unrelieved repetition of shape and form or by unbroken 

ext 10,:1;;pfj!pie shall be avoided. Excessive ornamentation shall be avoided 
to preveµf~y;sual clutter. All facades of a building or structure which may be 
visible from a roadway, an adjacent Rl District or School shall receive design 
consideration. Exterior building components such as windows, doors, eaves 
and parapets shall have balanced proportions. Screening of monolithic or 
monotonous facades by means of trees or other vegetation may be considered 
in design reviews. 

c. Natural wood siding, log or quarter log siding, brick, stone, or other materials 
of similar texture and appearance are considered appropriate to the township 
character. Reflective surfaces are not acceptable. Metal or plastic surface 
materials which are visually similar in color and texture to natural materials 
may be considered. 

(WHITEWATER TOWNSHIP ZONING ORDINANCE) 



141 

d. Colors of paints, stains, and other finishes or materials shall be nature­
blending in colors natural to the predominant hues of spring, summer and fall, 
with generally no more than three colors per building. Semi-transparent stains 
are recommended for application on natural wood finishes. 

e. Exterior architectural, display and decorative lighting visible from the 
roadway shall be generated from concealed light source, low level light 
fixtures. Refer to items (7) and (9)b in this section for other types of lighting 
and to Article XXIX Exterior Lighting. The -- ost restrictive regulations shall 
apply. .'1 

f. All interior lighting shall be so desi¥,ii~d}'6 .,."v;xent the light source or high 
levels of light from being visibleji;pm>the coffidoi: roadway. 

,_ -,}t;}i} , ,, 

g. All projections and mech~j;,,F &tails such as lo~v " ,.xposed flashing, 
flues, vents, gutters and do~pquts are to be recogni Jt8:.~ architectural 
features and are to be treated ttfm C !''tor of the aciJ~~Ilt surface or an 
approved complem tary color. 'r \',!ij),, <~,i ,-----v 

h. i~9.> er utility '~~~are on the roof, ground, or 
slia \enever pS~!tsLe: be located so as not to be 

r•'cir1t?io. ent res1de11tial areas. Where such 
. acilititfrshall be screened from 

t!~he building. 

1. In an J~ign i ?' ,·2h the struqfilral frame or mechanical components are 
·,;t~f.posecftd~yi~~,.;J;; architectural features, the structural materials shall be 

:'.l£o'.f:rtna,tiblewr"'" themsl};bt,, ' d'ffi_e overall structure design and their 
-~',<>SA,.:\.,_ • '-', 

surtou;pt gs.· 

,,,;''it Refuse ana'w.;iste rem6'V,:al areas, service yards, storage yards, and exterior 
. .work areas shaV be sc;~~hed from view from public ways with materials 
:.1r~i;monious with the building. Solid Waste collection and storage facilities 
shaJl12e desig:i:ie# to accommodate trash collection and recycling as well as 
comp''" · ng,:jtthe planned use will generate compostable waste. 

•,.,Y 
/:{// 

k. Structureifshall be so sited or screened by means of berms and/or vegetation 
that garage doors and larger service entrance doors are not visible from the 
public roadways. 

1. The outdoor display of vehicles, equipment, boats, etc. for sale shall be 
limited to not more than four (4) representative units. All other such units, if 
not stored or displayed in a completely enclosed structure, shall be fully 
screened from view from public roads and all adjacent properties by means of 
berms and/or vegetation barriers or fences, approved by the Planning 
Commission, which shall be maintained to be fully effective year around. 
Units being serviced or stored shall be similarly enclosed or screened. 

(WHITEWATER TOWNSHIP ZONING ORDINANCE) 



142 

m. Structures, whenever reasonably possible, shall be oriented to the sun, with 
window sizing and placement, roof overhangs or awnings, and landscaping 
designed to provide shade and wind protection to achieve economies in 
heating and cooling costs. 

n. Monotony of design in single or multiple building projects shall be avoided. 
Variation of detail, form and siting may be used to provide visual interest. In 
multiple building projects, variable siting of individual buildings may be used 
to prevent a monotonous appearance. /"< ,-v.c,c_<-} 

·, 
.;]:';;.,))" 

6. The landscape plan for any proposed developm~µt\b;all provide visually harmonious 
_,,,--;,-,- -: __ :- ,-,:-<'<'.\-:,.._ 

and conpatibl~ settings for structures on_th~ Sa.!!};~,J9tani'~~ adjoini~g or nearby lots and 
shall blend with the landscape charactenst1c;qf the townsliip•~d reg10n. Natural 
appearing landscape forms are strongly enc:/1uraged as is thJpf&Pting of indigenous plant 
species; formal plans and the appearan,c~t~~i;traight hedges ar'~'disc;puraged. 
Landscaping shall be required between b;µil~ings and sidewalks, P~f}ajrig lost and 
driveways. The scale of the proposed lands¢~Ring s , e in proporti~)1Jo the building. 

,:;i:c>::;., ··• 

7. Site lighting shall be low-lfi;l'f:r9,m a conc;ll .... t source fixture and shall not spill 
over into adjoining propertiesTe\eeiftJ;;. h the wri onsent of the adjoining property 
owner and the concurrence of the.Site· eview .. ·. ittee and the Planning 
Commission), roc);g,ljgp.t-of-way~·~~terfr .J}t>~ks o~~~!!~ds. Nor shall site lighting 
interfere in any, ,,, \wi~::the vision°q~:. ·4 '' tEilterior li'gliting shall also comply with 

< - •' '~c)/>i.,f:t?.\. C'S ,!'"s·_•C' ,c- -- -----•.Cc 

Article XXIXf rior :Gf'" · ting Regu:Ji · 

8. To the extent t .. ey r. .• to both ap ~ance standards and resource conservation, 
:-"•-_ --:_<::,!-,\' - ----;/\ 

•·~ . dar · : :.4 809 ,v ,C!lt~techriiq~,es of any proposed development shall be 
· si ··.ei:gy cbl'!stn,nption*i~aJ 'ronlilental quality considerations such as heat 

heat gain/hlt~1.11issi6nland runor:' · '}er retention and discharge quality. 
y- ___ , -------.,., , 

': - - ... />}~ ----~:(-~ ,,, }·<?J~~~~~~~-
9. Stt.ee,t~cape Improv~ ents: "r}J,}f"'-

'\i:\!tSJreetscape i"'· vementilinclude those architectural or functional facilities or 
;t'fd~tures which ur on site but are not part of the building and which 
encdttr~g~ and f: "~ ;tate human interaction with the environment. Examples 
include''i,But. . limited to the following: decorative light fixtures, fountains, 

' i\* "' 
sculpture, ·oe s and tables, planters, retaining walls, pedestrian and bicycle 
paths, bicycie'iarking structures, trash receptacles and enclosures, vendor areas, 
bollards and fences. These improvements shall be designed to be consistent with 
all guidelines of this section and shall be reviewed for design function and 
compatibility with the character of the Township. 

b. Decorative, low-level intensity, non-concealed source lighting which defines 
vehicular and/or pedestrian ways may be acceptable if part of a lighting 
masterplan. It is strongly discouraged as general lighting for a development. The 
plans must show the relationship of the fixtures and the light patterns to each 
other, to the overall sight, to other proposed or existing development (to the extent 
it is known), and the COPUD Zoning District. 

(WHITEWATER TOWNSHIP ZONING ORDINANCE) 



143 

10. Signs 
a. All signs shall meet all requirements of Article XXX: Sign Regulations. The 
Site Plan Review Committee and/or the Planning Commission may place further 
requirements on signs visible from adjacent roads if consistent with the provisions 
of this Article. 

b.New or replacement signs in the COPUD District shall receive approval from 
the Site Plan Review Committee prior to install~tion. 

,{!-'.'.;-;:-:-:~-::. 

c. The Site Plan Review Committee and/or;t,~Ji>fa:ruung Commission is 
authorized to approve or disapprove th~ii#1?ear3-!i9e of features on such proposed 
signs. Signs will be reviewed for cowHfiai5:ce with.I . guidelines of this section 
and for compatibility with the to'-'.YTIStfi~ character. ··• Jt:Z:oning Administrator's 
approval shall be given only aft(iftlif Site Plan Review0G'qromittee and/or the 
Planning Commission's approJ£1Js.granted. · ··. · 

ation on sign all b . . ssary to 
provide reasonable i · ation of the 'iisiness and whether the b;siness is open 
or, in the case ofhotefa. ~~l: whethe?'tliet~,are vacancies. "Open" or 
"Vacancy" signs shall b m8t .fill: two(2rsqi,1qre feet in area and shall be 
incorporat~dJrtthe free st ·ng s1g11':i . h identifi~~ the business. 

, C '<- --,_~'{""•-h- • r - , ~,0.., 

. \ Hf ·"tr 
Nori1' ,.;0,.zrnment lJ}t e , Jo be signs and shall be subject 

to the ., .. yi~ions of'fms article aiJ'.f icle XXX\:lf this ordinance. Poles or any 
other me~rt.§;)l§~d tclfJ.x}l~~s are d.~~wed structures and shall be subject to the 

rrestrictions BKstntcf{il&:,b.'ei <i"\ tion 12.11, Schedule of Regulations). 
,,f:\ri;- ,,, ~t/~'{-::'.f_:~/ 

32.1s .:t;f]lNnscAPE .. . 2\NDARDS 
The inf5~ation required'r~fJ,,ite Pl~~eview shall include a detailed and comprehensive 
Landscape'El~pJor the entirt~r:9ject wi#ltachieves the following objectives: 

1. retaf4~[¢l(isting treesrfilspfar aspossible and retains natural or existing topographic 
patterns ·wlil~h contribut~\to the beauty and utility of the development. 

'' ~i~':~'.:-::_~:~~?l~:~ _ lffG~~ 
2. addresses tlie.fuQcti9.g~l/aspects of landscaping, such as drainage, erosion prevention, 
wind barriers, pro~~~kgm:o:r shade, sound absorption, dust abatement, and reduction of 
glare. tt;;;,v 

3. enhances architectural features, strengthens vistas and important axis and sight lines. 

4. achieves unity of design by repeating certain plant varieties and other materials and by 
correlation with adjacent developments. 

5. selects plant material for interest in its structure, texture, and color and also for its 
ultimate growth. Indigenous plant species and others that will be hardy, harmonious to 
the design and of attractive appearance shall be used. A list of species which are 
recommended to be used or to be avoided may be obtained from the Zoning 
Administrator. 

(WHITEWATER TOWNSHIP ZONING ORDINANCE) 



,( 

32.19 

144 

6. enhances parking areas and related vehicular and pedestrian trafficways with 
· landscaped areas, including trees and tree groupings. 

7. protects plants from injury by pedestrians or motor trafic with appropriate curbs, tree 
guards, or other devices. 

8. where landscaping is used as screening, it shall be equally effective in winter and 
summer and shall attain a height and density so that it provides the full desired effect 
within three(3) years growing time. 

9. controls run-off of fertilizers and pesticides. .JfJ ... .,., 

/ "<"«"4,v/ ,,_;i,~:-\~~~t,. 
10. minimizes watering and maintenance r~q11.· eriients. ';t}~. 

;.~ 
11. in areas where general plantings w;i:]:J prosper, other mat~piµ"is used such as 
wooden, brick or stone fences, wall, ai{d,1 / ings of wood, brick, stQ'i:t , gravel or cobbles. 
Suitable plants shall be combined with sutir terial .,ere possibte· 

Cc,-"' 

,--t~~~?~ , }r:~~ ;/ 
12. avoids monotony by offet'pig;!'~i~µal varietytbf ral masses and helps the man-
made structures achieve harm'';,,;<ti;'lJpp~arance Wt e retained natural trees, 
vegetation and features and wit . settiii ·o a whole: 

13. is consiste 
Standards. 

. 'Article XXXIII Landscape 

,, ::'./-2_, -- ~~:'.\:_ -0{\-,"-:c~_ 'At:=-: ~t,~ :~~it~>:,,._ 
The int~#~I-£ 'aricl's~r,yice dfi~,"'~ystem'sfii. . . tin to the standards for design and 
constn:f6tibn of the Graha:\l£raversit'© unty Roa: ;, /ommission if the road/drive system is to be '<-;,/~_;. ~- ·-,c,:--: /J>':'.P~ ·~:;;:'.g< ,_,,-·r 

dedicatea;m,+€1- public righf:.o:fIIway. ''f; ·nterior road/drive system may however, consist of 
private roaa~ZflJ,l~ may, for tff:);b;¾ ose · ~ssening impact on the site, have reduced right-of-way 
widths, turn radir;>,/:!urface wid ... f1D.d gre er permissible grades provided that the standards for 

·• .•.. "' ljjjer•• 
construction and qµali.ty meet orj:~tceed the standards for paved local access roads of the County 

-- __ ,_,--,~_·_::_>.. ·,:'(Y'>"i?."ffi 

Road Commission arid'f;µrther pfoyided that the road/drive system provides adequate and safe 
access for both ingress'aA~,{egie,§,ii'of emergency equipment. When a development uses a private 
road/drive and/or a private"piiji~ay system, all deeds and agreements affecting lands having 
access to the private road/dii{e and/or path system shall mandate the formation of an association 
or corporation for the purpose of managing and maintaining the system and require the owners of 
those lands to approve a special assessment district if necessary as a means of funding the 
maintenance or improvement of the private road/drive and/or pathway system. 

32.20 SPECIAL DESIGN STANDARDS AND REGULATIONS 

For Special Land Uses the standards of Article XXV Site Plan Review including section 25.11, 
Standards for Decisions, and section 25.13, Additional Site Development Requirements and 
Standards for Special or Conditional Use Permits shall also apply in addition to the design 

i1 standards of this Article XXXII (specifically sections 32.14 through 32.21). 

(WHITEWATER TOWNSHIP ZONING ORDINANCE) 



145 

32.21 PROCEDURE FOR REVIEW AND APPROVAL: 
A. The grant of a planned unit development application shall require a rezoning, i.e., an 
amendment of the Zoning Map constituting a part of this ordinance so as to designate the 
property which is the subject of the application as planned unit development. Further, an 
approval granted under this Article, including all aspects of the final plan, and conditions 
imposed, shall constitute an inseparable part of the zoning amendment. 

B. All planned unit developments shall be subject to the full site plan review procedure as set 
forth in Article XXV of the Ordinance, including not less thanqp.~ public hearing, notice of 
which hearing shall be given by two publications in a newspap~t~of general circulation in the 
Township, the first to be printed not more than 30 days nq:rl~'~tthan 20 days and the second not 
more than 8 days before the date of the hearing. Not le$s{lifui~O~ays' notice of the time and 
plac~ of ~h_e hearing shall also be give~ by mail to ~1:t~f~fe':tric, g~~f~peline and telephone 
public utility company, and to each railroad opera gw1thm the d1s@c,t or zone affected, that 
registers its name and mailing address with th~ ship Planning Cb~ssion for the purpose 
ofreceiving the notice. Written notice of the he shall also be given'to}\lle owner of the 
property in question, to all persons to whom any r roperty~ithin 300 f~gt:gt', the premises in 
question is assessed, and to the occ~pa11ts of a singl ·. cifa:hlily dwelling~,t~i:thin 300 feet. 
The notice shall be delivered personalif)Jr,,gy mail to t pective owners and trnants at the 
address given in the last assessment roJff Ifi'il;fe:4fnant's n Jti~ not known, the term "occupant" 
may be used. If the notice is delivered bi:ipaHitValii:1{:fidavit 6:t'vta,iling shall be filed with the 
Planning Commission befi e. . e meeting:;lJ::he noiic~1~gc;\ll be inatl~,,not less than 8 days before 
the hearing and shall sta:f ..... Jm~, place, daf~ and pNi>os~t the.he~ing. 

,-_ ----_ ~·, :,~~~;h~~>\ . ,:~~~~~,~~ .~tf~~,~ ~iiilt~ ------- -v· 

In addition to the inf6(Hlation reqhit~d under Article'XXV, the plication for a planned unit 
development shall include},,0 " • 

1. ·'"'i~Jate.ment ofihty1J.f~r':pr9pq~ed useg;Kland and phasing of the project. Later 
;j,pii~:i~!Rt,!he d~i,t!epm.eiifi\tirB~ r;i})ed to allow for different building types 

when"t ·· · .. ~siblesfi~~.9- for sucli.:il~&iation is indicated on the approved plan. 
i~'-:CC-, k<--"'.v;['::/s, -----,=--\,.tJ;f-::, 

f tlt:•., All open spa6~§1.incl~ilirig preserves, recreational areas, and the like, and each 
.. ::_'fpprpose propos~ctJor such.areas together with copies of deeds, deed restrictions, 

";ehse~ents, restri9t!ye coveri~ts or other legal instruments to be recorded as a 
coiidition of app~g¼l of the application and site plan. 

3. All lmo ¾·u.a ..... '; esources and natural features to be preserved. 
·· .. ,Ji!I~;!Y 

4. Density calculations, number and types of units (if applicable), and floor area per 
habitable space. 

5. A separately delineated specification of all deviations from this Ordinance which 
would otherwise be applicable to the uses and development proposed in the 
absence of this planned unit development Article. This specification should 
include ordinance provisions from which deviations are sought, and if the 
applicant elects to be governed by Section 31.12 B. 1., the reasons and 
mechanisms to be utilized for the protection of the public health, safety and 
welfare in lieu of the regulations from which deviations are sought shall be 
specified. 

(WHITEWATER TOWNSHIP ZONING ORDINANCE) 



146 

6. In the event the property on which the project is to be situated consists often (10) 
acres or more, a community impact statement shall be submitted as part of the 
application. 

7. A detailed landscaping plan. 

8. A specific schedule of the intended development and construction details, 
including phasing or timing, and the general improvements to constitute a part of 
the development, including without limitation, li_gp,ting, signage, the mechanisms 
designed to reduce noise, utilities and visual ' ~~ffing features. 

C. Within a reasonable time following the public heruilf~' . '. .,,pletion of the site plan review 
process, the Township Planning Commission shaUgp.nsider the ~pp\ication and prepare a report ···<, .... ,·••. 
recommending that the application be denied, appr6tecl or approved;~!h conditions. The report 
shall include the basis for the recommendation[j{fg~ther with the docuni~~$~ related to the 
planned unit development request. The report a.i19tc:locuments shall be ti' "'"''· itted to the 
Township Board for consideration in making a fin~t'p.~cision 

32.22 Performance Guarantees: 
The planning Commission may requi 
the Township Rural Zoning Act (Act 

t!·;!n~~=:~:~:~~ ·· . . er Aired witli't .~ova ,;J~ed unit development, to the 
extent authorized byla.\yw;or the p~ose of i~ · that public"'services and facilities affected 
by a proposed land use 6:r;fs!,lvity~jfl\.¥~ capab e accommodating increased services and 
facility loa,. e .. by thl1l®.dli~ejt'ir~sti¥i!Y, p ting the natural environment and 
conserv; ' . Jm:ces '~<,i!¢~ergy, ih131' ,c . atibility with adjacent uses ofland, and 
promottti'gt e use of IAficf~ a sobJ~)Iy and eco Jiiically desirable manner. Conditions imposed 
shall bi"deSigned to proteCt . c1tural ret~wces and the public health, safety and welfare of the 
individuals'itt'.t4e project ancl.itfip,se irnffi.~g.ic1tely adjacent, and the community as a whole, shall 

_:·-r,:,,;;:.:-'-, \t'.?f:t, ·>.',,,_i.'--,_' _-i 

be reasonably'fol~ted to the puiP,.gses affected by the planned unit development, and shall be 
necessary to m~1tithe,Jntent ancrtaWPoses of this Ordinance, and be related to the objective of 
insuring complian2~:iiW the stAAahrds of this Ordinance. All conditions imposed shall be made 
a part of the record offff~!'a "")a planned unit development. 

32.24 Phasing and Comni~,cement of Construction: 

A. Phasing: 

Where a project is proposed for construction in phases, the planning and designing shall be such 
that, upon completion, each phase shall be capable of standing on its own in terms of the 
presence of services, facilities, and open space, and shall contain the necessary components to 
insure protection of natural resources and the health, safety, and welfare of the users of the 
planned unit development and the residents of the surrounding area. In addition, in 
developments which include residential and non-residential uses, phasing shall contemplate that 
at least 35% of all proposed residential uses are completed concurrent with the first phase of any 

(WHITEWATER TOWNSHIP ZONING ORDINANCE) 



147 

non-residential construction; completion of at least 75% of all proposed residential construction 
prior to the second phase of non-residential construction; and completion of 100% of all 
residential construction prior to the third phase of non-residential construction. For purposes of 
carrying out this provision, the percentages shall be approximations as determined in the 
discretion of the Planning Commission, and further, such percentage may be significantly varied 
should the Planning Commission determine, in its discretion, that the applicant has presented 
adequate and effective assurances that the residential component or components of the project 
shall be completed within the specified period. 

B. Commencement and Completion of Construction:; 
Construction shall be commenced within one year follmyiiig{1. 1 approval of a planned unit 
development, or within one year of any other necessary gqyi~~ptal approval for 
commencement of the project, whichever is later, prpyid~a all othet:necessary approvals have 
been actively pursued. Each phase of the proje~tsli~ii"be commenc:ed\within one year of the 
schedule established for same in the applicatiqtf ~tjBmitted for the plarirt~tl,J111it development. If 
construction is not commenced within such tirlt€fia,-l}Y approval of the firiift~:1fl? for the project 
shall expire and be null and void, provided, an exte~~irm for aJp,ecified perioqJflJay be granted 
by the Planning Commission upon ge>od cause shoWfrl h:lequest is made tlf ilie Planning 
Commission prior to the expiration B: · ,)ial period\ .,J / 

32.25 Effect of Approval: , , . 
If and when approved, th~:e!~Wed unit deiyl~pmerif:,. !th all cd~gittons imposed, if any, shall 
constitute the land use,,c1:~ffip'~~fiQ~ for th~1~r:gpe f'd ~l,it,11Prdfltment and use shall be in 
conformity with sucij'~ifproval.. <rnt!,applicaiit,s · ;ecord anii{fidavit with the Register of 
Deeds containing thel~g~J, descriptiQp. of the eh(., roject, spi~ifying the date of approval of the 

··•· '"'!-;h ·: ,,,. >·•,;,, 
planned unit development}:!: d declai:J. that all1µlure development of the planned unit 
development.{Rf9Pxrj:y ~as ls\;) , gtfiO d req~~d to be carried out in accordance withthe 
approve,~.g{~iiti!tfT~f;:~~;:'elop ;en.i unless ):~fnRlfrentthereto is duly adopted by the 
Towns1iip/tipon the reqUy§'tf!Ud/o , roval o tne]tpplicant, or applicant's transferee and/or 
assigns. :;cJ' 

-~,,, .. 

,<· '• ·;:,;,.;Js; ·,. 

32.26 Modific~I!c;m or Waive't:t!f Stan ards or Requirements: 
Since the express:'py,r:pose of thi$:f.~rticle is to achieve better use of land than would be likely 

• •1.;,•;:t;:·\. ,,.,,·,:•ri • • • • 
under strict adherertc~,!q,the Staf!g.¥ds and reqmrements of the Zorung Ordmance, the Plannmg 
Commission may recoriiii\eµd 'ajlcl'the Township Board may approve applications for rezoning to 
Planned Unit Developmeiit:wh~r~ the application requires the modification or waiving of 
specific standards or requireriients contained within this Article provided that the proposed PUD 
complies with the full intent and purpose of this Article, and further that it is clearly shown that 
such modification or waiving of specific standards or requirements will result in a recognizable 
and substantial benefit which would not otherwise accrue to the community if all provisions of 
this Article were to be met. In no case, however, may the dwelling unit density limits established 
in Table 31.13 F be modified or waived. 

(WHITEWATER TOWNSHIP ZONING ORDINANCE) 



' / 

33.00 

1 

ARTICLE XXXIII 

LANDSCAPE STANDARDS 

33.10 INTENT. 
It is the intent of this chapter to require buffer zones and landscape screening to reduce the 
negative impacts between incompatible land uses and to proviq~:JQr landscaping within parking 
lots. In addition, it is intended to help sustain a pleasing gaw~ayv~ corridor to the Grand 
Traverse region consistent with the natural features of tll:~;rfgi5>:Q that attract tourism and support 
land values. It is further intended to preserve and enhajl9j>the ~~§te-etic qualities, character, 
privacy and land values of the township. "· 'v '»;,~}:f!\~ 

33.20 BUFFER ZONES REQUIRED. s, .· :i:it'\,, 
· A. A buffer shall be required on the subjec .a:r, el betweeQ. zoning distfi°cts as indicated in 

B. 

C. 

D. 

Table 33-1. 

A buff er shall be required on 
land. 

3. 

4. 

5. Visual, noise and air pollution levels. 

' &> 
Jy 

he adjacent parcel is unimproved 

)>ne chari )to a more intense land use or 
e~tJ~r);q~i;~d: the buffer shall comply 

uffer zotl~Jdevelopment standards (Section 

6. Health, safety and welfare of the township. 

7. Additional dwelling units and resulting density (residential development). 

(Whitewater Township Zoning Ordinance) 



2 

E. If two zoning districts requiring a buff er zone are separated by a thoroughfare, the design 
of the buffer zone shall be determined by the Zoning Administrator based on the criteria 
contained in Section 33.20, D, 1-7. 

RC-1 

A-1 

Subject R-1 

Zone R-2 

R-3 

C-1 

N 

A-1 

TABLE 33-1 

LANDSCAPE - BUFFER1:tYIATRIX 

RC-1 C-1 N 

10' 
SIL<\RED 

30' 

Require., ~ffer zone; s g standards: 

(1) B:~;~l~o11e Thirty (30JiF~~t (s;f~1g, 33-1). 
<C> <C,'C', ,.J 

(a) 30'}1~niinum wid& ' 
(b) ,:?/l opy tree per linear ft. or fraction of buffer zone length. 

( c) 6 ft. high continuous obscuring screen comprised of plant material, berming, screen 
walls or fences or any combination of these elements. 

(d) Ifberming is used for all or part of the buffer zone, all required plant material shall 
be placed on the top and side slope facing the exterior of the site. 

( e) If a screen wall or fence is used for all or part of the buffer zone then: 

(Whitewater Township Zoning Ordinance) 



I 

( 

1. The equivalent of 4 shrubs are required per 20 linear feet of wall or fence with 
at least 50 percent being 24" high at time of planting. 

2. All required plants shall be placed on the side facing the exterior. 

(f) All areas outside of planting beds shall be covered with grass or other living ground 
cover. 

(g) All applicable standards in Section 33.70. 

(2) Buffer Zone Ten (10) feet (see Fig. 33.2). 

(a) 10 ft. minimum width. 

(b) The equivalent of 1 canopy tree per 30 linear feet or fraction of buffer zone length. 

(Whitewater Township Zoning Ordinance) 



FIGURE 33 - 1 

(Whitewater Township Zoning Ordinance) 



'\ 

(; 

(Whitewater Township Zoning Ordinance) 



(c) 6 ft. high continuous obscuring screen comprised of plant 
material, berming, screen walls or fences or any combination of 
these elements. 

( d) If berming is used for all or part of the buffer zone, then: 

1. All required plant material shall be placed on the 
top and side slope facing the exterior. 

2. The minimum buffer width shall be increased to 
accommodate a side slope of 3 to 1. 

( e) If a screen wall or fence is used for all or part of the buff er zone 
then: 

1. The equivalent of 4 shrubs are required per 20 linear ft. of 
wall with at least 50 percent being 24" high at time of 
planting. 

2. All required plants shall be placed on the side facing the 
exterior. 

(f) All areas outside of planting beds shall be covered with grass or 
other living ground cover. 

(g) All applicable standards in Section 33.70. 

33.40 OFF-STREET PARKING AREAS (see Fig.33.3). 

A. Off-street parking areas containing 6 or more parking spaces shall be provided with 
landscaping in accordance with the following: 

6 through 100 spaces: 1 canopy tree and 100 sq. ft. of landscaped area per 6 spaces. 

101 through 200 spaces: 1 canopy tree and 100 sq. ft. oflandscaped area per 8 spaces. 

201 + spaces: 1 canopy tree and 100 sq. ft. of landscaped area per 10 spaces. 

B. In no case shall any buffer zones or greenbelts equired in Sections 33.2.0, 33.3.0 and 
33.5.0 be considered as part of the off-street parking landscape area. 

(Whitewater Township Zoning Ordinance) 



FIGURE 33 - 3 

(Whitewater Township Zoning Ordinance) 



33.50 OFF-STREET PARKING LANDSCAPE DEVELOPMENT 
STANDARDS. 

A. Required parking lot landscape areas shall comply with the following standards: 

1. The minimum size of a landscaped area shall be 60 sq. ft. and at least 6 
ft. wide. 

2. All landscaped areas shall be covered by grass, shredded bark, stone or 
a living ground cover. 

3. All landscaped areas shall contain at least 1 canopy tree. The tree shall 
be located so as not to be damaged by any surrounding vehicle (see Fig. 
33.4). 

4. The Zoning Administrator shall approve the location of required off­
street parking landscaping using the following criteria: 

a. Landscaping shall be installed such that, when mature, it does 
not obscure traffic signs, fire hydrants, lighting, drainage patterns 
on site or adjacent properties, or obstruct vision for reasons of 
safety, ingress or egress. 

b. Trees shall be installed in such a manner that parked motor 
vehicles are shaded whenever possible. 

c. Landscaping shall be dispersed throughout the parking lot in 
order to break up large expanses of impervious surfaces. 

d. At least 50 percent of the required trees shall be installed in the 
interior of the parking area and 50 percent on the perimeter. The 
interior shall be considered as any point 10 ft. from the outside 
boundary of the parking area. 

5. All landscaped areas shall be protected by a raised standard or rolled 
concrete curb. 

6. Where any parking area, with the exception of parking serving single­
family or two-family dwellings, abuts or faces a thoroughfare, a 3 ft. high 
continuous obscuring screen shall be required between the parking area 
and the road R.O.W. The screen may be comprised of plant material, 
berming, or any combination of these elements, in compliance with the 
following requirements: 

a. If a berm is used for all or part of the screen, all required plant 
material shall be placed on the side facing the thoroughfare. 

(Whitewater Township Zoning Ordinance) 



b. If plant material is used for all or part of the screen, it shall be 
24" high at time of initial planting and at least 36" high within one 
( 1) year of initial planting. 

c. Minimum width for screen area shall be 8 ft. A berm will 
require a width sufficient to accommodate a side slope of 3 to 1. 

7. All applicable requirements of Section 3 3. 70 shall be complied with. 

33.60 GREENBELTS. 

A. Greenbelts shall be required where any developed parcel abuts or 
faces a public thoroughfare in the C-1 and N districts. 

B. If a buff er zone is required along a thoroughfare, then the greenbelt 
requirement shall be waived. 

C. In no case shall off-street parking lot landscaping required in 
sections 33.30 and 33.40 be considered as part of any greenbelt 
requirement. 

33.70 GREENBELT DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS (see Fig. 33-5). 

A. All greenbelts shall comply with the following standards: 

1. One canopy tree for every 40 linear ft. or fraction of 
frontage abutting a public thoroughfare. 

2. All greenbelts shall be covered by grass. 

3. The width of the greenbelt shall correspond to the required 
front setback requirements for off-street parking areas 
contained in 34.30, C, 4. 

4. All applicable standards in Section 33.70. 

33.80 GENERAL LANDSCAPE DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS. 

(Whitewater Township Zoning Ordinance) 



FIGURE 33-4 

A. Minimum Plant Material Standards: 

1. All plant material shall be hardy to Grand Traverse County, free of disease 
and insects and conform to the standards of the American Association of 
Nurserymen. A list ofrecommended plants are available from the Zoning 
Administrator. 

2. All plant materials shall be installed in such a manner so as not to alter 
drainage patterns on site or adjacent properties or obstruct vision for 
reasons of safety, ingress or egress. 

3.All plant material shall be planted in a manner so as to not cause damage 
to utility lines (above and below ground) and public roadways. 

4. Minimum plant sizes at time of installation (see Figs. 33-6 and 33-7): 

Deciduous Canopy Trees: 2 1/2" caliper 

Deciduous Ornamental Trees: 2" caliper 

Evergreen Tree: 6' height 

Deciduous Shrub: 2' height 

Upright Evergreen Shrub: 211 height 

Spreading Evergreen Shrub: 18" - 24" spread 

5. Existing plant material which complies with the standards 
and intent of the Ordinance, as determined by the Zoning 
Administrator, shall be credited toward meeting the 
landscape requirements. 

6. The plant material shall achieve its horizontal and vertical 
screening effect within 4 years of initial installation. 

7. The overall landscape plan shall not contain more than 33 
percent of any plant species. 

(Whitewater Township Zoning Ordinance) 

,, 
\J 



8. The following trees are not permitted as they split easily; 
their wood is brittle and breaks easily; their roots clog 
drains and sewers; and they are unusually susceptible to 
disease or insect pests: 

(Whitewater Township Zoning Ordinance) 



(Whitewater Township Zoning Ordinance) 



we HrA"?Ul<-1:-Ml=l'IT 
t/ 1-'-WVl::-~LIND 
l.-6/E-L If ~e. 
t.ALI Pt:.~ I-? 4 11 o~: 
Lr-~. 

FIGURE 33 - 6 

, .. 

TREE CALIPER MEASUREMENTS 

1Al-'I::.- r1 ~?LI Fi!.!;;. 1-11:.HT 1-Z: 1 

J,P.:;Ove ur0UND Ltwf-L. If; 
1Re1::- CP--L.IP~ I? ~OKE.. 
-rHAN-4'~ 

(Whitewater Township Zoning Ordinance) 



(Whitewater Township Zoning Ordinance) 



(Whitewater Township Zoning Ordinance) 



(Whitewater Township Zoning Ordinance) 



COMMON NAME HORTICULTURAL NAME 

Boxelder Acer Negundo 

(Whitewater Township Zoning Ordinance) 



Ginkgo Ginkgo Biloba (female only) 

Honey Locust Gleditsia Triacanthos (with thorns) 

Mulberry Moros Species 

Poplars Populus Species 

Black Locust Robinia Spoecies 

Willows Salix Species 

American Elm Ulnms Americana 

Siberian Elm U. Pumila 

Slippery Elm: Red Elm U. Rubra 

Chinese Elm 

(1) 

(2) 

(3) 

(4) 

(1) 

U. Parvifola 

( excluding White Oak and Black Walnut) 
Minimum Standard for Berms: 

Berms shall be constructed so as to maintain a side slope not to exceed a 1' 
rise to a 3' run ratio (see Fig. 33-8). 

Berm areas not containing planting beds shall be covered with grass or 
living groundcover maintained in a healthy growing condition. 

Berms shall be constructed in such a manner so as not to alter drainage 
patterns on site or adjacent properties or obstruct vision for reasons of 
safety, ingress or egress. 

If a berm is constructed with a retaining wall or by terracing, the earthen 
slope shall face the exterior of the site (see Fig. 33-8). 

Minimum Standards for Screen Walls and Fences: 

All screen walls and fences shall be constructed with new, durable, 
weather resistant and easily maintainable materials. Chain link and barbed 
wire fences are not permitted. 

{Whitewater Township Zoning Ordinance) 



; \ 

FIGURE 33 - 8 
BERM WITH RETAINING WALLS 

(Whitewater Township Zoning Ordinance) 



(2) 

(3) 

F. 

G 

H. 

The wall or fence may be constructed with openings that do not exceed 20 
percent of the wall surface. The openings shall not reduce the intended 
obscuring effect of the wall. 

Screen walls or fences shall not be constructed so as to alter drainage on 
site or adjacent properties or obstruct vision for reasons of ingress or 
egress. 

Detention/retention areas shall be permitted within buffer zones provided 
they do not hamper the screening intent of the buffer or jeopardize the 
survival of the plant materials. 

Solid waste dumpsters may be installed in buffer zones provided they 
contain a continuous opaque screen at least 6' high. The screen may be 
comprised of berming, plant material, screen walls or fences, or any 
combination of these elements which are harmonious to the building 
design. 

Requirements for Projects Developed in Phases: If a project is constructed 
in phases, the landscape screen may also be constructed in phases. The 
Zoning Administrator shall determine the extent of each phase on: 

1. Adjacent land uses. 
2. Distance between land uses. 
3. Operational characteristic both on and off site. 
4. Building heights. 
5. Physical characteristics of the site such as topography, existing 

vegetation, etc. 

Landscape Screening Waiver: Should the Zoning Administrator 
determine, upon inspection, that adequate landscaping screen on a site 
already exists or that such landscaping screen shall not be required, the 
applicable zoning ordinance provisions may be waived in whole or in part. 
Criteria which shall be used when considering a landscaping screen waiver 
shall include, but shall not be limited to: 

1. Topography variations. 
2. Existence of natural vegetation. 
3. Existing and proposed building placement. 
4. Sight distances. 
5. Adjacent land uses. 
6. Existence of floodplain and poor soils areas. 

Installation and Maintenance Provisions: 

(Whitewater Township Zoning Ordinance) 



1. The Zoning Administrator shall mandate a financial guarantee of a 
sufficient amount to insure the installation of all required 
landscaping. 

2. All landscaping shall be maintained in a healthy, neat and orderly 
state free from refuse and debris. Any dead or diseased plants shall 
be replaced. 

(Whitewater Township Zoning Ordinance) 



r( 

( 

I' 

34.00 

34.10 
A. 

B. 

C. 

34.20 
A. 

34.30 
A. 

165 

ARTICLE XXXIV 
OFF-STREET PARKING AND LOADING 

SCOPE OF REGULATIONS. 
At the time any building or structure is erected, enlarged or increased in capacity, 
or uses established, off-street parking and loading spaces shall be provided in all 
zoning districts according to the requirements of this Article. 

No parking or loading area or space which exi,sJ§:::it the time of the adoption of 
this Article shall thereafter be relinquished qfi:eg.u~ed in any manner below the 
requirements established by this Ordinanq/ , 

ii{_--X;,?'' 

Parking areas must have the same ~,~lassificatxon as the property on which 
the principal use is located whic 1ffu-e serving. ";, 

LOCATION OF PARKING LOADING AREAS. · .. • 
Off-street parking and loading faciliti~§:requif~·~;}:>y this Arti~le:,~hgtll be located 
on the same lot or parce s the use for:'.'½- . :·\tfiK parking or loatiirtg is required or 
on an abutting lot or P. \IQ.p.er the s ership. This requirement does not 
apply to joint parking ,. fflligrf,;tcilities e >foped in accordance with the 
requirements of this Artie '''.· ' .... 

.,'; .. ····. . ,)~ 

~~,:~~;eciEi~l~s~~o~i,~~~i1red ~ffJ£ij~!:::gN~~-loading spaces, 
includihg;;t@ mean~3"t access aifc;l;•jp.terior circulation shall be submitted to the 
Zoning Acin!iw ' eview ~i,{tb,.e time of application for a land use permit 

jit~~,,,erecti~i';, '"'n\?f av:b~ijding. All such plans and specifications 
alfb~!§J1J2mitt ;;,, he Zonih~"~gJriMstrator and Site Plan Approval obtained 

prior totff~}'.'s§uan'.~t[qfthe land ifs'~permit. Such plans and specifications shall be 
,. prepared at11;$~~le ofnq)Jess than one (1) inch equals one hundred (100) feet and 
.;}h~ll include tli~i ollowfti:g~ 
' ~~~'. ;--=t~ ,, -,~;:;s,-

1: '{);r;."Existing . . ; proposed grades; 
\xt'.~~~;,, __ -,-:r~il?J 

2. 'f>t~in~g~Jticluding catch basins, pipe sizes and connections to existing 
drairtJgltstructures; 

3. Typical dimensions of parking and loading spaces and maneuvering aisles, 
including handicapped spaces required by State regulations; 

4. Lighting; 

5. Existing or proposed buildings; 

6. Sidewalks, including ramps for use of handicapped persons; 

(WHITEWATER TOWNSHIP ZONING ORDINANCE) 



B. 

C. 

166 

7. Landscaping and required screening; 

8. Surfacing and base materials to be used in the constrnction of the parking 
lot. 

Parking lots required by this Ordinance shall be installed and completed within 
six (6) months of the issuance of a Land Use Permit. In the event of unusual 
delays or adverse weather conditions that make it impossible to complete the 
improvements, the Zoning Administrator may g(fil!! a single extension of the time 
limit for a further six (6) month period. ./'." :f"l' 

Every parcel of land hereafter used as a.~J'B c ~[p#vate parking area shall be 
developed and maintained in accorsJ. ?~ith the'fg}lowing requirements: 

1. 

2. 

All off-street parking ariG' 11 be drained so a ., )prevent drainage onto 
abutting properties. No ,, . han 5 0 Pt?,rcent of tlie'~~qµired parking area 
shall be hard surfaced with ,;;;,w'.c{ete Qif': ✓'. halt paving~:?tfB~ unpaved 
parking area $liil!Lbe maintairied'i'' , gravel or cruslieq;:stone and 
landscaped ac!~§t~µrg,Jo the same .. rds as the hard surfaced parking 
areas. The intert,]bf'tlll,!$t);1f.9~ision i 'mit impervious surface area and 
reduce storm watefhln~&fffi-~t~ption ne Off-street storage areas shall 
notbes:l,l~faced witWl pervibti;;'mc1:terials ~"~~pt as approved by the 

,.,,g~G<unmissid E':J~.;,t-. "44k9' 
,,--c-__ -',-:~:::~ -{~+{j?/~t, 

. Jfing fixwres and lig . •.•·•. ·. lans and d~sign used to illuminate off­
st;e~t'J){lfkip.g:~i:e~$ shall o~Jtn compliance with Article XXIX, Exterior 

. J.,ighti~gE;~gulati8fi~;~9f thi§~:g!,~inance and shall be so arranged as to 
, ..;,-},--.. '"-": ,u,., ·~-: ,,, "<'<:~,t&::c·;:::-·-~:,c~_ ~-, __ ~_.,,: ..,f'? 

t~~tl~ct ligljl~way frcYtnl:!:¥4ih~dJoining residential properties or streets and 
liig[~flYS, "'tlgh!ing leve1§'1ff{ required parking facilities for commercial or 
indu'§lthil use'sl:i.alt be of the lowest intensity necessary to accomplish its 
purpol~{~J)ghtirig fi~tures within one-hundred and fifty (150) feet of any 
residenti'al}f:\rea shalt'not exceed twenty (20) feet in height. All other 

\,.fixtures sliall not exceed thirty-five (35) feet in height. Decorative light 
· • '.fix,tures )\ifilth are adjacent to residential areas which are unshielded and 

pefmttJlg~t· to spread outward rather than downward may be prohibited by 
the'Z:•ping Administrator. 

3. All off-street parking and loading areas that make it necessary for vehicles 
to back directly into a public road are prohibited, provided that this 
prohibition shall not apply to off-street parking areas serving residential 
dwellings housing four ( 4) or less units. 

4. Parking may be permitted within any required yard with the following 
exceptions: 

(WIITTEWATER TOWNSHIP ZONING ORDINANCE) 



34.40 
A. 

B. 

a. 

167 

Parking is not permitted within the first thirty (30) feet of the 
required front yard setback in the C-1 and N zoning districts 
adjoining the M-72 corridor. 

b. Loading areas may not occupy any front yard setback. The side 
yard setback area along the street side of a comer lot shall not be 
used for loading space. 

5. Wheel stops shall be provided and so lqca,tesf so as to prevent any vehicle 
from projecting over lot lines, requirecf2i~tbacks or sidewalks. 

-t - Y?' 
\:~-t:--~ 

6. All parking spaces shall be stript , thiPiitqt or a material approved by 
the Zoning Administrator. S ''.•· itig shall b[~tleast four ( 4) inches in 
width. The striping shallJ·f intained at alltiib~s . 

. ,,,;!,:}., 

MIXED USE/JOINT PARKINCt!Jf\CILITI~.~- It 
In the case of mixed uses in the sam~ihuilding.1of;·on the same .. /·pr parcel, the ·t;.;,,,·, , .. '{ol<'./Y ''>f.!c,•. 
total requirements fort· -.street parking;lgl • o;iding shall be the's\llll of the 
requirements for the 1 ·· ·,. separately. 

Joint or collective provisfort,of o "'." · eet parkin . as for buildings or uses on 
two or mglxm12,Rerties shalJ.E,pt be , the s ~Sf the requirements for the 
particip~f~µg'iittli'Ktc:tual uses {Olp.plt,. 'iitely e &ept that the Zoning 
Admin[i~!titor ma1~'~:pprove a li*~~~yatking r~tj_tµrement for such uses provided 
that the"fQ}lgwing 'L''irements afe'met: .. 

,• •A,-,. ,, 

--\IJi~:\ 
!he lis~~'.f? .. l"' •• J),)if~.mbtrf~iparking requirements shall have hours of 
:9Peration ···· · ch do ri5 ''? ,.. ide. 

CA,-----:':-:.. 

(;J~~ 

EvictJ!5~ of a .. yd agreement between the owners of both properties 
agreeirt' ,r.q such''jdiii\ use shall be provided to the Zoning Administrator. 

''"!t::--' 

3.":%1iit Sufficienfw:Fa shall be available such that the required parking for both 
,,:a,µs~s comp~fod separately may be provided on each lot or parcel involved 

'in'the ey:~jit' that one party to the joint parking agreement abrogates or 
otherwise withdraws from such agreement. Should such agreement be 
withcifawn by either party each use shall provide the parking as herein 
required. 

34.50 PARKING SPACE AND MANEUVERING AISLE REQUIREMENTS. 
A. All parking spaces and maneuvering aisles shall comply with the requirements 

contained in Figure 34-1. 

(WHITEWATER TOWNSHIP ZONING ORDINANCE) 



34.60 

A. 

B. 

C. 

D. 

168 

UNITS OF MEASUREMENT. 

Floor Area: 
L Where floor area is the unit for determining the required number of off­

street parking and loading spaces, said unit shall mean the gross floor area, 
except as noted in subsection 34.60 A.2 which follows. 

2. Where the floor area measurement is specified as net floor area, parking 
requirements will apply to all building at:e'as, except that floor area used for 
incidental service, storage, installatio11sbJfu.echanical equipment, heating 
systems and similar uses and other4feas\vhere service to the general 
public is not provided. For buil4!#gs'wh~!'i21,use areas are not yet defined, 
the gross floor area may be J¢R:¼ced by fifte~Jt:Rercent ( 15%) for 
calculating net floor area. .,, '~n use areas ar'e1gefj,ned, the greater of the 
above calculations (ac t floor area versusT5o/o,,of gross floor area) 
shall be used to compute ,, , , · ng requir~ments. {L'!G 

'✓:i;;l·>:,,, . 

Places of Assembly: ,µi:§tadia, sports''are;il 
assembly in which artyJp~flton of the se~f ···.. , nsists of benches, pews or other 
such seating, each 18 int;hes o:fsuf;h seating~liall be counted as one seat. 

,~,f; -.-/':-, ---, ;->-:<· -- -:~tt~:i_ f )h" 

Employee§Ftf~;r.,requirem~b;\~. stat ·. 
be bas '.'.Snth~~l2tal numb' 

Fractions'.,, When uhit§ of meas . ,ent determining the number ofrequired 
parking ~?liag.tng spig~ esult in"~~fpctional space, any fraction shall be 

d as ~AfIJadcliti6t1li 

(WHITEWATER TOWNSHIP ZONING ORDINANCE) 



169 

34.70 SCHEDULE OF OFF-STREET PARKING REQUIREMENTS. 

Each use shall provide parking spaces in conformance with the following schedule of 
requirements: 

USE 
Residential 

1. Single family, two family 
or multiple family with 

three or more bedrooms. 

2. Multiple family with one or two bedrooms. 

3. Efficiencies 

4. Mobile home parks 

5. Elderly Housing · 

4. Day Care Centers 

5. Elementary and Junior High Schools 

6. High schools 

Number of Motor Vehicle Parking 
Spaces Required Per Unit of Measure 

tloi f;r each J~l[~~,~~oom dwelling unit and 
J:~5 for each one bedtqcnn dwelling unit. 

~~sI1'.t~\ 

;.~~•_:-., ___ . ': ~ ..;'. ,;,:i\z:.._ 

·· S'JFct · depend~i;!t,Jiving units, two for each 
. . or "internn1tor "intermediate care" 

~f~:;,t>t-,;,_ -,,_~I;--~:,~@ 

}1111,, 6iie[gr:~aclftwo beds, plus one per 
tiet,hployee. ii\~)1 

for each two beds plus one for each staff 
doctor, plus one for each two additional 
employees. 

One for each four beds, plus one for each 
staff doctor, plus one for each two additional 
lemployees. 

Two spaces, plus one for each additional 
employee or administrator. 

One per teacher plus one for each additional 
employee or administrator, plus requirements 
pf the auditorium or assembly hall therein. 

One for each teacher plus one for each ten 
sstudents, plus one for each employee or 
administrator, pOlus requirements of the 
auditiorium or assembly hall therein. 

(WHITEWATER TOWNSHIP ZONING ORDINANCE) 



170 

7. Theaters 

8. Auditoriums and assembly halls 

9. Stadiums, sports arenas or similar places of 
outdoor assembly. 

10. Dance and union halls, civic clubs, 
fraternal orders, conference rooms, exhibit 
halls, ball rooms or any similar type of use 

11. Private gold clubs, ski clubs, swimming , 
clubs or beaches, tennis clubs, or similar uses:, 

12. Golf Courses open to the generaff 

C. BUSINESS & 
COMMERCIAL 

One for each four seats plus one for each two 
employees. 

One for each three seats plus one for each two 
employees. 

One for each three seats. 

One space f or,eYsery two persons allowed 
within thej}1a,xfinum occu-ancy load as 
detelll'!W~sf:i)X the Uniform Building Code, or 
one foF:'¢licft'.fQ0,,square feet of NU A, 

'·<</ <,,, <, 
.. '~hever is greater. 

,:,?,/ y" \<_--_,,._ 

lie poer every foJFpersons of maximum 
. ticipated capacity as·de!~pnined by the 

. )iiform Builqing Code.' ;':{0,. 
;,--.-C,',, _· ,:c,_,_.,-, ,,,)s_ 

~?{~)}'',~- __ -,t-,~-:'.-\'.-;-~E;? r,:~t?/\~-
FiVetfQr,Jf~9n golf hole and oneifor each 
empldye,~(plus amount required for accessory 

;-,,+i,.. 

1. Retail Centers cd~j~ing beyW;~~n 25,00d;•~} f:y~ti; Spa~~,~~r 1,000 square feet of net 
and 400,000 square fJ~'ftttt" .f\ ·,:, '~~eable space. 

~,---------------------------1 ,-:;-_----_,-_-', 

F§1.,y and one-half spaces per 1,000 square 
eetbf net useable space 
?} 

3. Retail Center~ containinggt~~ter th~;)~* Five Spaces per 1,000 square feet of net 
600,000 squar6'feyt. ·· ' useable space. 

------+----------------------, 
4. Other retail no/!ftieQ-Vise specified herein. Five spaces per 1,000 square feet of net 

,~ ' ,;·,,;~ 

5. Furniture and home furnishing stores (not 
including appliance stores) 

6. Supermarket, self service food or beverage 
shop. 

7. Motor vehicle and mobile home sales 
establishments 

useable space. 

One for each 800 square feet ofNUA 

One for each 200 square feet of net useable 
space. 

One for each 1,000 square feet of net useable 
space plus one for each employee 

(WHITEWATER TOWNSHIP ZONING ORDINANCE) 



8. Restaurants, taverns, bars, nightclubs. 

9. Drive-in restaurants and self service 
restaurants. 

10. Barber Shops, beauty salons. 

11. Laundromats and coin operated dry 
cleaners. 

12. Car washes 

13. Auto Service Station 

14. Auto service station with sale of 
convenience goods 

15. Bowling Alley 

19. Hotel, motel or othe/t&riunercial lodging 
establishment. 

171 

One space for each three persons allowed 
within the maximum occupancy load as 
established by the Building Code, plus one 
for each three employees. 

One space for each 2.5 persons allowed 
within the maximum occupancy, plus one 
space for each employee on the largest shift 

' " 

Two for ea,cfi b,atber or beauty operator 
chair/stl'),tion./fus one for every two 
employfes: 

/I?----:_,_,,_,;' 

<:_- ---_<_-;/ ---',_-;-~it.}:.:¼... 

Og¢J6r each tw'~{washing machines. , ,, ,, , ~c11)\"' 

,-/·_}·1.sf'¾,. -;' ~ ! ~' - -~<tj_·_:~t>~ 
T~() {Of ~,~c]1,service bay, pliJtRne for each 
emplg: <t,'li; , Ius one for each roaa service 
vehicf 

· ,, "e for each hole, plus one for each 
't 'lt~~pl'oyee . 
. {;;,,,J 

·one for each 100 square feet GF A plus one 
for each employee on largest shift. 

One for eachj fifty square feet in service 
parlors, chapels and reception areas plus one 
for each funeral vehicle maintained on the 
premises. 

One spoace for each guest room, plus one for 
each employee, plus amount required for 
accessories uses. 

(WHITEWATER TOWNSHIP ZONING ORDINANCE) 



D. OFFICES 

1. Banks, credit unions and savings and loan 
establishments. 

2. Business and professional offices; not 
otherwise specified herein. 

3. Medical and dental offices or clinics. 

4. Office space in a retail shopping center 
occupying greater than 10% of the center's 
GLA. 

E. INDUSTRIAL 

1. Industrial or manufacturing establishment, 
research and testing labs. 

2. Warehouses, truck terminals 

172 

One for each 150 square feet ofNUA, plus 
one for each employee, plus two for each 
automatic teller machine. 

One for each 200 square feet ofNUA. 

One for eaclf{5p square feet of NU A. 

:-Y <';,;:;::~,;;)~ 

rrwo for each three ,empl{iy~e computed on 
b~sis of tot~x:number of Jril~l~yed on all 
slii~~'.'JJl;,vr§rle for each corri~~y vehicle 
stored155,ruflie premises. ,vf 

A_-_,,-r><v·, 

};[wo for e .,.:1tpree employees based on total 

"LA> 

X?it• ~r emplcty~fi on all three shifts. 
-+--"'-

3. Mini-warehouse, ~tQragt'zt' > 

F. BARRIER FREEPARKINflf 
·:,,,,. REOUIREMEMNTS 

' tOTAhP~G IN LOT: ,REO'D # OF ACCESSIBLE SPACES* 

101 - 1 

151 - 200 

201 - 300 

301 - 400 

Over 400 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

8 

12 

12 (plus 2 for every 250 or fraction thereof 
over 400) 

*State or Federal regulations shall apply ifrequiring more accessible spaces. 

(WHITEWATER TOWNSHIP ZONING ORDINANCE) 



34.80 

34.90 

G 

173 

Where a use is not specifically listed in Sec. 34.70, A through Sec. 34.70, 
E, the parking requirements of a similar use shall apply. The Zoning 
Administrator shall make such interpretation. 

OFF-STREET LOADING REQUIREMENTS. 
A. Off-street loading spaces shall be provided in size and quantity sufficient 

to prevent interference with adjacent streets or required off-street parking 
areas. 

~ ·" .i' ' -~ 

B. Required loading spaces shall not be ~~9luded in the count of off-street 
parking spaces. ';•'>t . 

. . , •},, 
}."f;::--- ,,'°S'-

'~>t--,_ 
PARKING RESTRICTIONS. Jf::,. \! :};>. 

A. Commercial or Other V~}ti~~,S:7 ·· :l'\'.~t.t .. 

1. Parking of cornni6t¢'ial vehicles in reside:~flr[districts shall be 
\<:-'~---'?h -->? --:~t~:?~ 

limitedto not more lh~,,one V@hi:§le of light deli,y~ry type (not to 
excee~oR~ ton) for eacnj~~lr:. . g unit. The parkifl'g,of any other 
type of pq~ercial vehicl ) .. :,.. residential district, except those 
associatb?:J:witli;)a'fa:wful us~·;p~fmit in the subject zoning district is 
Prohibl.ted•··.f .... ;.y,.·.•.· .. '·.. ,, i:!:?" , ... , ·••. ,.,.,.,,, 

. , , -<f~i~~t~;:1~f:-

, ,,,.,1;t''!:if ?>,," . !ti' ·:?i. . llt,, , 'l~[t)\ 
... 2rtvlii::,ccE;Ef!te•<;>pen stora'.g~ or p~larig 9fcpmmefoial vehicles greater than 

r•:«'i'" '"•;"• ·,c ·l\. •:·.• ;,c:/ '· · ;. '' 
1( 1Hi1~, orieWA,ton, semt};ti],gl?s' and trail¢1'.s, mobile home~, tractors, . 

· •i:;J ., bulk\p~ers, earth CalJ:lers, cranes or other such eqmpment, unless m 
.~:1[h,,use,,¢l\rrtµg~construdljQ1J. work, is prohibited in any residential 

.J £J[~'t·\:":~4,~~''1l¼fr~~~,:~, 
B. Th¢)pa,tkingg~semi-truck:'frailers for more than a twenty-four (24) hour 

+:, peri6(l,'.i)l any'6ft;·street parking area in Commercial (Cl) zoning districts 
. hi. il'~' . i· d 'V{'.~:-}Yt;-:-
lS pro · b\tt:; . · i:ft 

;-_--_):•,,,_,,, "'/=\;' 

larking o,(~ecreational Vehicles and Equipment: 
-/}'.:,, 

0
-)_,:J:~q.;1 

:y_,~); .tN~;"~obile homes, tent and travel trailers, motor homes, boats and 
?<sfiowmobiles and trailers designed for them, general purpose 

trailers, and similar equipment, shall be parked or stored within the 
primary front setback area in excess of forty-eight (48) hours. It is 
the intent of this section to provide clear vision areas in front of 
structures, to insure adequate emergency vehicle access to 
structures and to maintain the character of existing neighborhoods. 

(WHITEWATER TOWNSHIP ZONING ORDINANCE) 



35.00 

174 

ARTICLE XXXV 
TELECOMMUNICATIONS TOWERS 

AN AMENDMENT TO THE WHITEWATER TOWNSHIP ZONING ORDINANCE #6, ADDING 
ARTICLE XXXV, ENTITLED "WIRELESS TELECOMMUNICATIONS TOWERS AND 
ANTENNAS"; PROVIDING DEFINITIONS; PROVIDING FOR PERMITTED LOCATIONS; 
PROVIDING CONDITIONS FOR PERMITTED USES, ACCESSORY USES, AND SPECIAL 
USES; PROVIDING FOR PERMITS AND LEASE AQ-~J;:MENTS; PROVIDING FOR 
SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR REPEALER; AND.P'g.~\rIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE 
DATE. .;)•, 

''Wffi 

WHEREAS, the Township ofWhitewaterhaffl'ec:ived or.e' . cts to receive, requests to site 
t~?f;f/s_~'.'ji>-'' "o.'f}~:({:l'--

wireless communications towers and antennas •· .,,:the municipal bouno~es; and 
_-_- -:;~}'-.. 

"'· ---<> \lt,~ 
WHEREAS, the Township of Whitewater ·)i~ that itj~,Jn the publicJht~rest to permit the 

siting of wireless communications tow~rs and antenriasyvithµiifr~sfuunicipal botlQ.dai.jes, and 
"'St,, ''T~;;;_-;,ct 

WHEREAS, it is the intent o 
communications towers and antennas Wl 

WHEREAS, it . 
health, safety and w~ · 

hip of . · 'Je~~ter to permit the siting of wireless 
. cipal boul}Jleties; and 

hip 04i~O'l'~~tp,i'otect and promote the public 
· ····· elessfe,p~unications towers and antennas, 

··1'{:JJ~'J 

BY THE WHITEWATER TOWNSHIP 

ose. 

The purpos~\gf this .. ·. to . tablish general guidelines for the siting of wireless 
communicatfotl$>t9wers and antehnas. IB~?goals of this ordinance are to: (1) protect residential 
areas and land ll~~\;,Jrom potentf<U adverse impacts of towers and antennas; (2) encourage the 
location oftowers'hi.:'µ~~treside~ft~ areas; (3) minimize the total number of towers throughout the 
community; ( 4) stronglyt~~coµ,r:~il the joint use of new and existing tower sites as a primary option 
rather than constructiort1:cift'dclitional single-use towers; (5) encourage users of towers and 
antennas to locate them, to l extent possible, in areas where the adverse impact on the community 
is minimal; ( 6) encourage users of towers and antennas to configure them in a way that minimizes 
the adverse visual impact of the towers and antennas through careful design, siting, landscape 
screening, and innovative camouflaging techniques; (7) enhance the ability of the providers of 
telecommunications services to provide such services to the community quickly, effectively, and 
efficiently; (8) consider the public health and safety of communication towers; and (9) avoid 
potential damage to adjacent properties from tower failure through engineering and careful siting of 
tower structures. In furtherance of these goals, Whitewater Township shall give due consideration 
to the Whitewater Township master plan, zoning map, existing land uses, and environmentally 
sensitive areas in approving sites for the location of towers and antennas. 

(WHITEWATER TOWNSHIP ZONING ORDINANCE) 



175 

35.11: Definitions. 
As used in this ordinance, the following terms shall have the meanings set forth below: 

A. "Alternative tower structure" means man-made trees, clock towers, bell steeples, light poles 
and similar alternative-design mounting structures that camouflage or conceal the presence 
of antennas or towers. 

B. "Antenna" means any exterior transmitting or receiving·~eyibe mounted on a tower, building 
or structure and used in communications that radiate}or capture electromagnetic waves, 
digital signals, analog signals, radio freque~Qlfs,,:'<iiduding radar signals), wireless 
telecommunications signals or other commuaj'i~fi.ori' signal 

C. "Backhaul network" means the lines 
more cellular telephone switching o 
switched telephone network. 

,\,)/ 

nnect a provider's,,,, O\\'ers/cell sites to one or 
; . and/or long distance· ~roviders, or the public 

~ ~-. 
D. "FAA" means the Federal Avf11!J,--. • 

E. 

F. "Height" means"wli'{Al~(eping to a 
finished grad@:\ktllie' parc~l}i the high 
base pad and 'hliy)aptenna. · ;Jj\ '',,V 

,::-•- '..-cc_,_ •;,;:,it~ ':,:::/:i~~-
G "Pre~x~s( tower~ ariq pre¢~~W1,g"'~tenii@;l~,,. means any tower or antenna for which a 

buildi.fig ' ·.. . , .r spedali~se periiltfil~,,pee~\properly issued prior to the effective date of 
rg~~·'brdinance, •t:,'!¼ging pewtted to~er§~§;:aritennas that have not yet been constructed so 

lo11t;t:E1-S such apprcr ,,,, "''s current· d not expired. 
:"::f~h, .,; . -.... 

H. "Toweri!1~,~ans any s$~ttJre that -tlesigned and constructed primarily for the purpose of 
supporting/JR)}~ or more ailtennas for telephone, radio and similar communication purposes, 
including s~l '' upporting~!~ttice towers, guyed towers, or monopole towers. The term 
includes radio . ,, t~l~vi;g1.on transmission towers, microwave towers, common-carrier 
towers, cellular tei~pijQn~ towers, alternative tower structures, and the like. The term 
includes the structui&0fud any support thereto. 

I. "Microcell" means the antenna cables and appurtenances necessary for cellular 
telecommunications. 

(WHITEWATER TOWNSHIP ZONING ORDINANCE) 

'\ 



A. 

B. 

C. 

D. 

A. 

176 

35.12: Applicability. 
New Towers and Antennas. All new towers or antennas in Whitewater Township shall be 
subject to these regulations, except as provided in Sections 35.12(B) through (D). 

Amateur Radio Station Operators/Receive Only Antennas. This ordinance shall not govern 
any tower, or the installation of any antenna, that is under thirty five (35) feet in height and 
is owned and operated by a federally-licensed amateur radio station operator or is used 
exclusively for receive only antennas. dt~~.t) 

Preexisting Towers or Ante~as. Preexisting tow~rs1itna'preexisting antennas shall not be 
required to meet the requirements of this ordin8J:!9f;ipffi~F;.\t~an the requirements of Sections 
35(f) and 35(g). ·,?»?' ,::,:.)l'h,, 

AM Array. For purposes of implementkfgK s ordinance, an ~;13JJay, consisting of one or 
more tower units and supporting grm.mtl&~ystem which function~~~l;gne AM broadcasting 
antenna, shall be considered one tower. Me@m-,ement~Jpr setbacks cihiji~~paration distances 
shall be measured from the uter perimeter4~to( ';& \vers included'"/ip:,;the AM array. 
Additional tower units may b. within the'p"' r of the AM array by right. 

onsidered either principal or 
e on the same lot shall not 

B. Lot Size. For · , ; oses <?,4~terminingl~llether the installation of a tower or antenna 
C011].p1i~~JWi!h di~vJI:v ,::, .,PD'l~t;iJ regul'!tiQns, including but not limited to setback 
r~q'4ii,~merit~l~lqt~cover · · · ·· · d'~iher such requirements, the dimensions of the 
,,.,5i: ~.,-,_.,Jffe"' --~-'-"{c=:--::-it>\ . ,,, ~v 

::;t~~!ire lot shall ·coriJrQ.l, e cu.1,L.1"'.wias or towers may be located on leased parcels 

·%v • • • such lot. · f~fY?~;i't 
C. Inven • .. :,Of Existin Sit~s. Each plicant for an antenna and/or tower shall provide to the 

Zoning Afilmµistrator anj,qventory of its existing towers, antennas, or sites approved for 
towers or aiiterln~s, that ~~,]either within the jurisdiction of Whitewater Township or within 
one mile of the b~rderJ:li~t,~of, including specific information about the location, height, and 
design of each to'w~(l'.The Zoning Administrator may share such information with other 
applicants applying for administrative approvals or special use permits under this ordinance 
or other organizations seeking to locate antennas within the jurisdiction of Whitewater 
Township provided, however that the Zoning Administrator is not, by sharing such 
information, in any way representing or warranting that such sites are available or suitable. 

D. Aesthetics. Towers and antennas shall meet the following requirements: 

1. Towers shall either maintain a galvanized steel finish or, subject to any applicable 
standards of the FAA, be painted a neutral color so as to reduce visual obtrusiveness. 

(WHITEWATER TOWNSHIP ZONING ORDINANCE) 



E. 

F. 

G 

H. 

I. 

177 

2. At a tower site, the design of the buildings and related structures shall, to the extent 
possible, use materials, colors, textures, screening, and landscaping that will blend 
them into the natural setting and surrounding buildings. 

3. If an antenna is installed on a structure other than a tower, the antenna and 
supporting electrical and mechanical equipment must be of a neutral color that is 
identical to, or closely compatible with, the color of the supporting structure so as to 
make the antenna and related equipment as visuallyµnobtrusive as possible. 

Lighting. Towers shall not be artificially lighted,~linJe~~/required by the FAA or other 
applicable authority. If lighting is required, the 1igfif~l[~1S~l11atives and design chosen must 
cause the least disturbance to the surroundingyiews: l{"'.'i},, 

-: ;?·''.\, ,,;;(~~,:,;,·:~t)., 

State or Federal Requirements. All 's[·~ust meet or 6k8~ed current standards and 
regulations of the FAA, the FCC, and ., -• other agency of the stiti}pf federal government 
with the authority to regulate towers and"atit~i:mas, ij;;~11ch standards/and regulations are 
changed, then the owners of the towers and ant~~ '31"'"~tmed by this ot4iii~ce shall bring 
such towers and antennas · . ' Qfllpliance with' revised standards>an.d regulations 
within six (6) months of the Hl\'~~i,date of s ,_:.:~~Iandards and regulations, unless a 
different compliance schedule aii$l~ by the'',cpbJrolling state or federal agency. 
Failure to bring t~}:Yt::,ES and ante ,, ~s hitf · Jianc~,i;~!~ such revised standards and 
regulations shaU~c<:>,iistifu!Rgrounds''forJhe ;,:' e.of the'1t<5f;-er or antenna at the owner's 
expense. , .• " -,,,,,,, .,,--c:."';:c,>_.. ·,,_ " 

--i:,._::\, 
<';_.f 

Building Codes; Safety Stan:da1rds. To en.slli~.- the structural integrity of towers, the owner of 
a tq,'r)f~F,~%§1!1_ ensiw \t} .Jltl!fistw . tained{'i~ compliance with standards contained in 
8:I?Pliijable<ist?t¢:- r loc · · · ing'':'. ,;,,ltfid~ty,e applicable standards for towers that are 

iP;(i!:>lished by tli __ Jt~troru :'"~ustries r~S~ciation, as amended from time to time. If, upon 
,-fuip~ction, the To~lljp o \v'hitewater concludes that a tower fails to comply with such 
codes)u;d standards ~~:;constifutes .a danger to persons or property, then upon notice being 
provided,:tp .the owner of;~e tower/tlie owner shall have thirty (30) days to bring such tower 
into conipl{~pe with sub~~~tandards. Failure to bring such tower into compliance within 
said thirty (3Qt~~ys sha -;,¼ nstitute grounds for the removal of the tower or antenna at the 

' '«"•'"•,'.t'·/:~>i owner s expense_;zy)," 
;-~t}\t;.\,c, 

Measurement. Fo;::Jurposes of measurement, tower setbacks and separation distances shall 
be calculated and applied to facilities located in Whitewater Township irrespective of 
municipal and county jurisdictional boundaries. 

Not Essential Services. Towers and antennas shall be regulated and permitted pursuant to 
this ordinance and shall not be regulated or permitted as essential services, public utilities, or 
private utilities. 

(WHITEWATER TOWNSHIP ZONING ORDINANCE) 



!\ 

,1 
' 

J. 

178 

Franchises. Owners and/or operators of towers or antennas shall certify that all franchises 
required by law for the construction and/or operation of a wireless communication system in 
Whitewater Township have been obtained and shall file a copy of all required franchises 
with the Zoning Administrator. 

K. Public Notice. For purposes of this ordinance, any special use request, variance request, or 
appeal of an administratively approved use or special use shall require public notice to all 
abutting property owners and all property owners of pr9perties that are located within the 
corresponding separation distance listed in Section J,i:!>f~(:B)(5)(b) Table 2, in addition to 
any notice otherwise required by the Zoning Ordinctnc~:;~?' 

L. 

M. 

N. 

A. 

B. 

A. 

Signs. No signs shall be allowed on an antent1ii6t}it6~e;<i'' 
~J{t~ 

Buildings and Support Equipment. i~~[orrigs and suppori'1,'lqllipment associated with 
antennas or towers shall comply with theirtq:uirements of Section 3S:;] .. 

""'ifi)~~t½, 4tJ:!i:4 
Multiple Antenna/Tower Pl~·'s,~tewater Tq~!7ig·y~ncourages the .,,;~ of towers and 
antennas to submit a single apnli,c;i.tipn for appr6\c~f;~finultiple towers and1/6r antenna sites. 
Applications for approval of mtiltfplf~ttk~ shall be giy~g priority in the review process. 

, ______ . -~:<:'.' __ ;_=-Br;11Jto,. --- .:=<~.,., 
- '---~-:~'=-">,,_ .- <,; ___ ::~-i"i-_.: ~ =~- '\:,\..... 

' , ,- =-=~",,, 

Pernlltted Use;:cif)t~,~ • .. 
~,:; .. "l¾t'.&~!i;~r toW~ft_.:ocate . 'o~:RfB£e owned, leased,. o: otherwise controlled by 
·•,Jr' Whitewa{~t:i[ownshi:g,prov1ded a11£~nse or lease authonzmg such antenna or tower 

has been apprbved by Wllitewater Township. 
'\r;Jtt::*,-. 

·,s:;;':i~:,, °'\ 35.15~·'.'s'~ecial Use Permits. 
Genera(•s~i'.'.;{p.~ followin vs ,rovisions shall govern the issuance of special use permits for 
towers or arit~il;n~ by th~~Xlmning Commission: 

'''{/;,;;-· ,,,-:-:~;;,~Jtil 
1. If the towfi:Jirt,witenna is not a permitted use under Section 35.14 of this ordinance, 

then a spedifkttise permit shall be required for the construction of a tower or the 
placement of an antenna in all zoning districts. 

2. Applications for special use permits under this Section shall be subject to the 
procedures and requirements of Article XXV [ Article on special uses] of the Zoning 
Ordinance, except as modified in this Section. 

3. In granting a special use permit, the Planning Commission may impose conditions to 
the extent the Planning Commission concludes such conditions are necessary to 
minimize any adverse effect of the proposed tower on adjoining properties. 

(WHITEWATER TOWNSHIP ZONING ORDINANCE) 



179 

4. Any information of an engineering nature that the applicant submits, whether civil, 
mechanical, or electrical, shall be certified by a licensed professional engineer. 

5. An applicant for a special use permit shall submit the information described in this 
Section and a non-refundable fee as established by the Whitewater Township Board, 
as well as any additional fees which may be required should outside professional 
assistance be required in the review of the applic~tion, to reimburse Whitewater 
Township for the costs of reviewing the applicati~n'9 

B. Towers. 

1. 

,,v,'C•-,, 

Information required. In additionJ~i[~y informatid~teg_uired for applications for 
special use permits pursuant to.. 'Jr XXV [ Article oh :~p~~ial uses] of the Zoning 
Ordinance, applicants for a spec'L...,.,.,,,...,..., permit for a tower sn~l,submit the following 
information: ····· · ·· 

a. 
,-,.,_ ,'<:--::: 

A scaled site · 9!early indicat}if e location, type a1rcl height of the 
proposed towe is'iftj~l:\-lld uses aft .. s>ping, adjacent land uses and zoning 
(including when .. ,~cerft'l!!':Q:ther murtic1p.~lities), Master Plan classification 
of th.e. site and alfi1:Prm,erti~'"1d:+-. • the\1pplicable separation distances set 

' ,. cc('i> '\I'.'· · :'',ii'¾ 
fottijt4ii§.ec;_tion 32. r · ( 4), .,... . ,, oadway;s, proposed means of access, 

fs~tEacks friffi,prope /,gst~le\rati' . *,;,~gs of ~e prop~sed tower and 
@Yother strtiytures, topo~aphy, parking;wand other 1nformat10n deemed by 
theiqning AflministratorJQ\be necessary to assess compliance with this 
ordihaffce. >J ·· · .. ··· 

-., ~ '::--~ ·:\ 

~- .. ii~'."'~~~J{eS~)~~ of th"e ;(ij;~ and leased parcel (if applicable). 

,;:,£, The ~61:~19k di~t~gebetween the proposed tower and the nearest residential 
unit, pla~eij residerttially zoned properties, and unplatted residentially zoned 

d. 

• ~:.:./1//} 
propert1es:,{?j 

• Tue,. sepi!J
1
on distance from other towers described in the inventory of 

exist_i11g°.siies submitted pursuant to Section 35.13(C) shall be shown on an 
updafecf site plan or map. The applicant shall also identify the type of 
construction of the existing tower(s) and the owner/operator of the existing 
tower(s), if known. 

e. A landscape plan showing specific landscape materials. 

f. Method of fencing, and finished color and, if applicable, the method of 
camouflage and illumination. 

(WHITEWATER TOWNSHIP ZONING ORDINANCE) 



i\ 
g. 

180 

A description of compliance with Sections 35.03(C), (D), (E), (F), (G), (J), 
(L), and (M), 35.15(B)(4), 35.15(B)(5) and all applicable federal, state or 
local laws. 

h. A notarized statement by the applicant as to whether construction of the 
tower will accommodate collocation of additional antennas for future users. 

i. Identification of the entities providing therbackhaul network for the tower( s) 
described in the application and other f~llu{lfr sites owned or operated by the 
applicant in the municipality. :rf?t$~,: ·· 

,-,'/ 

'~;, ·~~\-?~;) '~ 
j. A description of the suitability,gf\ffif use e,.zj.sting towers, other structures 

or a~temative te~hnology .· "'~!i:~quiring the q~~}~~f towers or structures to 
provide the services to01. t>V1ded through the;;};l.s~ of the proposed new 
tower. 

k. A description 
the Townshi 
technological 
erected. 

2. Factors G§t$il~'i:t4 in Gr~fliig"Spe · )e.i>t?rmi r Towers. In addition to any 
__ ," :·· ,:,,''·~}>"';¢ -~~\,,.,,._,,, __ ,'."~, ,_ - .· . -,--,-:-:-- ,',._-,t,:._~ 

standar :for cofi$ig~ration O ,~91 pedWhapplications pursuant to Article 
XXV T • cle on spe~ial uses] ifile7 Zoning Orafuance, the Planning Commission 
shall co.··· , :~t: the f<>il6wing fact6rs'>in determining whether to issue a special use 

,c,;J?fWt, alth5il~J •' · .I~P9i;IH~,.Co~§8:ion may waive or reduce the burden on the 
;;appli:g@!:~f one~{?' .,, re or;'fl:i~~.~; . te~) if the Planning Commission concludes that 
the goa:ls1>~'$S of ifia.µce are oe· rved thereby: 

c. 

d. 

e. 

f. 

g. 

tower to residential structures and residential district 

.. , , uses on adjacent and nearby properties; 

Surrounding topography; 

Surrounding tree coverage and foliage; 

Design of the tower, with particular reference to design characteristics that 
have the effect ofreducing or eliminating visual obtrusiveness; 

Proposed ingress and egress; and 

(WHITEWATER TOWNSHIP ZONING ORDINANCE) 



181 

h. Availability of suitable existing towers, other strnctures, or alternative 
technologies not requiring the use of towers or strnctures, as discussed in 
Section 35.15(B)(3) of this ordinance. 

3. Availability of Suitable Existing Towers, Other Strnctures, or Alternative 
Technology. No new tower shall be permitted unless the applicant demonstrates to 
the reasonable satisfaction of the Planning Commission that no existing tower, 
strncture or alternative technology that does l\9t require the use of towers or 
strnctures can accommodate the applicant's a pfgppsed antenna. An applicant shall 
submit information requested by the Planning{~tfumission related to the availability 
of suitable existing towers, other strnc~~~iBf:alternative technology. Evidence 
submitted to demonstrate that no exi§!ing!:t'bwer, s~9,p.rre or alternative technology 
can accommodate the applicant's/'rrttr'>-osed antenfi~!B:il;tay consist of any of the 

,;f:tr 

;;jB~:{~:~, 

following: '"At;[(:;r,,., 

a. 

b. 

c. 

d. 

No existing towers or strnc~e~are lo~at~q within ~tl~ographic area which 
meet applican ' engineering req~~~~§~P ,;,,t;;~lt, 

v,~rl-_-t ~:-,t':ti7 

Existing tower&; ,, , :' "ctµres are ~6ff~f;mfficient height to meet applicant's 
• • -,;,Jo;. ,,;; ,,,, {','C""f\, 

engmeenng reqmr¢inerits': ', t>,;;_ 
" - ~-''.'--

ave "s~cient structural strength to 
,,Jtl;~~lated equipment. 

TH ;r~pplic roposed antenna would cause electromagnetic interference 
witfiCthec,c!,11f , , "cm the existing towers or strnctures, or the antenna on the 

\;',,lf'f[~l'~~'srrJ/; es ~uld cause interference with the applicant's 

The fJ~i)\costs~ @})~9ntractual provisions required by the owner in order to 
share a:ri'tltsting tdwer or strncture or to adapt an existing tower or strncture 

, > ,, for sharirtg;ijre unreasonable. Costs exceeding new tower development are 

f. 

-,. ~ presumed;tqbe unreasonable. 
;:;:: -;: ~- ',, _; ';,\·:--;-:_J 

\/-~-:Y3>-~ :•-~i}~~;.JE:>} 
The;f~ppJfoant demonstrates that there are other limiting factors that render 
existilittowers and strnctures unsuitable. 

g. The applicant demonstrates that an alternative technology that does not 
require the use of towers or strnctures, such as a cable microcell network 
using multiple low-powered transmitters/receivers attached to a wireline 
system, is unsuitable. Costs of alternative technology that exceed new tower 
or antenna development shall not be presumed to render the technology 
unsuitable. 

(WHITEWATER TOWNSHIP ZONING ORDINANCE) 



4. 

5. 

182 

Setbacks. The following setback requirements shall apply to all towers for which a 
special use permit is required; provided, however, that the Planning Commission 
may reduce the standard setback requirements if the goals of this ordinance would 
be better served thereby: 

a. Towers must be set back a distance equal to at least seventy-five percent 
(75%) of the height of the tower from any adjoining lot line. 

b. Guys and accessory buildings must 
setback requirements. 

Separation. The following separati 
antennas for which a special us 
Planning Commission may red 
of this ordinance would be bett 

a. 

(1) 

.. the minimum zoning district 

hall apply to all towers and 
ovided, however, that the 

quirements if the goals 

(WHITEWATER TOWNSHIP ZONING ORDINANCE) 



183 

Table 1: 

Off-site Use/Designated Area Separation Distance 

Single-family or duplex residential units1 200 feet or 300% height of tower whichever is 
greater 

Vacant single-family or duplex residentially 
zoned land which is either platted or has 
preliminary subdivision plan approval which is 
not expired 

Vacant unplatted residentially zoned lands3 

Existing multi-family residential units greater 
than duplex units 

Non-residentially zoned lands or non-residential 
uses 

200 feet or 300% height oftower2 whichever is 
greater 

10~ fetli5f 1()0~;.:~eight of tower whichever is 
g;(~~tyr ·•·•;1t>\, 

~ob feet or 100% heigbJ:pf tower whichever is 
•h .. .;;,. 
.~eater ··· 
:,,:'.'..'."~?;>_ 

1 Includes modular homesjppgi-obile ho~~~(used dB~vpg p~~,~~;., 
2Separation measured frS}~f~j~e of tower td1~19~est ?M~.1i ·: · etbacklil,m.e. 
3Includes any unplatt¢d[ffesidentia.1/1,1se properf " 'i}lout . 'd, preliminary subdivision plan or 
valid development plan: a,.pprova"CdiJ-d any rri amily resi Entially zoned land greater than 
duplex. · · ~>~h,, , · 

;c,,,.,_ 
,.,,.',, 

·,,;/·:<.:/Jf· 

. \t~~Jt:;;;, 
A. 'separ.ation distanc~f:b~twe~ri,·to~ers be applicable for and measured between the 

proposecl tower and pre~xisting tov\Ters. The separation distances shall be measured by 
drawing Qt: following asg~ight line between the base of the existing tower and the proposed 
base, pursuliµtto a site pla.n;. of the proposed tower. The separation distances (listed in linear 
feet) shall be,'a$',shown inCTa,ble 2. 

:•:<", - ---, - ' 

B. Table 2: Existin~ Mw;r'.WIJes, all measurements are in feet. (next page) 
-,:.:~J,P; 

(WHITEWATER TOWNSHIP ZONING ORDINANCE) 



! { 

184 

Table 2. 

Lattice Guyed 

Lattice 5,000 5,000 

Guyed 5,000 5,000/t"',, 

Monopole 75 
feet or higher 1,500 

Monopole less 
than 75 feet 750 

MQIJ.Qpole 75 
feltlijj?Higher 

•t.' ;C (·~·'.•,-.-· 

1,500 

Monopole less 
than 75 feet 

750 

750 

750 

750 

, ,/1.cing;t~tt!ess than six feet in height and 
'< t'tfi~vic&l*'provided however, that the 

deeins1!~l1J?ropriate. 

B. Landscaping. The follb~i,ng recf1:W:~tnents s~~Ift" 9vem the landscaping surrounding towers for 
which a siie,,~mi:~e:permiti~'.lrfq!Jit~ir;:i,Pt9Nided "\}Vever, that the Planning Commission may 

·"{.;i':f'.·~--}~:,---{-: :::t,,;--ic/<:c-_:: --~-t-: 0-•- _ ·.* \"-tt(,J?Wi,:1/ c-,--,,_cJ_:_,\->,",/>·'-- i,=__=i, 

waive sµcfjteqtiitemept~;if,the"'goals of this or c , buld be better served thereby. 
' .. lt ''''::t;!);,, · ······.•. 0 ,,. ·, 

i~;;l},,,,, Tower faciiftil$;,~hall"be la,ndscaped with a buffer of plant materials that effectively 
scrie,?, the view of ili~Itpwer domp9und from property used for residences. The standard 
buffer .Jh,consist of l '"' scape~:'f:i§trip at least four ( 4) feet wide outside the perimeter of 
the compdliyq,,, 

;':;''..,;-_-.._ 
J").,__ 

2. In location~fit~:r~~ili yvisual impact of the tower would be minimal, the landscaping 
requirement may B~Sr~_gtf~ed or waived 

-f1[-Y' 

3. Existing mature tree growth and natural land forms on the site shall be preserved to the 
maximum extent possible. In some cases, such as towers sited on large, wooded lots, natural 
growth around the property perimeter may be sufficient buffer. 

(WHITEWATER TOWNSHIP ZONING ORDINANCE) 



35.16: 
A. 

B. 

185 

Buildings or Other Equipment Storage. 
Antennas Mounted on Structures or Rooftops. The equipment cabinet or structure used in 
association with antennas shall comply with the following: 
1. The cabinet or structure shall not contain more than one hundred (100) square feet of 

gross floor area or be more than thirty five (35) feet in height. In addition, for 
buildings and structures which are less than thirty five (35) feet in height, the related 
unmanned equipment structure, if over one hundred (100) square feet of gross floor 
area or thirty five (35) feet in height, shall be loc~t~d on the ground and shall not be 
located on the roof of the structure. ;}jfi) 

2. If the equipment structure is located 01.{,.ij6 't:99{_ of a building, the area of the 
equipment structure and other equip:menfatid struc1_tkxs shall not occupy more than 
ten (10) percent of the roof area. ''Z!Jl~> 

3. Equipment storage buildings of, 
oo~. A 

.-,, -'-9 
Antennas Mounted on Utili ']Jie equipment c~ )net or structure 
used in association with anteriii(~:'.$hall be locate ' 'Jordance with the f~ll~wing: 
1. In residential districts, tli&:,~q~ipm~nt cabin t~!Jucture may be located: 

(a) In a front or side yiird prQyj:c;l~c;l the ca ui.?t9r structure is no greater than ten 
(102 J~~t in height 'ap~ one filliic\r~~,, seventyis,J~ (176) of gross floor area and 

"'i'."'-''.''''; .y)Tu,, •Y•<'', ''.''-"'"'-

t ~;;~~1:iiiley'structure't§lillll co:mp,}y/witli,, all setJ,ack requirements within the 
--- -· ~~ific'z'oij\k¾ The ~aB\\tf~9ture'sh~i~;~ screened by an evergr~en hedge 
· .. ,JP. an ultllil.ijte height zQf:il,~t least 42-48"mches and a planted height of at 

l~i-siti-- 6 inchG?:1 \%'-
~w-,~ -\\ 

~~·,i - c./\. 

>(b) J:tr}:Aia r~ar:t·-,.,, pro.J1a~~ et or structure is no greater than ten (10) 
'1f6~!Jip hdg4t>l:l,Ild one h "' ,, d, seventy six (176) square feet in gross floor 
are''""\ he ca~jp,~t/structure, shall comply with all setback requirements 

,,,_ withirt\,·---~ specift~gi~one and be screened by an evergreen hedge with an 
::5~A\ ultimate',\_l~ight ol~iMlit (8) feet and a planted height of at least 36 inches. 

\:~v~-\ 

2. In 66nnn.~rcial o{iridustrial districts the equipment cabinet or structure shall be no 
greatertli@,tett(19) feet in height and one hundred, seventy six (176) square feet in 
gross flobfaf~~.,/"fhe structure or cabinet shall comply with all setback requirements 
within the specific zone and be screened by an evergreen hedge with an ultimate 
height of eight (8) feet and a planted height of at least 36 inches. In all other 
instances, structures or cabinets shall be screened from view of all residential 
properties which abut or are directly across the street from the structure or cabinet by 
a solid fence six (6) feet in height or an evergreen hedge with an ultimate height of 
eight (8) feet and a planted height of at least 36 inches. 

C. Antennas Located on Towers. The related unmanned equipment structure shall not contain 
more than ten (10) square feet of gross floor area and be more than ten (10) feet in height, 
and shall be located in accordance with the minimum yard requirements of the zoning 
district in which located. 

(WHITEWATER TOWNSHIP ZONING ORDINANCE) 



D. 

186 

Modification of Building Size Requirements. The requirements of Sections 35.16 (A) 
through (C) may be modified by the Planning Commission in the case of uses permitted by 
special use to encourage collocation. 

35.17: Removal of Abandoned Antennas and Towers. 
Any antenna or tower that is not operated for a continuous period of twelve (12) months shall be 
considered abandoned, and the owner of such antenna or tower shall remove the same within ninety 
(90) days of receipt of notice from the Township of Whitewater notifying the owner of such 
abandonment. Failure to remove an abandoned antenna or t~~tfj,'ithin said ninety (90) day shall 
be grounds to remove the tower or antenna at the owner's expeJ:18,e: If there are two or more users of 
a single tower, then this provision shall not become effectiy~\itltiLall users cease using the tower. A 
performance guarantee may be required in order to e:fI:ecfuat~;:;the terms and conditions of this 
ordinance. .C:!;1>\ · .. ,· ·• , ••·· ,, 

,; »; '.f,f\, 
35.18: Nonconformmg Uses. \v:j'li;•;;h 

A. Not Expansion of Nonconforming Usel}'.:1J:<fwers that are construct~cl,,and antennas that are 
installed, in accordance with the provf!fi)h of this .ordinance shhit>p.ot be deemed to 

'·.-::_,; ':/[·_ /'.?\ ·-~h.. / , - -, ?'· 

constitute the expansion of a nonconforming'tj , r staj'~tµre. · · th, 

B. Preexisting towers. Preexisti~~},t9)v~rs shall b' , }Q~:d to continue the~ usage as they 
presently exist. Routine mahlt~ilah6~' {u:icluding ''f~p\acement with a new tower of like 
construction and height) shall bepermitted'lULSUCh preiXi§ting towers. New construction 
other than routineJnaintenance on a?preexistmg::'t' · er shali[b(l,1,11ply with the requirements of 
this ordinance. /; < C Ii,;j< ' ;i, ··••·••·· \::JP 

C. Rebuilding Dam~ged or Des toyed Noncortf6rming Towefs or Antennas. Notwithstanding 
Section 32.17, 0011.a>fide nontbnforming'tc3w,ers or antennas that are damaged or destroyed 
may,;?~·X,¥Qllilt with&u;'hc1yfu , .··.•.· .• st.obtam!~tlrninistrative approval or a special use permit 
~q,,£,itfi5tltl"' . g td tµ5e(the ;ep~~)ism ;~4µirements specified in Sections 35.15(B)(4) 
Ji~ 35.15(B) The type}peight, al:id 109ation of the tower onsite shall be of the same 
'iyp~',and intensity ... •'.·'·e origiit~t/acility approval. Building permits to rebuild the facility 
shait;,c~1,11ply with the':ij~n appHc~l:>!e building codes and shall be obtained within 180 days 
:from'tli¢)j.:,ite the facilitytf&, damaged'br destroyed. If no permit is- obtained or if said permit 

{~' ?<~'." l??·~'.'":\ 
expires, th¢?' q~er or anterill,~ shall be deemed abandoned as specified in Section 3 5 .1 7. 

:~,/~,:J 
35.19: Severability. . ,.• ... ·.•··. . 11£:,:>' 
The various parts, secti~ns',a11f~l~~ses of this Ordinance are hereby declared to be severable. If any 
part, sentence, paragraph, se9tion or clause is adjudged unconstitutional or invalid by a court of 
competent jurisdiction, the remainder of the Ordinance shall not be affected thereby. -

Section 35.20: Repealer. 
Any ordinances or parts thereof in conflict with the provisions of this Ordinance are hereby repealed 
to the extent of such conflict. 

Section 35.21: Effective Date. 
This Ordinance shall take effect October 6, 1997. 

(WHITEWATER TOWNSHIP ZONING ORDINANCE) 



36.00 

36.10 INTENT 

ARTICLE XXXVI 
MOBILE HOME STANDARDS 

(Effective July 28, 2017) 

The purpose of the Mobile Home standards is to establish guidelines for persons and families 
who choose to live in a mobile home, HUD, or similar approved structure rather than a 
conventional single-family structure that conforms to the Michigan Residential Code (MRC). 

36.11 MOBILE HOME REGULATIONS 
A mobile home may be permanently located on a lot as a single-family dwelling provided the 
following qualifying conditions are met: 

A. Each mobile home shall require a land use permit and shall be subject to the inspection 
standards of the Grand Traverse Construction Code Division. 

B. Each mobile home shall bear a label required by section 3282.362(c)(2) of the Federal 
Mobile Home Procedural and Enforcement Regulations. 

C. Each mobile home shall be installed pursuant to the manufacturer's setup instructions and 
shall be secured to the premises by an anchoring system or device complying with the rules 
and regulations of the Michigan Manufactured Housing Commission. 

D. Within ten (10) working days following installation, all towing mechanism shall be removed 
from each mobile home. No mobile home shall have any exposed undercarriage or chassis. 

E. All legally anchored mobile homes shall be exempt from foundation requirements. 
F. All mobile homes shall be located within the Agricultural and RC districts, and are subject to 

all existing regulations. 
G. All construction, plumbing, electrical apparatus and insulation within and connected to each 

home shall be of a type and quality conforming to the "Mobile Home Construction and 
Safety Standards" as promulgated by the United States Department of Housing and Urban 
Development, being 24 CFR Section 3280, as is from time to time amended. 

H. To the extent that any of these provisions conflict with any provision of the Mobile Home 
Commission Act or its administrative rules as applied to a mobile home in a residential 
neighborhood, the Mobile Home Commission Act provision will control. 

36.12 BUILDING SIZES, LOT SIZES AND YARD REQUIREMENTS 
All structures, lots, and structure setbacks from property lines shall comply with the regulations 
established in Article XII of this Ordinance. 

36.30 MOBILE HOME CONDOMINIUM 
Multiple mobile homes may be placed on a common property under the provisions of Article 
28.15, Mobile Home Condominiums. Mobile home condominium projects shall conform to the 
requirements for mobile home parks established under the regulations of the Michigan Mobile 
Home Commission and the Schedule of Regulations in Article 12.11. 



Article XXXVII 
Supplementary Provisions 

37.10 Temporary Buildings and Uses 

A. Permitted Temporary Buildings and Uses. The following buildings and uses are 
permitted subject to meeting all of the following requirements of this section: 

1. Temporary Dwellings. No temporary dwelU11~ shall be erected or moved 
onto a lot and used for dwelling purpose.~;'¥k9ept during construction of a 
permanent dwelling on the premises,I~lµs_li has been issued a building 
permit and conforms to the followingr:$ff?ti}f~>•, 

a) The residence under constrµction"'shall corifQrm to all other Township 
Ordinances. '" 

b) The reasonable dat removal of the '. f(!plporary dwelling, 
established on the pe . t issued by the Zoning Nfuninistrator, shall 
not exceed ninety (90) days, from . the date o(· 6cI:upancy of the 

•·" ·• ·· cc J•<' ·'Yi/'· 
permanent s~P}1,9?1re. .,,. ir:/ ···· i} j;; 

c) The tempor~id"Y~Hing shal imected to a water/supply and 
sewage dispo{~L syst~m, approv the Grand Traverse County 
Environmental HealtJifl)~ ment. 

d) Tl}~,."JJpplicant fcir\. te~ 4wel 1 · ermit shall complete the 
,:fT~ffipotary Dwellili A enf' ·. · ted by the Township t~';f ~;~cj,)tt~~ . . .. 

2. Tem'orar. an Existin'>.Residence durin Construction of New 
········· .. · .. Residenc'' .. "'r,ty,;,,.ownetJ½ay utilize an existing residence while 

JlbvQding a m~"{Blf;!h~,.,~afuwparcel of land when conforming with 
the11'6,llq:wing. . ·".!ilt(;§ 
a) Thiti~~~i,denc . 4er consti=tiction shall conform to all other Township 

OrdiriMi'~~,s. \Jt'.\. 
b) The rea.§d\lable date for removal of the temporary dwelling, 

establishecf pn the permit issued by the Zoning Administrator, shall not 
· '\l''y?(ceed nirte" (90) days from the date of occupancy of the permanent 

. stfus?R~i: 
c) The;[j~pphcant for a temporary dwelling permit shall complete the 

"Terri!forary Dwelling Agreement for the use of Existing Homes" as 
adopted by the Township Board. 

3. Temporary Camping. A property owner shall be entitled to a camping 
permit for temporary recreational use when conforming with the 
following: 
a) The structure shall not be permanently connected to a water supply, 

electrical supply, septic system, natural gas supply, nor permanently 
attached to a foundation. 



B. 

b) No "gray water" or sewage shall be drained or dumped from the 
structure, except into such collection vehicles, or septic disposal 
systems as may be approved by the Grand Traverse County 
Environmental Health Department. 

c) The maximum duration of stay shall not exceed one hundred and 
twenty (120) days per year. 

d) All camping activities shall be kept 50 feet from the ordinary high 
water mark. 

e) Camping activities shall not be a nuisance to surrounding property. 

4. Temporary Construction Structures. 
storage of equipment and constructio 
construction of a permanent struc . 
permit. The temporary structur~_s"-~ffia e r 
the issuance of a certificate o 9¢9µpancy. 

5. S ecial Events and Othe 
Administrator may grant tern 
events and other t 
a) 

b) 
c) 

' 

rary structures used for 
may be used only during the 

has been issued a building 
ed from the site prior to 

wnship Zoning 
es for special 

tertainment 

Zoning Administrator. 

uilding or use shall require 
:zoning A 1nistrator under Article 1 7 of 

tor shall make a determination that the 
will not adversely affect adjoining 
ealth, safety, and the general welfare 

'ts orth all conditions to be placed and may 
the Township Board. 

C. P ance Guar~!~~- wnship may require a deposit by the applicant in 
the f a certifi~it\check, cash or letter of credit in an amount sufficient to 
hold th . ship f{S\i of all liabilities incident to the operation of a temporary 
building o_ 'fy any adjoining land owner for any damages resulting 
from the op of such activity and to ensure proper cleanup after the 
temporary use ana. removal of all temporary structures. The amount of the 
guarantee shall be estimated by the Zoning Administrator. The Township shall 
rebate to the applicant upon satisfactory removal of all temporary uses and 
structures. 



37.20 Raising and Keeping of Animals 

A. The keeping of domestic animals shall be allowed provided that the animals are 
maintained so as to not constitute a public nuisance. Dogs shall be limited to 
three (3). 

B. The keeping of livestock, including horses and poultry shall be allowed provided 
that the same are kept on a parcel of land of not less than two and one-half (2 1 \2) 
acres and provided further that all livestock and poultry be properly housed and 
fenced so as not to be a public nuisance and provided that no enclosure or space for 
the permanent housing of livestock or poultry shl:l!l~be located nearer than one 
hundred (100) feet from any adjoining property linef8r}iighway right-of-way. 

C. The keeping of female poultry and rabbits is p~najttfd on parcels of land less than 
two and one-half (2 ½) acres provided that,Jfl,~i:f&rt1.\Jy poultry is properly housed 
and adequately contained within the proJ?@ify]§o as nof,t9,be a public nuisance and 
provided that no enclosure or space f 9f}g?rinanent houstgg1~hall be located nearer 
than forty (40) feet from any adjoi~jrtgpfoperty line or h1gltway right-of-way. 

'i{t}fr,( ; --C- --, -, 

37.30 Dog Kennels 
Dog kennels shall be subject to t~<!,following co <1i?, ... > 

A. The parcel of land upon'Yl:tlcp. .. such activity;'ts ducted shall be no· less that ten 
(10) acres in area. ,. .··, ··•···. ·.··· .. 1 

B. All enclosures for breeding):fe~d .h~Jter or other.uses in conjunction with the 
harboring of d9gs shall be ha[<;iA surfgc~1$''ap,<;! provic:f'\ roper drains for washing 

. h . '.' ,,,.~ .·. ,,.··.. . 
wit water R~F~ , . <;:l:tr4 2 : / , '> ?· 

C. All breeding? r , .'t~;\ and. s~~\!~tJfN:f,as' sh~lt~l1!; ?e locat~d nearer than two 
hundred (20Q),feet from" · adJ01m11gproperty hne or highway nght-of-way. 

D. The entire facili:ty: incl breeding areas, shelters and runs shall be enclosed by 
a visual scree1tdt1'~oun .eclgeiµg wall 'or fence six ( 6) feet in height. 

';;';;t", ,. ' • ;>' •:>,ll:irBfr:t'!;s. 0'il} 
37.40 Home Occupations · · ;'.;,,. · o/,;e,:?!i, 
Home~c:cupations sn~lf~~ divicl~qti11to 2 classes: Minor and Major Home Occupations. 

'::;)\;,,,Minor Hom~ QRpupatio!lts.hall be conducted entirely within a residence, 
·· · \1,1.1:~st be operat~~):py the occupants of the residence and there shall be no 

visib!e external(ey}dence of the occupation. This type of occupation shall not 
requ4:e,permitti~l:1rom the Township. Examples - Internet Sales, 
Accotiqt€i;µ!s,.Aftl~ts, Engineers, Medical Marijuana Caregivers, Private 
TeacherS/1:'uf()rs·, Authors, Wedding Planners and similar uses. 

B. Major Home Occupations can be conducted within the residence and/or an 
accessory building located on the property. Signage shall be allowed on site 
and non-resident employees may be allowed. Further, this type of 
occupation shall require a special use permit from the Planning Commission 
and meet the special conditions listed in Article 25.22 (C). Examples -
Hairdresser, Retail Shops (including antiques and gifts) and similar uses as 
determined by the Planning Commission. 



37 .50 Private Family Campgrounds 
A. Private Campgrounds are intended to allow owners to utilize their property for 

the purpose of temporary but·reoccurring recreational uses. The private campground may 
consist of temporary and/or permanent structures and shall meet the following conditions: 

1. The property shall contain a minimum of 10 acres. 
2. Cabins shall be limited to one per 5 acres. 
3. Permanent camping pads shall be allowed at a rate of one per 2 acres. 
4. Each cabins or pad shall be provided water and sanitary service 

approved by the Grand Traverse County Health Department. 
5. No structures or pads shall be located wtth,ip. 50 feet of a property line. 
6. An accessory/service building for storage,J:eboking, etc. shall be 

allowed provided that the building do§~I~ot exceed 1200 square feet. 
7. A pavilion up to 400 square feet;s,h~Jfh~~!lowed. 
8. Permanent residency is prohiµiteuion the 1px:qperty. 
9. Recreational elements shan{~<ltlhave a negatiyeimpact on the 

surrounding areas with r~!a'.fdto noise, light, 6dof\"~ etc. 
10. The campground or porti1~~"thereof shall not be f~f!l~fl or offered to 

the public. "1,(t·,,.. .+;':1;1\ 8<)*~ilh 
11. A document sh~:!! be filed withJ. · ··.• 'Traverse CounijtI,legister of 

Deeds statin1lm~eo11ditions and' ns of the site plarrby the 
"iL\:t:>,---- , 

property owner:;:;:::\ 
l:;~;:~~. 



INDEX 

A. 

ARTICLE XXXV - TOWERS .......................................................................................................... 153 
ACCESSORY & NONCONFORMING USES 

BUII..DIN'GS ........................................................................................................................... 10 
ACCESSORY BUILDIN'G 

2 
~~ ,,:, .. .,;;,, 

ACCESSORYUSE .· :·.:.,/ 
ZONIN'G ............................................................... ~· .• :~:~~·: ............................................................ 2 

ADDITIONAL CONDITIONS .. )/ ~ .. ;;~\)~, 
. . .. / ... •." 

BED & BREAKFAST ·························••Hi~~:-., .. ·~· ............. ::~:.~ .• ':; ................................................. 66 
ADMINISTRATION ZONIN'G ·<:::·/ :,i:,.'-'h 

ADMINis'fMTION OF ORDIN~~~:~'. .......................... ~:.\:,i:_ .. ········· .......................... 30 
AGRICULTURAL USES PERMITTED ~/{'~~- ,,. ·</~';>,, 

AGRICULTURALA 1 ·;,,J,, :'-<:,:~, t~_-r, 24 
APPEALS oF FIN'AL sITE ~iANi················~·.~::(r~f~·-~~:1J?~ ...................... ~;Q,1r~-;·························· 

ZBA 58 '-,it<>·>.·., -,~'4t~~ / 
APPLICABILITY OF OVERLAY'c:OPUD. :,:>, ~{_>~>, 

113 . '.\, . ,, );, \:,>,, , ' i;);, 
APPLICATION FOR SITEPLAN REVIEW .... ~~j~•,~~~•-:: •••••••••••• ~ .. i;:~.-,."················································ 48 
APPROVAL OF ~~;PIP~~\REVIE"'.}" ,.;E;(;) il!(2~ ~ 

AUTHORIZED .......... ~t~f:\ ......•........ ,;~-;.:;~: •• ~-: ...........• :t:.;~.~ .. ~i •••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••.••••••• 51 
ARTERIALRoADi~cESS 99JUU00R··q~RLAY •,,• 

ARTICJ$/' .: -i;:.,. ''\)i1t,;~~)::-;_!f~/,}t~<~ 
ARTICLE XXXI TABLE .... ~ .. ~~:-•............... ;·~;·.:. •..•.... ·:..: ........................................................................ 102 
ARTIFICIAL PoND·o1tLAKE>,. '••;:(f{J} 

•.; :. : : ' -·: . -~ ~ \, ':: _\;: >> 
.: .. ,: ARTIF'ICIAL ... : .... _.;h••·····--~~ •.. :\~.•······························································································ 18 

··\f ":>>>. ':, ·.:\ ·< :;;\, 
'</\,,, ·\ ... B 

t-.· --,\·:, •• \ 

r·:,~>-,,,_ . J 
BED&g:;~J~I~ :.' ) 

8 BILLBOARD SIGN~:~;~~·}~7: ............................................................................................................. . 

DEFIN'ITION ..... ~-~ ................................................................................................................... 10 
BOARD OF APPEALS .................................................................................................................... 31 
BUILDIN'G - REQUIRED SIZES 

BUILDIN'G & YARD ............................................................................................................. 17 
BUILDIN'G & LOT SIZES, YARD REQS. 

BUILDIN'G ............................................................................................................................. 20 
BUILDIN'G DEFIN'ED 

GENERALLY ........................................................................................................................... 2 

r 
\ 

C. 



CHANGE OF USE 
CHANGE ................................................................................................................................ 11 

CONDO1\1INIUM DEFINITIONS 
9 

CONDO1\1INIUM REGULATIONS 
ZONING ................................................................................................................................. 82 

CONFORMITY TO APPROVED SITE PLAN 
REQUIRED .. ;::>•. 55 CONTINUING ......................................................... :,;;~f };;;r· ................................................... . 
EXISTIN'G USES ..............................................• · .. ·:~.~:,.~~\ .......................................................... 10 

CONTINUING EXISTING USES ,Ytf;;\v·•c"1tf~L 
· .r,, ,;j)' ")-i\~.. 10 CONTINUING ............................................ ; •.................. !.iii1~ ................................................ . 

copuo - EFFECT oF APPROVAL .. t_.0 .. :/CY 'S:ttt,h.'·-.-. __ -
122 '·fY' •,:;i~ 

COPUD PROC~~URE-REVIEW -APPRdti°~\. ,,d~~ ··i~l~~. 

CORRIDOROVERLAYPUD ~"- ''-'1)',1€r ·,,~ 

111 1f:;~i:[t~f~~ '':~~ 
DAMAGED NONcd~RMINo \ 11lll~ •~ ,·· · ·':,/ ._.,::":" \rif~.:#4~~y ~-~§~b~ 

RECONS~P CTI ON ~.'!•.~~t ............... ~-~~;~~iJ:;+~i.X •••••••••••• :: .... '.~ii? ............•••••.•.................................•.. 11 
-.. _,,, . '. ·1 ~¼r1-1•··r 

DEFINITIONS ..... :~~:~:-~ ............. ~:~:-~~ ................ 111;~: .......•.....................•.........••.................................••• 165 

:;~iif i~b(~~itl~~ 
DESIGN·.,REVIEW - OVERLAYCOPUD 

:;, '{1>~~ 115 ;, <?'.\ .... ::· .) 
DUNELAND:~71 ··:;'/\ -~~ 

DUNELANDs:bEFINED '.t·) 
ZONINct'tiEG'S ....• ;t{LJ .......................................................................................................... 74 

:.: .•·::., . ·.,., ... 
DWELLING REGl.JLATlQijS 

RESIDENTIAL·,:;;;:·~·:. ................................................................................................................ 3 

E. 

EFFECTIVE DATE OF ZONING 
DEC.23, 1972 .......................................................................................................................... 34 

ENVIRONMENTALLY SENSITIVE AREAS 
REQUIREMENTS ................................................................................................................. 70 

ESSENTIALPUBLIC SERVICES 
UTILITIES .............................................................................................................................. 28 

EXISTING BUILDINGS ~ 



r \ 

SITE PLAN REQ ...................................................................................................................... 5 
EXISTING USES 

NON-CONFORMIN"G ............................................................................................................. 5 
EXTER10R LIGHTING DEFINITIONS 

DEFINITIONS ........................................................................................................................ 83 
EXTER10R LIGHTING REGULATIONS 

83 

F. .,,3':.;,;i> 
FENCING - SCREENING /· ,<, 

; / '\., 
REQUIRED ...................................................•. : . .-,: ........•. ;; •..................................................... 63 

FIRE HAZARD .................................................... ;f~;-;..·:·:~: .......... \::,:i~:~······· .......................................... 65 . . •,··· . ~, 

<l~i~;'. _/'.~~ . '-)~f )}t~ 
GENERAL OVERLAY DESIGN STANDARDS ·-.::,!\,fftlli?v •. :r>~ 

113 · ;, k ·· ,, __ . · ,:~::@t .. I 
GENERAL REQUIREMENTS ...... : .. :: ......... :;~~ ............... .':;:~;~~:~ ......................................................... 166 
GENERAL SITE PLAN REG'S ·· ..... -.·,\ .. d'r :.'·.•~, ,·. ::}.,, 

. ._. ~\ ,,,. : \":~~., ··,·L:~)~~, 

zoNING ·····,~,~~:.,~:~m?.t?~~············'};~l\:·········:·,~-\:/;l-.._,f;:······:~(;/~················································ 4s 
GREENBELT BUFFERS··.:.~·~~~-~ ............... ,;.~;-•....... .:;; ...... ~~ ... ·: .. :~ ......... .-:~ .................................................. 61 :;:::i:I;~::;:::::;: .. ·····:::x:}~J,,, .................................................... 72 

·,;:~><fOLLUTIN'G ~TERIA.r,_~ ............. ::::~':,I~ ............................................................................. 10 
HIGffiY?\¥ DEFINED. ·. ~>\\ ·---:\~t~~ 

TOWNSHIP ........... ; ................•.• · •.............................................................................................. 5 
HOl\IB OCCUPATIONS \ ·\)' 

PER.ilitrED-CONDITIONS .................................................................................................. 5 ~\_:, .. •'~~ , , ' t 
; •• ._. # I 

... _;()\.,. ,· ):j/ 
+ + •• # / 

.,.:,, ... . / 
I. 

'<\j/ 
IMPACT STATEMENT 

E'NVIRONMENTAL .............................................................................................................. 76 
INDEX i 
INDUSTRIAL USES 

INDUSTRIAL N DIST ........................................................................................................... 22 
INSTALLATION AND MAlNTENANCE 

Lan.dscaping ............................................................................................................................ 63 
INTER10R ROADS - COPUD 

119 
IN'TERPRETATION - ZONING ORD ................................................................................................. 1 



L. 

LAND CLEARING 
REQUIREMENTS & PERMIT ............................................................................................. 59 

LAND USE PERMITS ....................................................................................................................... 30 
LANDSCAPE-GENERALDEVELOPMENTSTANDARDS 

131 
LANDSCAPE ELEMENTS .................................................... ~-1::. ..................................................... 62 

•·,: / 

LANDSCAPE PLAN REQUIRED··································~~~'.~.'~·~·:: ....................................................... 60 
LANDSCAPE STANDARDS . _· .>t•?( 

118 ·. / \\, 
. '<'•·:/ '<•, 

LANDSCAPE STANDARDS FOR ZONING .Af:~ , i' : ~-:. \'3"' 
123 .i{}t;;v ·· ; '. /',, -~ 

LANDSCAPING; SCREENING; GREENB.~I~ .. ,')>-,·,,, 
LANDSCAPING ......................................• , ........................................•••.................................. 59 

··:.' ,:,;:,~. ,:}':~ ... ,:;;,"'-. 

LOADING REQUIREMENTS-.0.' ...... F .. ·-.F·. · .. ·.S .. TRE·... ET\(!}.\.. ·.· .. ·~ .... 1 .. ,,.7.~ .. !f}> <i' .. ,~ 151 /tt-,!, ·\;~,fil)j(?'( '':1
;) 

LOT - COl\,IMON DEFINTIONS\t··~>;',, ··~~ :,\(\ 

1cii;li~
11

~~~ 
.. ,,.... • .. : 

MANAGED VEGETATIVE sriuP,._ '<~:\ 
,DEFrnED .......... '~:~uf!Mf1tr[::i::1:!iJdi~1~ •........ ~i~,i\, .......................................................................... 8 = ~~~l&i···::::fL~~}¥~;;L ...................................................................... 69 

•..;.:,~:::'W~TER .......... ::;.~•;:~~:·····::::~h-~.;······························································································ 29 
MINIMU¥;§IZE AND SPA~ING RE,QJ}IREMENTS 

Landsbape trees & shruJ;>s ........ :·:~·: ........................................................................................... 61 
MIXED USE"'JO~ P~G 

144.,:-·?½,. _J ··:_\/ 

MOBILE HOMES OR·MODULARS 
DEFINED .... ::~;'~~}E~~:: ............................................................................................................... 5 

MULTIPLE RESIDENTIAL USES 
R-2 & R-3 ................................................................................................................................ 19 

N. 

NONCONFORMING STRUCTURES 
REGULATIONS ....................................................................................................................... 7 

NONCONFORMING USE 
PERMITTED CONDITIONS .................................................................................................. 7 

I~ 



i~ 

r 

OFF-STREET LOADING\PARKIND COPUD 
114 

OFF-STREET PARKING REG'S. 
147 

OFF-STREET PARKING\LOADING 

o. 

ARTICLE XXXIV ................................................................................................................ 142 
OTHERAREAS . ·:-:?~ 

. . ·'··': :/ Sens1t1ve areas ........................................................•• :f~:.~:~:: •.......•.•.•....•......•.....•............•.......••••• 73 ,,,,.,, 
OUTDOOR STORAGE . -_- : . :\ 

:. ··.:·· , ;1·:i~-..' >?.., 
REGULATIONS ........................................... .-;._-.~~~-~~' ... :.::~;;:;;:~•···················································· 30 

r,_ .. ,;y :f'.<·.:~ 

.· .· r.> . ; :itt'\ __ 

PARKING ~1: LANDSCAPING < ''-, . • c:> <i)~~ 
PARKING LOT LANDSCAPING'~~ ...................... ~·~~ .. :-.-.;;~~-;~~~:-:. ........................ :::t~i~ .......................... 61 

PARKING SPA~~ REG'S. 'if~f ~ ttj'•· \\'!:-, V:f~<,,,. , 
PHASING OF CONSTRUCTION ... :~i~i\ ....... ::;:~~'.1~~:: •• ,... ............ : .. ~·h •..•.•.•••••••••••••••••••••..•..••••••••••..•.••••• 109 
PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT ::JJ}L ....... ·::·.;\1t:t,.~·······::.; .. j~~-·········································· 15, 97 
PLOT PLAN . (?:?;' •l)\ .,\~~Atffr\{t_li?-t,,, "'?!l 

SITE PLAN .•...............•.•.•................•....••...•................•............................................................. 8 
PROCEDURE FOR REVIEW &"APPROVAE{PUD ............ ~-~~ ...................................................... 107 
PUD DEFINITIONS.; .. :~:~ ........... ~J ................... :·:j~:}~ •............................................................................ 98 

p~:'t ~1Rf ~~~q!;{S . · .. : ~'~":''7:,:::'~ 
PUQ::~ROJECT DESIGN. STANDARDS ...... :::::l ............................................................................ 101 
PUD'.REGULATIONS'~~~i)t •......... · .... -~:~-•................................................................................................ 99 

' ":{1't:;:)\, \ (>:\ R. 

RECREATIONALlINITS .=:°\; 
DEFINED \{:n~ .. ,. ,'.{>'di 7 

RECREATIONAL .usf s:'r::::.················································································································ 
RC - 1 DISTRICT ................................................................................................................... 25 

REMOVAL-ABANDONED TOWERS ......................................................................................... 177 
REPEAL OF INTERIM ZONING 

ORDIN'ANCE ......................................................................................................................... 35 
REQUEST FOR AMENDMENT 

PETITION & COSTS ................................................................................. 33 
REQUIREMENTS FOR EXTERIOR LIGHTS 

85 
RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT R-3 ......................................................................................................... 15 
RESIDENTIAL USES PERMITTED 



17 
RETAIL COMMERCIAL USES I~ 

PERMITTED .......................................................................................................................... 21 

s. 

SANITARY LANDFILLS 
REGULATIONS ..................................................................................................................... 35 

SANITATION REG'S. :/5> 
COlJNTY I-IEALTH ................................................•.. : .. .':: ....................................................... 29 

SCOPE - ZONING ORD. , : .>:( 
! ./·l,$' :::-~ 

SEC. 211 ........................................................•..... ~.:-....... ~~:~ •....................................................... 2 
SCREENINGS BETWEEN LAND USES ......... ·~:1:~ . .'.::~ .......... ::~:~·2:-:-. ................................................. 60 
SEPARABILITY OF ORDINANCE ,-r)>[;:l:?~., . ·.<''·,~ 

LEGAL ........................................... ~~1il !)if.: ................................ ·~;-•. ~;. ....................................... 34 
SETBACKS-M72 CORRIDOR ·:?/>, •: '-:~>.~ 

114 
a·,, ' "\0~ .<iliJ'> .. ?\, SHORELINE AREAS ............................................................. fp':l: ......................................................... 72 

SHORELINES76 <•,; ·.,;r:~·,, ~\;~1~1~ ,., 

SHORT TITLE 1.00 . ·i§\ ~,:.;;l})>. ''"{\it\ 
ZONING ................................ · ..• ~' ........ ~-.·.~-... ~ .................... :.-· •• ~., ....................................................... 1 

SIGN REGULATIONS.:~~~-~,, ":.i~\ ::.<;;>~. "'it~l~;f~~ 
·::_:"':,,:•::~::·:>,:,,-, \:·:\ ;:'i:i)f;:::;:•,, ''>;&;'.Jr 

SIGNS -ALL:DISTRIGTS .......... :.: .• '. ......• ,.;.:~ ... :~·.!.~~~~~~~ •••••••• ~~ •••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••• 88 
SIGNS -co~it '4:;1:t, -~{~;r Y' '··"1:2;> ,, 

SIGNS- COMMONDE'EJNITIO'NS:~.. \i~:;).\_ 

SI~tf ~i~G,:·>.,':i:G,~:~;;::''lt)1~,:~ 
SIGNSPERMITTED -·BOSINESS'{~ENTERS 

. .,._:_}:~\-. 93 , .. \\~ ;~<rt) 
Signs Permitted,- Multiple F¥rily 

. ·-.91':\ ' ,\ 
i,•. l 

Signs pennitted in Rt,_& R2 . .J 
91 . ;. <->·, z:.:··t;/ 

SIGNS PERMITTED,'A.:t;:RC-1, INSTITUTIONAL 
92 .,; 

Signs Prohibited 
95 

SITE LANDSCAPIN'G ....................................................................................................................... 61 
SITE PLAN REVIEW 

SITE REGULATIONS ........................................................................................................... 42 
WI-IERE REQUIRED ............................................................................................................. 4 7 

SITE PLANS 
REQUIRED .............................................................................................................................. 8 

SOILS SUBJECT TO LEACfIIN'G .............................................................................................. 71, 75 ,, 



r 

r 

SOUND REGULATIONS 
REQUIRED ............................................................................................................................ 67 

SPECIAL ENVIRONMENTAL REG'S. 
SENSITIVE AREAS .............................................................................................................. 74 

SPECIAL REG'S. - BOARDMAN RIVER 
18 

SPECIAL USE PERMITS 
PLANNING COMM ................................................................................................................ 8 

SPLITTING SUB. LOTS '>-, 
•:•.,:'/ 

APPROVAL ............................................................ ·.~ .. -~;~?: ..•.......•....•••.....••......••••...••.••••..•.•••.•..• 2 
-. / 

STEEP SLOPES ··························································••u••·····:~ ...................................................... 72, 75 
STRUCTURE PERMITTED :>/;/. . -\),.~t-. 

DEFINED ................................................... ~:~ .... : ............ ~-~~-.;.~:~ .................................................... 7 
:-tiL)Y , {\,,. 
/fi/T. ---·, C•. 

'·\?\, .. ._ ... ,\>, 
TABLE OF REQUIREMENTS . '/·'>, /j) ' ;>. 

BUILDING & YARDS ... ~r.: •...................... :~~:{)~~.;t~tf ........................ ~'~ .. ) .......................... 25 
TABLE ONE - SEPARATIONS ~:j;:l~b~·::~~-.................. ·~~~t11It: ................................ :. .......................... l 74 

•; .. ·,·· ·, ·, ·~:f?'.\. 
TABLE TWO - SEPARATION DISTANCES, •................ ·:i.L:~:-~ ••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••• 175 
TOWERS ·:···>\ ·•i··1·is-·3'.',~·-., '\}~~ .. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . •: ~ ~. . . ~ ~ .,,.. -,~:.:~:~ :--

TOWERS - PERMITTE'Q·USES . ·"/,~\ . ·-,,c:;/t~>.,.. ·'.:wrt~ 169 
. u_.,._-... ···········••· .. ···············•••••e:~•··········••.~•••~·-············································ 

ToWERs - sPEcIAUfusEsr11}.. ............. ~:1f:~ ....... liiL.u:~~~:::~ ....... ·~·:¥~: .............................................. 169 

~~.\iJq~~9f1:}~~;:~\;::~m~;:~, ·:,;,,J)• 

VIOITATIONS & PENALTIES'<.:·">. ···•.::/ 
",'.\~{}ZONING ....... ~:.Ilt~~ ....... ·:~:j~~:'. ................................................................................................ 34 

Violaticififand Enforcem~nt0\ ·;:;i(f~-· .. , 

Sigris~i~\-, ]_!} ,, './ 
w. 

WETLAND ·-i,.{f~:;?}\:);,v 
DEFINITION .... .'.': .................................................................................................................... 81 

Y. 

YARDS - DEFINITIONS 
ALL SIDES ............................................................................................................................... 8 

z. 



ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 
BOARD .... ..... .... ............... ....................................................... ........................................ ........ 31 

ZONING DISTRICTS 
ALLZONES ............................................................................. ... ........................................... 12 

ZONING REGULATIONS 
DEFINITIONS 



1 
 

Township of Whitewater 

County of Grand Traverse – State of Michigan 

Ordinance 26 

Adopted: May 20, 1997 

Effective: June 26, 1997 

AMENDED NOVEMBER 2008 

AMENDED FEBRUARY 2011 

 

Land Division Ordinance 
 

An Ordinance to regulate partitioning or division of parcels or tracts of land, enacted pursuant 

but not limited to Michigan Public Act 288 of 1967, as amended, and Act 246 of 1945, as 

amended, being The Township General Ordinance Statute; to provide a procedure therefore; to 

repeal any ordinance or provision thereof in conflict herewith; and to prescribe penalties and 

enforcement remedies for the violation of this Ordinance. 

 

Township of Whitewater 

Grand Traverse County, Michigan, 

Ordains: 

 

Section I 

Title 

This Ordinance shall be known and cited as the Whitewater Township Land Division Ordinance. 

 

Section II 

Purpose 

The purpose of this Ordinance is to carry out the provisions of the State Land Division Act (1967 

PA 288, as amended, formerly known as the Subdivision Control Act), to prevent the creation of 

parcels of property which do not comply with the applicable ordinances and said development of 

the Township, and otherwise provide for the health, safety and welfare of the residents and 

property owners of the Township by establishing reasonable standards for prior review and 

approval of the land divisions with the Township. 

 

Section III 

Definitions 

For purposes of this Ordinance certain terms and words used herein shall have the following 

meaning: 

A.  “Applicant” – a natural person, firm, association, partnership, corporation, or 

combination of any of them that holds an ownership interest in land, whether recorded or 

not. 

B. “Divided” or “Division” – the partitioning or splitting of a parcel or tract of land by the 

proprietor thereof or by his or her heirs, executers, administrators, legal representatives, 

successors or assigns, for the purpose of sale or lease of more than one year, or of 

building development that results in one or more parcels of less than 40 acres or the 

equivalent, and that satisfies the requirements of Sections 108 and 109of the State Land 

Division Act. 



2 
 

C. “Exempt split” or “exempt division” – the partitioning or splitting of a parcel or tract of 

land by the proprietor thereof, or by his or her heirs, executors, administrators, legal 

representatives, successors or assigns, that does not result in one or more parcels of less 

than 40 acres or the equivalent; provided all resulting parcels are accessible for vehicular 

travel and utilities from existing public roads through existing adequate roads or 

easements, or through areas owned by the owner of the parcel that can provide such 

access. 

D. “Forty acres or the equivalent” – either 40 acres, a quarter-quarter section containing not 

less than 30 acres, or a government lot containing not less than 30 acres. 

E. “Governing Body” – The Whitewater Township Board. 

 

Section IV 

Prior Approval Requirement for Land Divisions 

Land in the Township shall not be divided without the prior review and approval of the 

Township Assessor and Township Zoning Administrator, or other official(s) designated by the 

Governing Body, in accordance with this Ordinance and the State of Michigan Land Division 

Act; provided that the following shall be exempted from this requirement: 

 

A.  A parcel proposed for subdivision through a recorded plat pursuant to the Township’s 

Subdivision Control Ordinance and the State Land Division Act. 

B. A lot in a recorded plat proposed to be divided in accordance with the Township’s 

Subdivision Control Ordinance and the State Land Division Act. 

C. An exempt split as defined in this Ordinance. 

 

Section V 

Application for Land Division Approval 

An applicant shall file all of the following with the Township Clerk or other official designated 

by the Governing Body for review and approval of a proposed land division before making any 

division either by deed, land contract, lease for more than one year, or for building development: 

 

A.  A completed form on such form as may be provided by the Township. 

B. Proof of fee ownership of the land proposed to be split. 

C. A survey map of the land proposed to be divided, prepared pursuant to the survey map 

requirements of 1970 Public Act 132, as amended, (MCL 54.211) by a land surveyor 

licensed by the State of Michigan, and showing the dimensions and legal descriptions of 

the existing parcel and the parcels proposed to be created by the division(s), the location 

of all existing structures and other land improvements, and the accessibility of the parcels 

for vehicular traffic and utilities from the existing roads. 

 

In lieu of such survey map, at the applicant’s option, the applicant may waive the 45 day 

statutory requirement for a decision on the application until such survey map and legal 

description are filed with the Township and submit a tentative preliminary parcel map 

drawn to scale of not less than that provided for on the application form including an 

accurate legal description of each proposed division, and showing the boundary lines, 

dimensions, and the accessibility of each division from existing or proposed public roads 



3 
 

for automobile traffic and public utilities, for preliminary review, approval, and/or denial 

by the designated official prior to a final application under Section V. 

 

The Governing Body or its designated agent delegated such authority by the Governing 

Body, may waive the survey map requirement where the foregoing tentative parcel map 

is deemed to contain adequate information to approve a proposed land division 

considering the size, simple nature of the divisions, and the undeveloped character of the 

territory within which the proposed divisions are located.  An accurate legal description 

of all proposed divisions, however, shall at all times be required. 

D. Proof that all standards of the State Land Division Act and this Ordinance have been met. 

E. The history and specifications of any previous divisions of land of which the proposed 

division was a part sufficient to establish the parcel to be divided was lawfully in 

existence as of March 31, 1997, the effective date of the State Land Division Act. 

F. Proof that all due and payable taxes or installments of special assessments pertaining to 

the land proposed to be divided are paid in full. 

G. If a transfer of division rights is proposed in the land transfer, detailed information about 

the terms and availability of the proposed division rights transfer. 

H. Unless a division creates a parcel which is acknowledged and declared to be “not 

buildable” under Section VIII of the Ordinance, all divisions shall result in “buildable” 

parcels containing sufficient “buildable” area outside of unbuildable wetlands, flood 

plains, and other areas where buildings are prohibited there from, and with sufficient area 

to comply with all required setback provisions, minimum floor areas, off-street parking 

spaces, on-site sewage disposal and water well locations (where public water and sewer 

service is not available), and maximum allowed area coverage of buildings and structures 

on the site. 

I. The fee as may from time to time be established by resolution of the Governing Body for 

land division reviews pursuant to this Ordinance to cover the costs of review of the 

application and administration of this Ordinance and the State Land Division Act. 

 

Section VI 

Procedure for Review of Applications 

For Land Division Approval 

A.  Upon receipt of a land division application package, the Township Clerk or other official 

designated by the governing body shall forthwith submit the same to the Township 

Assessor and Township Zoning Administrator or other designated official(s) for decision.  

The Township Assessor and Township Zoning Administrator or other designee(s) shall 

approve, approve with reasonable conditions to assure compliance with applicable 

ordinances and the protection of public health, safety and general welfare, or disapprove 

the land division applied for within 45 days after receipt of the application package 

conforming to this Ordinance’s decisions and the reasons for any denial.  If the 

application package does not conform to this Ordinance’s requirements, the Assessor and 

Zoning Administrator or other designee(s) shall return the same to the applicant for 

completion and refilling in accordance with this Ordinance and the State Land Division 

Act.  

B. Any person or entity aggrieved by the decision of the Assessor and Zoning Administrator 

or designee(s) may with 30 days of said decision appeal the decision to the Governing 



4 
 

Body or such other board or person designated by the Governing Body which shall 

consider and resolve such appeal by a majority vote of said board or by the designee at its 

next regular meeting or session affording sufficient time for a 20 day written notice to the 

applicant (and appellant where other than the applicant) of the time and date of said 

meeting and appellate hearing. 

C. A decision approving a land division is effective for 90 days, after which it shall be 

considered revoked unless within such period a document is recorded with the County 

Register of Deeds office and filed with the Clerk or other designated official 

accomplishing the approved land division or transfer. 

D. The Township Assessor and the Township Zoning Administrator or designee(s) shall 

maintain an official record of all approved and accomplished land divisions or transfers. 

 

Section VII 

Standards for Approval of Land Divisions 

A proposed land division shall be approved if the following criteria are met: 

A. All the parcels to be created by the proposed land division(s) fully comply with the 

applicable lot (parcel), yard and area requirements of the applicable Zoning Ordinance, 

including, but not limited to, minimum lot (parcel) frontage/width, minimum road 

frontage, minimum lot (parcel) area, minimum lot width to depth ration, and maximum 

lot (parcel) coverage and minimum setbacks for existing buildings/structures. 

B. The proposed land division(s) complies with all requirements of the State Land Division 

Act and this Ordinance. 

C. All parcels created and remaining have existed adequate accessibility or an area available 

therefore, to a public road for public utilities and emergency and other vehicles not less 

than the requirements of the applicable zoning ordinance, major thoroughfare plan, road 

ordinance or this Ordinance.  In determining adequacy of accessibility, any ordinance 

standards applicable to plats shall also apply as a minimum standard whenever a parcel or 

tract is proposed to be divided to create 4 or more parcels. 

D. The ratio of depth to width of any parcel created by the division does not exceed a four to 

one ratio exclusive of access roads, easements, or non-buildable parcels created under 

Section VIII IX of this Ordinance and parcels added to contiguous parcels that result in 

all involved parcels complying with said ratio. 

 

The Governing Body or other board or person designated by the Governing Body may 

approve a land division that creates a resulting parcel with a depth to width ratio greater 

than four to one if the applicant demonstrates that there are exceptional topographic or 

physical conditions with respect to the parcel and that the greater ratio would be 

reasonably compatible with the surrounding lands. 

 

The permissible depth of a parcel created by a land division shall be measured within the 

boundaries of each parcel from the abutting road right of way to the most remote 

boundary line point of the parcel from the point of commencement of the measurement. 

 

The permissible minimum lot (parcel) width shall be defined in the Whitewater Township 

Zoning Ordinance. 

 



5 
 

Section VIII 

Variances 

Where there are practical difficulties in the way of carrying out the strict letter of this Ordinance 

the Township Board, or its designee, shall have the power to vary or modify the application of 

the provisions of this Ordinance so that the intent and purpose of the Ordinance is observed, 

public safety secured and substantial justice done.  The Township Board, or its designee, may 

attach reasonable conditions in approving any variance from any provision.  The breach of any 

condition or the failure of any applicant to comply with conditions shall void the variance. 

 

• In order for a variance to be granted, evidence must be presented at a public hearing that 

all of the following conditions exist: 

 

• Exceptional or extraordinary circumstances exist such as exceptional topographical or 

physical conditions; or that the greater ratio would be reasonably compatible with the 

surrounding lands. 

 

• Strict compliance with the regulations of this Ordinance will unreasonably prevent the 

applicant from developing the property or will render conformity with the regulations of 

this Ordinance unreasonably burdensome. 

 

• The requested variance will not cause an adverse impact on the development of 

surrounding property, property values or the use and enjoyment of property in the 

immediate area. 

 

• Health, safety and welfare will not be compromised. 

 

• The requested variance is the minimum variance necessary to permit reasonable use of 

the land. 

 

Further, in the event that a variance is granted under this Section, said variance and any 

conditions, if applicable, shall be recorded with the Grand Traverse County Register of Deeds by 

the seller and/or proprietor.   

 

Section IX 

Allowance for Approval of Other Land Divisions 

Notwithstanding disqualification from approval pursuant to this Ordinance, a proposed land 

division which does not fully comply with the applicable lot, yard, accessibility and area 

requirements of the applicable Zoning Ordinance or this Ordinance may be approved in any of 

the following circumstances: 

A. Where the applicant executes and records an affidavit or deed restriction with the County 

Register of Deeds, in a form acceptable to the municipality, designating that the parcel as 

“not buildable.”  Any such parcel shall also be designated as “not buildable” in the 

Township records, and shall not thereafter be the subject of a request to the Zoning Board 

of Appeals for variance relief from the applicable lot and/or area requirements, and shall 

not be developed with any building or above ground structure exceed four feet in height. 



6 
 

B. Where, in circumstances not covered by paragraph A above, the Zoning Board of 

Appeals has granted a variance from the lot, yard, ratio, frontage and/or area 

requirements with which the parcel failed to comply.   

C. Where the proposed land division involves only the minor adjustment of a common 

boundary line or involves a conveyance between adjoining properties which does not 

result in either parcel violating this Ordinance, and applicable Zoning Ordinance, or the 

State Land Division Act. 

 

Section X 

Consequences of Noncompliance with  

Land Division Approval Requirements 

Any parcel created in noncompliance with this Ordinance shall not be eligible for any building 

permits, or zoning approvals, such as special land use approval or site plan approval, and shall 

not be recognized as a separate parcel on the assessment roll.  In addition, violation of this 

Ordinance shall subject the violator to the penalties and enforcement actions set forth in Section 

X XI of this Ordinance, and may otherwise be provided by law. 

 

Section XI 

Penalties and Enforcement 

Any person who violates any of the provisions of this Ordinance shall be deemed guilty of a 

misdemeanor and shall be punished by a fine of not more than $500.00 or by imprisonment in 

the County Jail not to exceed 90 days or by both such fine and imprisonment. 

 

Section XII 

Severability 

The provisions of this Ordinance are hereby declared to be severable and if any clause, sentence, 

word, section or provision is declared void or unenforceable for any reason by any court of 

competent jurisdiction, it shall not affect any portion of this Ordinance other than said part of 

portion thereof. 

 

Section XIII 

Repeal 

All ordinances or parts of ordinance in conflict with this Ordinance are hereby repealed, except 

that this Ordinance shall not be construed to repeal any provision in the Township Zoning 

Ordinance, the Township Subdivision Control Ordinance, or the Grand Traverse County 

Building Code. 

 

Section XIV 

Effective Date 

This Ordinance shall take effect 30 days following its publication after adoption. 

 

 

 

 

 



Ron Popp <supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com>

Packet item 5
1 message

Heidi Vollmuth <heidivyourtrustee@gmail.com> Thu, Sep 14, 2023 at 5:51 PM
To: supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com

This document shows a flow chart of the process.

IMG-0869.jpg
2153K

https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?ui=2&ik=d5568a8cbf&view=att&th=18a95ad62424137a&attid=0.1&disp=inline&realattid=d07c6d5afafa8c12_0.1&safe=1&zw




Ron Popp <supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com>

Packet info 6
1 message

Heidi Vollmuth <heidivyourtrustee@gmail.com> Thu, Sep 14, 2023 at 5:36 PM
To: supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com

Please refer to pages 4 thru 9

https://www.whitewatertownship.org/uploads/2/1/9/6/21966412/whitewater_master_plan_draft__high_quality_posted_to_
website_05152015.pdf

whitewater-master-plan-draft--high-quality-posted-to-website-05152015.pdf
18202K

https://www.whitewatertownship.org/uploads/2/1/9/6/21966412/whitewater_master_plan_draft__high_quality_posted_to_website_05152015.pdf
https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?ui=2&ik=d5568a8cbf&view=att&th=18a959ff08b76a7a&attid=0.1&disp=attd&realattid=673f67827ee388c5_0.1&safe=1&zw


W H I T E W A T E R  T O W N S H I P

5777 Vinton Road
PO Box 159

Williamsburg, Michigan 49690
Telephone 231-267-5141

Fax 231-267-9020
www.whitewatertownship.org

M
as

te
r 

Pl
an

 2
01

5



Acknowledgements

Planning Commission

Mickey Dean, Chair
Kim Mangus, Vice-Chair

Matt Lyons, Secretary
Patrick Miller

Brad Link
Doug Bowerman

Lloyd Lawson, Township Trustee,
Township Board Representative

Township Board

Ron Popp, Supervisor
Cheryl Goss, Clerk

Ardella Benak, Treasurer
Paul Hubbell, Trustee
Lloyd Lawson, Trustee

Contributors

Leslie Meyers
Planning/Zoning Administrator

2008 – 2012

Dylan Sullivan
Planning Intern 

2011 – 2012

Lois MacLean
Deputy Treasurer and Recording Secretary

Julie Courtade, PC
2007 – 2011

Glenn Savage, PC
2007 – 2010

Steve Zakrajsek, PC
2007 – 2012

Arnell Boyd 
Township Trustee, Township Board Rep

2007 – 2012

Ron Akers
Planning Intern                                     

2009 – 2011

 Dennis Habedank
Zoning Administrator

2013 – 2015

 Ron Popp
Interim Zoning Administrator

2012 – 2013

Luann Snider
Chairwoman, WWT Historical Society



Whitewater Township Master Plan 

Contents
Introduction................................................................................................................................................................................... 1

What is the Master Plan?.................................................................................................................................................... 1
How does the Township derive its authority?................................................................................................................ 1
How will Whitewater Township use this plan?.......................................................................................................................... 2

Part 2
Goals and Policies . ...................................................................................................................................................................... 3

Master Plan Goals................................................................................................................................................................................ 3

Part 3
Information and Background Studies Summary................................................................................................................ 5

Boards, Commissions, and Administration..................................................................................................................... 5
Location ................................................................................................................................................................................ 6
History.................................................................................................................................................................................... 6
Demographics ..................................................................................................................................................................... 8
Economic Base................................................................................................................................................................... 10
Community Facilities and Services................................................................................................................................. 11
Natural Features................................................................................................................................................................. 14

Part 4
Public Participation in the Development of the Master Plan.......................................................................................19

Part 5
Future Land Use Plan................................................................................................................................................................ 21

Part 6
Transportation Plan................................................................................................................................................................... 25

Transportation Plan Designations.................................................................................................................................. 25
Natural Areas Plan..................................................................................................................................................................... 28

Appendix



Whitewater Township Master Plan

Antrim County

Kalkaska CountyGrand Traverse
County

² 0 5 102.5
Miles

Source: Grand Traverse County
Equalization Department &

Michigan Center
for Geographic Information
Map Created: June 2010

State of Michigan

Location of Whitewater Township
in Relation to Surrounding Areas

Whitewater Township
5777 Vinton Road - PO Box 159 - Williamsburg, MI 49690

(231) 267 5141 - FAX (231) 267 9020

Whitewater Township

Figure 1.  Location of Whitewater Township



Whitewater Township Master Plan	 1

Part 1
Introduction

Whitewater Township is located in the northeast 
corner of Grand Traverse County, Michigan. Since 
the adoption of the previous Master Plan in 1999, 
a number of changes have occurred within the 
Township, the surrounding area and in State Law. 
The Planning Commission determined that it was 
essential to Whitewater Township for the Master 
Plan to be rewritten in order to address these chang-
es.

What is the Master Plan?
The Master Plan is a comprehensive long-range 
plan intended to guide growth and development of 
Whitewater Township. It is based on public input, 
the Whitewater Township Community Input Survey 
2009, existing development, physical characteristics, 
and social and economic conditions. This plan pro-

vides an outline for: Township Officials, residents, 
developers, and business people interested in living, 
locating and/or working in the community.

The Whitewater Township Master Plan is not a 
zoning document; therefore the recommendations 
of the plan are only for guidance, not to regulate 
property. Whitewater Township Zoning Ordinance 
remains the authority in all Township zoning mat-
ters.

How does the Township derive its authority?
The Township derives its authority for the prepara-
tion of a Master Plan from the Michigan Planning 
Enabling Act, Public Act 33 of 2008, as amended. 
Section 33 of the Act requires: 

Michigan Planning Enabling Act of 2008, Public Act 33
“(1) A master plan shall address 

land use and infrastructure issues 
and may project 20 years or more 
into the future. A master plan 
shall include maps, plats, charts, 
and descriptive, explanatory, and 
other related matter and shall 
show the planning commission’s 
recommendations for the physical 
development of the planning juris-
diction. 

(2) A master plan shall also 
include those of the following 
subjects that reasonably can be 
considered as pertinent to the fu-
ture development of the planning 
jurisdiction: 

 a) A land use plan that consists 
in part of a classification and al-
location of land for agriculture, 

residences, commerce, industry, 
recreation, ways and grounds, 
public buildings, schools, soil con-
servation, forests, woodlots, open 
space, wildlife refuges, and other 
uses and purposes.

 b) The general location, charac-
ter, and extent of streets, railroads, 
airports, bicycle paths, pedestrian 
ways, bridges, waterways, and 
waterfront developments, sanitary 
sewers and water supply systems, 
facilities for flood prevention, 
drainage, pollution prevention, 
and maintenance of water levels, 
and public utilities and structures. 

c) Recommendations as to the 
general character, extent, and 
layout of redevelopment or reha-
bilitation of blighted areas; and 

the removal, relocation, widening, 
narrowing, vacating, abandon-
ment, change of use, or extension 
of streets, grounds, open spaces, 
buildings, utilities, or other facili-
ties.

d) A zoning plan for various 
zoning districts controlling the 
height, area, bulk, location, and 
use of buildings and premises. 
The zoning plan shall include an 
explanation of how the land use 
categories on the future land use 
map relate to the districts on the 
zoning map. 

e) Recommendations for imple-
menting any of the master plan’s 
proposals.” 



2	 Whitewater Township Master Plan 

How will Whitewater Township use this plan?

The Plan serves many functions and is to be used in 
a variety of ways:

1.	 The Plan is a general statement of the Town-
ship’s goals and policies and provides a compre-
hensive view of Whitewater Township’s desires 
for the future.

2.	 The Plan serves as an aid in decision-making. 
Goals and policies outlined in the Plan guide 
the Planning Commission and Township Board 
in their deliberations on zoning, subdivisions, 
capital improvements, and other matters relat-
ing to land use and development. 

3.	 The Plan provides the basis upon which the zon-
ing ordinance is written. The Michigan Zoning 
Enabling Act of 2006, Public Act 110 as amend-
ed, requires that the Zoning Ordinance be based 
upon a plan designed to promote the public 

health, safety, and general welfare. 

4.	 The Plan attempts to coordinate public improve-
ments and private developments. An outcome 
of the Plan should be that public investments 
such as infrastructure improvements will be lo-
cated in areas identified in the Plan as having 
the greatest benefit to the Township and its res-
idents. 

5.	 The Plan is an educational tool and gives citi-
zens, property owners, developers and adjacent 
communities a clear indication of the Town-
ship’s direction for the future.

In summation, the Whitewater Township Master 
Plan is a document which sets forth a long-range 
statement of general goals and policies aimed at 
the unified and coordinated development of the 
Township. 

Figure 2.  “The Corners” in Old Williamsburg at the corner of Church Street and Vinton Road. F.E. White’s store 
(left) housed the Post Office. Circa 1910



Whitewater Township Master Plan	 3

Part 2
Goals and Policies 

Master Plan Goals

1.	 Respect the Rights of the Township Residents 
and Property Owners 

•	 Respect private property rights as guaran-
teed by the State of Michigan and United 
States Constitutions.

•	 Encourage new development in areas with 
infrastructure that is available or attainable.

•	 Encourage land uses that are compatible 
with adjacent land uses.

•	 Encourage the clean-up or containment of 
blighted and/or contaminated sites.

•	 Increase awareness of land use issues and 
the techniques available to address land use 
issues.

2.	 Preserve Whitewater Township’s Rural Charac-
ter

•	 Encourage development that retains or 
mimics natural features.

•	 Encourage guidelines that preserve the 
environmental integrity of the Township 
floodplains, wetlands, watersheds and water 
bodies.

•	 Encourage community sewer and water sys-
tems in areas of the greatest environmental 
need.

•	 Encourage the continuation of hunting, 
fishing, trapping, and other outdoor recre-
ational opportunities.

3.	 Build a Sense of Community 

•	 Encourage social and cultural activities for 
year-round and seasonal residents.

•	 Recognize and preserve the scale and com-
pact nature of the commercial district.

Figure 3.  Birdseye of Williamsburg



4	 Whitewater Township Master Plan 

•	 Support and encourage the development 
and implementation of a recreation plan. 

•	 Encourage preservation of historically sig-
nificant features within the Township.

4.	 Encourage Economic Opportunities

•	 Support property owners who engage in 
home occupation activities which are in 
character with the area/neighborhood.

•	 Support business, agricultural production 
and agri-tourism.

•	 Streamline the application process for devel-
opment. 

•	 Encourage municipal infrastructure for the 
benefit of the Township and areas of the 
greatest need.

Figure 4.  Williamsburg Depot with Western Union 
Telegraph and American Express Agency. Beehive Hotel 
is on the extreme left. Circa 1895

Figure 5.  Rob Clow’s store in Williamsburg.

Figure 6.  Power, Whitmore and Power Bank, Hobb’s 
Store and White’s Store in Upper Williamsburg. Water 
tower on Gardner-Wilkinson house (far right) supplied 
water to four daily trains. Circa 1923



Whitewater Township Master Plan	 5

Part 3
Information and Background Studies Summary

This portion of the Master Plan inventories 
Whitewater Township’s geography, history, past 
trends, current conditions and future projections, 
thereby illustrating the point from which plan-
ning begins. The following summarizes significant 
findings. A bibliography of Background Studies is 
included in the Appendix.

Boards, Commissions, and Administration
The Township has a number of official bodies as-
sociated with the planning and development of the 
Township. A description of each body and its func-
tion in relation to planning follows:

Township Board

The Township Board is the chief governing body of 
the Township and consists of the Supervisor, Clerk, 
Treasurer, and two Trustees. All Board members are 
elected for concurrent four year terms.

State statute, Public Act 33 of 2008, as amended, 
requires that the Board hears and decides rezoning 

requests, zoning maps, text amendments, and sub-
division plats. 

Planning Commission

In accordance with planning and zoning enabling 
statutes, the Township has established a seven 
member Planning Commission. The Planning 
Commission’s main responsibility is to develop 
the Master Plan and to draft zoning ordinance for 
adoption by the Township Board. The Township 
Board grants additional authority to the Planning 
Commission to approve special land uses, most site 
plans and general development based on the current 
Zoning Ordinance while protecting public health, 
safety, and welfare. The Master Plan may be consid-
ered when making such decisions.

Zoning Board of Appeals 

The Zoning Board of Appeals (ZBA) is the quasi-ju-
dicial branch of zoning administration. The ZBA 
hears and decides on appeals involving zoning vari-
ances or conditional uses. 

Figure 7.  Williamsburg United Methodist Church 1881, Corner of Church Street and Williamsburg Road



6	 Whitewater Township Master Plan 

The ZBA consists of five members 
appointed to three year staggered 
terms.

Zoning Administrator

The Zoning Administrator pro-
cesses and reviews site plans, re-
zoning requests and special land 
uses, performs zoning inspec-
tions, issues land use permits, 
addresses code enforcement; and 
provides support to the Planning 
Commission and Zoning Board 
of Appeals as requested by the 
Township Board. 

Location 
Whitewater Township is located 
in Northwest Michigan in Grand 
Traverse County. The unincorpo-
rated village of Williamsburg is 
considered the Township’s center 
and is bisected by M-72. The 

Township Hall is located within 
this area, as are the commercial 
and industrial districts. The cen-
tral area is situated 12 miles east 
of Traverse City, 13 miles west of 
the Village of Kalkaska and 10 
miles south of the Village of Elk 
Rapids. 

History
Archaeologists theorize that 
five or six different cultures 
of people have occupied the 
area of the Township around 
Skegemog Point beginning ap-
proximately 10,500 BC. Prior 
to the white settlers of the area, 
the Mascoutin (or “People of 
the Open Prairie”), a branch of 
the Algonquin Tribe, lived in the 
area until the 1630s, followed by 
the Chippewa and Ottawa Indian 
Tribes. The majority of Native 

Figure 8.  Entering Torch River

Figure 9.  Samels Farm. The site is 
listed in the National Register of 
Historic Places.



Whitewater Township Master Plan	 7

Figure 11.  Whitewater Township Hall, by Jennifer 
Oakley

Americans were moved north to a reservation after 
1857.

Following Father Baraga’s mapping of the area be-
tween 1830 - 1840, the Government Survey of 1850 
was completed and the area received its first per-
manent white settlers. Amon Langworthy, George 
Brown and William H. Fife (who later became the 
Township’s first supervisor) came in 1854, Joseph 
Sours in 1855, H. S. Beach in 1856, and J. M. Merrill 
in 1858. At “Hi” Pray Park, a stone memorializes the 
Williamsburg pioneers of 1856. 

Prior to the construction of roads and railroads in 
the area, supplies came by boat from Elk Rapids on 
Elk and Round (today known as Skegemog Lake) 
Lakes and were transported cross-country to the 
Williamsburg area. Construction of the Grand 
Rapids and Indiana Railroad began in the area in 
1867 and reached Lake Michigan in 1872.

The area of Williamsburg was originally part of a 
large county called Michilimackinac and was the 
largest settlement in the area. In 1859, Whitewater 
Township became the third township in the county, 
after Peninsula and Traverse. It covered the area 
from Elk Lake to Grand Traverse Bay. The current 
Township Hall was built in 1889 on land donated by 
David Vinton, Jr. and is still in use today.

In 1903, the population of Williamsburg was about 
150. With agriculture on the rise, the town contained 

a store, hotel, blacksmith shop, sawmills, gristmill, 
grange hall, Township Hall, a Methodist-Episcopal 
Church, and was home to seven schools.

By the 1930s the population was 460. Charles 
M. Greenway’s estate “Weesh-Ko-Wong”, now 
“Millbrook” was a notable fish hatchery. Famous 
for his brook and rainbow trout fingerlings, he 
also tried to repopulate the grayling, a native fish 
decimated by logging and non-native trout species. 
Williamsburg was expanding northward; growth 
included a bank, potato warehouse, barber shop, a 
new post office, and a new high school, complete 
with a gymnasium.

Like everywhere in America, the 1960s brought 
change to Williamsburg and her 630 residents. The 
State of Michigan relocated M-72, bisecting the 
town, and the last railroad steam engine had traveled 
the tracks. The Williamsburg Consolidated School 
became a part of the Elk Rapids School District. The 
gymnasium remained, hosting community events 
and well known dances attended by people from 
miles around well into the decade.

The new millennium brought new interests into 
Williamsburg. The Grand Traverse Band of Ottawa 
and Chippewa Indians constructed Turtle Creek 
Casino. Elk Rapids School District built Mill Creek 

Figure 10.  Evening on the Torch River



8	 Whitewater Township Master Plan 

Elementary School. Grand Traverse Plastics, Inc. anchors the industrial section of town, shipping prod-
ucts worldwide, and small businesses populate the M-72 corridor. With more than 2,500 people calling 
Whitewater Township home in 2010, balancing growth with the desire to maintain a rural character is the 
community’s main focus.

Demographics 

Population

Master plans attempt to accommodate population growth, the need for future land uses, and community 
services. Economic fluctuations influence regional growth as illustrated in the chart below. Chart 1 sum-
marizes past population projections compared to actual population per the US Census as compiled by The 
Northwest Michigan Council of Governments (NWMCOG), now known as Networks Northwest.

0

1000

2000

3000

4000

5000
Actual

Projections - NWMCOG

2030202020102000199019801970

To
w

ns
hi

p 
P

op
ul

at
io

n

Census Year

Chart 1.	 NWMCOG Population Projections and US Census Population Record

According to the 2010 Census the median age of a Whitewater Township resident was 46.1 years. The 
median age in 2000 was 39.5. years. Chart 2 shows the change in age distribution over the past 20 years. 

0

100

200

300

400

500

600
2010

2000

1990

85+ 75-84 65-74 60-64 55-59 45-54 35-44 25-34 20-24 15-19 0-14 

Age (Years)

R
es

id
en

ts

Chart 2.	 Age Distribution based on Data Driven Detroit report 8-11-2011



Whitewater Township Master Plan	 9

M 72

E
lk

La
ke

Sand Lakes

B
ro

om
he

ad

Supply

W
ill

ia
m

sb
ur

g

C
oo

k

Angell

C
ra

m

Lossie

Deal

M
oo

re V
in

to
n

M
un

ro

Park

Crisp

Gay

Diagonal

Watson

S
ke

ge
m

og
P

oi
nt

Lackey

Bunker Hill

Hursh

North Branch

Hawley

Palaestrum

Carns

Whitney

Roots Lake

M
ab

el

Townline

Fa
rr

el
l

Miami Beach

Old M-72

E
l

k

L
a

k
e

Lake
Skegem

og

Whitewater Township
5777 Vinton Road - PO Box 159 - Williamsburg, MI 49690

(231) 267 5141 - FAX (231) 267 9020

Source: Grand Traverse County
Equalization Department & Michigan Center

for Geographic Information
Map Created: May 2010

0 1 20.5
Miles

Property Ownership

Grand Traverse Band of Ottawa and Chipewa Indians

Publicly Owned Land

Privately Owned Land

Grand Traverse County

Figure 12.  Whitewater Township Property Ownership



10	 Whitewater Township Master Plan 

Housing and Households

According to the 2010 Census, permanent households total 1,012. Approximately 93% are single family 
homes, 278 of these are seasonal. Table 1 provides data on household trends.

1990 2000 2010

Permanent Households 634 896 1012
Seasonal Housing Units 243 240 278
Households w/individuals 65 years or over 132 196 264
Households w/children under 18 years 270 362 306
Average Household Size 2.88 2.72 2.57

Table 1.  Household Trends

Economic Base
Major employment industries in the area include tourism, agriculture, healthcare, and manufacturing.  
Most of our residents are employed outside the Township. 

Figure 13.  Williamsburg High School, Mid 1920s to mid 1960s, Elk Lake Road



Whitewater Township Master Plan	 11

The state equalized value (SEV) 
for real property by percentage in 
Whitewater Township is presented 
in Chart 3.

Existing Land Use

Existing land use patterns are il-
lustrated in Chart 4. Whitewater  
Township remains a relatively low 
density residential community. 

Township expenditures, by percent-
age, are categorized by Chart 5. 

Community Facilities and Services
The Township Hall has been located 
at 5777 Vinton Road since 1889. 
The building was enlarged in the 
late 1960s with a major renovation 
taking place in 1999. The hall serves 
as offices for the Supervisor, Clerk, 
Treasurer, Zoning Administrator, 
Assessor, Historical Society, and 
neighborhood association meetings.

Emergency Services

Whitewater Township is a member 
of the Grand Traverse Rural Fire 
Department. 

Emergency Medical Services (EMS) 
are provided by township staff, 
many of whom are cross-trained in 
fire and rescue.

Police protection is provided via 
the Michigan State Police and the 
Grand Traverse County Sheriff ’s 
Department. 

Fire SA - 3%

Seniors, BATA, Misc. - 4%

Whitewater Township - 2%

MCF - 2%

Library (TADL) - 4%

NMC College - 10%

School Operating - 38%

GTC Allocated - 17%

State Equalized Tax (SET) - 20%

2

20

17

2

38

10

4
4

3

Residential - 84%

Agricultural - 8%

Utilities - 4%

Commercial - 2%

Industrial - 1%

Other - 1%

2

84

8

4
1 1

Recreational Use - 49%

Agricultural Use - 33%

Residential Use - 15%

Commercial Use - 2%

Industrial Use - 1%

2

33

15

1

49

Chart 3.	 State Equalized Value for real property by percentage

Chart 4.	 Existing land use

Chart 5.	 Categorization of Whitewater Township tax revenue



12	 Whitewater Township Master Plan 

Existing Land Use

Grand Traverse County

Source: Grand Traverse County
Equalization Department & Michigan Center

for Geographic Information
Map Created: May 2010

Whitewater Township
5777 Vinton Road - PO Box 159 - Williamsburg, MI 49690

(231) 267 5141 - FAX (231) 267 9020

M 72

E
lk

La
ke

Sand Lakes

B
ro

om
he

ad

Supply

W
ill

ia
m

sb
ur

g

C
oo

k

Angell

C
ra

m
Lossie

Deal

M
oo

re

V
in

to
n

M
un

ro

Park

Crisp

Gay

Diagonal

Watson

S
ke

ge
m

og
P

oi
nt

Lackey

Bunker Hill

Dead Horse

Strom
bolis

Hursh

North Branch

Guernsey Lake

Hawley

O Dell

Palaestrum

Carns

Whitney

Roots Lake

M
ab

el

Townline

Fa
rr

el
l

Ayers Miami Beach

Wheeler Oaks

Bluff

Old M-72

Lake Skegemog

E
l k

L
a

k
e

0 1 20.5
Miles

Publicly Owned Land
Grand Traverse Regional Land Conservancy

State of Michigan

Whitewater Township

Grand Traverse County

Crisp

Old M-72

W
ill

ia
m

sb
ur

g
E

lk
La

ke

M 72

C
oo

k

V
in

to
nCrisp

O Dell

Whitney

Church

D
ur

ga

M
oo

re

Watson

B
ro

om
he

ad

Land Uses
Agriculture

Government

Gaming

Commercial

Institutional

Parks

Industrial

Utilities

Residential

Under Development

Woodland/Undeveloped Land

Cultural Agriculture

Downtown WilliamsburgUnincorporated Williamsburg

Figure 14.  Existing Land Use in Whitewater Township



Whitewater Township Master Plan	 13

Water

The Grand Traverse Band of Ottawa and Chippewa 
Indians provide municipal water along the west end 
of Old M-72, through the village, out to Mill Creek 
School. 

Sewer

There are currently no public 
wastewater treatment facilities  
serving Whitewater Township.  
In the event municipal sewer can 
be made available to Township 
Residents, the Village District 
Area is our highest priority.

Utilities

Electricity, traditional and cellu-
lar telephone, internet services 
are available within the township.

Community growth, changes in 
technology, and obsolescence af-
fect all utilities. Great care should 
be exercised to protect the township’s rural character 
when designing and implementing these changes.

Education

Two school districts serve the residents of 
Whitewater Township: Elk Rapids (which serves the 

majority of residents) and Traverse City Area Public 
Schools. Elk Rapids Schools’ Mill Creek Elementary 
is centrally located within the Township. The south-
west corner of the Township contains a Charter 
School, the Woodland School.

Parks and Recreation

The Township enjoys two public park systems offer-
ing recreational facilities. The Whitewater Township 
park system includes Petobego Natural Area, Battle 
Creek Natural Area, Hi Pray Park, Lossie Road 
Nature Trail and Whitewater Township Park. The 
State of Michigan maintains the Sand Lakes Quiet 
Area and public access to numerous lakes and forest 
trails including the VASA trail system. 

Cemeteries

Whitewater Township owns and maintains Circle 
Hill Cemetery and Williamsburg Cedar Rapids 
Cemetery. 

Transportation/Traffic

Both private and public roads exist within the 
Township. Private landowners are responsible for 
maintenance of over 25 miles of private roads in the 
community.

Figure 15.  Main Street in Old Williamsburg, a view to 
the east down Church Street. Circa 1912

Figure 16.  The Fish Pond, Williamsburg, Michigan



14	 Whitewater Township Master Plan 

The Michigan Department of Transportation and 
the Grand Traverse County Road Commission 
share the responsibility for operating and maintain-
ing all public roads in Whitewater Township. The 
Township may request additional road maintenance 
at Township expense.

Natural Features

Geology

The surface geology, like much of Northern 
Michigan, is characterized by upland areas, mo-
raines, coastal areas, lake beds, outwash and glacial 
channels.

Topography

The surface topography in Whitewater Township 
ranges from flat marshy areas to very steep and 
rolling hills. The highest point in the Township is 
approximately 1,007 feet above sea level, which is 
located near Broomhead and Roots Lake Roads. 
The lowest surface elevation is the surface of Elk 
and Skegemog (Round) Lakes averaging 590 feet 
above sea level.

Soils

Soils in the south portion of the Township are 
characterized as Kalkaska-Montcalm soils, which 
are well-drained. The northern areas are a mixture 

of well-drained soils that provide for prime 
fruit farming (Emmet-Leelanau) and very 
poorly drained soils along streams and lakes 
(Lupton-Roscommon).

Wetlands, Lakes and Streams

Whitewater has more than 3700 acres of 
inland water area (lakes and streams) and 
more than 1200 acres of wetlands. It is esti-
mated that lakes and wetlands make up 15% 
of the Township.

n

²³

#

#

I*

Park Rd

Whitewater Township Park Trail Map

Trails

Roads

I* Bathrooms

# Benches

²³ Park Office

n Observation Deck

Park Boundaries

±

0 160 32080 Feet

Figure 17.  Trail map 
overlayed on satellite image 
of Whitewater Township 
Park. 

Figure 18.  Boat launch at Whitewater Township Park.



Whitewater Township Master Plan	 15

Old M 72

E
l

k
L

a
k

e

Lake
Skegem

og

M 72

E
lk

La
ke

Sand Lakes

B
ro

om
he

ad

Supply

W
ill

ia
m

sb
ur

g

C
oo

k

Angell

C
ra

m

Lossie

Deal

M
oo

re

Vi
nt

on

M
un

ro

Park

Crisp

Gay

Diago
na

l

Watson

S
ke

ge
m

og
P

oi
nt

Lackey

Bunker Hill

Dead Horse

North Branch

Hawley

Palaestrum

Whitney M
ab

el

Townline

Ayers
Miami Beach

Grand Traverse County
Whitewater Township

5777 Vinton Road - PO Box 159 - Williamsburg, MI 49690
(231) 267 5141 - FAX (231) 267 9020

Source: Grand Traverse County
Equalization Department & Michigan Center

for Geographic Information
Map Created: June 2010

0 1 20.5
Miles

Wetlands

Wetlands

Streams

Lakes

Figure 19.  Whitewater Township Wetlands Map



16	 Whitewater Township Master Plan 

Wetlands are a part of floodwater control, ground-
water recharge and discharge, water quality, sedi-
ment entrapment, shoreline stabilization, fish and 
wildlife habitat, and recreation. These environments 
can be impacted by draining and filling practices. 
Since wetlands are often associated with lake and 
stream shorelines, they receive considerable atten-
tion due to the pressure to develop these highly 
desirable areas.

Flood Plains

The Township joined the National Flood Insurance 
Program (NFIP) in 1988. The program is under-
written by the Federal Government. 

Watersheds

Whitewater Township contains five different wa-
tersheds. The majority of Whitewater is within the 
lowest part of the Elk River, Chain of Lakes, followed 
by the Boardman River, Petobego, Acme Creek and 
Yuba Creek systems.

Figure 20.  Boat launch off Baggs Road

Figure 21.  Looking north from Skegemog Point: Elk 
Lake to the left, Lake Skegemog on the right



Whitewater Township Master Plan	 17

Old M 72

E
l

k
L

a
k

e

Lake
Skegem

og

M 72

E
lk

La
ke

Sand Lakes

B
ro

om
he

ad

Supply

W
ill

ia
m

sb
ur

g

C
oo

k

Angell

C
ra

m

Lossie

Deal

M
oo

re

Vi
nt

on

M
un

ro

Park

Crisp

Gay

Diago
na

l

Watson

S
ke

ge
m

og
P

oi
nt

Lackey

Bunker Hill

Dead Horse

North Branch

Hawley

Palaestrum

Whitney M
ab

el

Townline

Ayers
Miami Beach

Grand Traverse County
Whitewater Township

5777 Vinton Road - PO Box 159 - Williamsburg, MI 49690
(231) 267 5141 - FAX (231) 267 9020

Source: Grand Traverse County
Equalization Department & Michigan Center

for Geographic Information
Map Created: June 2010

0 1 20.5
Miles

Major Watersheds

Boardman

Elk

Figure 22.  Map of Whitewater Township Major Watersheds



18	 Whitewater Township Master Plan 

Figure 23.  Elk Lake Road near the corner of Angell Road

Figure 24.  M-72 at Turtle Creek Casino



Whitewater Township Master Plan	 19

Part 4
Public Participation in the Development of the Master Plan

Realizing that community input is an essential ele-
ment in the creation of a Master Plan, it is the goal 
of the Planning Commission to involve and inform 
all residents in the planning and development of 
Whitewater Township. This can be accomplished 
by attending meetings, registering for monthly 
e-newsletters, or direct contact with Township 
Representatives.

The Planning Commission began a complete re-
write of the Master Plan with two Open Houses, one 

in March and again in May of 2009. The structure 
of the Open Houses consisted of 7 stations, each 
manned by a Planning Commissioner. The purpose 
of the Open Houses was to provide a casual venue 
in which Planning Commissioners could learn the 
attitudes and opinions of township residents and 
landowners regarding the direction of Whitewater 
Township. 

Following the Open Houses, the Planning 
Commission established a Survey Design 

Figure 25.  Aerial view of Williamsburg, looking south along Elk Lake Road (bottom). 1955.



20	 Whitewater Township Master Plan 

Team. The Team consisted of 
two Township trustees, two 
Planning Commissioners and 
a Citizen at Large. The Team 
hired a Consultant, McKenna 
Associates Inc. to assist with the 
survey’s preparation, dissemi-
nation and result compilation. 
The Whitewater Township 
Community Input Survey of 2009 
was sent to all property owners 
resulting in the mailing of 1425 
surveys, with an excellent return 
of 560 (39%). (See appendix)

Subsequent to the presentation of 
the Survey results in November of 
2009, the Planning Commission 
created six committees corre-
sponding with the Open House 
topic stations. Many additional 
meetings were held with inter-
ested citizens, property owners 
and proprietors to discuss issues 
relevant to their specific interests.

Over recent years, Whitewater 
Township has compiled an e-mail 
list of over 400 Township resi-
dents. Residents on the e-mail list 
receive a newsletter each month 
from township officials regarding 

current issues and events going 
on throughout the Township. This 
has proven to be a great asset to 
the community, keeping residents 
informed and up to date on the 
current status of the Township.

Figure 26.  Looking east along Old M-72 with the Williamsburg depot near the center of the photograph 

Figure 27.  Scofield School, later called the Williamsburg School. SW 
corner of M-72 and Williamsburg Roads. 1888



Whitewater Township Master Plan	 21

Part 5
Future Land Use Plan

The Future Land Use Plan serves as a general guide to the Township’s future development. The Future Land 
Use Plan is based on and is in strong alignment with our existing land use, development patterns, and the 
goals and policies defined in this Master Plan. The Future Land Use Plan is expected to be made up of the 
following Districts and Overlay Zones. Periodic review and revision is necessary and should be expected.

A-1 – Agriculture:  Districts are intended to encompass those areas of the Township where the principal 
activity is farming. While residential uses are allowed, deference is given to Agricultural uses. 

RC: 

•	 	Public Recreation/Conservation Districts are intended to protect and preserve publicly held land 
that provides parks, recreation and helps maintain the rural character of our Township.

•	 	Low Density Residential Districts are intended for private developments within areas where pub-
lic recreation/conservation is the predominate use. 

R-1 - High Density Residential:   Districts are intended for areas compatible with high density devel-
opment. This land use is planned for areas with adequate roads and where environmental conditions are 
capable of supporting development. 

R-2 - Medium Density Residential:   Districts are intended for areas compatible with medium density 
development. This land use is planned for areas with adequate roads and where environmental conditions 
are capable of supporting development. 

R-3 – Multiple Family Residential: Districts are intended for areas compatible with multiple family dwell-
ing units. This land use is planned for areas with adequate roads and where environmental conditions are 

capable of supporting develop-
ment. 

MHP - Manufactured Home 
Park:  Districts are intended to 
provide for manufactured home 
parks. This land use is planned 
for areas with adequate roads 
and where environmental con-
ditions are capable of supporting 
development. 

V – Village District Mixed-
Use/Village:   Districts are 
intended to include a mixture of Figure 28.  The New Stores, Williamsburg 



22	 Whitewater Township Master Plan 

rivers

lakes

roads

Zoning Districts
R1-Residential

R2-Residential

R3-Residential

RC-Recreational

A1-Agriculture

C1-Commerical

N-Industrial

V Village

COPUD Corridor Overlay PUD

PUD Planned Unit Development

MHP Mobile Home Park

Whitewater Township

Zoning Map

Figure 29.  Whitewater Township Current Zoning Map

MHP Manufactured Home Park

Current Zoning Map



Whitewater Township Master Plan	 23

rivers

lakes

roads

Zoning Districts
R1-Residential

R2-Residential

R3-Residential

RC-Recreational

A1-Agriculture

C1-Commerical

N-Industrial

V Village

COPUD Corridor Overlay PUD

PUD Planned Unit Development

MHP Mobile Home Park

Whitewater Township

Zoning Map
±

Figure 30.  Whitewater Township Land Use Plan

R-1 - High Density Residential

R-2 - Medium Density Residential

R-3 - Multiple Family Residential

RC - Recreational/Conservation 
- Low Density Residential

A-1 - Agricultural

C-1 - Commercial

N - Industrial

V - Village District Mixed-Use 

COPUD - Corridor Overlay PUD

PUD - Planned Unit Development

MHP - Manufactured Home Park

Future Land Use Plan



24	 Whitewater Township Master Plan 

commercial, office, service, apart-
ment, townhouse and single fam-
ily residential and may contain 
small lots, and shallow building 
setbacks.

C-1 – Commercial:  Districts are 
intended to accommodate the sale 
of goods and services that may 
generate higher traffic volumes. 

N – Industrial:  Districts are 
intended to accommodate ware-
house, research, laboratory, and 
light industrial uses. This land use 
is planned for areas with adequate 
roads and where environmental 
conditions are capable of support-
ing development. 

Overlay Zones (General)

Overlay zones superimpose additional regulatory 
standards on existing zoning districts. An overlay 
zone can establish additional regulation, or reduce 
or extend existing uses to address issues that are 
unique to a particular area.

PUD – Planned Unit Development: Residential 
setbacks and lot size restrictions are relaxed when 
offset by a required area of land set aside in a re-
stricted manner. Commercial use is intended to 
allow higher density mixed use that is compatible 
with the existing features and development. Both 
forms are subject to state and township regulations. 
This land use is planned for areas with adequate 
roads and where environmental conditions are ca-
pable of supporting development. 

COPUD – Corridor Overlay Planned Unit Devel-
opment: These are intended to provide additional 
zoning tools and guidelines to create consistency 
and shared access along the major transportation 
corridors that run through our Township.

Figure 31.  Elk Lake Inn, “The Charm of The Wilds with the Comforts of 
The City.”

Figure 32.  Hi Pray pitching for Western State, (Western 
Michigan University)



Whitewater Township Master Plan	 25

Part 6
Transportation Plan

The purpose of the Township road system is to provide safe and efficient movement of people and goods 
within and through the Township. The Michigan Department of Transportation (MDOT) and the Grand 
Traverse County Road Commission share the responsibility for upgrades and maintenance of all the public 
roads within Whitewater Township. 

Transportation Plan Designations

Regional Arterials

Regional arterials are designed to carry heavy 
volumes of traffic. Some examples are freeways, 
multi-lane highways and other heavily traveled 
roadways that supplement the interstate sys-
tem. M-72 is the main roadway that connects 
Traverse City to I-75 and is the only Regional 
Arterial Road in the township. 

Major Arterials

Major arterials include roads that accommodate 
moderate to heavy traffic volumes. Whitewater 
Township’s major arterials are Elk Lake Road, 
Williamsburg Road, and Supply Road.

Principal Collectors

Principal collectors provide access to residen-
tial, commercial, industrial and/or farm uses; 
these connect local roads to arterials. These 
carry lower volumes of traffic than major arteri-
als. Only Angell Road is classified as a principal 
collector.

Secondary Collectors

Secondary collectors deliver access to land 
uses, but traffic volumes are significantly lower 
than Regional/Major Arterial and Principal 
Collectors. Deal, Skegemog Point, Cook, 
Broomhead, Ayers, Cram, Palaestrum and 
Hawley Roads are classified as secondary col-
lector roads. 

Figure 33.  P.M. Wreck, Mable [sic], Mich., July 19, 1910

Figure 34.  P.M. Wreck, Mable [sic], Mich., July 19, 1910



26	 Whitewater Township Master Plan 

Local Roads

Local roads support access to individual properties 
and typically have moderate to low speeds and traf-
fic. Gay Road, Hursh Road, and Vinton are consid-
ered local roads.

Tourist Roads

Tourist roads are the backbone of our area’s tourism 
industry. Providing access to all that Whitewater 
Township has to offer, these roads need to be in the 
best possible condition to provide safe and efficient 
flow of traffic. These roads include: 

•	 Baggs Road, an access to Skegemog (Round) 
Lake. It also provides access to the south side 
of the lake and a public access.

•	 Park Road, providing access to Whitewater 
Township Park (it is the only boat launch 
ramp on the west side of the lake).

•	 Broomhead Road, allowing access to the 
Sand Lakes Quiet Area and parts of the 
Boardman River.

Seasonal Roads

Seasonal roads receive no winter maintenance and 
limited maintenance throughout the year. All sea-
sonal roads are posted as such. These include: Roots 
Lake, Samels, Guernsey Lake, Sand Lakes, and nu-
merous others.

Private Roads

Private roads are privately owned and maintained 
for access to private property.

Pedestrian and Bike Path 

Non-motorized transportation and recreation is 
gaining popularity. With support from landowners 
and residents, the Whitewater Township Planning 
Commission will monitor and assist the various 
collaborative groups of the area in developing a 
non-roadway focused network of trails throughout 
Northwest Michigan.

Figure 35.  Railroad hand cars at the Williamsburg depot



Whitewater Township Master Plan	 27

k

k

k

k

k

k

k

14

11

13

0104 0203

23

18

08

30

05

31

19

20

2628 27

15

22

33

34 36

09 10

14

35

34

3332

27

3532

23

28

29

24

17

13

26

12

21

25

09

24

15

1008

29

1617

16

25

21

20

22

36

04 0305

E M 72

EL
K

 L
A

KE
 R

D

N 
B

R
O

O
M

H
EA

D
 R

D

SAND LAKES RD

W
IL

LI
AM

SB
UR

G
 R

D

SUPPLY RD

OLD M 72 CO
O

K 
R

D

M
O

O
R

E 
R

D

CR
A

M
 R

D

BA
G

G
S 

R
D

ANGELL RD

M
U

N
RO

 R
D

DEAL RD

PARK RD

CRISP RD

SK
EG

EM
O

G
 P

O
IN

T 
R

D

VI
N

TO
N

 R
D

DIA
GONAL RD

GAY RD

WATSON RD

BUNKER HILL RD

DEAD HORSE RD

LACKEY RD

HAWLEY RD

TOWNLINE RD

GUERNSEY LAKE RD

LOSSIE RD

NORTH BRANCH RD

STROM
B

O
LIS

R
D

SA
M

EL
S 

R
D

BUC K
RD

HURSH RD

P E RCH LAKE RD

WHITNEY RD

ROOTS LAKE RD

O DELL RD

CARNS RD

PALAESTRUM RD

M
A

B
EL

 R
D

O

RCHARD LN

MIAMI BEAC H RD

AR
N

O
LD

 R
D

WHEELER OAKS DR

B
O

W
M

AN
R

D

AYERS RD

INN
IS

LN

FA
R

R
EL

L 
R

D

H

ANNA
RD

L ATHA M
CT

ISLAND

VIEW
D

R

EL
K

 L
A

KE
 T

R
L

TRU A X L AKE
RD

HE
IG

ES
 T

R
L

FA
IR

VIE
W

A
V

E

OK AIYO KA R D
LAKESIDE TRL

WHEELER PINES DR

LANDON
L

N

CHURCH ST

LARSEN RD

WOODCREST LN

CUS H MAN CT

TO
PVIEW

 D
R

S
MUNCIE LAKE RD

CLEA
RVIEW

 D
R

DU
R

G
A 

R
D

DE
A

L 
R

ID
G

E

APPLEW
O

O
D

 LN

IS
LA

ND
 L

AK
E 

RD

MAPLE ST

SU
M

M
ER

TI
M

E 
TR

L

M
ER

R
IL

L 
RI

D
G

E 
D

R

LI
ND

ER
LE

AF
 L

N

ERICKSON RD

BA
TT

LE
 C

R
EE

K
 T

R
L

AMOS WOOD DR

LOSSIE

RD

LOSSIE RD

EL
K

 L
A

KE
 T

R
L

ELK LAKE

EAST ARM GRAND TRAVERSE BAY

ISLAND LAKE

PETOBEGO LAKE

PETOBEGO POND

DOLLAR LAKE

TRUAX LAKE

INDIAN LAKE

SAND LAKESSAND LAKES

MILL POND

SAND LAKES

ROOTS LAKE

SAND LAKES

TWIN LAKES

MUNCIE LAKE

TWIN LAKES

PERCH LAKE
BULLHEAD LAKE

DEAD HORSE LAKE

WHITEWATER TOWNSHIP
BASE MAP

µ

LEGEND

k ELk/Skegemog Lake Public Access

WWRoads
CODE

UNCERT. - PAPER ROAD

CERT. - PAVED - US-STATE HWY

CERT. - PAVED - MINOR ARTERIALS

CERT. - PAVED - MAJOR COLLECTOR

CERT. - GRAVEL - LOCAL

CERT. - PAVED - LOCAL

UNCERT. - PAVED

UNCERT. - GRAVEL

CERT. - SEASONAL

Figure 36.  Whitewater Township Base Map



28	 Whitewater Township Master Plan 

Figure 37.  Twin Lake shoreline  (along Williamsburg Road)

Part 7
Natural Areas Plan

The citizens of Whitewater Township have always held a special appreciation for the tremendous wealth 
of our wild natural areas. This township contains numerous lakes and streams, as well as substantial state 
forest and local township park lands. It is our intent to work towards protecting these valuable public 
resources by encouraging preservation of the publicly held land, improving perimeter and parking signage 
where needed, to reduce or prevent conflict with neighboring properties, and to improve and maintain 
public access ensuring that these areas will be enjoyed for generations.



Whitewater Township Master Plan	 29

Appendix
Image Credits

All historical photographs courtesy of Whitewater 
Township Historical Society. 

Ink Rendering: Figure 11, page 7 drawn by Jennifer 
Oakley, and used with permission.

Cover photo and figures 9, 18, 20, 21, 24 and 37 
courtesy of Tom Johnson.

Chart Data Credits

NWMCOG Population Projections and U.S. Census 
Population Record

Chart 1: Data compiled by Northwest Michigan 
Council of Governments using Bureau of the 
Census, Decennial Census. 

Chart 2: Age Distribution Data Driven Detroit anal-
ysis of Census 2000 and Census 2010, data from the 
U.S. Census Bureau, further compiled by Northwest 
Michigan Council of Governments.

Table 1: Household Trends Source Data Driven 
Detroit analysis of Census 2000 and Census 2010 
data from the U.S. Census Bureau and further 
compiled by Northwest Michigan Council of 
Governments.

Chart 3: State Equalized Value for Real Property by 
percentage. Data provided by Whitewater Township 
Assessor, Dawn Plude-Kuhns.

Chart 4: Existing Land Use: data provided by Grand 
Traverse County GIS Department.

Chart 5: Data from Whitewater Township Treasurer 
for the 2013/2014 Fiscal year ending 3-31-2014.

Map Credits

Location map of Whitewater Township: Generated 
using Grand Traverse County GIS information.

WWT Property Ownership: Generated using Grand 
Traverse County GIS information.

Existing Land Use in Whitewater Township: 
Generated using Grand Traverse County GIS infor-
mation.

WWT Wetlands Map: Generated using Grand 
Traverse County GIS information.

WWT Major Watersheds Map: Generated using 
Grand Traverse County GIS information.

WWT Current Zoning Map: Generated using Grand 
Traverse County GIS information.

WWT Future Land Use Plan: Generated using 
Grand Traverse County GIS information.

WWT Base Map: Supplied by Grand Traverse 
County GIS Department.

Other Sources of Information

Historical Information: Provided by Luann Snider, 
and compiled by the Whitewater Township Planning 
Commission.

Michigan Planning Act: http://www.legislature.
mi.gov/(S(xj3g1jal1er4tq45ve4x5vuz))/documents/
mcl/pdf/mcl-act-33-of-2008.pdf

Michigan Zoning Act: http://www.legislature.
mi.gov/(x3eqqx2ix0ez34nsk1zysl45)/documents/
mcl/pdf/mcl-Act-110-of-2006.pdf

WWT 2009 Community Input Survey: Conducted 
by McKenna Associates, Inc.



30	 Whitewater Township Master Plan 



Ron Popp <supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com>

Packet 7
1 message

Heidi Vollmuth <heidivyourtrustee@gmail.com> Thu, Sep 14, 2023 at 6:36 PM
To: supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com

Land Division MSU

Land Division Act basics for landowners - MSU Extension.pdf
250K

https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?ui=2&ik=d5568a8cbf&view=att&th=18a95d659672c930&attid=0.1&disp=attd&realattid=d6bfe76f6bb86186_0.1&safe=1&zw


Land Division Act basics for landowners

Brad Neumann, Michigan State University Extension - March 24, 2020

Current and prospective owners of land in Michigan will benefit from understanding

some basics of the Land Division Act.

https://www.canr.msu.edu/people/brad_neumann
https://www.canr.msu.edu/outreach
http://www.legislature.mi.gov/documents/mcl/pdf/mcl-Act-288-of-1967.pdf


A 640 acre section of land showing proposed divisions of the northwest quarter of the northwest
quarter (parent parcel A).

As the name suggests, the Land Division Act, MCL 560.101 et seq. (formerly known as
the Subdivision Control Act), regulates the separation of land into two or more small

parcels as well as sets standards for creating subdivision lots. The statute includes
numerous details – the most significant of which will be highlighted here. This article is

not a substitute for reading and understanding the entirety of the statute, but rather to

inform landowners of the basics.

Michigan State University Extension states that the first thing a landowner should know
about the Land Division Act is that any division of land that will result in one or more of

the parcels being less than 40 acres (or the equivalent) is subject to local government

review. Only after that review can the owner market, sell or record the property with the
county Register of Deeds. The review is at the township, village or city (and sometimes

county) level. A local official, not a committee or board, is assigned the responsibility to
approve or deny proposed land divisions. Most often, it is the local government tax

assessor or the zoning administrator.

The second thing landowners should know is that the number of allowable divisions

depends on the size of the ‘parent parcel.’ The ‘parent parcel’ is whatever the shape and
size of the parcel was as of March 31, 1997. If, on that date, there were two or more

adjacent parcels under identical ownership, then the entire land area under common
ownership is considered the parent tract. In addition, land held under land contract, or

land professionally surveyed and actively marketed for sale, but not recorded with the

Register of Deeds as of March 31, 1997, would be considered the parent parcel. Again,
the Land Division Act prescribes the number of allowable divisions based on the size of

the parent parcel. For example, a 40-49.9 acre parent parcel is allowed 7 divisions; a 30-
39.9 acre parent parcel is allowed 6 divisions; and a 20-29.9 acre parent parcel is

allowed 5 divisions.

If the parent parcel has already been divided, a landowner might wish to determine if

additional divisions can be made. One would need to determine:

The total number of divisions allowed for the parent parcel

Minus the number of divisions that have already been approved by the local
government (even if not yet sold)

http://www.msue.anr.msu.edu/


Minus the number of divisions transferred to a resulting parcel (i.e. the number of

divisions the original owner transferred to buyers of any already sold divisions)

The resulting sum is the number of divisions allowed for the remainder of the parent
parcel. A landowner should explore his/her property’s deed or chain of title and consult

with the local assessor to confirm the number of divisions that are available, if any. If

divisions are available, has sufficient time passed in order to begin exercising the division
rights (i.e. 10 years since being recorded)? If no divisions are available, because all have

already been made, or because no divisions were assigned from the parent parcel, or
insufficient time has passed (i.e. at least 10 years since being recorded), the parcel

cannot be further divided unless 10 years have elapsed since the parcel was recorded

with the county Register of Deeds. After that time, the division can be split further
(referred to as re-divisions). The total number of re-divisions allowed within a division

(parcel) is based on another sliding scale related to the size of the division.

The local unit of government where the parcel is located should have a detailed

application form for reviewing land division requests. An application form is needed to
determine the number of divisions and re-divisions allowed. This also helps maintain

detailed property records. The form requires property information and history so that
the land division official conducting the review can ensure that the resulting divisions or

re-divisions will (from MCL 560.109):

Have an adequate and accurate legal description;

Not be narrower than 4:1 (parcel depth to width ratio for parcels less than 10 acres);
Meet the minimum parcel width required in the zoning ordinance, if applicable;

Meet the minimum parcel size required in the zoning ordinance, if applicable;
Be accessible by a public road, private road, easement or other similar means (as

required by the local land division or zoning ordinance);

Not exceed the maximum number of divisions for the parent parcel, or the number
of re-divisions for the division;

Have adequate easements for public utilities from the parcel to existing public
utility facilities;

Not result in land-locking a cemetery; and

Not have any unpaid property taxes and/or special assessments due for the last five
years.



MSU is an affirmative-action, equal-opportunity employer, committed to achieving excellence through a diverse
workforce and inclusive culture that encourages all people to reach their full potential.

Michigan State University Extension programs and materials are open to all without regard to race, color, national
origin, gender, gender identity, religion, age, height, weight, disability, political beliefs, sexual orientation, marital
status, family status or veteran status. Issued in furtherance of MSU Extension work, acts of May 8 and June 30,
1914, in cooperation with the U.S. Department of Agriculture. Quentin Tyler, Director, MSU Extension, East
Lansing, MI 48824. This information is for educational purposes only. Reference to commercial products or trade
names does not imply endorsement by MSU Extension or bias against those not mentioned.

The 4-H Name and Emblem have special protections from Congress, protected by code 18 USC 707.

We comply with the Federal Trade Commission 1998 Children’s Online Privacy Protection Act (COPPA)
(https://www.ftc.gov/enforcement/rules/rulemaking-regulatory-reform-proceedings/childrens-online-privacy-
protection-rule).

Based solely on the Land Division Act, the local government review of divisions and re-

divisions is for the above nine things. In a local government jurisdiction with zoning
and/or a separate local land division ordinance, proposed land divisions must also satisfy

the standards of those local ordinances. Again, any division can be re-divided after the
passage of 10 years.

From many years of experience responding to Land Division Act questions, Michigan
State University Extension land use educators have found that not all local units of

government follow a thorough procedure and do the necessary research to verify
whether divisions or re-divisions are allowed. It is in a landowner’s best interest to

complete a detailed application to facilitate having clear title to one’s land and avoid

legal battles after the fact. If interested in dividing your land, contact your local unit of
government at the number provided on your tax bill or local government website.

  

This article was published by Michigan State University Extension. For more information,

visit https://extension.msu.edu. To have a digest of information delivered straight to your
email inbox, visit https://extension.msu.edu/newsletters. To contact an expert in your

area, visit https://extension.msu.edu/experts, or call 888-MSUE4MI (888-678-3464).

https://www.ftc.gov/enforcement/rules/rulemaking-regulatory-reform-proceedings/childrens-online-privacy-protection-rule
http://www.msue.anr.msu.edu/
http://www.msue.anr.msu.edu/program/info/land_use_education_services
http://www.msue.msu.edu/
https://extension.msu.edu/
https://extension.msu.edu/newsletters
https://extension.msu.edu/experts


Whitewater Township 
577 Vinton Road | P.O. Box 159 
Williamsburg, Michigan 49690 

 
231-267-5141                      www.whitewatertownship.org zoning@whitewatertownship.org 

 
 

AUGUST 2023 ZOING REPORT 

Baggs Road / Site Condo Development 

Upon the direction of the Whitewater Township Board, the Zoning Board of Appeals did conduct a public 

hearing at their regularly scheduled August 24th, 2023 meeting to consider the application for a variance 

from the terms and provisions of ordinance No. 26 – being the Whitewater Township Land Division 

Ordinance.  After considerable public comment, deliberations, findings, and conclusions, the ZBA granted 

a variance to the subject parcel from the 4:1 (four to one) depth to width ratio requirement. 

Considering the above variance being granted, the Zoning Administrator has submitted a request for 

action to be considered by the Township Board, attached and made a part of this report. 

SHORT-TERM RENTALS 

Multiple staff reports in the past years have mentioned the fact that the ZA was receiving an inordinate 

amount of calls inquiring about various aspects related to the short-term rental of dwellings in 

Whitewater Township.  Shortly after the winter tax newsletter and a posting on the website made it clear 

that short-term rentals were indeed ‘not’ a permitted use, the calls, personal inquiries, and emails 

increased exponentially related to short-term rentals.  The short-term rental property owners are 

concerned about the return on their investment, and the neighbors are concerned about the effects on 

their quality of life. 

Briefly, it has become a compliance / enforcement nightmare that the Township should consider dealing 

with.  It absorbs an unusual amount of administrative time that was not previously accounted for.   Many 

communities have ordinances in place that respect everyone’s individual property rights. 

TRAINING OPPORTUNITY 

The Michigan Townships Association is back with their professional development retreats.  As a previous 

attendee, I can highly recommend the quality of this unique training and networking opportunity.  

Training this year is October 3rd and 4th in Harbor Springs. 

PLANNING COMMISSION | MASTER PLAN | ZONING ORDINANCE 

Please – make time to look at the progress being made both on the Master Plan and the reorganization 

of the Zoning Ordinance.  It is very apparent that the resident outreach committee has been a 

tremendous benefit on behalf of Whitewater Township.  The ‘draft’ master plan to date, can be found 

here.  Pages 12 and 13 of the September 2023 PC Packet will give a brief overview of the work being 

done on the Zoning Ordinance. 

For your review, 

 
Whitewater Township 

http://www.whitewatertownship.org/
mailto:zoning@whitewatertownship.org
https://michigantownships.org/learning/pro-dev-retreat/
https://www.whitewatertownship.org/uploads/2/1/9/6/21966412/working_document_wwt_master_plan___chapters_1_4.pdf
https://www.whitewatertownship.org/uploads/2/1/9/6/21966412/working_document_wwt_master_plan___chapters_1_4.pdf
https://www.whitewatertownship.org/uploads/2/1/9/6/21966412/agendapacket_090623.pdf
https://www.whitewatertownship.org/uploads/2/1/9/6/21966412/agendapacket_090623.pdf


Whitewater Township       231-267-5141 
5777 Vinton Road – P.O. Box 159    www.whitewatertownship.org 
Williamsburg, Michigan 49690 
 

 
August 31, 2023 
 
REQUEST FOR ACTION BY THE WHITEWATER TOWNSHIP BOARD 
 
Re: Parcel #28-13-136-001-02 | a/k/a: 6631 Baggs Road – Williamsburg, Michigan 49690 
 

 
• At a special meeting on May 3, 2023, the Whitewater Township Board by way of a motion declared that the 

above-referenced parcel is not eligible for any building permits or zoning approvals such as special land use 
approval or site plan approval. 

 

• At a June 20, 2023 meeting, the Whitewater Township Board directed the ZBA to hear an application for a 
variance related to the above referenced parcel, requesting a deviation from the 4:1 (four to one) lot depth to 
width ratio requirements. 
 

• At an August 24, 2023, meeting, the Whitewater Township Zoning Board of Appeals did grant a variance from 
the 4:1 (four to one) lot depth to width ratio requirements for parcel #28-13-136-001-02. 
 

Based upon the above occurrences, the findings relied upon at the May 3, 2023 meeting wherein the above-referenced 
parcel was declared ‘not eligible for any building permits or zoning approvals such as special land use approval or site 
plan approval’ by the Whitewater Township Board, appear to have been negated.  
 
The Zoning Board of Appeals was ‘not’ authorized to consider an appeal of the May 3, 2023 decision of the Whitewater 
Township Board. 
 

 
Possible motion language: 
Motion to rescind the motion of the Whitewater Township Board made on May 3, 2023, declaring that parcel #28-13-
136-001-02 is not eligible for any building permits or zoning approvals such as special land use approval or site plan 
approval; further, finding that based upon the variance granted from the 4:1 (four to one) lot depth to wi dth ratio 
requirements by the Zoning Board of Appeals on August 24, 2023, that the subject property is  now in compliance with 
all applicable Whitewater Township ordinances. 
 

 
Detailed information on properly rescinding a motion can be found on this MSUE [Michigan State University Extension] 
web page. 
 
(https://www.canr.msu.edu/news/parliamentary_procedure_what_is_a_motion_to_rescind ) 
 
Thank you for your prompt attention to this matter, 
 

 
 
Robert (Bob) Hall 
Whitewater Township | Zoning Administrator 

 
 

http://www.whitewatertownship.org/
https://www.canr.msu.edu/news/parliamentary_procedure_what_is_a_motion_to_rescind
https://www.canr.msu.edu/news/parliamentary_procedure_what_is_a_motion_to_rescind
https://www.canr.msu.edu/news/parliamentary_procedure_what_is_a_motion_to_rescind


1 

 Office of the 
Whitewater Township 
Supervisor  

Memo 
To: Whitewater Township Board of Trustees 

CC: None 

Date: 9.19.2023 

Re: Campground & Park Improvement Project Needs      

 

Board Members –  

 

     This business item is presented to allow Trustee Don Glenn and/or Ron Popp a forum to the Board 

to discuss any relevant matters regarding the camping park or the Park Improvement Project. 

No motion pending further Board input.  

 

 

                Respectfully submitted, 

  

Whitewater Township FOIA Coordinator  

Supervisor, Whitewater Township  


	9.19.2023 Special Township Board Agenda
	Corr 1 Memo Correspondence for 9.19.2023
	Corr 2 Zoning Board of Appeals Decision - 6631 Baggs Road Appeal (1)
	Corr 3 Goss email Zoning Board of Appeals Decision - 6631 Baggs Road Appeal (1)
	Corr 4 Gmail - Re_ Ex parte_
	Corr 5 Beam Gmail - Ex parte_
	Corr 6 Van Solkema Gmail - Re_ Variance approved
	Corr 7 Herring Gmail - Variance approved
	Corr 8 Beam Gmail - ZBA notification
	Corr 8a Goss Gmail - ZBA Decision Form - 6631 Baggs Road Appeal
	Corr 9 Goss Gmail - ZBA Decision Form - 6631 Baggs Road Appeal
	Corr 10 Fox Gmail - Email from Denny and Jan Fox
	Corr 11 Gmail - Baggs rd development
	Corr 11a Beam 3 Gmail - Conduct of Treasurer
	Corr 12a - Gmail - RE_ Regarding the Requested Variance for Baggs Rd Condos
	Corr 13 Patterson Gmail - RE_ Baggs Rd Appeal
	Corr 14 Beam Gmail - Re_ ZBA
	Corr 15 Hymore Gmail - Request for Copy of Baggs Partners, LLC Variance Request - 6631 Baggs Rd_
	Corr 16 Hymore Gmail - Re_ ZBA
	Corr 17 Beam 1 Gmail - Re_ ZBA
	Corr 18 ZA Gmail - RE_ ZBA
	Corr 19 ZA Gmail - Variance Request
	Corr 20 Patterson Gmail - RE_ Whitewater Twp - ZBA
	Corr 21 ZA Gmail - RE_ Whitewater Twp - ZBA
	Corr 22 Beam Gmail - Would like a response
	Corr 23 Patterson Gmail - FW_ 6631 Baggs Rd Attorney Fees Refund
	Corr 24 Gmail - RE_ Comments Regarding Corr Goss Whitewater Township Boards Decision to Send 6631 Baggs Rd. to ZBA for Appeal
	Corr 25 Van Solkema Gmail - 6631 Baggs Rd Attorney Fees Refund
	Corr 26 Marshal  - FW_ Comments RegardingMarshall  Whitewater Township Boards Decision to Send 6631 Baggs Rd. to ZBA for Appeal
	Corr 27 Benak Gmail - Re_ Comments Regarding Whitewater Township Boards Decision to Send 6631 Baggs Rd. to ZBA for Appeal
	Corr 28 Hymore Gmail - Comments Regarding Whitewater Township Boards Decision to Send 6631 Baggs Rd. to ZBA for Appeal
	Corr 29 Patterson Gmail - RE_ Comments Regarding Whitewater Township Boards Decision to Send 6631 Baggs Rd. to ZBA for Appeal
	Corr 30 Hymore Gmail - Zoning Board of Appeals Contact Information
	Corr 31 Patterson Gmail - RE_ 6631 Baggs Rd Appeals Process
	Corr 32 Van Solkema Gmail - Trustee's Homework
	Corr 33 Patterson Gmail - RE_ APPEAL - 6631 BAGGS RD - COMPLETED DOCUMENT 6_19_2023
	Corr 34 VanSolkema Gmail - Re_ APPEAL - 6631 BAGGS RD - COMPLETED DOCUMENT 6_19_2023
	Corr 35 Herring Gmail - RE_ APPEAL - 6631 BAGGS RD - COMPLETED DOCUMENT 6_19_2023
	Corr 36 Van Solkema Gmail - Re_ APPEAL - 6631 BAGGS RD - COMPLETED DOCUMENT 6_19_2023
	Corr 37 ZA Gmail - Fwd_ APPEAL - 6631 BAGGS RD - COMPLETED DOCUMENT 6_19_2023
	Corr 38 Goss Gmail - RE_ APPEAL - 6631 BAGGS RD - COMPLETED DOCUMENT 6_19_2023
	Corr 39 Van Solkesma Gmail - Code Enforcement Complaint
	Corr 40 Van Solkesma Gmail - Re_ 06_13_2023 Twp Board Meeting - 6631 Baggs Rd
	Corr 41 Hymore Gmail - Board Meeting Public Comment 6_13_2023 - In the absence of Zoom
	Corr 42 Beam Gmail - Vicki Beam Shipping Container
	Corr 43 Beam Gmail - Comments for board meeting
	Corr 44 Hymore Gmail - Code Enforcement Complaint Closure
	Corr 45 Benak Gmail - Re_ 6631 Baggs Rd Appeals Process
	Corr 46 Beank 1 Gmail - Re_ 6631 Baggs Rd Appeals Process
	Corr 47 Herring Gmail - RE_ 6631 Baggs Rd Appeals Process
	1 Memo Confidential Legal Opinions 9.19.2023
	2 Vollmuth Agenda Submittial 9.15.2023
	2a Heidi email - Agenda packet 1
	2b Heidi email - Agenda packet 2
	2c Heidi email - Agenda Packet 3
	2d Heidi email Packet 4
	2e Heidi email - Agenda Packet 5
	2f Heidi email - Agenda packet 6
	2g Heidi email - Agenda Packet 7
	3 AUGUST 2023-WhtWtr-ZA REPORT-RESCIND
	4 Memo Campground Needs 9.19.2023



